
 

 

 

 
 

                                                                                            

Agenda 

G
u

ild
fo

rd
 

L
o

c
a

l C
o

m
m

itte
e 

We welcome you to 

 Guildford Local Committee 
Your Councillors, Your Community  

and the Issues that Matter to You 

 
  

     

 

Discussion 

 On-Street Parking Review 
 

 Additional Taxi Rank 
Spaces 

 

 Highways Schemes  
Budget 

Venue 
Location:Council Chamber, 

Guildford, Borough 

Council, Millmead, 

Guildford GU2 4BB  

Date: Wednesday, 23 March 

2016 

Time: 7.00 pm 

  
 



 

                                                                                                                                       

 
 
 

You can get 
involved in 
the following 
ways 

 

  G
e
t in

v
o
lv

e
d

 

Ask a question 
 
If there is something you wish know about 
how your council works or what it is doing in 
your area, you can ask the local committee a 
question about it. Most local committees 
provide an opportunity to raise questions, 
informally, up to 30 minutes before the 
meeting officially starts. If an answer cannot 
be given at the meeting, they will make 
arrangements for you to receive an answer 
either before or at the next formal meeting. 
 
 

Write a question 
 
You can also put your question to the local 
committee in writing. The committee officer 
must receive it a minimum of 4 working days 
in advance of the meeting. 
 
When you arrive at the meeting let the 
committee officer (detailed below) know that 
you are there for the answer to your question. 
The committee chairman will decide exactly 
when your answer will be given and may 
invite you to ask a further question, if needed, 
at an appropriate time in the meeting. 
 

          Sign a petition 
 

If you live, work or study in 
Surrey and have a local issue 
of concern, you can petition the 
local committee and ask it to 
consider taking action on your 
behalf. Petitions should have at 
least 30 signatures and should 
be submitted to the committee 
officer 2 weeks before the 
meeting. You will be asked if 
you wish to outline your key 
concerns to the committee and 
will be given 3 minutes to 
address the meeting. Your 
petition may either be 
discussed at the meeting or 
alternatively, at the following 

meeting. 

 

 

Thank you for coming to the Local Committee meeting 
 

Your Partnership officer is here to help.  If you would like to talk        

                          



about something in today’s meeting or have a local initiative or   
concern please contact them through the channels below. 

Email:  joanna.long@surreycc.gov.uk 
Tel:  01483 517336 
Website: http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 

Follow @GuildfordLC on Twitter 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

 



 
 
 

 
 
Surrey County Council Appointed Members  
 
Mr W D Barker OBE, Horsleys 
Mr Mark Brett-Warburton, Guildford South East (Vice-Chairman) 
Mr Graham Ellwood, Guildford East 
Mr David Goodwin, Guildford South West 
Mr George Johnson, Shalford 
Mrs Marsha Moseley, Ash 
Mrs Pauline Searle, Guildford North 
Mr Keith Taylor, Shere (Chairman) 
Mrs Fiona White, Guildford West 
Mr Keith Witham, Worplesdon 
 
Borough Council Appointed Members  
 
Cllr Matt Furniss, Christchurch 
Cllr Nigel Manning, Ash Vale 
Cllr David Bilbe, Normandy 
Cllr Julia McShane, Westborough 
Cllr Tony Phillips, Onslow 
Cllr Tony Rooth, Pilgrims 
Cllr David Wright, Tillingbourne 
Cllr Illman, Shalford 
Cllr Reeve, Clandon & Horsley 
Cllr Sarti, Clandon & Horsley 
 

Chief Executive 
David McNulty 

Borough Council Substitutes 
 
Cllr Caroline Reeves 
Cllr Gill Harwood, Stoughton 
Cllr Goodwin, Friary & St Nicolas 
Cllr Hurdle, Send 
Cllr Parker, Send 
Cllr Parsons, Shalford 
Cllr Randall, Ash Wharf 
Spooner, Ash South & Tongham 
 

 
If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in another format, e.g. 

large print, Braille, or another language please either call Joanna Long on 01483 
517336 or write to the Community Partnerships Team at Surrey County Council, Old 

Millmead House, Millmead, Guildford, GU2 4BB or joanna.long@surreycc.gov.uk 
 

This is a meeting in public.  If you would like to attend and you have any special 
requirements, please contact us using the above contact details. 

 
 



MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE 

 

Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile devices in 
silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of the meeting.   
 
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings.  Please liaise with the 
council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that those attending the meeting 
can be made aware of any filming taking place.   
 
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to no 
interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems, or any 
general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be switched off in 
these circumstances. 
 
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined above, it be 
switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions and interference with PA 
and Induction Loop systems. 
 
 

Thank you for your co-operation 
 

Note:  This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's internet site 
- at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.  
The images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within the Council. 
 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However by entering the meeting room and 
using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those 
images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.   
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the representative of Legal and Democratic 
Services at the meeting. 

1   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr Mark Brett-
Warburton (Vice-
Chairman) 
 

Mr WD Barker OBE 
 

Mr Graham Ellwood Mr David Goodwin 

Guildford South 
East 

Horsleys 
 

Guildford East Guildford South 
East 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Mr George Johnson 
 

Mrs Marsha 
Moseley 
 

Mrs Pauline Searle 
 

Mr Keith Taylor 
(Chairman) 

Shalford Ash 
 

Guildford North Shere 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Local Committee  
(GUILDFORD) 

 
County Councillors 2013-17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Cllr Michael Ilman Cllr David Bilbe Cllr Nigel Manning Cllr Matthew Sarti 
 

Shalford 
 

 
Normandy 
 

 
Ash Vale 
 

 
Clandon & Horsley 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Cllr Matt Furniss 
 

Cllr David Reeve 
 
Clandon and 
Horsley 

Cllr Tony Phillips 
 

Cllr Julia McShane 
 

Christchurch 
 

 
 

Onslow 
 

Westborough 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
Local Committee  

(GUILDFORD) 
 

Borough Council  
Members 2015-16 

Cllr Tony Rooth Cllr David Wright 
 
Tillingbourne 
 

 
Pilgrims 
 

 
For councillor contact details, please contact Joanna Long, Community Partnership and 
Committee Officer (joanna.long@surreycc.gov.uk /01483 517336) 
 
 
 
 



 
1       APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 
 

To receive any apologies for absence and notices of substitutions from Borough 
members under Standing Order 39. 

 

2  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record. 
 

(Pages 1 - 12) 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests from 
Members in respect of any item to be considered at the meeting.  
 
Notes:  

 In line with the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012, declarations may relate to the 
interest of the member, or the member’s spouse or civil partner, or 
a person with whom the member is living as husband or wife, or a 
person with whom the member is living as if they were civil 
partners and the member is aware they have the interest.  
 

 Members need only disclose interests not currently listed on the 
Register of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests.  
 

 Members must notify the Monitoring Officer of any interests 
disclosed at the meeting so they may be added to the Register.  
 

 Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item 
where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest.  

 

 

4  CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
To receive any Chairman’s announcements.  
 

 

5  PETITIONS & LETTERS OF REPRESENTATION 
 
To receive any petitions in accordance with Standing Order 65 or 
letters of representation in accordance with the Local Protocol. An 
officer response will be provided to each petition / letter of 
representation. 
 
The Committee is due to receive two petitions with the following 
requests: 
 
West Clandon – Stop HGVs travelling through village 
 
Hogs Back A31 at Flexford Lane – opposed to gap closure 
 

 

6  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
 

To receive any questions from Surrey County Council electors 
within the area in accordance with Standing Order 66.  
 

 

7  MEMBER QUESTION TIME 
 
To receive any written questions from Members under Standing Order 
47.  
 

 



8  A31 HOG'S BACK GAP AT EAST FLEXFORD LANE (EXECUTIVE 
FUNCTION FOR DECISION) 
 
The committee is asked to consider making a traffic regulation order 
for the closure of East Flexford Lane central reservation gap.  
 

(Pages 13 - 24) 

9  ST JOSEPH'S SCHOOL ZEBRA CROSSING (FOR INFORMATION) 
 
This report provides an update following the December meeting when 
the committee considered a petition for a pelican crossing to replace 
the zebra crossing on the Aldershot Road at St Joseph’s School.  
 

(Pages 25 - 28) 

10  GUILDFORD ON-STREET PARKING REVIEW - PROPOSALS FOR 
GEOGRAPHIC AREAS AND 'AD-HOC' LOCATIONS (EXECUTIVE 
FUNCTION FOR DECISION) 
 
This report presents the representations resulting from the formal 
advertisement of proposals in a number of other geographic areas and 
‘ad-hoc’ locations and recommends that traffic regulation orders are 
made. 
 

(Pages 29 - 
246) 

Representations listed under the annexes 2, 4, 6, 8, 10 and 12 of the report are available 
on line at 
http://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=196&MId=4384&Ver=4 or on 
request from Andrew Harkin On-Street Parking Coordinator, Guildford Borough Council 
01483 444535.  (The printed version of the agenda will have these pages missing.) 
 

11  ADOPTION OF ADDITIONAL HACKNEY CARRIAGE STANDS 
(TAXI RANK SPACE) IN GUILDFORD (EXECUTIVE FUNCTION 
FOR DECISION) 
 
The purpose of this report is to outline Guildford Borough Council’s 
proposals for taxi rank locations in Guildford and to seek the consent 
of the Highways Authority to adopt the proposed locations in this 
report as taxi ranks, subject to public consultation. 
 

(Pages 247 - 
270) 

12  GUILDFORD LOCAL CYCLING PLAN - MINOR IMPROVEMENTS 
(EXECUTIVE FUNCTION FOR DECISION) 
 
As part of the Surrey Transport Plan, the Surrey Cycling Strategy was 
approved by Cabinet in December 2013. The Strategy set out a role 
for Local Committees to oversee the development of Local Cycling 
Plans.  As a result of the public consultation held on the Guildford 
Local Cycling Plan in October and November 2015, a number of minor 
improvements to improve Guildford’s cycle network have been 
identified.   
 

(Pages 271 - 
284) 

13  HIGHWAYS UPDATE (EXECUTIVE FUNCTION FOR DECISION) 
 
This report provides an update on the 2015/16 programmes of 
highway improvement and maintenance works funded by this 
committee and makes recommendations on the allocation of the 
budget for 2016/17, which has been announced since the committee 
last met in December. 
 

(Pages 285 - 
298) 

14  TRANSPORTATION TASK GROUP UPDATE (FOR INFORMATION) 
 
In order to progress the Local Committee for Guildford Committee’s 
transportation work programme a Transportation Task group (TTG) 
was created. The purpose of the task group is to consider local 

(Pages 299 - 
306) 

http://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=196&MId=4384&Ver=4


transportation business on a more frequent and flexible basis than the 
schedule of the full committee allows and to act in an advisory 
capacity to the committee. The TTG membership is made up of 
nominated members from the committee. All formal decisions are 
undertaken by the full committee.  The intention of the report is to 
provide an update on the work of the TTG and the work programme.  
 
 

15  DECISION TRACKER (FOR INFORMATION) 
 
To provide an update on Local Committee decisions. 
 

(Pages 307 - 
316) 

16  FORWARD PLAN (FOR INFORMATION) 
 
The Forward Programme of reports for the Local Committee for 
2016/17. 
 

(Pages 317 - 
320) 

 



DRAFT 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the  
Guildford LOCAL COMMITTEE 

held at 7.00 pm on 8 December 2015 
at Burchatts Farm, Stoke Park, Guildford, GU1 1TU. 

 
 
 

Surrey County Council Members: 
 
 * Mr W D Barker OBE 

* Mr Mark Brett-Warburton (Vice-Chairman) 
* Mr Graham Ellwood 
* Mr David Goodwin 
* Mr George Johnson 
* Mrs Marsha Moseley 
* Mrs Pauline Searle 
* Mr Keith Taylor (Chairman) 
* Mrs Fiona White 
* Mr Keith Witham 
 

Borough / District Members: 
 
 * Cllr Matt Furniss 

* Cllr Nigel Manning 
  Cllr Julia McShane 
* Cllr Tony Phillips 
* Cllr Tony Rooth 
* Cllr David Wright 
* Cllr Illman 
* Cllr Bob McShee 
* Cllr Reeve 
* Cllr Sarti 
 

* In attendance 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

107/15 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  [Item 1] 
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Julia McShane. 
 

108/15 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  [Item 2] 
 
The minutes were agreed as a true and accurate record of the meeting. 
 

109/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  [Item 3] 
 
Councillor Pauline Searle under Item 5 Petitions - St Joseph’s School, 
declared that she was a governor at St Joseph’s school. 
 

110/15 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  [Item 4] 
 

Page 1

ITEM 2



The Chairman informed the meeting that the under Item 5 Petitions, the Hogs 
Back A31  - gap closure proposal at Flexford Lane petition would now be 
addressed at the 23 March 2016 Local Committee. 
 

111/15 PETITIONS  [Item 5] 
 
Four petitions were received. 
 
The Committee received a petition on Parking in the Oval signed by 35 
residents, agreeing with the statement:  
 
We the undersigned are concerned citizens who urge Local Committee 
Guildford to act now to stop abuse and to allow residents to park near their 
homes. 
 
 The Committee NOTED the response of the Parking Manager Guildford 
Borough Council attached to the minutes as Appendix A.   
 
 
The Committee received a petition on Jacobs Well – resurfacing of 
Pavements and roads signed by117 residents, agreeing with the statement:  
 
To ask for your assistance and support in securing some funds in order to 
resurface the now tired footways and roads within Jacob’s Well. 
 
The Committee NOTED the response of the Highways Manager Surrey 
County Council attached to the minutes as Appendix A.   
 
Councillor Witham read out a resolution from a Surrey County Council Full 
Council meeting held earlier in the day on the findings of a survey that 
footways are structurally impaired and that low levels of capital investment will 
result in 40% of pavements being in a poor state of repair in the next few 
years.  A request was made that greater priority is given to repair pavements 
and Cabinet have been asked to undertake a review of resources in this area. 
 
Councillor Pauline Searle commented that councillors don’t always receive 
input on pavements that are to be repaired and she would like to be better 
informed in the future. 
 
The Committee received a petition on St Joseph’s School, Aldershot Road – 
to install a crossing, signed by 230 residents, agreeing with the statement:  
 
We would therefore like to request that Surrey County Council upgrade the 
crossing and install a pelican crossing. 
 
The Committee NOTED the response of the Highways Manager Surrey 
County Council attached to the minutes as Appendix A.   
 
Councillors Fiona White and Pauline Searle gave their full support to the 
petition.  Members discussed whether it was possible to recruit a lolly pop 
person to patrol the crossing however it was County policy not to have this 
role when there was already a crossing outside a school. 
 
 

Page 2

ITEM 2



The Committee received a petition on the Hogs Back A31 – gap closure 
proposal at Flexford Lane – this petition would be addressed at the 23 March 
2016 Local Committee. 
 
 
 

112/15 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  [Item 6] 
 
One formal public question was received from George Harris regarding 
Burpham Lane – traffic management.  A response was tabled and is attached 
to the minutes as Appendix B. 
 
George Harris asked an additional question as to whether traffic speed in 
Burpham Lane would be looked at and whether the police, roads safety teams 
and residents would be involved in this review.  He requested that the whole 
of Burpham Lane be monitored not just the area near the Aldi supermarket. 
 
The Highways Manager responded that speed would be a factor and that this 
was going to be monitored on Burpham Lane, police road safety officers 
would be involved and every effort would be made to involve local residents. 
 

113/15 MEMBER QUESTION TIME  [Item 7] 
 
One Member question was submitted by Councillor Mike Piper Guildford 
Borough Council regarding Weylea Farm rat run. 
 
A response from Highways was tabled and is attached to the minutes as 
Appendix C. 
 
 

114/15 SAFER GUILDFORD PARTNERSHIP ANNUAL UPDATE 2015 (FOR 
INFORMATION)  [Item 8] 
 
Under the provisions of the Crime and Disorder Act (1998) the county council 
is a statutory member of the statutory Safer Guildford Partnership.  The report 
contains an overview of the partnership’s activities in 2015 to enable the Local 
Committee to maintain its overview of community safety in Guildford. 
 
Members were informed that the Guildford Casualty Reduction Group had 
been discontinued as there was duplication with Road Safety Group 
Guildford, the Health and Wellbeing officer, Guildford Borough Council and 
the Community Partnership and Committee Officer were now attending this 
group.  It was commented that CCTV was a vital tool and there was interest in 
the Joint Enforcement Team (JET) team approach currently operating in 
Reigate and Banstead. 
 
The Borough Inspector updated that more of a focus on neighbourhood 
policing would be coming into operation in April 2016.  The new team will be 
called the Area Policing Team and will be made up of existing skilled officers 
who will receive additional training.  These larger more competent 
neighbourhood teams will have more responsibility, respond to jobs and deal 
with community issues.   
 
The inspector updated that police officers have been withdrawn from parish 
council meetings, this gives him more flexibility to move officers around, 

Page 3

ITEM 2



however if there is a specific need in the community they will attend.  He 
reported that the highest number of phone calls they are receiving are from 
hospitals with mental health vulnerable patients going missing.  Members 
asked if a project such as the Haven social cafe would assist with supporting 
people with low level mental health concerns.  The Inspector informed 
Members that they are hoping that a Haven cafe will be set up in Guildford or 
Godalming  
 
 
The Local Committee (Guildford) agreed to: 
 

(i) Note the contents of the annual report of the Safer Guildford Partnership in 
the year 2015 (Annex 1 of the report). 

(ii) Offer comments on the work of the partnership and its priorities. 
(iii) Bear the priorities of the partnership in mind when making decisions on 

funding. 
 
REASONS: 
 
The Committee wishes to receive periodic reports on the work of the Safer Guildford 
Partnership, its achievements and priorities and to consider its contribution to these. 
 
 

115/15 GUILDFORD TOWN CENTRE TRANSPORTATION PACKAGE FEEDBACK 
(EXECUTIVE FUNCTION FOR DECISION)  [Item 9] 
 
The aim of the report was to brief members on the Guildford Town Centre 
Transport Package project which was the subject of a six week consultation 
between 5 October and 15 November 2015, and to agree the package of 
measures to take forward to form the Business Case submission at the end of 
January 2016. 
 
Members asked about the proposed closure of Walnut Tree Close.  Members 
were informed that the Closure of Walnut Tree Close will be an experimental 
closure, after 18 months the data collected will be analysed to see whether 
this should go ahead.  The Transportation Task group would be presented 
with a shortlist of schemes in February 2016 and the group would indicate the 
final schemes to pursue.   
 
Members asked what could be done to increase more car sharing to reduce 
the number of cars on Guildford roads.  The consultation will be looking at 
where the closure will be placed and will have an impact on how the gyratory 
operates.  Work has been done with bus companies e.g. on Surrey lift share 
etc.   
 
The Local Committee (Guildford) agreed to: 
 

(i) Note the results (Annex 1 of the report) of the high level analysis of the 
public engagement event on the Guildford Town Centre Transport 
Package and note that further consideration of the comments received 
will be taken forward to detailed design to progress the scheme and 
develop the business case. 

Page 4

ITEM 2



(ii) Agree the schedule of schemes (Annex 4 of the report) that will be 
developed to establish the most appropriate package of benefits for 
the business case. 

(iii) Note that the Local Committee will be updated on a regular basis 
during the life of the project. 

Reasons: 

To ensure that the Local Committee is kept informed of the scheme 

development, the Local Committee is asked to note the results of the 

analysis of the public engagement event on the Guildford Town Centre 

Transport Package proposals, included in Annex 1, together with 

supporting information of Annex 2 the exhibition panels and Annex 3 

the questionnaire, together with the recommended schedule of 

schemes that will be developed to establish the most appropriate 

benefits for the Business Case for submission to the EM3 LEP on 31 

January 2016 (Annex 4). 

 
116/15 GUILDFORD CYCLING PLAN (EXECUTIVE FUNCTION FOR DECISION)  

[Item 10] 
 
A public consultation of the draft Guildford Cycling Plan was held between the 
5 October and the 16 November 2015, following two stakeholder workshops. 
This report provides a summary of the results of the public consultation, and 
recommends a new approach to capturing public comments and suggestions 
on new cycling infrastructure. This report also asks that the Transportation 
Task Group consider the consultation responses in more detail, including 
undertaking a prioritisation exercise of future cycling infrastructure needs. 
 
It was explained that the Cycling Plan helps to prepare the County Council for 
future funding opportunities.  Members asked what could be done about the 
attitude of drivers towards cyclists and how can people be encouraged to 
cycle to work.  Members were informed that the Drive Smart campaign helps 
to address the attitude of drivers towards cyclists.  The Cycling Strategy also 
covers these issues.  All schemes will be safe for cyclists of all levels with 
basic cycling proficiency.  Officers have worked with 25 businesses in 
Guildford on sustainable transport. 
 
Cllr McShee commented that some of the areas on page 101 of the report 
showing consultation feedback needed to be changed to Worplesdon.  The 
Committee were updated that a code of conduct for cycling is included within 
Surrey County Council’s 'Framework of co-ordinating and approving events on 
Surrey's highway' document.  Good practice guidance and a charter for Cycle 
Sportive Organiser is also being developed. 

 
The Local Committee (Guildford) agreed that: 
 

(i) A rolling engagement programme be established, giving residents an 
online resource to submit suggestions, make comments and review 
completed improvements to cycling infrastructure hosted on the Travel 
SMART website 

Page 5

ITEM 2



(ii) The successful stakeholder workshops established before the public 
consultation period be continued, so the stakeholders have the 
opportunity to discuss developing schemes as well as strategy; 

(iii) The Transportation Task Group considers the consultation responses 
in more detail, with the aim of agreeing and reviewing a prioritised list 
of Cycling Plan actions including infrastructure proposals.  

(iv) The Cycling Plan be incorporated into the Guildford Local Transport 
Strategy.  

(v) Reports seeking future funding for cycle infrastructure can be 
submitted to the Local Committee for consideration 

Reasons: 

The public consultation of the Guildford Local Cycling Plan has 
provided a wealth of well informed, constructive and useful comments 
and suggestions which will help shape the future of cycling Guildford. 
The consultation received an almost unanimously positive response, 
with respondents encouraging the Council to invest in more cycling 
infrastructure and other actions to promote cycling and promote safety.    

In order to facilitate continued dialogue with local stakeholder groups, 
and interested residents, it is recommended to provide a permanent 
online resource for people to submit this information, and where 
updates on Cycling Plan delivery and progress can also be provided to 
the public. It is recognised that the delivery of the Cycling Plan is an 
ongoing process, responding to new infrastructure opportunities, the 
development of new promotional and safety campaigns and the 
progress of the Guildford Local Plan. It is also clear from the 
consultation responses that the design of cycle facilities is of great 
interest to residents, therefore the engagement process needs to be 
maintained as schemes are developed. 

There are a number of lower cost quick wins that have been identified 
during the process which could provide significant benefits to cyclists. 
Alongside the Guildford Transport town centre transport package, 
these may represent an opportunity for earlier implementation. 

 
117/15 PARKING BUSINESS PLAN 2016-19 (EXECUTIVE FUNCTION FOR 

DECISION)  [Item 11] 
 
The aim of the report on the Parking Business Plan for 2016-19 was to make 
recommendations in respect of service improvements, efficiencies and the 
funding of Park and Ride. 
 
Members were concerned that Onslow Park and Ride was not being used 
enough and was not catching people before they drive into the town centre. It 
was suggested that better signage off the A3 or direct access would be 
helpful.  Members were informed that usage at the Onslow Park and Ride had 
increased by 45% in the last year and the County Council are speaking to 
Transport England about signs and access from the A3. 
 

Page 6

ITEM 2



Councillor David Reeve asked about electric charging points, the Parking 
Manger would send information on progress on this. 
 
 
The Local Committee (Guildford) agreed: 
 

(i) that the remaining surplus from on-street parking in Guildford in 2014-15, 
£126,000 is held in reserve to meet future costs of park and ride.  

 
(ii)  that the provision of guards for the park and ride sites is procured as part 

of a wider contract including the guarding for Guildford Borough Council’s 
night-time car park guards. Further that a framework agreement will be 
used if it offers best value.        

 
REASONS: 
 
To improve customer service, help motorists find the most appropriate parking facility 
and to provide funding for the park and ride service. 
 
 

118/15 ON-STREET PARKING REVIEW - PROPOSALS FOR GEOGRAPHIC 
AREAS AND AD-HOC LOCATIONS (EXECUTIVE FUNCTION FOR 
DECISION)  [Item 12] 
 
The report proposed that Burpham and a number of other ‘ad-hoc’ locations 
are progressed to formal advertisement to seek comments, and that traffic 
regulation orders are made in a number of other ‘ad-hoc’ locations that have 
already been formally advertised. 
 
Members asked about a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) in Onslow, the 
Parking officers said this could be added and could be considered as part of 
the Parking Controls in 2016. 
 
 
The Local Committee (Guildford) agreed: 
 

(i) to formally advertise the proposals for the Burpham shopping parade area 
including Burpham Lane, shown in ANNEXE 2, and should any 
representations be received they be reported to a future meeting of the 
Committee for consideration, or if no representations are received, the Traffic 
Regulation Order (TRO) will be made. 

(ii) to formally advertise the proposals for Dorking Road (Chilworth), Lower Road 
(Effingham) and School Lane (Pirbright), shown in ANNEXE 3, and should 
any representations be received they be reported to a future meeting of the 
Committee for consideration, or if no representations are received, the Traffic 
Regulation Order (TRO) will be made.  

(iii) that possible proposals for Ockham Road North (East Horsley) are not 
progressed, following discussions with the local borough and county 
councillors, Surrey Police and East and West Horsley Parish Councils. 

(iv) to defer consideration of the geographic review items covering Avondale area 
around the Ash Vale and North Camp railway stations, Effingham Junction, 
Fairlands, Merrow shopping parade area and Shalford, and those 'ad-hoc' 

Page 7

ITEM 2



items which have generated a 'substantial' number of representations, listed 
in ANNEXE 4, to the March 2016 meeting of the committee, to allow for 
further discussions with local borough and county councillors and other 
interested parties. 

(v) that Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) are made to implement new controls 
and changes to the existing in the ‘ad-hoc’ locations as shown in ANNEXE 6.  

(vi) to formally advertise the proposals for Friars Gate, High Street (Ripley), 
Millmead Terrace, New Cross Road, Ward Street and Woking Road, listed in 
ANNEXE 7, and also including the formalisation of the existing advisory 
disabled space outside No.1 Greville Close, and should any 
representations be received they be reported to a future meeting of the 
Committee for consideration, or if no representations are received, the Traffic 
Regulation Order (TRO) will be made. 

(vii) to correct Minute 85/15 associated with Item 15 which was presented to the 
17 June 2015 meeting of the Local Committee, and subsequently ratified at 
the Committee’s 30 September 2015 meeting, to the version that appears 
within ANNEXE 8 of this report, as it has subsequently been raised that the 
minute was incorrect. 

 
REASONS: 
 
To assist with safety, access, traffic movements, increase the availability of space 
and its prioritisation for various user-groups in various localities, and to make local 
improvements. 
 
To correct an error in the minutes to a previous meeting that has only recently 
become apparent. 
 
 

119/15 HIGHWAYS UPDATE REPORT (EXECUTIVE FUNCTION FOR DECISION)  
[Item 13] 
 
The report provides an update on the 2015/16 programmes of highway 
improvement and maintenance works funded by the committee.  
 
 
The Local Committee (Guildford) agreed to: 
 
(i) Note progress and forecast outturn cost for the 2015/16 programme 

of highway works funded by this committee and described at Annex 1 
of the report. 

Reasons: 
 
The committee was not asked to make any highways decisions at the 
meeting. 

 

 
 

120/15 HIGHWAYS BUDGET (EXECUTIVE FUNCTION FOR DECISION)  [Item 14] 

Page 8

ITEM 2



 
In October the Guildford Transportation Task Group (TTG) met to consider 
budget priorities for 2016/2017, with recommendations coming to this 
committee meeting.  The chairman gave an update on the recent meeting of 
the Transportation Task group looking at the Highways budget. 

Members asked whether the upgraded crossing for St Joseph’s School, 
Aldershot Road could be increased to a high level scheme in the prioritisation 
framework looking at the evidence that had been presented to the Committee 
as part of the petition.   

Action: 
 
The Highways Manager to look into whether it was possible to introduce a 
voluntary crossing patrol as parents had been told that this wasn’t permitted 
as there was a crossing in place.   
 

Members asked whether the Transportation Task group (TTG) saw it as 
prudent to set a 50% budget in anticipation of reductions in the Highways 
budget devolved to the Local Committee in the coming financial year. The 
Chairman explained that based on advice from Highways, the Prioritisation 
Framework and the schemes the Committee could fund setting a 50% budget 
had seemed advisable and the TTG had agreed that any additional funding 
provided could be spent on other schemes. 

The Highways Manager to look at re-prioritising this scheme and check if the 
Police Road Safety Team were involved when the site was checked.  The 
Road Safety Group Guildford is continually monitoring accidents where there 
are 3 or more in one area and has its own budget. The Members agreed to 
formally request from the County Council funding for capital safety schemes. 

Action:  

the Chairman to write to the Leader and Cabinet Member of Highways to 
request capital funding for ITS safety schemes. 

Members queried whether value for money is being achieved from jetting 
expenditure and whether there was a list of gullies and drains in the area.  
Members were informed that there is a list of gullies and drains on the Surrey 
County Council web site.  Covers are now marked with red dots where 
gullies/drains have been cleared and by February 2016 the drain back log 
should be cleared. 

The Local Committee (Guildford) AGREED to: 
 

(i) Agree the capital and revenue allocations recommended by the 
Transportation Task Group and described in this report to a total 
value of £345,000. This reflects 50% of the value of the current 
year budget in anticipation of reductions in the highways budget 
devolved to this committee in the coming financial year. 

(ii) Note that the Transportation Task Group will convene if necessary 
once the Local Committee budget is known in the Spring of 2016. 

(iii) Authorise the Area Highway Manager (AHM) to progress the 
schemes included in the programme in consultation with local 
elected members and associated task groups. 

(iv) Subject to approval of recommendations (i) and (ii) authorise the 
Area Highway Manager to consider and determine any objections 
submitted following the statutory advertisement of the traffic orders 

Page 9

ITEM 2



and notices associated with the programme of schemes, in 
consultation with the Chairman and/or Vice-Chairman of the Local 
Committee and relevant local councillors. 

(v)       Delegate authority to the Area Highway Manager in consultation 
with the Chairman and Vice- Chairman and locally affected 
Members to amend budgets throughout the year if required to 
ensure the budget is allocated in a timely manner. 

(vi)       Agree that Community Enhancement Fund is devolved to each 
County    Councillor based on an equal allocation of £5,000 per 
division 

 
Reasons: 
 
The committee is asked to agree 2016/17 allocations so that scheme design 
can start at the earliest opportunity, increasing confidence in delivery 
 

121/15 TRANSPORTATION TASK GROUP UPDATE (EXECUTIVE FUNCTION 
FOR DECISION)  [Item 15] 
 
The intention of the report is to provide an update of the Transportation Task 
Group work programme and a schedule to the full committee.  
 
 
The Local Committee (Guildford) agreed to: 
 

(i) Note and comment on the work programme and schedule for the 
Transportation Task Group at Annex 1 of the report. 

 
REASONS: 
The purpose of the Transportation Task Group (TTG) is to provide the Guildford 
Local Committee with considered and informed advice. The purpose of the report is 
to keep the full committee informed of matters under consideration by the TTG and 
when those items are likely be brought forward for the attention of the full committee. 
 
 

122/15 CLUSTER UPDATE (EXECUTIVE FUNCTION FOR DECISION)  [Item 16] 
 
The purpose of the report was to review how Cluster funding was used for 
locally derived initiatives during the financial year 2014-15 and to summarise 
the ways in which councillors have allocated the Cluster funding in the second 
year of operation in 2015/16.  Members were also asked to agree that the 
Cluster initiative should continue to operate for the next municipal year and for 
both Guildford Borough Council and the County Council to consider how to 
allocate funding to a Cluster Fund for the next financial year 2016/17 in 
support of this initiative. 
 
Members commented that a broad range of schemes had come forward this year and 
the cluster groups had received good public engagement.  A better mechanism was 
needed for ensuring that each Cluster group allocated a Highways funding element. 
 
The Local Committee (Guildford) agreed to: 
 
(ii) Note the activities undertaken by the Clusters in the first year of operation 

Page 10

ITEM 2



(iii) Note the projects at Annexe 2 of the report supported by the Cluster Fund in 
2015/16. 

(iv) Agree that the Cluster initiative should continue in operation in the next municipal 
year and request that Guildford Borough Council nominate members to the 
relevant Cluster Fund Steering Groups for 2016/17 at the first full Council meeting 
of the municipal year.   

(v) Note that Highways funding may only be spent against highways projects as set 
out in the recommendations within the Highways Budget report 8 December 
2015. 

(vi) Agree that the guidelines and criteria at Annexe 3 of the report can be applied to 
the Guildford Borough Council funds during 2016/17.  

(vii) Agree that any Cluster Fund for 2016/17 be delegated for approval as discussed 
by the Cluster groups to the Surrey County Council Community Partnerships 
Team Leader (West Surrey). 

 
REASONS: 
 
The recommendations support both councils duty to be fully accountable regarding 
the expenditure of public funding. In addition, support the members to fully evaluate 
both the value to local communities and value for money of the Cluster Fund 
approach. 
 
 

123/15 DECISION TRACKER (FOR INFORMATION)  [Item 17] 
 
To note the update on the progress of the Local Committee decisions. 
 

124/15 FORWARD PLAN (FOR INFORMATION)  [Item 18] 
 

125/15 INFORMAL PUBLIC QUESTIONS - ANNEX D   
 
 
 
 
Meeting ended at: 10.03 pm 
______________________________________________________________ 
 Chairman 

Page 11

ITEM 2



This page is intentionally left blank



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 
SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

 
LOCAL COMMITTEE (GUILDFORD) 
 
DATE: 23 MARCH 2016 

LEAD 
OFFICER: 
 

JOHN HILDER 

SUBJECT: A31 HOG’S BACK GAP AT EAST FLEXFORD LANE 
 

DIVISION: SHALFORD 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF ISSUE: 

 
The committee is asked to consider making a traffic regulation order for the closure 
of East Flexford Lane central reservation gap.  
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
The Local Committee (Guildford) is asked to: 
 

(i) Having reviewed the objections to the formally advertised closure of the A31 
central reservation gap at East Flexford Lane at Annex 1 agree that the traffic 
order be made and the gap permanently closed to all road users.   

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
The committee is to agree to the gap closure in the interest of road safety.  
 

 
 
1. BACKGROUND 

 
Road Safety Working Group 
 

1.1 The Road Safety Working Group (RSWG) for Guildford comprises SCC 
highways & road safety officers and the Police road safety officer for western 
Surrey. The group meets several times a year to review accident clusters and 
consider what might be done to reduce collisions. There is dedicated RSWG 
for each of the eleven districts and boroughs within Surrey. 

1.2 The group rely on accident data provided by Surrey Police, who record 
information for Personal Injury Accidents (PIA’s which are accidents the Police 
have attended or have been reported to them).   

1.3 The group consider locations where clusters of accidents have been reported. 
This used to be at sites where three  PIA’s or more had been reported within a 

Page 13

ITEM 8



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

twelve month period, but is now more sophisticated and flexible in identifying 
accident ‘hotspots’. The RSWG will then investigate all accidents that have 
occurred within the previous three years. They try to identify any common 
themes in the Police accident reports in order to identify contributory factors. 
For instance loss of control accidents would suggest an investigation into 
vehicle speeds, warning signs and the skid resistance of the road surface. 

1.4 If the group can identify possible contributory factors they will undertake a site 
visit. 

1.5 In May 2014 the RSWG reviewed accidents at the central reservation gap on 
the A31 Hogs Back at East Flexford Lane. The group noted ‘7 accidents 
involve RT using gap in central reserve’ and that further accident analysis 
would be carried out. The group undertook a site visit and at their next 
meeting in November 2014 they asked that the Area Highway Manager took a 
recommendation to the Local Committee to close the gap. They also 
suggested consultations with residents took place.  

 
Consultation on the proposed closure 
 

1.6 In February 2015 the area highways team wrote to residents advising them of 
the intention to close the gap in the interest of road safety. This was an 
informal consultation and nearly all residents who responded stated they 
would object to the closure. 

1.7 A recommendation to formally advertise closing the gap was taken to the 
March 2015 meeting of the Local Committee who resolved to proceed with 
this process. The committee were advised that there were likely to be 
objections from residents who are directly affected and such objections would 
be reported to a future meeting committee for a decision on whether to 
proceed with the proposed closure. 

1.8 Formal consultation started 7 May 2015 with the publication of the traffic 
regulation order for the closure of the gap. This was advertised in local papers 
and sent to statutory consultees. Anyone wishing to respond or object was 
requested to do so in writing no later than 5 June 2015. 

 
Objections 

 
1.9 Details of responses from residents are set out at Annex 1 each with the 

comments of Road Safety Working Group officers. 

1.10 All 15 respondents strongly objected to the proposed closure and it is 
understood the local Surrey County Councillor has received further objections. 

1.11 The above was reported to the committee meeting in September. In view of 
the strength of objection the Area Highway Manager undertook to review 
possible alternatives to full closure and come forward with recommendations 
at the December meeting of the committee. 

1.12 The Area Highway Manager agreed to meet residents in advance of a further 
report to committee in December 2015. Because this meeting did not take 

Page 14

ITEM 8



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

place before the December meeting the Chairman decided that the report 
should be deferred until today’s meeting, 23 March 2016.  

 
Area Highway Manager Meeting with Residents 
 

1.13 The Area Highway Manager (AHM) has met with residents twice, on the 2nd 
and 9th of March, and the following headings were discussed.  

Accidents at the gap 
  
1.14 At the first meeting the AHM handed residents the latest three year accident 

record for the A31 in the vicinity of the gap which had been supplied by the 
Police covering the period June 2012 to September 2015. This logged 15 
accidents. The Police had checked their own records for these accidents and 
confirmed that four of the fifteen were associated with drivers trying to use the 
gap, two attempting to turn right from the eastbound carriageway and two 
attempting to turn from the westbound carriageway. The Police had provided 
the following commentary which was also shared with residents.   

‘I have now looked at the actual road traffic collisions and have marked the four that 
were caused by vehicles intending to use the gap in the central reserve. The main 
theme is that the drivers were lost or were looking for somewhere to turn around. 
None were local people. They were all travelling at about 50/60mph, some in lane 
one who changed lane at the last moment and all braked late and were hit in the rear 
by a following vehicle, where that driver was taken by surprise by the manoeuvre. ' 
 
 

1.15 The 4 accidents associated with the gap resulted in 5 slight and 2 serious 
injuries.   

1.16 Residents pointed out that the majority of accidents were not associated with 
the gap and asked why the RSWG had not made any recommendations to 
address these. Residents thought that the majority of accidents were tail end 
shunts as a result of the queues that regularly develop on the eastbound 
carriageway tailing back from the merge with the A3 and drivers injudiciously 
changing lanes within queues or on the approach to them. 

1.17 Since meetings the RSWG have confirmed they have introduced measures 
to address the shunt accidents on the eastbound approach to the junction with 
the A3. In 2014 two ‘Queues Likely’ signs were installed to the east of Flexford 
Lane which they expect to reduce the number of shunt accidents. 

1.18 Residents said they are accustomed to using the gap and when approaching 
on the A31 from either direction they get in lane well in advance and, signal 
early and brake slowly over distance. They consider the lack of advance 
signing leads following drivers to think they had left indicators on after moving 
into the offside lane and that providing advance signing would make the right 
turn safer. They said they were accustomed to using the junction and were 
comfortable with the right turn manoeuvre.    

 
 
 
 

Page 15

ITEM 8



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

Alternative routes with the gap closed 
 

1.19 .With the gap closed residents of East Flexford Lane would have to use the 
A31 U-turn 0.5 miles to the east to join the westbound carriageway. Residents 
of Monkhatch would have to use the Puttenham interchange 1.2 miles to the 
west to join the eastbound carriageway.  

1.20 Residents of East Flexford Lane acknowledged the detour is relatively short 
at around a mile. However they were extremely concerned that when there 
were stationary eastbound queues they would effectively be trapped in their 
road for perhaps hours. They pointed out there were regularly accidents on 
the northbound A3 that closed the road, and that these were particularly 
frequent at the Cathedral Interchange. With no gap and stationary eastbound 
traffic they would be trapped in their road since the private roads and tracks to 
the north of East Flexford Lane are all but impassable. One resident felt his 
family’s life could be affected by this to the extent he would consider moving.   

1.21 When the A3 northbound is closed traffic queuing on the Hog’s Back is likely 
to use the U-turn to join the westbound carriageway or continue ahead to use 
the Farnham Road into Guildford to avoid the A3, so there is likely to be 
movement on the eastbound Hog’s Back, albeit slow.  

1.22 Residents of Monkhatch were concerned about the length of the diversion at 
approximately 2.5 miles and at having to the use the Puttenham interchange. 
They consider the right turn exiting the off slip to join the B3000 Puttenham 
Hill to be particularly difficult and even dangerous and to have more accidents 
than the gap. They considered something should be done to improve this 
junction before the gap is closed. 

 
1.23  The AHM agreed the right turn can be difficult at busy times, but pointed out 

the Puttenham interchange is a standard highway junction carrying high 
volumes of turning traffic and the accident rate per vehicle would be far lower 
in comparison to the accident rate for the low numbers of vehicles using the 
gap at Flexford Lane. 

 
Alternatives to closure 
 

Improve signing and conspicuity 
 

1.24 As at 1.18 above residents think that the right turn could be safer by providing 
advance signing.  

1.25 Advance signing is absent on the A31 on both the eastbound and westbound 
approaches to the gap and it is difficult for drivers on both carriageways to 
discern where the crossing is due to the dense screen of trees and shrubs 
within the central reservation. The signing could be improved and vegetation 
removed say 20m either side of the crossing. However there is the likelihood 
that this could result in more drivers attempting to use it and consequently 
exposing themselves and others to risk as they brake to very low speeds in 
the offside lanes in order to turn into the gap. 

 
Prohibit entry from the eastbound carriageway and East Flexford Lane  

Page 16

ITEM 8



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 
1.26 The crossover is narrow and at a steep gradient since the two carriageways 

are at markedly different levels. Making it ‘one way’ from the westbound 
carriageway to the eastbound carriageway may improve safety as it should 
remove the possibility of a vehicle slowing and entering from the A31 
encountering a vehicle waiting within the crossover to exit in the opposite 
direction. However, drivers may risk ignoring the signed restriction and the 
above scenario could still occur. 

 
Provide offside deceleration lanes on the A31 

 
1.27 Deceleration lanes such as that on the westbound carriageway at White Lane 

near Ash Green have been considered. These would allow turning vehicles to 
diverge from the main carriageways before braking. However the fairly steep 
level difference between the two carriageways would be accentuated to the 
extent that crossing would be unacceptably steep. 

1.28 Westbound traffic joining the A31 from the A3 slip road would need to cross 
into the offside lane to use a deceleration lane, as it does now to use the 
crossing. The distance between the A3 merge and the crossing is well below 
that required by national standards to allow this manoeuvre to be made safely. 

 
Extend the 50mph speed limit west beyond East Flexford Lane 
 

1.29 Residents felt high vehicle speeds contribute to accidents and that extending 
the 50mph limit to the west would improve safety. 

1.30 The AHM considers that under Surrey’s Speed Limit Policy, which is based to 
a large extent on existing speed, it is unlikely extending the 50mph limit would 
be recommended, and doubts it would be supported by the Police who do not 
carry out enforcement at this location at present.  

 
Reduce the A31 to a single lane in each direction 

 
1.31 Residents suggested the A31 could be reduced to a single lane as has been 

done on the A31 Alton Road at the Surrey/Hampshire boundary. This would 
allow the introduction of deceleration and acceleration lanes at side roads, 
private accesses and central reserve gaps. 

1.32  The Hog’s Back carries around double the volume of traffic than is currently 
using the A31 Alton Road. Reducing to a single lane would nearly halve 
capacity and a feasibility study would be required to determine the effects on 
congestion, road safety and the wider road network. The AHM very much 
doubts a study would recommend such a reduction in capacity on the 
strategic road network.     

 
SatNav 
 

1.33 Residents pointed out that the gap is included on SatNav systems and that 
this will remain the case if the gap is closed and drivers will attempt to 
manoeuvre to use it even though it no longer exists. 

Page 17

ITEM 8



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

1.34 The AHM has already asked that SatNav companies are instructed to remove 
the gap from their systems, whether or not the gap is closed. This will apply to 
future systems but few systems automatically update, and few drivers pay for 
updates, so it will be on the majority of systems for some years to come. 

1.35  If the gap is closed permanent red backed ‘gap closed’ signs will be installed 
on both A31 approaches.   

 
Previous gap closures on the Hog’s Back 
 

1.36 Residents said that when a number of gaps were closed in the past, the gap 
at East Flexford Lane was retained (as well as one at Inwood Farm to the 
west) and that they were given the undertaking by the Highway Authority 
these gaps would remain indefinitely. 

1.37 The AHM advised that documentation held by Guildford Borough Council 
(GBC) had been found for the Guildford Partnership Area Transportation Sub-
Committee, the predecessor to the current Local Committee. Minutes for 
meetings record that on 21 April 1999 this committee approved the advertising 
of a traffic regulation order for the closure of 9 crossover links through the 
central reservation. In November 1999 the committee approved the making of 
a TRO giving effect to the closure of 7 crossovers. 

1.38 GBC retain meeting agenda’s for only a limited period and no longer have the 
agenda’s for these meetings. However one resident thought he had the 
papers and would send copies to the AHM. These have not yet been 
received.  

1.39 Residents said the closures were accompanied by recommendations to 
improve signing and side road accesses. 

 
Objections by the Emergency Services 
  

1.40 Residents had heard that the emergency services had objected to the 
closure. It transpires this was based on the personal opinion of a local Fire & 
Rescue officer. 

1.41 The three emergency services are statutory consultees for closure orders 
and none submitted an objection (this has been checked since the meetings 
with residents). Indeed they did not submit any comment, which is the norm 
unless they wish to object.   

  
Pedestrians, cyclists and horse riders 

 
1.42 The AHM explained closure was expected to be effected by demountable 

bollards and that the emergency services hold keys to these. Pedestrians, 
cyclists and horse riders would still be able to use the gap. Residents 
expressed concern that these more vulnerable users would still be able to 
cross a dual carriageway at this point. 

1.43 However this would not be the case. The SCC Road Safety Audit team has 
recommended that closure is affected by continuous kerbing. 

Page 18

ITEM 8



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

Missing objections 

1.44 Residents felt some objections had been submitted during the formal 
consultation which are not included in the Annex to this report. The AHM is 
having this checked and will provide a verbal update at the committee 
meeting. 

 
Views of Surrey Police and SCC Road Safety Team Manager 
 

1.45 The SCC Road Safety Team Manager remains of the view that the gap 
should be closed in the absence of affordable alternatives. The AHM believes 
there are no alternatives, affordable or otherwise, that will reduce accidents to 
the extent that closure would. 

1.46 The Surrey Police Road Safety officer strongly supports closure and has 
particularly asked that the record of accidents associated with use of the gap 
is brought to the committee’s attention before they make a decision. 

 
View of the Area Highway Manager 
     

1.47 The AHM believes there are no alternatives, affordable or otherwise, that will 
reduce accidents to the extent that closure would and that the gap should be 
closed as originally recommended by the Road Safety Working Group for 
Guildford. While this will undoubtedly inconvenience residents this must be 
balanced against the record of accidents and injuries associated with use of 
the gap. The fact that it will remain on SatNav for some years to come is a 
concern, but this is unavoidable and given the provision of ‘gap closed’ signs 
should not be considered good reason for leaving the gap open. 

The Area Team had already identified shortcomings in the signing for side 
roads and accesses along the length of the Hog’s Back and are in the process 
of carrying out a review, with additional signs funded from the ad-hoc signs & 
lines budget.  

 

2. OPTIONS: 
 

 
2.1  Alternatives to closure are discussed within the report, but none are 

recommended.  
 
 

3. CONSULTATIONS: 

  
3.1 As described in the report both formal and informal consultations have been 

carried out. 
 
 

4. FINANCIAL AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS: 

 
4.1 The Road Safety Working Group have undertaken to fund in full costs 
associated with the closure of the gap. 
 
 

Page 19

ITEM 8



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

.5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS: 

 
5.1 None 
 

6. LOCALISM: 

 
6.1 This is a road safety issue identified by SCC Highways and Police officers 
and localism is not really relevant. 
 
 

7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
7.1 None 

 

8. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
8.1 . In the interest of road safety the committee is asked to proceed with making 
the traffic regulation order for closing the central reservation gap at East Flexford 
Lane. 
 

9.  WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

 
9.1 The order will be made and measures to close the gap will be put in hand by 
the RSWG. Residents and local members will be advised of likely timescales. 
 

 
 
Contact Officer:    John Hilder 
SCC Area Highway Manager SW 
Tel: 0300 200 1003 
 
Consulted: 
As described within the report 
 
Annexes: 

1. East Flexford Lane Consultation Responses 
 
Sources/background papers: 
Local Committee for Guildford: 
Wednesday 25 March 2015: Item 15: ‘Highways Update Report’ 
 Wednesday 30 September 2015: Item 15: ‘Highways Update Report’  

Page 20

ITEM 8



               ANNEX 1 
 

Consultation responses on the proposed permanent Hogs Back / East Flexford Lane gap closure 
 
 

 
 

 

No Name Address Date Ref Comment
s 

Reasons Officer response 

1 Chris 
Meeks 

Chairman of the 
Trustees – 
Puttenham Eco 
Camping Barn project 

4/06/15 106479 Objects to 
the 
closure 

Concerned about the affect of 
the closure on pedestrians, 
cyclists and horse riders 
crossing the road. Will increase 
speed. Closing the gap will 
make the road like a motorway.   

No evidence that gap closure will 
result in increased speed. Will 
look into the possibility of allowing 
pedestrians/cyclists to use the 
gap even if it is closed to vehicles.   

2 Colin & 
Celia 
Hayden-
Cook 

Hogs Back Lodge, 
Seale, GU4 7BQ 

1/06/15 106377 Objects to 
the 
closure 

Local residents will have 
difficulty accessing their 
homes.  

Closing the gap will add an 
additional few miles to journey but 
the safety issue is the primary 
concern. 

3 Crispian 
Glover 

Farley Mount, Seale, 
GU10 1EU 

4/06/15 106375 Objects to 
the 
closure 

Will increase journey times, 
distance and speed. Delay for 
emergency services reaching 
residents. 

No evidence that gap closure will 
result in increased speed. Gap 
closure will add an additional few 
miles to journey but the safety 
issue is the primary concern. 
There will only be a small amount 
of added time for emergency 
vehicles to reach residents. 

4 Debby 
Flack 
 
 
 

12  Heathfield close, 
GU7 1SL 

5/06/15 106722 Objects to 
the 
closure 

Will increase speed. Will 
increase journey times and 
more CO2. 

No evidence that gap closure will 
result in increased speed. Only an 
additional few miles. 

P
age 21

IT
E

M
 8



5 Ian 
Taylor  
 

127 Kings Road, GU7 
3EU 
On behalf of the 
Godalming Cycling 
Campaign 

4/06/15 106711 Objects to 
the 
closure 

Will increase speed. Unsafe for 
pedestrians and cyclists. 
Cyclists have to go along A31 
to cross the road. 

No evidence that gap closure will 
result in increased speed. Will 
look into the possibility of allowing 
pedestrians/cyclists to use the 
gap even if it is closed to vehicles.   

6 James 
Henry 
 

Chairman of 
Wanborough Parish 
Council - Summer 
Wood, Puttenham 
Heath Road, GU3 
1DU 
 

5/06/15 106714 Objects to 
the 
closure 

Not all RTCs were due to the 
gap. Wider consultation 
required. Improving signs and 
better road maintenance. 

Will investigate the existing 
signage with a view to 
improvement. 

7 Jane 
Turner 
 

Inwood House, Hogs 
Back, Farnham GU10 
1HE 
 

2/06/15 106672 Does not 
support 
the 
proposal 

Possibility of new access for 
Blackwell Farm housing 
development. Not all RTCs 
were due to the gap. 

The reason for the gap closure is 
based on the safety issue and no 
other reason. The other RTCs 
were in the vicinity of the gap. 

8 Mike 
Hammer
sley 

Hogs Back, Sheep 
Farm 

7/06/20
15 

106697 Objects to 
the 
closure 

Disruption to agricultural 
tractors using the gap. Closing 
the gap could make the 
situation worse. Difficult turning 
into Monkshatch from 
westbound. 

If the gap is to be closed the 
accesses from both sides will be 
improved. 

9 Ramsey 
Nagaty 
 

Badgers Copse, 
Down Place, Hogs 
Back, GU3 1DE 
 

5/06/15 106729 Objects to 
the 
closure 

Will increase journey times and 
join heavy congested traffic. 

Closing the gap will add an 
additional few miles to journey but 
the safety issue is the primary 
concern. 

10 William 
Cardiff 
Keir 
Barrie 

Rathfarnham House, 
East Flexford Lane, 
GU3 2JP 

4/06/15 106677 Objects to 
the 
closure 

Penalising residents. Extra 
time for emergency services to 
reach residents. Closure will 
affect residents’ daily lives. 

The reason for the proposal is a 
safety issue only. There will only 
be a small amount of added time 
for emergency vehicles to reach 
residents. There is no evidence 
that the closure will affect 
residents’ daily lives. 

P
age 22

IT
E

M
 8



11 Patrick 
Lally 

Owner of East Flexford 
Farm 

4/06/15  Objects to 
the 
closure 

Will block access of HGVs 
deliveries to East Flexford 
Farm and other farms, due to 
acute junction angles of A31 
with East Flexford Lane and 
Monkshatch. Make the gap one 
way from Guildford direction. 

If the gap is to be closed the 
accesses from both sides will be 
improved. 

12 Susan 
Lowther 

Martins Wick, Hogs Back, 
GU3 1AQ 
Chairman Hogs Back 
Residents Association 

1/06/15 108733 Objects to 
the 
closure 

Will increase journey times, 
distance and speed. Not all 
RTCs were due to the gap. 
Extra time for emergency 
services to reach residents. 
Concern about the affect of the 
closure on pedestrians and 
cyclists. Improve drainage and 
maintenance of A31. 

No evidence that gap closure will 
result in increased speed. Gap 
closure will add an additional few 
miles to the journey but the safety 
issue is the primary concern. 
There will only be a small amount 
of added time for emergency 
vehicles to reach residents. Will 
look into the possibility of allowing 
pedestrians/cyclists to use the 
gap even if it is closed to vehicles. 
The other RTCs were in the 
vicinity of the gap. Will investigate 
the maintenance issues. 

13 David 
Barker 

The Old Stables, 
Monkshatch, Compton, 
GU3 1DL 

12/05/1
5 

101164 Objects to 
the 
closure 

This will not solve the problem, 
will increase traffic and will 
move the issue to another 
location. Should introduce no 
right turns from east and west 
directions and construct new 
slip roads for East Flexford 
Lane and Monkshatch access. 
 
 
 
 

If the gap is to be closed the 
accesses from both sides will be 
improved. Will improve the 
signage in Hogs Back. 

P
age 23

IT
E

M
 8



14 Robert 
Drummond 

Inwood Manor, Seale, 
Farnham, GU10, 1HE 

21/05/1
5 

102618 Objects to 
the 
closure 

Will increase journey times. 
Not all RTCs were due to the 
gap. Extra time for emergency 
services to reach residents. 
Improve signs and general 
maintenance. 

Gap closure will add an additional 
few miles to the journey but the 
safety issue is the primarily 
concern. There will only be a 
small amount of added time for 
emergency vehicles to reach 
residents. If the gap is to be 
closed the accesses from both 
sides will be improved. 

15 Marcus & 
Patricia 
Lines 

West Lodge, Hogs Back, 
Puttenham, GU3 1QA 

30/05/1
5 

104794 Objects to 
the 
closure 

Will increase speed and 
potentially make it more 
dangerous. Not all accidents 
were as a result of using the 
gap. Improve signage and road 
markings particularly for 
pedestrians.  

No evidence that gap closure will 
result in increased speed. If the 
gap is to be closed the accesses 
from both sides will be improved. 
Will improve the signage and road 
markings in Hogs Back. 

 
 
 

P
age 24

IT
E

M
 8



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 
SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

 
LOCAL COMMITTEE (GUILDFORD) 
 
DATE: 23 MARCH 2016 

LEAD 
OFFICER: 
 

JOHN HILDER 

SUBJECT: ST JOSEPH’S SCHOOL ZEBRA CROSSING 
 

DIVISION: GUILDFORD WEST 
 
 
 
 

 
SUMMARY OF ISSUE: 

 
This report provides an update following the December meeting when the committee 
considered a petition for a pelican crossing to replace the zebra crossing on the 
Aldershot Road at St Joseph’s School.  
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
The Local Committee (Guildford) is asked to: 
 

(i) Note the contents of this report.   

 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
No recommendations are made to the committee.   
 

 
 
1. BACKGROUND 

 
Petition 
 

1.1 The December meeting of the committee considered a petition asking for the 
zebra crossing at St Joseph’s School to be replaced with a pelican crossing.  

1.2 The officer response noted the zebra was commissioned in May 2014 as part 
of the committee funded programme of highway improvement schemes (ITS 
schemes) for 2013/14.  

1.3 The response also noted that since installation the orange belisha beacons 
had been upgraded to high intensity ‘zebrite’ units and that as a result of site 
inspections by Highways and Police officers changes in advance signing and 

Page 25

ITEM 9



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

road markings were planned. An additional advance warning sign has now 
been installed and additional ’SLOW’ markings have been ordered. 

1.4 The meeting was advised that the request had been considered by the 
Transportation Task Group on 19 October, which recommended that the 
committee used the expected capital funding for 2016/17 to install unfinished 
schemes. As a result none of the requested schemes on the running list, 
including upgrading the zebra crossing to a pelican, were included in the 
forward programme for 2016/17. However, the committee was advised that 
current proposed schemes would be reviewed at future Task Group meetings. 

Accidents 
 

1.5 As the committee will be very aware, sadly there have been two accidents at 
the crossing in recent months. 

1.6 In November a pregnant mother lost her child as a result of being struck by a 
vehicle while using the crossing during the morning school run. 

1.7 In February a young boy was injured, again being struck by a vehicle while 
using the crossing during the morning school run.  

1.8 The second accident is the subject of ongoing police enquiries, while the first 
resulted in a successful prosecution for driving without due care and attention. 

 
Site Inspections 
 

1.9 Surrey Highways Safety & Area Team officers and the Police Road Safety 
officer for west Surrey visited the site on several occasions in December and 
January to observe operation of the crossing during the morning and 
afternoon school runs.  

1.10 The Highways Safety officer summarised their findings in a report to the Area 
Highway Manager (AHM). 

‘At the time of observation the crossing in my opinion worked well, and I 
believe has bedded in well since installation. The driver behaviour observed 
was courteous and responsive, and was predicting what pedestrians (often 
children) would do.’ 
 
‘Should the school wish to pursue the School Crossing Patrol option, although 
SCC would not fund this position we would support this post through training 
and resource (equipment), we are also happy to offer Pedestrian Awareness 
Skills courses to the pupils delivered through the schools teaching assistants.’ 
 

1.11 Note that John Fury also visited the site in February in the company of the 
school head and the Surrey Highways Safety officer. 

 
Further Task Group recommendations for the 2016/17 budget  

 
 

1.12 As at item 13 Highways Update the budget for 2016/17 was announced in 
late February at a significantly higher level than had been anticipated in the 

Page 26

ITEM 9



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

Autumn. The Task Group discussed how the additional funding should be 
allocated and their recommendations are made at item 13 Highways Update, 
which includes the following at 1.13. 

‘1.13Note that the zebra crossing at St Joseph’s School had been assessed 
as ‘Medium’ in the Autumn of 2015. The Area Highway Manager had the 
crossing re-assessed in February in view of the two accidents that happened 
over the winter, and it scored as ‘High’. The Chairman discussed this with 
TTG members who agreed in view of the high value of a pelican crossing, 
which would mean several other schemes would have to be deferred if it were 
to be funded in 2016/17, and the measures being put in place to provide a 
school crossing patrol at the zebra, it should not be recommended for funding 
in the coming year.’ 

 
 
School Crossing Patrol 
 

1.13 At the time of writing it is understood that volunteers have come forward for 
both the morning and evening school runs, are presently in training, and that 
crossing patrols will be in place by the end of March. It is further understood 
that salary costs are being jointly met by St Joseph’s Rydeshill Preparatory 
School. 

1.14 The AHM considers a school crossing patrol operating on the zebra is 
probably safer for schoolchildren and parents than a pelican. The patrol 
person will control those on foot and will only signal them to cross from the 
centre of the crossing when satisfied that traffic has stopped and it is 
absolutely safe for them to do so.      

 

2. OPTIONS: 
 

 
2.1  No options are suggested.  

 
 

3. CONSULTATIONS: 

  
3.1 As described in the report. 
 
 

4. FINANCIAL AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS: 

 
4.1 There are no financial implications for the committee. 
 
 

.5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS: 

 
5.1 None 
 

6. LOCALISM: 

 
6.1 N/A. 
 
 

Page 27

ITEM 9



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
7.1 None. 

 

8. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
8.1 . No recommendations are made to the committee. 
 

9.  WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

 
9.1 The school crossing patrol will commence by the end of March.  
 

 
 
Contact Officer:    John Hilder 
SCC Area Highway Manager SW 
Tel 0300 200 1003 
 
Consulted: 
As described within the report 
 
Annexes: None 
 
Sources/background papers: 
Local Committee for Guildford: 
Wednesday 8 December 2015: Minutes, Annex A, Petitions, St Joseph’s School 
petition.’  

Page 28

ITEM 9



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
 
 

 
LOCAL COMMITTEE (GUILDFORD). 
 
DATE: WEDNESDAY 23 MARCH 2016 

LEAD 
OFFICER: 
 

KEVIN MCKEE, PARKING SERVICES MANAGER, GUILDFORD 
BOROUGH COUNCIL 

SUBJECT: GUILDFORD ON-STREET PARKING REVIEW – PROPOSALS 
FOR GEOGRAPHIC AREAS AND ‘AD-HOC’ LOCATIONS 
 

DIVISION(S): ALL 
 

 
SUMMARY OF ISSUE: 
 
This report presents the representations resulting from the formal advertisement of 
proposals in a number of other geographic areas and ‘ad-hoc’ locations and 
recommends that traffic regulation orders are made. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The Local Committee (Guildford) is asked to agree: 
 

(i) that a Traffic Regulation Order (TROs) is made to implement new 
controls and changes to the existing, covering Avondale area around 
the Ash Vale and North Camp railway stations, shown in ANNEXE 3, 

(ii) that a Traffic Regulation Order (TROs) is made to implement new 
controls and changes to the existing, covering Effingham Junction, 
shown in ANNEXE 5, 

(iii) that a Traffic Regulation Order (TROs) is made to implement new 
controls, covering Fairlands, shown in ANNEXE 7a, 

(iv) that a Traffic Regulation Order (TROs) is made to implement new 
controls and changes to the existing, covering the Merrow shopping 
parade area, shown in ANNEXE 9, 

(v) that a Traffic Regulation Order (TROs) is made to implement new 
controls and changes to the existing, covering Shalford, shown in 
ANNEXE 11, 

(vi) that Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) are made to implement new 
controls and changes to the existing, covering the ‘ah-hoc’ locations, 
shown in ANNEXE 13. 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
To assist with safety, access, traffic movements, increase the availability of space 
and its prioritisation for various user-groups in various localities, and to make local 
improvements. 

Page 29

ITEM 10



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND: 

 
1.1 When the scope of the present parking review was determined, the Committee 

agreed to undertake informal consultations in six geographic areas.  These are 
the Avondale area around the Ash Vale and North Camp railway stations, 
Burpham shopping parade area and Burpham Lane, Effingham Junction, 
Fairlands, Merrow shopping parade area and Shalford. 

1.2 As part of the current review, it was also agreed to develop proposals in a 
number of ‘ad-hoc’ locations.  Of the 250 locations we have assessed we have 
progressed around 20.  Furthermore, the review includes changes to 
accommodate disabled bays, vehicle crossovers and access arrangements for 
new developments. 

1.3 Previously, the Committee agreed to formally advertise proposals in the 
Avondale area around the Ash Vale and North Camp railway stations, 
Effingham Junction, Fairlands, Merrow shopping parade area and Shalford.  It 
also agreed to formally advertise the 20 or so ‘ad-hoc’ changes, and those 
associated with disabled bays, vehicle crossovers and access arrangements 
for new developments.  In total, this involved 90 different roads. 

1.4 The Committee has also agreed that further informal discussions take place 
with the local ward and divisional councillors, and other interested parties, in 
respect to possible proposals for Dorking Road (Chilworth), Lower Road 
(Effingham) and Ockham Road North (East Horsley), and that these are 
reported to a future meeting of the Committee, to seek authority to formally 
advertise them. 

1.5 This report summarises the feedback received as a result of the formal 
consultations in the Avondale area around the Ash Vale and North Camp 
railway stations, Effingham Junction, Fairlands, Merrow shopping parade area 
and Shalford and recommends the next steps.  It also presents feedback from 
a number of the ‘ad-hoc’ locations that were not considered at the December 
meeting. 

1.6 The formal advertisement of proposals associated with the Burpham shopping 
parade area and Burpham Lane and the small number of other locations the 
Committee agreed to advertise at its December 2015 meeting is ongoing / will 
be occurring in the next few weeks.  Any representations received will be 
reported to the June 2016 meeting of the Committee. 

 
 

2. ANALYSIS: 

 
2.1 The formal advertisement of proposals took place between 30 October and 20 

November 2015.  The proposals involved 90 roads.  These encompassed five 
of the six geographic areas (the Avondale area around the Ash Vale and North 
Camp railway stations, Effingham Junction, Fairlands, Merrow shopping 
parade area and Shalford), 20 or so ‘ad-hoc’ locations, and a number of others 
where changes were necessary to accommodate disabled bays, vehicle 
crossovers and new developments. 

Page 30

ITEM 10



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

2.2 We wrote directly to over 4,700 addresses.  A public notice was also published 
in the Surrey Advertiser newspaper and on the public-notices.co.uk website.  
Additionally, over 500 street notices were erected in and around the proposed 
locations.  The legal notices and supporting documentation were made 
available to view at all four deposit centres within the borough.  The letter and 
street notices provided links to the Borough and County Councils’ websites.  
This gave those that were unable to visit the deposit centres an opportunity to 
view the proposals, supporting documentation and submit comments online. 

2.3 The page on Guildford Borough Council’s website received nearly 5,800 ‘hits’.  
Overall, 398 representations were received.  Almost 85% of the 
representations were submitted online.  The vast majority of the proposals 
received representations.  Some of the representations referred to proposals in 
more than one road.  In total 467 location-specific references to proposals 
were made.  A table summarising the representations appears in ANNEXE 1. 

2.4 This report is considering 370 representations associated with five of the 
geographic areas, and 31 ‘ad-hoc’ locations. 

Avondale area around the Ash Vale and North Camp railway stations 

2.5 We wrote directly to around 1,400 addresses in 27 roads, as well as Ash 
Parish Council.  6 of the roads consulted are private. 

2.6 Overall, we received 83 representations.  There were 32 general comments as 
well as 60 that referred to specific roads.  13 of the representations stated 
support for the proposals, 18 general support, 26 general opposition and 35 
stated opposition. 

2.7 Please note the 15 of the 26 that have been classified as being generally 
opposed to the proposals related to Newfield Road, where those responding 
generally wanted additional measures to be introduced within their road. 

2.8 Those making representations raised a number of issues.  Across the area, 
some want more controls, whilst others want fewer measures.  The possibility 
of residents’ parking was again raised by some.  However, the original informal 
consultation did not suggest a significant level of support for such a scheme. 

2.9 The desire for additional facilities to be provided at the railway stations was 
also referred to.  Whilst the creation of additional parking facilities might be 
advantageous, it is likely that these would be charged for to pay for their 
development, upkeep and manage use.  Those rail users wishing to avoid this 
additional expense would still look for free alternatives elsewhere. 

2.10 Within the Avondale estate, concerns were raised about the impact the 
introduction of controls within the mainly industrial, Station Road West, might 
have on the nearby residential roads.  Concerns were also raised about the 
impact that the proposed measures at the western end of Station Road East 
would have on the ability of residents to park at times when the business 
parking and rail commuters were less of an issue. 

2.11 The representations were distributed to local borough and county councillors, 
and discussions held with them about the proposals.  The revised proposals 
that have resulted from these discussions and are recommended for 
implementation appear in ANNEXE 3. 

Page 31

ITEM 10



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

2.12 In summary, the revisions from the proposals originally advertised are: 

 Station Road West / East – make various changes to the south of the road 
narrowing which delineates the boundary between the industrial and 
residential areas, to reduce the level of restriction, particularly outside ‘office 
hours’. 

Effingham Junction area 

2.13 We wrote directly to around 250 addresses in 8 roads, as well as East Horsley 
and Effingham Parish Councils and the Effingham Residents and Ratepayers 
Association.  3 of the roads consulted are private. 

2.14 Overall, we received 22 representations.  There were 2 general comments as 
well as 24 that referred to specific roads.  8 of the representations stated 
support for the proposals, 3 general support, 6 general opposition and 9 stated 
opposition. 

2.15 Those making representations raised a number of issues.  Some believed the 
introduction of additional controls within the main section of Old Lane would 
result in a loss of facility for those reliant on on-street parking and may 
increase vehicle speeds.  The proposed controls will still allow parking in 
significant lengths between 11am and 7am the next day.  These controls are 
similar to those employed in Forest Road for many years. 

2.16 In respect to the Old Lane service road, concerns were raised about the 
extents of the double yellow lines and the loss of parking space for residents 
and others.  The possibility of residents’ parking was again raised by some.  
However, the original informal consultation did not suggest a significant level of 
support for such a scheme. 

2.17 The proposals in Effingham Common Road were broadly welcomed, although 
some thought their extents should be increased significantly to deter rail 
commuters parking on-street. 

2.18 The representations were distributed to local borough and county councillors, 
and discussions held with them about the proposals.  The revised proposals 
that have resulted from these discussions and are recommended for 
implementation appear in ANNEXE 5. 

2.19 In summary, the revisions from the proposals originally advertised are: 

 Old Lane service road- curtail the extent of the restrictions at its junction with 
the main carriageway, to try to maintain as much parking space as possible. 

Fairlands estate 

2.20 We wrote directly to around 600 addresses in 15 roads, as well as Worplesdon 
Parish Council and the Fairlands, Liddington Hall, Gravetts Lane Community 
Association. 

2.21 Overall, we received 37 representations.  There were 28 general comments as 
well as 31 that referred to specific roads.  12 of the representations stated 
support for the proposals, 15 general support, 2 general opposition and 30 
stated opposition. 

Page 32

ITEM 10



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

2.22 As with the original, informal consultation many questioned the need for any 
controls within the estate.  However, it was evident that some still wanted the 
issues associated with the school / school run and the parking associated with 
the shopping parade to be resolved. 

2.23 Nevertheless, there was a general feeling that there may be scope to dispense 
with the proposed controls further away from these ‘hotspots’.  The introduction 
of controls in these locations is less likely to have a material effect on parking 
activity. 

2.24 The representations were distributed to local borough and county councillors, 
and discussions held with them about the proposals.  Officers believe that it 
would be appropriate for some of the proposed controls around junctions 
furthest away from the shopping parade and school to be dropped (see 
ANNEXE 7a).  However, in addition to this, the local councillors would prefer to 
downgrade the vast majority of the double yellow lines away from the shopping 
parade to single yellow lines, operating Mon-Fri 8-10am & 2.30-4.30pm (see 
ANNEXE 7b). 

2.25 Whilst the introduction of single yellow lines around junctions might deal with 
the parking issues at the time they are more likely to occur, it would be 
inadvisable for motorists to consider parking in these locations at any time.  
Therefore, were the Committee to agree to the introduction of single yellow 
lines it might give motorists’ the impression that we have given them tacit 
approval to do so.  The introduction of single yellow lines would also increase 
the need for each of these restrictions to be signed.  Double yellow lines do not 
require such signing as there hours of operation are continuous.  Around 30 
additional signs and posts would be required to introduce the single yellow line 
option (ANNEXE 7b). 

2.26 While officers recommend introducing the controls detailed in ANNEXE 7a, we 
have also included ANNEXE 7b, which is preferred by local councillors.  
Should the Committee wish, it could change recommendation (iii) to refer to 
ANNEXE 7b instead of ANNEXE 7a. 

Merrow shopping parade area 

2.27 We wrote directly to around 400 addresses in 14 roads, as well as the Merrow 
Residents’ Association and Fairway Residents’ Association.  5 of the roads 
consulted are private. 

2.28 Overall, we received 23 representations.  There was 1 general comment as 
well as 23 that referred to specific roads.  5 of the representations stated 
support for the proposals, 12 general support, 1 general opposition and 6 
stated opposition. 

2.29 The control of the parking bays within the shopping parade area featured 
heavily.  However, some of the businesses within the parade were concerned 
about the impact that the introduction of a limited waiting period would have on 
their staff and clients.  Conversely, some questioned the adoption of the 
proposed 3-hour limited waiting period.  Many, including the Merrow Residents’ 
Association, suggested that the proposed limited waiting period was too long. 

2.30 The 3-hour limited waiting period will prevent all-day parking within the spaces 
at the parade and encourage the turnover of space.  However, it will 

Page 33

ITEM 10



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

accommodate the broad nature of shops present, including a restaurant.  It will 
also provide some flexibility for those living in the flats above the shops. 

2.31 In respect to the other proposals, some thought that the proposed controls in 
Merrow Street were too extensive, whilst others thought that they were not 
extensive enough. 

2.32 The representations were distributed to local borough and county councillors, 
and discussions held with them about the proposals.  The proposals that have 
resulted from these discussions and are recommended for implementation 
appear in ANNEXE 9.  They are unchanged from the proposals formally 
advertised. 

Shalford area 

2.33 We wrote directly to around 700 addresses in 23 roads, as well as Shalford 
Parish Council.  7 of the roads consulted are private. 

2.34 Overall, we received 81 representations.  There were 14 general comments as 
well as 81 that referred to specific roads.  35 of the representations stated 
support for the proposals, 29 general support, 8 general opposition and 23 
stated opposition. 

2.35 Concerns were raised about the extent of the controls in Chinthurst Lane.  
Some wanted more extensive controls to be considered.  Meanwhile, others in 
the neighbouring roads were concerned about the displacement effect that the 
proposed controls in Chinthurst Lane would have in their roads. 

2.36 Elsewhere, the proposals elsewhere were broadly welcomed, although those 
in Poplar Road did generate some comment.  Poplar Road was not included 
within the initial, informal consultation area.  However, following discussions 
with local borough and county councillors and Shalford Parish Council, it, and 
another proposal in Shalford Lane, were included in the formal advertisement.  
In respect to Poplar Road, the double yellow line proposals are primarily 
intended to protect a 90-degree bend and the sightlines of a nearby junction. 

2.37 In Kings Road, outside the former Methodist Church, the proposal included 
measures to accommodate a possible vehicle crossover.  However, despite 
being made aware of this over a year ago, the crossover has still yet to be 
constructed.  Therefore, there remains a considerable amount of uncertainty 
as to whether the crossover will be constructed, and if so, when this might 
occur. 

2.38 The representations were distributed to local borough and county councillors, 
and discussions held with them about the proposals.  The revised proposals 
that have resulted from these discussions and are recommended for 
implementation appear in ANNEXE 11. 

 Kings Road – do not progress the proposal outside the Methodist Church 
until such time that the vehicle crossover is actually constructed.  At that 
stage, include the changes necessary to accommodate it within the next 
subsequent parking review. 

‘Ad-hoc’ proposals elsewhere 

2.39 We wrote directly to around 1,400 addresses about proposals in nearly 50 
roads, as well as various parish councils and residents’ associations. 

Page 34

ITEM 10



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

2.40 Previously the Committee agreed to implement controls in those locations that 
received no, few or wholly supportive representations.  These locations are: 

 Spiceall, Compton 

 Guildford Road (service road), Effingham, 

 Agraria Road, Guildford, 

 Cline Road, Guildford, 

 Cranley Road, Guildford, 

 Ellis Avenue, Guildford, 

 Falcon Road, Guildford, 

 Josephs Road, Guildford, 

 Makenfield Road, Guildford, 

 Pewley Hill, Guildford, 

 Tormead Road, Guildford, 

 Aldershot Road (services road), Guildford, 

 Barrack Road, Guildford, 

 Manor Road, Guildford, 

 Sandy Lane, Send 

 Send Road (including service road), Send 

 Tannery Lane, Send 

2.41 In addition, 124 representations were received about the remainder of the 
proposed locations.  The locations concerned appear below: 

 Ash Church Road, Ash  

 Foreman Park, Ash 

 Ash Hill Road, Ash 

 College Road, Ash 

 Ash Street and Star Lane, Ash 

 Cabell Road ‘area’, Guildford 

 Ferry Lane, Guildford 

 Greville Close, Guildford 

 Prospect Road ‘area’, Ash 

 Rose Lane, Ripley 

 Gomshal Lane and Middle Street, Shere 

 South Hill, Guildford 

 Poyle Road and The Street, Tongham 

 Vale Road, Ash Vale, 

 Oak Hill and The Oval, Wood Street Village 

Page 35

ITEM 10



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 Worplesdon Road, Guildford 

2.42 Additionally, proposals for Raymond Crescent were formally advertised.  
However, due to a procedural issue, the street notices were not erected, as 
they normally would have been.  Because of this, we intend to re-advertise 
these particular proposals.  Nevertheless, the representations already 
submitted will still be considered, and along with any others received, will be 
reported to the June 2016 meeting of the Committee. 

2.43 There were 147 references to specific roads.  28 stated support for the 
proposals, 27 general support, 20 general opposition and 72 stated opposition. 

2.44 Some of the proposals generated a considerable number of representations.  
Indeed, locations such as Ash Street, Ash (38) and Prospect Road, Ash (34) 
accounted for around half of all the representations received about the ‘ad-hoc’ 
proposals. 

2.45 Ash Church Road and Foreman Park, Ash – the proposals were generally 
welcomed.  However, concerns were raised about the present parking in 
nearby Foreman Road.  This location had not been raised prior to the 
Committee finalising the scope of the review. 

2.46 Ash Hill Road and College Road, Ash - concerns were raised about the 
potential impact on the availability of parking in Ash Hill Road.  However, the 
proposed double yellow lines around the junction are the minimum considered 
necessary to protect sight lines.  In respect to College Road, it was suggested 
by one representee that the controls at its junction with Ash Hill Road were 
excessive.  Meanwhile, others suggested that there were other issues 
elsewhere within College Road that should be addressed.  The latter had not 
been raised prior to the Committee finalising the scope of the review. 

2.47 Ash Street and Star Lane, Ash – The location was originally prioritised 
following concerns raised by Surrey Police.  Site visits and accident data 
appeared to support those concerns.  Indeed, at around the advertisement of 
proposals, Parking Services was made aware of an incident in Ash Street 
involving a pedestrian and a passing vehicle.  The pedestrian involved made a 
representation.  Notwithstanding, concerns were also raised about the impact 
that the proposed controls would have on the availability of parking for 
residents and those dropping off and picking up children from the schools in 
the vicinity.  Similar concerns were expressed about the proposals in Star 
Lane. 

2.48 Cabell Road ‘area’, Guildford – although some minor concerns were raised 
about the loss of parking space close to junctions, the proposals are primarily 
intended to improve safety around these features. 

2.49 Ferry Lane, Guildford – Parking Services was made aware of the creation of a 
vehicle access and a vehicle crossover application.  The proposals sought to 
accommodate these.  Even so, concerns were raised about the loss of parking.  
Albeit a relatively modest one, Ferry Lane is somewhat detached from the 
other parking areas within that particular part of the controlled parking zone.  It 
also became apparent that the crossover had not actually been constructed 
within the licence period granted by Surrey County Council, and that it was 
only intended to be a temporary facility. 

Page 36

ITEM 10



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

2.50 Greville Close, Guildford – the proposal intended to formalise an existing 
disabled bay that the County Council had introduced on an informal basis for a 
specific resident.  It was allegedly that this space had been misused on a 
regular basis.  Nevertheless, concerns were raised about the wider parking 
issues within the close.  Although allegations of misuse have not been 
received about a second disabled bay, immediately adjacent to the one for 
which formalisation is proposed, this second bay is now due to be formalised.  
This is being advertised separately. 

2.51 Prospect Road ‘area’, Ash – concerns were raised about the loss of parking 
associated with the proposals.  Although these included parking on alternate 
sides of the road, thereby creating a ‘chicane effect’, it was suggested by some 
that the proposals would lead to an increase in vehicle speeds. 

2.52 Rose Lane, Ripley - the proposal intended to introduce a new formalised 
disabled bay that the County Council had agreed should be introduced.  
However, during the course of the advertisement processs, the County Council 
introduced it informally.  Concerns were raised about the loss of parking for 
other residents in the area. 

2.53 Gomshall Lane and Middle Street, Shere – the proposals were primarily 
intended to formalise an existing disabled parking bay (Gomshall Lane) and 
introduce an new facility in the vicinity of the shops (Middle Street).  These 
were broadly welcomed.  However, the proposal to improve the turnover of 
space in the vicinity of the shops and thereby help provide greater 
opportunities for deliveries was opposed, specifically by Shere Parish Council. 

2.54 South Hill, Guildford – the proposal intends to improve access and visibility to 
the existing crossover at No.8a.  The resident at the address welcomed this.  
However, others wanted other changes to be considered, primarily to improve 
the access at No.8 and maintain / increase the availability of parking.  Unlike 
the access at No.8a, that serving No.8 is already afforded larger setback 
distances to the adjacent parking bays. 

2.55 Poyle Road and The Street, Tongham – The Poyle Road Campaign Group 
expressed support for the proposals to protect the access to the community 
facilities off Poyle Road.  Indeed, they suggested that additional measures 
should be considered.  Tongham Parish Council opposed the proposal.  The 
Parish Council also opposed the provision of an additional disabled parking 
space in The Street.  The Campaign Group supported the proposal if it could 
be established that there was a demand for it.  The proposal was intended to 
improve accessibility to the shops.  It had been suggested by those with 
mobility issues that the existing disabled bay was often occupied.  The existing 
disabled bay in The Street was provided by the County Council for a specific 
resident.  However, they have been unable to confirm whether this facility is 
still required.  It is also suggested that the space is now often available. 

2.56 Vale Road, Ash Vale – one representation received opposed the proposal on 
the basis that it further reduced the availability of parking space.  The proposal 
was developed following concerns about the extents of the existing controls 
and the ability of larger vehicles, in particular, to park close to the bridge over 
the canal. 

2.57 Oak Hill and The Oval, Wood Street Village – Wood Street Village Primary 
School expressed support for the proposal to control parking in Oak Hill.  A 

Page 37

ITEM 10



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

resident living nearby was concerned that the proposal might displace parking 
into a nearby service road.  In respect to The Oval, the proposal is to formalise 
a disabled parking bay introduced by the County Council for a specific 
resident.  It is suggested that it is being misused.  The geometry of the road 
means that it was not possible for the County Council to introduce the bay 
outside the house of the resident for which it is intended.  The resident outside 
which the disabled bay has been placed expressed concern about the loss of 
facility for them and their visitors if the disabled bay is formalised. 

2.58 The representations were distributed to local borough and county councillors, 
and discussions held with them about the proposals.  The revised proposals 
that have resulted from these discussions and are recommended for 
implementation appear in ANNEXE 13.  Some of these are revised from those 
originally advertised. 

2.59 The revisions from the proposals advertised are: 

 College Road, Ash – curtail the proposed double yellow lines adjacent to 
No.65 Ash Hill Road, to reflect the increased carriageway width afforded by 
the fencing at No.65.  The controls will now only extend adjacent to the 
hedge, which runs along the remainder of No.65’s property boundary.  The 
hedge often reduces the carriageway width in this section of the road to 
below the preferred minimum, 

 Ash Street, Ash - reduce the restrictions on the northern side of the road so 

that they only protect a communal access serving Nos.51-55, 

 Star Lane, Ash - reduce the restrictions on the western side of the road so 
that they only protect the access to Ash Library, 

 Ferry Lane, Guildford – in view of the fact that the access will now only be a 
temporary feature, drop the proposals in their entirety.  Therefore, the 
location does not appear in ANNEXE 13, 

 Prospect Road ‘area’, Ash - reduce the extents of the restrictions on both 
sides of the road in the vicinity of the various junctions, 

 Middle Street, Shere – drop the proposal to introduce limited waiting parking 
in the vicinity of the shops, 

 The Street, Tongham – drop the proposal to introduce an additional disabled 
parking bay on the west side of the road and retain the existing disabled 
facility on the east side of the road.  Therefore, the location does not appear 
in ANNEXE 13. 

 
 

3. OPTIONS: 

 
3.1 The Committee needs to decide whether to implement the proposals as 

recommended, make changes, or not to progress some, or all of the proposals.    
If there was a desire to increase the amount of restriction as a result of 
comments received, the proposals would have to be advertised again.  The 
controls recommended for implementation have been discussed, and in the 
majority of cases have been amended, as a result of the discussions with local 
borough and county councillors. 

Page 38

ITEM 10



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

3.2 In respect to the proposals for the Fairland estate, the Committee needs to 
decide whether to implement the proposals recommended by officers 
(ANNEXE 7a), or the ones preferred by the local councillors (ANNEXE 7b). 

3.3 If the Committee agrees the recommendations, it is likely that the 
implementation will take place in mid-2016. 

3.4 The Committee could choose not to make the orders.  However, the issues 
that have been raised, and in many cases confirmed by the consultations, 
would remain unresolved. 

 
 

4. CONSULTATIONS: 

 
4.1 Letters associated with the informal and formal consultations have been 

distributed to over 5,000 addresses, various other interested parties such as 
parish council, community organisations and residents’ associations.  This has 
resulted in over 6,000 ‘hits’ on the associated pages on Guildford Borough 
Council’s website.  In the case of the formal consultations, statutory consultees 
have also been notified. 

4.2 The feedback and proposals have been circulated to relevant local borough 
and county councillors, and meetings held with many of them to discuss this 
and possible amendments to the proposals. 

 
 

5. FINANCIAL AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS: 

 
5.1 We anticipate that the overall cost of the current review will not be more than 

£50,000 and this can be met from on-street parking surplus.  This figure covers 
both the geographic and ad-hoc elements of the review.  The precise amount 
will ultimately depend on the number of locations where we subsequently 
introduce controls. 

5.2 Existing resources will be used to conduct the consultations and the only 
additional expenditure will be postage. 

 
 

6. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS: 

 
6.1 Blue badge holders can park in disabled parking bays without time limit or on 

yellow lines, not subject to loading restrictions, for up to three hours and are 
exempt from charges for parking on-street.  They can also park for an 
unlimited period in residents only, shared-use or limited waiting parking places. 

 
 

7. LOCALISM: 

 
7.1 The proposals will affect all road users in the areas where amendments are 

proposed and particularly residents.  The proposals will be publicised and the 
comments received given carefully considered. 

Page 39

ITEM 10



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 
 

8. OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 

Area assessed: Direct Implications: 

Crime and Disorder No significant implications arising 
from this report. 

Sustainability (including Climate 
Change and Carbon Emissions) 

Set out below. 

Corporate Parenting/Looked After 
Children 

No significant implications arising 
from this report. 

Safeguarding responsibilities for 
vulnerable children and adults   

No significant implications arising 
from this report. 

Public Health 
 

No significant implications arising 
from this report 

 
Sustainability implications 

 
8.1 Parking sits alongside Climate Change and Air Quality within the strategies 

that feed into the Surrey Transport Plan.  Therefore, in many respects, these 
strategies and sustainability are inter-dependant. 

 
8.2 Preventing parking in locations where it would otherwise cause safety and 

access issues, and in particular, impede traffic, helps reduce congestion, the 
resultant journey times and pollution.  This can be particularly important on bus 
routes and where large vehicles utilise relatively narrow roads. 

 
 

9. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
9.1 We have carefully considered the feedback received and recommend the 

Committee agrees:  

 
(i) that a Traffic Regulation Order (TROs) is made to implement new 

controls and changes to the existing, covering Avondale area around 
the Ash Vale and North Camp railway stations, shown in ANNEXE 3, 

(ii) that a Traffic Regulation Order (TROs) is made to implement new 
controls and changes to the existing, covering Effingham Junction, 
shown in ANNEXE 5, 

(iii) that a Traffic Regulation Order (TROs) is made to implement new 
controls, covering Fairlands, shown in ANNEXE 7a, 

(iv) that a Traffic Regulation Order (TROs) is made to implement new 
controls and changes to the existing, covering the Merrow shopping 
parade area, shown in ANNEXE 9, 

(v) that a Traffic Regulation Order (TROs) is made to implement new 
controls and changes to the existing, covering Shalford, shown in 
ANNEXE 11, 

Page 40

ITEM 10



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

(vi) that Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) are made to implement new 
controls and changes to the existing, covering the ‘ah-hoc’ locations, 
shown in ANNEXE 13. 

 
 

10. WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

 
10.1 If the Committee agrees to implement the proposals set out in 

recommendations (i) to (vi), it is likely that this will take place in mid-2016, 
alongside the controls the Committee previously agreed to implement at its 
December 2015 meeting.  This would involve publishing a public notice, 
erecting street notices, placing documentation on deposit and writing to those 
in the immediate vicinity of the proposals, and that have made representations, 
at the time the proposals are to be implemented. 

10.2 In relation to the Burpham shopping parade area and Burpham Lane and the 
small number of other locations the Committee agreed to advertise at its 
December 2015 meeting, these are currently being advertised / will be 
advertised in the coming weeks.  Any representations received as a result will 
be reported to the June 2016 meeting of the Committee.  If we were to 
subsequently implement any controls, this is expected to take place in mid-to-
late 2016. 

 
 

 
Contact Officer: 
Andrew Harkin, On-street Parking Coordinator, Guildford Borough Council 
(01483) 444535 
 
Consulted: 
Surrey Police and other statutory consultees 
Residents 
Businesses 
Community groups and residents’ associations 
Parish Councils 
Local Ward and Divisional Councillors 
 
Annexes: 
1 - Summary of representations – Geographic area and ‘Ad-hoc’ proposals 
2 - Avondale area around the Ash Vale and North Camp railway stations – 

representations (available online or on request), 
3 - Avondale area around the Ash Vale and North Camp railway stations – revised 

proposals for which authority to make a Traffic Regulation Order (TROs) is being 
sought, 

4 - Effingham Junction – representations (available online or on request), 
5 - Effingham Junction – revised proposals for which authority to make a Traffic 

Regulation Order (TROs) is being sought, 
6 - Fairlands – representations (available online or on request), 
7 - a & b - Fairlands – revised proposals for which authority to make a Traffic 

Regulation Order (TROs) is being sought, 
8 - Merrow shopping parade area – representations (available online or on request), 
9 - Merrow shopping parade area – revised proposals for which authority to make a 

Traffic Regulation Order (TROs) is being sought, 

Page 41

ITEM 10



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

10 - Shalford – representations (available online or on request), 
11 - Shalford – revised proposals for which authority to make a Traffic Regulation 

Order (TROs) is being sought, 
12 - ‘Ad-hoc’ locations – representations (available online or on request), 
13 - ‘Ad-hoc’ locations – revised proposals for which authority to make Traffic 

Regulation Orders (TROs) is being sought, 
 
 
Sources/background papers: 

 Item 9, Guildford Local Committee, 11 December 2013 

 Item 13, Guildford Local Committee, 24 September 2014 

 Items 15 & 16, Guildford Local Committee, 17 June 2015 

 Item 12, Guildford Local Committee, 8 December 2015 
 

 

 

Page 42

ITEM 10



Summary of representations - Geographic area and 'Ad-hoc' proposals (398 No. representations) ANNEXE 1

Locality Review type Road No. of 
representations

Specific 
comments

Stated support Support with 
revisions

General 
opposition

Stated 
opposition

Ash Church Road 7 5 1 1
Foreman Park 3 2 1

Foreman Road* 4 4
Ash Hill Road 3 1 1 1
College Road 5 1 3 1

Ash Street 34 5 4 2 23
Star Lane 8 1 7

Elleray Court 1 1
Gorseland Close 2 1 1

Hutton Road* 5 5
Prospect Road 32 8 6 3 15

Vale Road 1 1 1
general comments 32 6 7 5 14

Avondale 2 1 1
Birch Way 3 2 1

Cypress Grove 3 1 2
Lysons Avenue 3 2 1
Newfield Road* 15 15

Station Road East 10 2 1 7
Station Road West 9 2 2 1 4

Wellesley Close 1 1
Wentworth Close 3 1 2

Wentworth Crescent 11 1 3 3 4
sub-total 92 13 18 26 35

Compton Ad-hoc Spiceall 0 0
Effingham Ad-hoc Guildford Road 6 6 6

general comments 2 1 1
Effingham Common 

Road
2 1 1

Old Lane 12 6 2 2 2
Old Lane (service 

road)
10 4 6

sub-total 26 8 3 6 9
general comments 28 8 5 1 14

Brocks Drive 1 1
Brooke Forest 1 1
Dynevor Place 1 1

Envis Way 2 1 1
Fairlands Avenue 10 2 6 2
Fairlands Avenue 

(service Road)
7 3 1 3

Fairlands Road 2 2
Gumbrells Close 1 1

Kiln Meadows 0
Littlefield Close 0
Littlefield Way 0
Louis Fields 2 1 1

Quakers Way 1 1
St Michael's Avenue 2 2

Sandpit Heath 0
Wallace Close 1 1

sub-total 59 12 15 2 30
Agraria Road 1 1 1
Cline Road 0 0

Cranley Road 1 1 1
Ellis Avenue 1 1 1
Falcon Road 3 3 1 2

Ferry Lane 8 8 8
Josephs Road 2 2 1 1

Markenfield Road 4 4 1 3
Pewley Hill 2 2 1 1

Raymond Crescent 3 3 1 2
South Hill 3 3 3

Tormead Road 4 4 4
Aldershot Road 
(service road) 0 0

Barrack Road 0 0
Manor Road 2 2 2

Barnwood Road 0
Broomfield 1 1

Cabell Road 2 2
Coppice Close 0

Hartshill 0
Homestall 0

Pond Meadow 2 1 1
Stoney Brook 1 1

Worplesdon Road 3 3 1 2
Greville Close 4 2 1 1

general comments 1 1
Epsom Road 12 7 1 4
Merrow Street 10 3 5 2
Sadlers Close 1 1

sub-total 24 5 12 1 6
Ripley Ad-hoc Rose Lane 2 2 2

Fairlands Geographic 
Area

Guildford Town Ad-hoc

Guildford CPZ

Ash Ad-hoc

Ash Vale Ad-hoc

Ad-hoc

6

38

83

22

37

3

23

Ash Vale stations Geographic 
Area

34

9

Effingham Junction Geographic 
Area

Merrow parade Geographic 
Area

Page 43

ITEM 10



Summary of representations - Geographic area and 'Ad-hoc' proposals (398 No. representations) ANNEXE 1

Locality Review type Road No. of 
representations

Specific 
comments

Stated support Support with 
revisions

General 
opposition

Stated 
opposition

Sandy Lane 0 0
Send Road 0 0

Send Road (service 
road) 1 1 1

Tannery Lane 1 1 1
general comments 14 6 4 4

Ashcroft 5 1 4
Atherton Close 0
Chinthurst Lane 23 8 11 2 2
Dagden Road 2 2
Kings Road 11 8 2 1

Mitchells Close 0
Orchard Road 8 3 2 3
Poplar Road 10 1 5 4

Shalford Lane 2 2
Station Road 9 3 2 1 3

Station Row (private) 1 1
Tillingbourne Road 10 5 5

sub-total 95 35 29 8 23
Gomshall Lane 3 2 1
Middle Street 3 2 1
Poyle Road 3 1 2
The Street 3 3

New House Farm 
Lane

0

Oak Hill 2 1 1
The Oval 1 1

Total 398 471 117 107 63 184
Being considered at 
March 2016 meeting

370 443 101 104 63 175

Geographic locations 246 296 73 77 43 103
'Ad-hoc' locations 124 147 28 27 20 72

Key
**** Road - roads / areas being considered at the March 2016 meeting of the committee
**** Road - roads considered previously at the December 2015 meeting of the Committee

3

Wood Street Village

Shere Ad-hoc

Tongham Ad-hoc

Shalford Geographic 
Area

Ad-hoc

81

4

3

Ad-hocSend

Page 44

ITEM 10



21

69.2m

AV
EN

U
E

24

5

1

The Beeches

Drain
Arthur Cottages

ROSEMARY

El Sub Sta

NEXUS PARK

3

Works

Works

Works

El Sub Sta

BI
RC

H 
W

AY

1

Works

Drain

NEXUS PARK

LYSONS AVENUE

67.4m

El Sub Sta

Works

Lysons Link South

NEXUS PARK

STATION ROAD W
EST

ST
AT

IO
N 

R
O

AD
 W

ES
T

Tanks

67.1m

67.1m

Drain

El

Sub Sta

Ash Vale

Post

LY
SO

N
S 

AV
EN

STATIO
N R

OAD W
EST

SP

d

Weir

SL

W
illo

w 
Co

ur
t

Tober

St Helens

Gordon

House

The

Harriers

14
9

4

STATION VIEW

The Willows

1

2

Weirside

Dennis

Ventura

Willow Bank

The Weir

Gorsebank

2

1

3

6

FURZE CLOSE

Dene

4

Phelaida

Villas

6

1

1
2

25
27

26

Rowden Works

FR
IM

LEY R
O

AD

Cypresses

Mendips

The Brae

69.8m

Vale Croft

El

Sub Sta

Nellers Cottages

Normanton

Normanton Place

1

1
3

Cardiff

Cottages

4
1

2 Villas

Rowden House

H
ea

th
er

 C
ot

ta
ge

s

Josephine

Catherine

Hayes

1

8

Verdala House

South Western
Villas

Ruscombe Villas
2

1

2

12

Tania

BM

70.05m

Kenlea

1
6

Kingsfield Court

Polvarth

3

Heather Cottages

Pendennis

1

Church

Sydney Villas

Denton

Cottages

The Firs

28
29

1
4

Simrosa

3

Gilwin

D
rain

Blen Cathra

CHART

HOUSE

ROA

354

El Sub Sta

CHART HOUSE ROAD

42

5

1 
to

 6

7 
to

 1
2

Lodge
St G

eorge's

Wedgewood

VALE R
O

AD

70.4m

30
7

348

356

LB

PO

Su
bw

ay

M
P 

32
.5

As
h 

Va
le 

St
at

ion

4

70.0m

ST
AT

IO
N A

PP
ROAC

H

TCB'sSL

BM 70.25m
Vale Court

1

3

362

1 to 8

32
5

366

368

VALE R
O

AD

LYSONS AVENUE

378
380

1

33
3

33
1

33
5

Gas

Govn

19

20

15

1

La
 C

as
a

N
O

R
TH

C
O

TE

R
O

AD

STATION ROAD EAST

10

NO
RT

HC
OTE

 R
OAD

23

1

11

23

33

49
83

81
65 4579

SYCAMORE DRIVE

17 21

51

13
4

6

4 33

31

43

51

63

64

70

68

77

1 to 8

Samuel Cody House

9 to 14

El Sub Sta

A
VO

N
D

AL
E16

12

10
11

9

8

13
8

45

1 3
0

1 2
6

87

13
253

89

91

80

81

83

87
85

12
4

88868381

11
1

99

10
1

89

95

93

11
7

11
5

11
3

10
9

82

80

WELLESLEY CLOSE

71 76

73 74

35
1

23

32
3029

31

28

25
24

20

43

40

42

41
39 36

52

59

67

60

55

57

56

54

4951

50

48

D
rain

SL

D
rain

H
olly H

ouse

D
r ai n

Depot

W
hitegates

Blythew
ood D

elhi

11

SYCAMORE DRIVE

Carlyon

27

56

21

M
andalay

25

STATION ROAD EAST

22

BIR
C

H
 W

AY

68.9m

ALDER CLOSE

22

98

1

8

15

29

36

Works

68.3m

Works

LY
SO

NS
 W

AY

4

1

3

C
Y

PR
ES

S  G
R

O
V

E

1

24

20

CYPRESS

GROVE

10

17

45

STATION ROAD EAST

82

79

71

70

65

55
85

91

78

LYSONS AVENUE

Works

67.4m
Works

Works

30

43

39

38

31

60

61

64

56

48

25

AV
O

N
D

AL
E

LB

5355

5965

AV
O

N
D

AL
E

10 to 11

49

104

92

90

STATION ROAD EAST

12 to 14

9

4

3

1

18

ENTERPRISE ESTATE

13
5

El Sub Sta

Tk

13
1

12
9

12
5

12
7

13
3

Factory

SM

Poplars Farm

Tk

Works

SM

Pond

M
P 51

  Introduce  
  No waiting  
  at any time  

  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce  
  No waiting  

  Mon-Fri  
  8.30am-6pm  

  single yellow lines  

  Convert existing  
  No waiting  

  Mon-Sat  
  8.30am-6pm  

  single yellow lines  
  to  

  No waiting  
  Mon-Fri  

  8.30am-6pm  
  single yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce  
  No waiting  

  Mon-Fri  
  8.30am-6pm  

  single yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Revoke part of existing  
  No waiting at any time  

  double yellow lines  
  (TECHNICALITY)  

ANDREW HARKINDRAWN BY

DRAWING No.

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE                     

DATE

GBC/APH/AshValeStnsProp1RevB

No Waiting At Any Time

No Waiting Mon-Sat
8.30am-6pm

No Waiting 7am-10am

Limited Waiting 2 Hours No
Return Within 1 Hour
Mon-Sat 8.30am-6pm

Key to Existing Restriction Types Displayed

 

Proposals to be made -
Ash Vale stations area

(Plan 1 of 2)

23/02/2016

1 : 2000 at A3

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No: 100019625, 2016

P
age 45

IT
E

M
 10



Woodpeckers

Little Ha

Man

Manderley

Little
Hatches

Thirby

H
O

R
S

E
SH

O
E

 LAN
E

Noctorum

Fieldg

Bo

Gillyme

Gillymere

Fieldgate

Bobbingay

Cherry Trees

Conkers

To
w

in
g 

Pa
th

(PH)

Bridge

Ash Common

Heathvale

Stone

Drain

Canal

Cottage

The Swan

Tanglewood

Cobbetts

HORSESHOELANE

Greenmantle

Faircroft

Berwyn

Bowyers

Stone

St
on

e

Stone

UTT
ON R

OAD

16

7

Ba
sin

gs
to

ke
 C

an
al

Karibuni

260

4

PINE CLOSE

HEATH VALE BRIDGE ROAD

Haling

Cottage

5

3

14

Palmena

Redfern

Drays

Pentland Dell
Lynton

Wilmington

Barrossa

Southlands

Luccet

69.8m

El Sub Sta

ROWCROFT CLOSE

71.6m

LB

Sarum

22

71

Heath Vale House

28
3

Upwey

Drain

Conifers

28
5

Drain

324

28
9

VALE R
O

A
D

21
9

250
252

252a

254

23
9 VALE R

O
A

D

4

24
5

23
5

1

22
7

2 62

2 64

268

9

25
5

White

Lodge

10

26
7

3
5

25
3

24
9

2

28
1

1

27
3

13

Ash Vale

11

8 JU
BI

LE
E 

D
R

IV
E

El Sub Sta

2

23

16

FIR ACRE ROAD

24

14

18

15

1

1727

20

18

NEWFIELD ROAD

10

15

32

27

20

22

58

Belleisle

Dorstone

ssm
et

Rossley

Woodside

Caradoc

Rothbury

Coach House

The Rhodons

The Cedars

Weybourne

Trelawney

70.08m

Coverack

Firgrove

Alex's

Rivenoak

BM

332

Lodge

Pine View

Raghu-Kam
al

gt G
eorge's

Wedgewood

VALE R
O

AD

30
7

348

El

Sub Sta

29
3

76

113

29
5

30
3

1

W
EN

TW
ORT

H 
CL

OSE

Ash Vale

WENTWORTH CRESCENT

99
103

13

2

10

NO
RT

HC
OTE

 R
OAD

23

33

24

81
65 4579

46
35

63

48

50

12
2

68
54

44
34

115 2123

25

113

129

137

17

18
6

1 9
0

1 9
2

1 8
8

1 9
4

1 9
8

MAPLE CLOSE

A
VO

N
D

AL
E

77
99

93

101
75

83

85

91

65

1 3
4

6

4 33

43

El Sub Sta

A
VO

N
D

AL
E16

12

10
11

9

8

13
8

53
45

20221
0

2 0
8

21
4

2 1
2

206

200

204

131

15
2

15
8

15
6

14
0

14
6

14
4

1 5
4

16
0

17
4

1 7
2

16
6

16
8

17
0

23

3

28

21

25
24

20

81

SL

56

MP 32.75

85

W
EN

TW
ORT

H 
CR

ES
CE

NT

Rosemont

W
AV

ER
LE

Y 
D

R
IV

E 1

37

2

33

13

12

53

El

Sub Sta

WENTWORTH CRESCENT

59

42

41

C
LO

S
E

ROBIN CLOSE

FIR ACRE ROAD

60

1

4

ROBIN

6

56

8

54

40

171

187

179

181

185
177

71

28

29

54

51

22

20
a

20

49

45

16

31

55

49
39

25

35

37

169

165

161

21

W
AV

ER
LEY D

R
I V

E

D
rain

Balancing Pond

63

69

53

67 57

61

NORTHCOTE ROAD

139

97

209
197

199

211

207

153
19 5

147

87149
151

83

79

77

89

M
P 

33

66

57

59

Pond

D
rain

D
rain

Playground

242

AV
O

N
D

AL
E

M
P

 50.75m

254

222

226

22
4 228

24
0

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Revoke part of existing  
  No waiting at any time  

  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

ANDREW HARKINDRAWN BY

DRAWING No.

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE                     

DATE

GBC/APH/AshValeStnsProp2

No Waiting At Any Time

 

Key to Existing Restriction Types Displayed

Proposals to be made -
Ash Vale stations area

(Plan 2 of 2)

23/02/2016

1 : 2000 at A3

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No: 100019625, 2016

P
age 46

IT
E

M
 10



53.3m

Def

Car Park

Stat
ion

Dra
in

53.7m

Drain

Path
 (u

m)

Shelter

Path

Effingham

56.3m Junction

Gallows Grove

MP

21

0.9
1m

 R
H

BANK'S LANE

Buli
bu

nd
a

FB

TCB

HOW
ARD ROAD

54.3m

Gallows Grove

SL

Normay

Sa
nd

er
s

El

1279

Sub

Sta

1

St
on

el
y

WoodhouseEaves

Oak View

Littledene Red

Tiles

LOVELACE CLOSE

Tuscans

5

The Berries

SL

Glenwood

Carriage

Shed

5

Cha
tw

oo
d

Fo
rn

ell
s

Mya
tts

7

1

1

April Cottage

Spring Cottage

Claremont

Springfield

Woodside

Pinewood

Forest Holt

Westwoods

Holcombe

Ly
nd

al
e

LB

Garage

PO

Coppertrees

Camber

53.3m

Woodpeckers

West Winds

Tithe Cottage

Chota

Amberwood

Robinia

Oakhurst

Roselawn

FO
RE

ST
 R

O
AD

Woodcroft

Mapledown

Langton HideawayCottage

Effingham Junction
Eighteen

Seventeen
Cedarlands

Haydn

Freiston

Caragh

Mulfra

Solana

G
re

en
 E

nd Thistledown

Shorwell

Hawthorns

Do
wn

fo
rd

 C
ot

ta
ge

Wood
End

Oakview

SU
RR

EY
 G

AR
DE

NS Ashbourne

Avalon

k

wood

orth

Th
e

SURREY GARDENS

W
oo

ds
to

ck

Fe
ns

Evergreens

The
 G

len

M
illb

ro
ok

ppeena

Gallows Grove

Gallows Grove

C
op

th
or

ne
 P

la
ce

Oak House

Willow Tree Cottage

White Croft

Westcott

Willow House

Beech House

Fl
at

s 
1  

- 8

Elm House

Alder House

Hawthorn House

ROAD

GP

54.1m

El Sub Sta

HOWARD

Effingham Junction

1

23

49.1m

Corner

Cottage

Larkrise

53.7mHoward Mews

1

4

2

51.7m

13

16

47

Def

2231

OLD LANE

52.0m

35

28

42

Whitburn

Duart House

Adela

Terracina

Trevann

Ardderrock

Primrose Cott

SURREY GARDENS

White Heathers

1

rha
m

OLD
 LA

NE G
ARDENS

Corner Cottage

Ashfold
Thistledene

Grange

5

The

uin
n

Far

End

Villetta

lntilis

Roost

Grenville

Jasmine

Schnorrer's

Rosecroft

Bramley Cott

ymhurst

any

El Sub Sta

rs

1

Forestleas

AIRWAYS

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce  
  No waiting  

  Mon-Fri  7-11am  
  single yellow line  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

ANDREW HARKIN

GBC/APH/EffJcnPropRevB

No Waiting At Any Time

No Waiting Mon-Fri 7am-11am

 

Key to Existing Restriction Types Displayed

Revised proposals -
Effingham Junction

11/02/2016

1 : 1750 at A3Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No: 100019625, 2016

Page 47

ITEM 10



This page is intentionally left blank



Surgery

FAIR
LAN

D
S R

O
AD

25

14

24

North Cottage

Whites Farmhouse

13
35

FA
IR

LAN
D

S R
O

AD

5

LITT

Shelter

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

41.1m

Golf Course

Clubhouse

2

FAIRLANDS ROAD

ALDERSHOT ROAD

40.1m

15

7

BM 40.99m

El

471

Sub Sta

11

1

2

FAIRLANDS AVENUE

Fairlands

Fairlands

Farm

Farm

2

FAIRLANDS ROAD

4

10

1

39.4m

53

63

13

22

ST M
IC

H
AEL'S AVEN

U
E

39.3m

22

ST MICHAEL'S AVENUE

25

39

GP

50

36

LB

Surgery

FAIRLANDS AVE

34

65

79

91

103

8

46

10

El Sub Sta

ROAD

51

ALDERSHO

37.1m

FB

FB

Common

FB

Kiln End

DYNEVOR PLACE

10

15
1

27

KILN MEADOW
S

5

18

KILN MEADOW
S

23

8

22

10

DYNEVOR PLACE

2

6
4 5

3
1

Fairlands Court

10
12

7

11
9

33

8

41

BRO
O

KE FO
REST

26

17

18

17

19

40

BRO
O

KE FO
REST

BR

1

47

2

6769

1

14

9

PO

FB

29

1

6

8

2

LS CLOSE

El
Sub Sta

15

2
4

20

13

QUAKERS WAY

Community Centre
Playground

7

16

BR
O

C
KS

 D
R

IV
E

FAIRLANDS AVENUE

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce  
  Disabled only  
  parking place  

  Introduce  
  Mon-Sat  

  8.30am-6pm  
  3 hour limited waiting  

  no return 3 hours  
  parking places    

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

ANDREW HARKINDRAWN BY

DRAWING No.

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE                     

DATE

GBC/APH/FairlandsNorth  Opt1RevA

Revised proposals -
Fairlands estate (north)

Option 1

08/03/2016

1 : 1750 at A3

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No: 100019625, 2016

P
age 49

IT
E

M
 10



Pond

Hunt's Farm

Drain

Hunt's Farm

1

Pond4

Pa
th

SA N
D

PIT  H
E

ATH

1

37

7

2

1

3

1

TTLEFIELD
 C

LO
SE

LOUIS FIELDS

Worplesdon County

6

Primary School

Chy

13

14

El Sub Sta

11

9

18

20

LITTLEFIELD WAY

Worplesdon County Swimming

Pool

Worplesdon County

Primary School

El Sub Sta

130 Primary School

El Sub Sta

49

12

29

14
16

27

TCB

EN
VI

S 
W

AY

144

140

Worplesdon County

Primary School

R
O

O
KE FO

R
EST

22

57

24

62

21
17

75

52

LOUIS FIELDS

LOUIS FIELDS

118

106

51
53

WALLACE

W
AL

LA
C

E 
C

LO
SE

1
2

12
13

63

653 CLOSE

10

EN
VI

S 
W

AY

14

10

12

2

14

1

26

69

59

BR
O

C
KS D

R
IVE

1

GUMBRELLS C

80

ENVIS WAY

El Sub Sta

Sheep Dip

Pond

94

83

87

41

79

42

40
a

29
35

43

28

40 27

13

26

13

ENVIS W
AY

35

40

25

36

52

LB

68

56

39

50

52 46

BR
O

C
KS

 D
R

IV
E

BROCKS D
RIV

E

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce  
  Mon-Fri  

  8-10am & 2.30-4.30pm  
  No stopping  

  on School Keep Clear  
  markings restriction  
  thereby formalising  
  existing advisory  

  markings  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting  
  Mon-Fri 8am-4.30pm  
  single yellow lines  

ANDREW HARKINDRAWN BY

DRAWING No.

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE                     

DATE

GBC/APH/FairlandsSouthOpt1RevA

Revised proposals -
Fairlands estate (south)

Option 1

08/03/2016

1 : 1750 at A3

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No: 100019625, 2016

P
age 50

IT
E

M
 10



Surgery

FAIR
LAN

D
S R

O
AD

25

14

24

North Cottage

Whites Farmhouse

13
35

FA
IR

LAN
D

S R
O

AD

5

LITTL

Shelter

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

41.1m

Golf Course

Clubhouse

2

FAIRLANDS ROAD

ALDERSHOT ROAD

40.1m

15

7

BM 40.99m

El

471

Sub Sta

11

1

2

FAIRLANDS AVENUE

Fairlands

Fairlands

Farm

Farm

2

FAIRLANDS ROAD

4

10

1

39.4m

53

63

13

22

ST M
IC

H
AEL'S AVEN

U
E

39.3m

22

ST MICHAEL'S AVENUE

25

39

GP

50

36

LB

Surgery

FAIRLANDS AVE

34

65

79

91

103

8

46

10

El Sub Sta

51

37.1m

FB

FB

Common

FB

Kiln End

DYNEVOR PLACE

10

15
1

27

KILN MEADOW
S

5

18

KILN MEADOW
S

23

8

22

10

DYNEVOR PLACE

2

6
4 5

3
1

Fairlands Court

10
12

7

11
9

33

8

41

BRO
O

KE FO
REST

26

17

18

17

19

40

BRO
O

KE FO
REST

BR
O

1

47

2

6769

1

14

9

PO

FB

1

29

1

6

8

2

RELLS CLOSE

El

Sub Sta

15

2
4

20

13

QUAKERS WAY

Community Centre
Playground

7

16

BR
O

C
KS

 D
R

IV
E

FAIRLANDS AVENUE

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce  
  Disabled only  
  parking place  

  Introduce  
  Mon-Sat  

  8.30am-6pm  
  3 hour limited waiting  

  no return 3 hours  
  parking places    

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

ANDREW HARKINDRAWN BY

DRAWING No.

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE                     

DATE

GBC/APH/FairlandsNorthOp2RevA

Revised proposals -
Fairlands estate (north)

Option 2

08/03/2016

1 : 1750 at A3

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No: 100019625, 2016

P
age 51

IT
E

M
 10



Pond

Hunt's Farm

Drain

Hunt's Farm

1

Pond4

Pa
th

SA N
D

PIT  H
E

ATH

1

37

7

2

1

3

1

TTLEFIELD
 C

LO
SE

LOUIS FIELDS

Worplesdon County

6

Primary School

Chy

13

14

El Sub Sta

11

9

18

20

LITTLEFIELD WAY

Worplesdon County Swimming

Pool

Worplesdon County

Primary School

El Sub Sta

130 Primary School

El Sub Sta

49

12

29

14
16

27

TCB

EN
VI

S 
W

AY

144

140

Worplesdon County

Primary School

R
O

O
KE FO

R
EST

22

57

24

62

21
17

75

52

LOUIS FIELDS

LOUIS FIELDS

118

106

51
53

WALLACE

W
AL

LA
C

E 
C

LO
SE

1
2

12
13

63

653 CLOSE

10

EN
VI

S 
W

AY

14

10

12

2

14

1

26

69

59

BR
O

C
KS D

R
IVE

1

GUMBRELLS C

80

ENVIS WAY

El Sub Sta

Sheep Dip

Pond

94

83

87

41

79

42

40
a

29
35

43

28

40 27

13

26

13

ENVIS W
AY

35

40

25

36

52

LB

68

56

39

50

52 46

BR
O

C
KS

 D
R

IV
E

BROCKS D
RIV

E

  Introduce No waiting  
  Mon-Fri 8-10am & 2.30-4.30pm  

  single yellow lines  

  Introduce  
  Mon-Fri  

  8-10am & 2.30-4.30pm  
  No stopping  

  on School Keep Clear  
  markings restriction  
  thereby formalising  
  existing advisory  

  markings  

  Introduce No waiting  
  Mon-Fri 8-10am & 2.30-4.30pm  

  single yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting  
  Mon-Fri 8-10am & 2.30-4.30pm  

  single yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting  
  Mon-Fri 8-10am & 2.30-4.30pm  

  single yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting  
  Mon-Fri 8-10am & 2.30-4.30pm  

  single yellow lines  

ANDREW HARKINDRAWN BY

DRAWING No.

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE                     

DATE

GBC/APH/FairlandsSouthOpt2RevA

Revised proposals -
Fairlands estate (south)

Option 2

08/03/2016

1 : 1750 at A3

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No: 100019625, 2016

P
age 52

IT
E

M
 10



Depot

Hedger's
Almshouses

8

Allotment Gardens

SADLERS CLOSE

The Cedars

80.3m

1

St John the
Evangelist Church

House

House

M
ERRO

W
 STREET

Merrow

Thrupp House

BM
 80.42m

1 to 3

1 t
o 2

1

1 t
o 4

Browell
House

Meadow
House

Poyle House11

15

W
YK

EH
AM

 R
O

A
D

10

8

1 t
o 1

4

4

1

Maresfield
House

1 t
o

36

76.8m

2

8

4

4

SE

Church
row

TRODD'S 

6

Car Park

Track

81.1m

BM
 84.14m

19

MERROW 3

226

2

WAY
Colyton

THE PADDO
CK

9
11

13

16

10

6

El Sub Sta

Horse and Groom
(PH)

EPSOM ROAD

265

3

El Sub Sta

Greytiles

9

12

263

255

Bank

Shelter

82.1m

251
253

259 261

1

249
247

243

LB

239

229

241

1

220

225

TCB

PO

231

221

235

4

209

2

1

7

BUSHY HILL DRIVE

77.2m

El Sub Sta

2

1

4

2

22

78.3m

BM 76
.01

m 75.8m

18
1

187

187a
189

195

199

203

214

44

42

FAIRW
AY

a

43

KIN
GSWOOD C

LO
SE

BURW
OOD

CLOSE

23

5

1

1

14

200

TOLLGATE

198

75.8m

D

)

EPSOM ROAD

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Convert unrestricted  
  parking places to  

  Mon-Sat  
  8.30am-6pm  

  3 hour limited waiting  
  no return 3 hours  

  parking places  

  Introduce  
  No waiting  

  Mon-Sat  
  8.30am-6pm  

  single yellow line  

ANDREW HARKINDRAWN BY

DRAWING No.

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE                     

DATE

GBC/APH/MerrowParadeDraftProp

Key to Existing Restriction Types Displayed

No Waiting At Any Time

No Waiting Mon-Sat
8.30am-6pm

Free Parking Places With
Waiting Permitted For Any
Period Without Time Limit

 

Draft proposals -
Merrow 'Parade'

18/05/2015

1 : 1250 at A3

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No: 100019625, 2015

P
age 53

IT
E

M
 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Oakford Mews

Kings Mews

STATION ROAD

KINGS ROAD

ST
AT

IO
N

 R
O

AD

STATION ROAD

W
EALD CLO

SE

W
EALD

CLO
SE

STATION ROAD

CHINTHURST LANE

CHINTHURST LANE

KINGS ROAD

KINGS ROAD

63

Ashley House

Cottage

Clock

Rusham End

1

2

35

41

47

STATION RO
AD

BM 42.25m

3992

Ashley Gardens

Path

Courts

Courts

Tennis

Hall

Tennis

1 to 20

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

Hall

29a

51

52

27

45

33

21

Cottage

Cliffe

View

Piccards

Dormers

Little

Path

Corner

Cottage

Somersbury

Tall Trees

Cottage

Garden

Cottage

Old Vicarage

The

Path

Old

The Granary

Somersbury

8

4

12

A 248

C
hu

rc
h

21a

18

1
7

14

17

21

3
7

5

3

1

2

4

9

14

1
5

10

11

POUND PLACE CLOSE

15

5

4

69

2

3

8

Old Forge Ct

Stone

PO
UN

D 
PL

AC
E

Dr
ai

n

55

114

102

90

STATION ROAD

66

10

15
19

1

5

9

54

ATH
ER

TO
N

 C
LO

SE

Depot

9
13

1

5

11

13

42

30

El Sub Sta

M
IT

C
H

EL
LS

CLOSE

Club

22

10

Shalford Station

WEALD CLOSE

FB

FB

The Kiosk

6 5

An
ch

or
 H

ou
se

Pol Sta

A 248

Tr and

D Fn

KINGS ROAD

Hartonleigh

Boundary

House

Boundary

Court

42.4m

A 
28

1

SL

H
al

l

29

21

23
25 26

28

KINGS ROAD

PO

Pond

Shalford

Path

41.1m

Football Pitch

ASHCROFT

1

24

Green Hedges

Cottage

8

Woodbine Cottages

A

House

1

1

10

Blithe

Path

Row

Mitchell's

6

19

Garage

End

Wits
Posts

Posts

elter

Cricket Ground

1400

1407

SB
Tank

Victoria

C
ourt

9

4

8 10 11

12
5 6

7

3

1

2

78B
76A 78 78A

76

1

23
76B

72 72A
74

74A

3

2

1

4

13 14 15
16

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Convert No waiting  
  Mon-Sat 8.30am-6pm  

  single yellow line  
  to No waiting at any time  

  double yellow lines  
  Revoke No waiting  

  Mon-Sat 8.30am-6pm  
  single yellow line  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce  
  Mon-Sat 8.30am-6pm  
  2 hour limited waiting  

  no return 4 hour  
  parking places  

  Introduce a  
  Disabled only  
  parking place  

  Introduce  
  No waiting  
  at any time  

  double yellow  
  lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce  
  Mon-Sat 8.30am-6pm  
  2 hour limited waiting  

  no return 4 hour  
  parking place  

  Introduce  
  Mon-Sat 8.30am-6pm  
  4 hour limited waiting  

  no return 4 hour  
  parking place  

ANDREW HARKINDRAWN BY

DRAWING No.

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE                     

DATE

GBC/APH/ShalfordtobeMade1

Key to Existing Restriction Types Displayed

No Waiting At Any Time

No Waiting Mon-Sat
8.30am-6pm

Limited Waiting 20 Mins No
Return 30 Mins Mon-Sat
8am-7pm

 

Revised proposals -
Shalford

(plan 1 of 4)

01/03/2016

1 : 1500 at A3

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No: 100019625, 2016

P
age 55

IT
E

M
 10



Montagu Place

1

2 RED TILES

4

ED and Ward Bdy

3939

Shalford

CS

25

9

28

ORCHARD
ROAD

8
1

18

15

2446

TH
E STR

EET 11

87

86

78

77

TILLINGBOURNE ROAD

42

54

37

35

41

39

35

Tilling Bourne

Depot

18

FLO
R

ID
A R

O
AD

6

12

30

27

17

15

15a

85

2

1

FB

Allen

4
1

2 1

STATIO
N

R
O

W

Cott

6 5

An
ch

or
 H

ou
se

11
0

95

91

2

389

98

Conifers

42.4m

Pipe Line

75

81

69

SB
Tank

Footbridge

Footbridge

Footbridge

PH

Brandons

Victoria

C
ourt

School

House

Shalford

Berw
yn

El Sub Sta

LB

39.0m

Tangytavil

County

Infant

School

Tudor

38.0m

D
AG

D
EN

 R
O

AD

Cott

36.7m

BM
 37.51m

Lych Gate

Cemetery

Path

Chapel

72

7

1

18

10

2

25

23

15

28

25a

Bahamia

Court

3

4

(Dagden Road)

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Revoke redundant  
  No waiting at any time  
  restrictions situated  

  on private road  
  (TECHNICALITY)    

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

ANDREW HARKINDRAWN BY

DRAWING No.

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE                     

DATE

GBC/APH/Shalfo r dtobeMade2

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

No Waiting At Any Time

 

Revised proposals -
 Shalford

 (plan 2 of 4)

01/03/2016

1 : 1500 at A3

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No: 100019625, 2016

P
age 56

IT
E

M
 10



CHINTHURST LANE

POPLAR ROAD

30

GRANTLEY CL

G
R

AN
TL

E Y
 C

LO
SE

39

31

C
he

st
nu

t

R
ob

in
w

oo
d

C
ot

ta
ge

Morcote

Little

3359

1

4

El Sub Sta

Oakley

48

22

31

23

35

30

38

1

1

7

13

53

A
SH

C
R

O
FT

2
4

Denbigh

19

25

House

9

11

15

16

18

M
O

R
EC

O
TE CLOSE

7

House

1

Co
tta

MS

LB

37.9m

El Sub Sta

House

Holbrook

er

12

7

CONFORD DRIVE

Cottage

Trellis

Abbey

0070

H
O

R
SH

AM
 R

O
AD

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

ANDREW HARKIN

GBC/APH/Shalford  tobeMade3Revised proposals -
  Shalford

  (plan 3 of 4)

01/03/2016

1 : 1500 at A4Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019625, 2016

P
age 57

IT
E

M
 10



SHALFORD LANE

Path (um)

Und

Sluice

Tilehouse Farm

FB

The Millh
ouse

Cottage

Footbridge

A 281 Malthouse

Court

Shalford Mill

(disused)

Rowans Cottage

Lych

Gate

Debnershe

FB

Vicarage

Footbridge

St Mary's Church

Reservoir

55

51
49

41

45

47

C
S

1 to 6

Hollyhock34.2m

38

34.84m

BM

Cottage

Lemon

Bridge Cottage

A 281

House

Beech

31

33

22 24

20

War Meml

Cottage

Mulberry

Shallow Ford

Footbridge

M
ulberry

C
ott

33.0m

34

32

30

9165

Church

Close

1

18

14

4

Stocks

LB

CR

(covered)

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

ANDREW HARKIN

GBC/APH/Shalford   tobeMade4Revised proposals -
Shalford

(plan 4 of 4)

01/03/2016

1 : 1500 at A4Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019625, 2016

P
age 58

IT
E

M
 10



50

ASH CHURCH ROAD

ASH CHURCH ROAD

ASH CHURCH ROAD

BRITTEN

CLO
SE

FO
R

EM
AN

 R
O

AD
FO

R
EM

AN
 R

O
AD

FOREMAN PARK
9

77.7m

2

8
10

22

11

1

FOREMAN PARK FO
R

EM
AN

 R
O

AD

23

25

33

41

43

0068

18

81.1m

36

38

28

14

September Cottage

High Trees

Greendale

ST PETERS MEAD

3

6

2

St Peter's ChurchBM 85.23m

83.8m

The Rectory

55

50
36

Posts

St Peter's
Centre

LC

77.1m

Engine
House

2

1

2

1

6 5

61

52

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce  
  Mon-Sat  

  8.30am-6pm  
  2 hour limited waiting  

  no return 4 hours  
  parking place  

  Formalise existing  
  advisory Disabled only  

  parking place  

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

ANDREW HARKIN

GBC/APH/AshChRdFmanPkProp

No Waiting At Any Time

 

Key to Existing Restriction Types Displayed

Draft proposals -
Ash Church Road & Foreman Park,

Ash

01/09/2015

1 : 1250 at A4Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019625, 2015

P
age 59

IT
E

M
 10



l to 4

87

87

85

75

O
LD CHAPEL LANE CourtClare

1a

78.3m

2

12

ASH
 LO

D
G

E D
R

IVE

74

61

2

62 to 66

68

1

2

1

ASH LODGE CLOSE

2

12

11

7

KENNET CLO
SE

14

8

12
WEY CLOSE14

12a

11

10

5

Garage

48

60
46

44

Junior School

ASH STREET

3 CRO
O

KES CO
TTAG

ES

42

42A

34

TCBs

PO

LB

77.7m

Library

STAR
 LAN

E

ASH STREET

1

54

58

9

13

Posts

4

7

49

78.3m

Bricklyn 55
55

40

31

27

33

38

35

37

ASH STREET

78.6m

3

15

25

12

6

4a

Walsh Memorial
C of E Junior School

24

37

30

Cottage

Builder s

Yard
Tavira

Yard

Builder's
Eton

House

Willow

Tree

ALEXANDRA ROAD

29

Tudor
Court

1

2

Lodge
Windsor

WINDSOR
GARDENS

13

SH
AW

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

13
15

1 20

12

2

16
14

18

Japonica
Court

1 
to

 6
0

Pond

75
.0

m

26

Japonica Court

3
5

Fe
rn

 C
ou

rt

76.5m

1
4

7
2

8
6

9

BM
77.05m

TCB

BM 78.43m

Walsh Memorial C of E
School

Walsh Memorial C of E

11

15 27

33

139

3

1

78.0m

The Greyhound
(PH)

1

2

143
145

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce  
  Mon-Sat  

  8.30am-6pm  
  2 hour limited waiting  

  no return within 4 hours  
  parking places  

ANDREW HARKINDRAWN BY

DRAWING No.

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE                     

DATE

GBC/APH/AshStStarLnPropRevB

No Waiting At Any Time

 

Key to Existing Restriction Types Displayed

Proposals to be made -
Ash Street and Star Lane, Ash

23/02/2016

1 : 1250 at A3

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No: 100019625, 2016

P
age 60

IT
E

M
 10



P

15

19 21

11

39

49

32

35

28

223
2 07
205

211
209

221

225
24

231
227

239
237

2

235

2

19
2

9 20
6

19
4

1

13 21
0

22
0

R
O

AD

7

45

2

22

124

127

128

O
AKFI ELD

S

125

FF

74

57

68.4m

78

72.2m

61

1

14

COBBETT

COBBETT ROAD

2

BM
 6

2.
55

m

20

25

86
1 FW

5

72.4m

81

71

11

16

1

43

63.0m

29

PA
R

K
 B

AR
N

 D
R

IV
E

33

3
1

El Sub Sta

31

44

30

Shelter

21

5

39

63

51

41

PARK BARN

Playing Field

Games Court

L Twr

L Twr

L Twr

L Twr

L Twr

Kings' Manor School

Park Barn Centre

L Twr

27

51
13

Pond Meadow
School

39

19

11

L Twr

L Twr

7592

87

41

29

21

93

82

LB

34

145

36

22
24

20

38

65

BROOMFIELD

53

FW

El
Sub Sta

120

BE
AVE

R
S

122

FF
Def

C
LO

SE

72

95

69.9m

10
8

7

93

WAGGON CLOSE

BM

70.86m

91

2

1

10
7

56

21

9

7

1

11
9

66.7m

Und

PARK BARN DRIVE
FF

CR

CP 13
7

El
Sub Sta 12

1

14
1

12
9

CABELL ROAD

43

33

77

23

65

53

68

CLOVER ROAD

45

CP

LB
TCB

50

CR

15
1

35

ED and Ward Bdy

99

2

101

89

91

80

FF

53
 to

51

92

47

49

135
133

147

131

121

111

57

FF

C

116 104

1

2
4

ROMAN FARM WAY

72

Sub Sta
El

63

PO
N

D
 M

EA
D

O
W

58

73

46

12

83

99
103

21
23

35
33

61

20

9395

81

58

77

75

83

48

Shelter

Community
Centre

153

151

149

163 TCB

10

68

2

191

195
193

3

5
7

17
19

3

2

Issues

Centre
Community

Sub Sta
El

BS

1

14
8

1

15
0

8

17
8

2

17
6

C
A BE

LL R
O

A
D

COPPICE CLOSE

23

35 33

21

16
2

169

13

11

19

7 1

CABELL ROAD

PARK BARN DRIVE

PARK BARN DRIVE

PARK BARN DRIVE

CLOVER ROAD

PA
RK

 B
AR

N 
DR

IV
E

STONEY BROOK

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce  
  No waiting  
  at any time  

  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce  
  No waiting  

  Mon-Sat  
  8.30am-6pm  

  single yellow line  

ANDREW HARKINDRAWN BY

DRAWING No.

DRAWING TITLE

SCALE                     

DATE

GBC/APH/CabellRdProp

No Waiting At Any Time

No Waiting Mon-Sat
8.30am-6pm

Disabled Badge Holders Only

 

Key to Existing Restriction Types Displayed

Draft proposals -
Cabell Road & environs

21/05/2015

1 : 1750 at A3

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No: 100019625, 2015

P
age 61

IT
E

M
 10



Stone

Stone

Stone

63

14

64

52

54

58
60

49

33
34

35

Sunnybank

41

Ash Common

65

90.5m

ASH HILL ROAD

BM 91.05m
Stone

77
83

85
a85

b

Mallard

El Sub Sta

Tudor
CottageHouse

32

43

Meml

Victoria
Cottages

York
Cottage

War LB

93

1

2

Hillside Cott

115

105

1

El
Sub
Sta

HEATHCOTE ROAD

COLLEGE ROAD

3

2

26
29

49

Woodstock

Three
Gables

1
3

Cottage

Azor

Villas

HILLSIDE ROAD

Rockfold

Shaw Villas

1

2
1

2

Allenbanks

Ro
ss

m
or

e

Be
gg

ar
s

Ro
os

t

Victoria
Hall

20

18

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

ANDREW HARKIN

GBC/APH/AshHillCollegeRdsRevA
Proposals to be made -

Ash Hill Road / College Road, Ash

25/02/2016

1 : 1250 at A4Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019625, 2016

P
age 62

IT
E

M
 10



182

183

111

El
Sub Sta

MP0.5

8
4

6
2

3

16

27

8

49

12 11

510

Shelter

196

3

201
199

197

SOUTHWAY

BM 59.13m 58.9m

1

Ashworth
Place

5

214 213
211

4

59.2m

16
13

1

Court

HUMBOLT CLOSE

23

10

FB

1

11

222
219220

218

1

G
R

EV
IL

LE
 C

LO
SE

21

4

LB

1

4

TCB

3

Shackleton Walk

8 9

1 to 12

19

226

Anston
Court

1

16 8

6 4

5
2

3

Farleigh Court

18
15

11
14

Subway

GREVILLE CLOSE

227

1 to 12

Purbeck
Court

1 to 12

Egerton
Court

FO
X

BU
R

R
O

W
S

 AVEN
U

E

E
G

ER
TO

N
 R

O
AD

SOUTHWAY

  Formalise  
  Existing advisory    

  Disabled Only  
  parking place  

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

ANDREW HARKIN

GBC/APH/GrevilleCloseProp

No Waiting At Any Time

No Waiting Mon-Sat
8.30am-6pm

NW M-F 8-9.30am & 4.30-6pm

 

Key to Existing Restriction Types Displayed

Draft proposals -
Greville Close, Guildford

01/09/2015

1 : 1250 at A4Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019625, 2015

P
age 63

IT
E

M
 10



N
EW

LAN
D

S
D

R
IV

Stone

1

CHANDLERS  ROAD

Health

Eynsford

Villas

2 1

The Butts

The
Birches

Nutcombe

CRESCENT L
ANE

8

PRO
SPECT RO

AD

As
hw

oo
d

Abbeywood

2

Ashwood

2

5

3

6

CRESCENT LANE

The

Birches

14

22

1

MILTON GRANGE

1

FOXHURSTROAD

13
2

11

WOODLANDS CLOSE

25

16

FO
XHURST RO

AD

29

26

1

5

21

5

G
AR

D
E

N
S

23

9

16

1

14

11

Birchdale
Mulyja

C
re

sc
en

t L
an

e

Squirrels

Little

D
ra

in

Orchard

Serenity

Leap

Cherry
Cottage

500 yards

12

Ash
Vale

Hidden Well

Brinkhill

Genista

Mongat

ENFIELD ROAD

GORSELANDS CLOSE

Drain

10

5

6

3

136

GORSELANDS CLOSE

4 DORSET
R

O
AD

72

Glen

Rise

Penhallow

ENFIELD ROAD

46
48

50

58
Pe

nn
yr

al
lt

52

56
62

El Sub Sta

30

2

31
11

LB

13

4

10
13

RICHARDS CLOSE

7

9
6

3

4
1

PR
O

SP
EC

T 
R

O
AD

71

56

42

5962

666972

6568

1

El
Sub Sta

SP
R

IN
G

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

26

38

13

69

59

ELLER
AYC

O
U

R
T

586164

El Sub Sta

50

23

19
16

12

101417
111518

30

4643

33
36

25

31
34

37

20

23
26

22

28

40
52

47 50
53

49

55

38
41 44

39 36

  Revoke existing 'spurious'  
  No waiting at any time  

  restriction  
  (TECHNICALITY)  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

ANDREW HARKIN

GBC/APH/ProspectRdPropRevA

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

No Waiting At Any Time

No Waiting Mon-Sat
8.30am-6pm

 

Proposals to be made -
Prospect Road area, Ash

23/02/2016

1 : 1250 at A3Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No: 100019625, 2016

Page 64

ITEM 10



White Hart

1 
to

 4
2

Tennis

Court

46

43

Bakery

5

4

BM 25.56m

1311

GP

LB

PO

24.4m

2

24.8m

8

16

17

El
Sub Sta

Works

The ManorCottage

25

Tanglew
ood

27

25.1m

Club

Court

Ripley

Court

El Sub Sta

WHITE HART MEADOWS
O

ctagon

H
ouse

Cottage

Cha
pe

l F
ar

m

The Barn

House

D
rain

She
lte

r

(PH
)

R
O

SE LAN
E

18

23
19

Forge

TheAnchor(PH)

The
Vicarage

Cottage

Surgery

TudorHouse

B 367

2

HIG
H S

TREET

ROSE LANE

NEWARK LANE

Chapel

1

rch
 R

ow

St Mary's

Church

Farmhouse

kouseNEWARK LANE

1171

24.5m

The Georgian House

White Hammer
Belle View

School View

Rio

House

HIG
H S

TR
EET

1

8

5

4

everance Cotts

  Convert part of  
  existing free  
  unrestricted  

  parking place  
  to a  

  Disabled only  
  parking place  

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

ANDREW HARKIN

GBC/APH/RoseLaneProp

Return 1 Hour Mon-Fri

No Waiting At Any Time

No Waiting Mon-Fri
8.30am-6pm

Free Parking Places With
Waiting Permitted For Any
Period Without Time Limit

Limited Waiting 2 Hours No

8.30am-6pm

Disabled Badge Holders Only

Key to Existing Restriction Types Display

 

Draft proposals -
Rose Lane, Ripley

01/09/2015

1 : 1250 at A4Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019625, 2015

P
age 65

IT
E

M
 10



The C
hestnuts

Elvaston

Tow
n C

lays

The Fields

FB

Tillingbourne

Cottage

FB

72.8m

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

Sc
ho

ol

C
ot

ta
ge

Tel Ex

Swimming
Pool

1

Shelter

School

BM 74.19m

House

S
he

re
 C

 o
f E

In
fa

nt
 S

ch
oo

l

TCB

Th
e 

O
ld

 T
el

ep
ho

ne
 E

xc
ha

ng
e

Sayers

C
lub

H
all

Trees

Cherry

Seaforth C
ottage

Ki
ng

ha
m

s

GOMSHALL LANE

5

Tilling Bourne

Wellers Court

6
10

Bank

Welfare

Bank Terrace

Centre

The New House

GOMSHALL LANE

G
ro

ve
Co

tta
ge

St
re

am
C

ot
t

Beaufield Mews

The Old Bakehouse

Ivy Cottage

Winterfold

PO

Chantry

House

11
13

Manor

Cottage

Well

Forge

Vine

M
ID

D
LE

 S
TR

EE
T

LA
N

E

CottagesLO
N

D
O

N

UPPER STREET

Forge

Bodryn

PCs

Cottage

The Lucky Duck

House

Lavender

Th
e

G
ab

le
s

2

LOWER STREET

H
ou

se

Tudor Cottage

Th
e 

Li
ttl

e

Ju
ne

 C
ot

ta
ge

Elm Cottage

The Lodge

W
il lo

w
 C

ot
t

G
ab

le
 C

ot
t

t ta
ge

D
orm

e

O
RCHARD RO

AD

ER STREET

June  G
ar de n

Western Cottages

Ferndale

1

The Old

The

Old Prison

Pumphouse

The Old Forge

Play Area

LB

El

31

4

3

2

1
Sub Sta

GP

73.5m

Recreation Ground

Track

Tr
ac

k

1 BM
 7

2.
16

m

1

B

Weir

Sluice

3 2

1

2

1

2

  Introduce new  
  formalised disabled  
  only parking place  

  Formalise existing  
  advisory disabled  
  only parking place  

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

ANDREW HARKIN

GBC/APH/SheretobeMade

No Waiting At Any Time

No Waiting Monday-Friday
8am-6pm

 

Key to Existing Restriction Types Displayed

Proposals to be made -
Gomshall Lane and Middle Street,

Shere

01/03/2016

1 : 1250 at A4Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019625, 2016

P
age 66

IT
E

M
 10



2

10

LB

8

BM 83.60m

85.9m

14a

14

12

TCB

2

1

9a

TrackwayStudy Centre
War Memorial 6a

1

8

2

The

Keep

LB

7

13

14

11

21
1South Bank

Castle

Guildford
Castle

ottage

Grounds

Diocesan House Racks
View

House

(remains of)

Castle Walls

Castle Cliffe
Gardens

y Hill House

Bandstand

10

Bowling Green

6

CASTLE HILL

3

Court

Ponds

1

PEWLEY HILL

SOUTH HILL

H
AR

VE
Y 

R
O

A

CASTLE HILL
W

ARW
ICKS BENCH

SOUTH HILL

SOUTH HILL

  Convert parts of existing  
  Mon-Sat 8.30am-6pm  

  2 Hours Max Stay  
  or Permit Holder D  

  Pay and Display  
  parking places to  

  No Waiting  
  Mon-Say 8.30am-6pm

  Single yellow line  

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

ANDREW HARKIN

GBC/APH/SouthHillProp

D Holders

No Waiting At Any Time

No Waiting Mon-Sat 8.30am-6pm

Pay At Machine Display Ticket, Maximum
Stay 2 Hours Mon-Sat 8.30am-6pm or Permit
D Holders

Pay At Machine Display Ticket, Maximum
Stay 3 Hours Mon-Sat 8.30am-6pm or Permit

Limited Waiting 2 Hours No Return Within 1
Hour Mon-Sat 8.30am-6pm or Permit H
Holders

Key to Existing Restriction Types Displayed

 

Draft proposals -
South Hill, Guildford

01/09/2015

1 : 1250 at A4Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019625, 2015

P
age 67

IT
E

M
 10



POYLE ROAD

Hall

50

78.6m
Shelter

Evangelical
Free Church

Recreation Ground

54

57

64

77.7m

38

24
22a

20

1

3

20

Brookleigh

Redesdale

38

30

Ringmore

Pavilion

Recreation

Ground

El Sub Sta

13

76.8m

The Vicarage

Recreation Ground

16

14

39

14a

3m

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

ANDREW HARKIN

GBC/APH/PoyleRoadProp
Draft proposals -

Poyle Road, Tongham

19/05/2015

1 : 1250 at A4Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019625, 2015

P
age 68

IT
E

M
 10



WOOLLARDS ROAD

46

W
HA

RF
 R

O
AD

8

C
an

al
 C

otVALE R
O

AD

40

15

28
26

24

14

30

Hi
llc

re
st

BALMORAL ROAD

PCS

PH

11

158

Community

Centre

C
ot

ta
ge

29

ConnaughtHouse

44

32

12

As
hl

ey
Sh

er
wo

od
Ho

us
e

167

BM 77.33m
LB

171

169

76.2m

23
1

22
9

248

173

Th
e 

Pa
ra

de

Ba
si

ng
st

ok
e 

C
an

al

CR

Ash Vale
Bridge

2

16

9

4

2

10

7

W
HA

RF
 R

O
AD

Shelter

BM 78.03m

1

W
ar

d 
Bd

y
Kingsmead

ElSub Sta

Brighthelmston

Pa
th

22
7

10 to 14

6

5
7

4

8

18

VALE ROAD

3

1

l5a

9

71.9m

21

17

15

13
11

20

32

MP 50

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

ANDREW HARKIN

GBC/APH/ValeRdProp

Disabled Badge Holders Only

No Waiting At Any Time

Free Parking Places With
Waiting Permitted For Any
Period Without Time Limit

Limited Waiting 2 Hours No
Return Within 1 Hour
Mon-Sat 8.30am-6pm

Key to Existing Restriction Types Displayed

 

Draft proposals -
Vale Road, Ash Vale

19/05/2015

1 : 1250 at A4Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019625, 2015

P
age 69

IT
E

M
 10



Pink's Hill

Broadstreet

50

38

26

BM 62.09m

58.1m

Infant School

Path

Path

Path

88

80

OAK HILL

Wood Street

Community
Car Park

OAK COTTAGE CLOSE

N
EW

 H
O

U
SE FA

R
M

 LA

OAK HILL

Path

3

7

10

Playing Field

62

Path

Meadowside

El Sub Sta

76

77

62.9m

85 79

2

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce  
  Mon-Fri  

  8-10am & 2.30-4.30pm  
  No stopping  

  on School Keep Clear  
  markings restriction  
  thereby formalising  

  existing advisory  
  markings  

  Introduce No waiting at any time  
  double yellow lines  

  Introduce  
  No waiting  

  Mon-Fri  
  8am-6pm  

  single yellow lines  

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

ANDREW HARKIN

GBC/APH/OakHillPropRevADraft proposals -
Oak Hill, Wood Street Village

01/06/2015

1 : 1250 at A4Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019625, 2015

P
age 70

IT
E

M
 10



Brambledown

18

1

Four 

HILLBROW

CLOSE

17

27

23

29

39

41

Rossaveel

Pond

Greystokes

Cottage
Heath

Rowans

9

8

23

22

H
ILLBR

O
W

 C
LO

SE

PENNY DRIVE

13

7

5

N
EW

 H
O

U
SE FAR

M
 LAN

E

HILLBROW CL

11 12

2

5

ST ALBANS CLOSE

17

13

15

21

2

28

16

THE O
VAL

40

51

61

63

L B

52

85

75

THE OVAL

64

38

45

22

HILL

19

17

21

33

54

52

42

36

  Formalise existing  
  advisory Disabled only  

  parking place  

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

ANDREW HARKIN

GBC/APH/TheOvalPropDraft proposals -
The Oval, Wood Street Village

01/09/2015

1 : 1250 at A4Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material.           
HMSO Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
Guildford Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019625, 2015

P
age 71

IT
E

M
 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
ANNEXE 2 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Ash Vale Railway Stations area 
(introduce various double yellow lines) 

(83 representations) 

7 

I have just seen your proposals for limiting the parking to the above roads. 
Do you really believe that by extending the yellow lines a few feet that this will in any way address the problems we experience every 
Monday - Friday due to the train station here at Ash Vale? 
 
The station car park has been sold and will be turned into housing. Avondale Estate (by your proposals) will be taking less parking. 
This will congest our roads further. The Wentworth/Newfield development was built to fit into a small village environment the width of 
the roads and their layout were never designed to be a B.R. car park. In many cases when a resident takes a vehicle from their drive 
to the road they are "blind spotted" by parked vehicles. 
 
I can only reiterate that your proposals will not improve the situation, but serve to make matters worse. 

9 

With regard to the proposed parking restrictions to Cypress Grove, Ash Vale I have the following concerns:- 
 
1, the proposed restrictions will force more of the cars into the Grove because you are not proposing any restrictions there. 
 
2, it will also cause more friction when these cars park in the spaces provided for the residents’ only (this is already happening) 3, we 
also have the businesses from Lysons Ave telling there employees to park around here as the have no spaces, i.e., Barons and the 
garage next to them. 
 
4, we do not see any enforcement officers now so what will change, as when we phone now we are passed around from the council 
to the 101 number and then to the community support officers and no one takes responsibility. 
 
5, we also have cars parked on the pavement, this will get worse as well and we have to pay to fix the paths and verges and drains. 
 
Lastly it might be nice if you came round to see the issue, we have in the past had trouble getting ambulances and fire engines 
through and also on a lesser note deliveries and collections. 

23 

Whilst I fully appreciate that there is a problem with commuter parking in the area I have to strongly object to the restrictions.  
 
I live on Station Road East in the area adjacent to a no parking at any time section proposed. Whilst there is some resident Parking it 
is not even one space per household. The garages are too small for modern cars and so cannot be used by most vehicles. This 
means my husband and I often have no choice but to park on the road. These restrictions will make this impossible. They will also 
only serve to make parking in the small remaining area of the road more competitive.  
 
Please do not ruin our lives in this way, I understand this is a cheap option for the council but please try and look at some alternatives. 

P
age 73

IT
E

M
 10



A lot of the problem is resulting from commuters and also the industrial units including cobs motors parking vehicles on the road, 
some are obviously not roadworthy. Perhaps this should be addressed first.  
 
Perhaps the restrictions could be put in place from 9.30 to 10.30am, at least this would then allow residents to park here when at 
home and would then only penalise commuters leaving their car unattended. Whilst this is still not ideal it would be preferable.  
 
Having lived under Surrey county council parking restrictions previously I know how intrusive, disruptive and expensive they can be. I 
cannot stress how strongly I feel about this issue. It will have a huge effect on our lives and I would beg you to reconsider.  
 
Recently several train station parking areas for both north camp and ash vale stations have been closed, this has had a notable 
effect- could these be looked into? Perhaps these could be run by the council as an alternative? Parking at the station is very 
reasonable but there is simply not enough, if more is made available cheaply or even free I am sure it would help ease the pressures 
on the estate.  
 
Finally please do not let a minority (under 50% of questioned responses) introduce parking restrictions here. We have no choice but 
to park on the road and these restrictions will make it impossible for households here to have cars (an essential to me as I work in a 
rural area with no public transport!). 

37 

I am worried you  haven't increased the yellow lines enough on the corners and on the entrance to Wentworth crescent, People are 
very thoughtless  when they park, they park close to driveways , on corners and on the entrance to the crescent, you have to 
remember this road has a lot of old people and getting through the parked cars is sometimes difficult. 
 
Hope you can help solve this problem. 

42 

I live in Newfield Road, Ash Vale.  I have just reviewed the website proposals for changes to parking controls within Ash Vale.  I am 
astonished to discover that in spite of the fact that 72.4% of the residents in this road responded of whom 95.2% stated that there is a 
parking problem in this road, there is no proposal to try to alleviate the problem. 
 
The problem is mainly caused by commuters who use Ash Vale railway station and who park in the road during working hours, 
sometimes till 21:00 hours.  They frequently park in such a position that it makes it difficult for us to drive out or return to our 
drive.  Tradesmen have great difficulty parking close to our property and this can make it difficult if they have heavy or bulky 
equipment to bring on site.  In the past, the Police were prepared to loan "no parking" cones when a tradesman was expected, but 
they are no longer prepared to do so.  Our only recourse is to park our car in the road so that tradesmen can park on our drive.  This 
can be a problem if they have a heavy vehicle. 
 
The solution must be to restrict the number of commuter car parking spaces preferably by banning parking for more than 4 hours in 
some areas of the road.  This proposal will leave some areas for commuters and some areas for Tradesmen, visitors and residents.  
At the same time, pressure is required to ensure adequate parking is provided at Ash Vale railway station. 

P
age 74

IT
E

M
 10



52 

I am against any changes to the present parking arrangements in Avondale. I work shifts for a local Company and see first hand the 
situation for parking both early in the morning, mid afternoon and late in the evening. I understand the frustrations of some residents 
who object to outsiders using the surrounding roads for commuter parking. But certainly there is insufficient parking for them all at the 
station, so what choice do they have other than to use roads nearby that are not restricted. 
Personally i would be far more upset if i arrived home at 11pm after my days work and found i had nowhere to park my car!   
To conclude please leave well alone 
 

61 

I have a particular concern about some proposals made for Avondale parking. 
 
Is it proposed that residents will be given permits to park and will this include where the yellow lines are proposed?  Although you 
briefly mention it in your letter, I think you are underestimating the level of displacement the introduction of yellow lines will cause.  
Whilst I support in principle the idea of no parking on corners or other dangerous areas, there is often no alternative in certain parts of 
Station Road East.  I feel it is simply lack of parking space that is the problem.  Adding double yellow lines in those areas will (I fear) 
simply mean that residents will not be able to park at all. 
 
Apart from the provision of additional parking facilities, I am not sure what the solution is.  I would be in favour of some kind of 
residents permit scheme as this would at least help prevent non-residents taking up dedicated bays, which happens often, but worry 
that simply adding yellow lines without considering the displacement properly is not the answer. 

62 

Although I have no objections to your proposals, I would however bring to your attention the growing problem being experienced in 
Rosemary Avenue, Ash vale. 
 
More and more commuters are using Rosemary Avenue for day time parking. More often than not they park on the footpaths, which 
creates problems for pedestrians. If cars do park on the road they cause problems for deliveries and public service vehicles by 
restricting the width of the road. If you check back through your records, you will find that on occasions in the past the refuse 
collection vehicle has been unable the navigate Rosemary Avenue, which has resulted in the Council having to send a smaller vehicle 
the following day. Many residence in Rosemary Avenue are becoming more and more concerned about this growing problem, 
especially regarding access for emergency vehicles. I would ask the question, could some sort of parking restriction be 
implemented to Rosemary Avenue, to minimise this potentially serious problem? 
I have noticed in Winter close, which is near by, the Council have erected a sign stating parking for residence only. 
 
Could something like this be implemented in Rosemary Avenue? 

63 

As far as I can see from your plans, you’re introducing additional parking restrictions at the Ash Vale Station end of Station Road 
East. 
 
That’s fine, and welcomed, as far as it goes. 
 
Unfortunately the problem is that, because Ash Vale Station doesn’t provide adequate parking for rail users, people park all along 
Station Road East and the surrounding roads during the working day, a lot farther than you are currently addressing. As a result the 
verges on Station Road East between Birch Way and Avondale, and then further along Station Road East to the end of the road 
where the Industrial Estate is, are destroyed by station users parking on them. 

P
age 75

IT
E

M
 10



 
The restrictions that you’re planning to introduce at the Ash Vale Station end of the road are only going to move the problem along the 
road, with the end result likely to be that station users will start using the (limited) private parking and verges further down the road. 
 
There’s a few approaches that I believe would address the problem more completely than the current proposals do, albeit with 
different costs attached: 
 

1. Work with the owners of Ash Vale and North Camp Stations to provide adequate parking for all rail users in close proximity to 
the station, or in a location services by a shuttle bus, and embed this requirement in future planning requirements for all areas 
surrounding railway stations. 

 
2. In conjunction with the yellow lines, introduce bollards where required along the entire length Station Road East (and 

surrounding roads) to stop parking on the verges. Support this with a penalty structure and patrol these areas regularly to 
enforce it. 

 
3. Remove the verges along Station Road East and replace them with parking bays which can be accessed either by a (free) 

Residents Permit or for a (reasonable) daily charge to station users to recoup part of the cost. Collect by Annual Permit or Pay 
and Display. This isn’t a pretty option, but it’s significantly more attractive than the churned up mud that’s currently there! 
Again, patrols of enforcement officers would be required. 
 

I’d be happy to discuss any of these thoughts with your team at a convenient time, ideally on site, but for now please consider this to 
be an objection to the proposals because, although they are a good start, they will end up displacing the problem. 

65 

We are the occupiers of Unit A, 331 Lysons Ave, Ash Vale. We have articulated 40 foot trailers vehicles entering our site with 
difficulty. We sometimes have to contact the police to have car owner vehicles cautioned about parking half on and half off the 
pavement directly outside our site entrance/exit road into Lysons Ave. 
 
On your Annex A, Ash Vale (plan 2 of 2) it shows the double yellow lines stop a few metres short of our entrance road outside the 
BMW garage. The result and this will be that cars will be moved down the road  from BMW and still be parked half on and half off the 
pavement. If you extend the yellow lines by a few metres this parking would be stopped. 
 
Please review your plan. 

73 

I am writing regarding the proposed parking restrictions planned for Ash Vale train station. I am all for them but have 1 question. The 
list of roads to be affected mentions Avondale. Does this mean the Avondale estate as a whole? Only there are single roads on the 
estate mentioned, like Wellesley Close, and not others like Northcote Road and Maple Close. Northcote Road especially bad and is 
the worst effected apart from Station Road East due to its close proximity. 

P
age 76

IT
E

M
 10



76 

Very disappointed to see from the proposals that Frimley Road is not included, the parking along this road is very dangerous, with 
people parking upon the pavement and bumping up on kerbs to park, especially as you have a childcare facility and  a primary school 
 in close vicinity. 
 
It is quite often that you see parents with buggy’s etc. having to walk into the road because the pavement is obstructed. 
 
It’s very often that I cannot even access the road from my drive because of people parking for the station. 

78 

We are disappointed that, with the exception of adding three short stretches of double yellow lines, there are no changes in parking 
controls proposed for the Wentworth Crescent/Newfield Road estate.  We welcome the addition of the double yellow lines as these 
cover areas where parking would be dangerous anyway.  However, we were anticipating that the council would take a view of parking 
over the estate as a whole and introduce measures, which would provide a sensible control of parking.  This seems to be a missed 
opportunity. 
 
Having reviewed the survey results, I can understand many respondents stating that they do not feel there is a problem with parking 
in Wentworth Crescent.  If you review the southern side of Wentworth Crescent, this could be considered to be true.  However, the 
northern side of Wentworth Crescent and the length of Newfield Road are heavily congested with parked cars during week days 
particularly, and any controls applied in these areas would have the effect of moving the problem into the southern side of Wentworth 
Crescent. 
 
There is an added consideration with the southern side of Wentworth Crescent in that there is no turning space and any large vehicle 
is required to reverse either into or out of the road.  Parked vehicles provide an obstacle to such manoeuvres. 
 
We would request that further consideration is given to introducing parking controls which would protect access for residents and 
visitors, reduce obstruction for emergency vehicles, delivery and service vehicles.  We would also ask that the council give 
consideration to the needs of commuters, many of whom travel at times when public transport isn’t available, so must find parking 
near to Ash Vale Station. 

 We would suggest consideration of converting some of the wide verges into parking bays, as any parking controls would 
encourage parking on the verge anyway.  Parking bays could be brought within scope of any parking controls. 

 We would ask that consideration is given to introducing parking restrictions at certain times of day – e.g. 7am to 10am, 3pm to 
6pm, which would not eliminate on-street parking but would significantly reduce it.  

 Commuters using Ash Vale Station are the cause of most of the on-street parking in the area.  There is very restricted parking 
at Ash Vale Station itself.  We would suggest that consideration is given to acquiring some of the land to the west of the canal 
at Ash Vale Station, between Great Bottom Flash and the railway, to provide off-road parking for commuters.  There is space 
there to create a significant area of parking while retaining a measure of screening from the canal. 

 
We would urgently request that this opportunity is not missed.  With the recent developments in the Ash Vale area, the parking 
problem will not reduce as one of the attractions of living in this area is the easy access to London via Ash Vale Station. 

P
age 77

IT
E

M
 10



91 

 I am most interested in the proposal to restrict parking in the area. When the last request was sent I failed to recognize the 
significance of what was happening so I apologize for my late response. 
 
There are a number of points that do not seem to have been addressed. 
 

1. The Map you are using, shows a 30 year out of date version of my house I cannot comment on the accuracy of the roads but 
many of the other building structures represented are well out of date. I recommend the use of Bing Maps or Google Maps 
which are more up to date. 

2. The solution does not address the basis of the problem. The problem is that since Ash Vale Station has been extended and 
more people live around here and use the trains, more people need space to park their cars to get the train. To have more 
people, improve the train service and then try and restrict their ability to use that train service is something only someone who 
never had try and actually solve real problems would dream up.  

3. There seems to be a possible solution, to use some of the idle Army land adjacent to the railway line at Ash Vale as a car 
park. It would require negotiation with the army, some bridge strengthening, some tarmac and possibly some road redesign on 
Vale Road junction with Station approach. But it would provide a source of income to pay for some of this. Perhaps you have 
failed your negotiations with the Army and I failed to discover the papers covering this. 

4. If there were unused parking spaces in the new car park and still a problem, then by all means make the lives of the people 
living in the affected areas more comfortable with restrictions. 

5. If you just go ahead with the proposal it will shift the problem (as you predict) and five years on, more restrictions will be 
considered. Of course you may well have different responsibilities then and you could thumb your nose at the people being 
presented with the enhanced problem. 

6. Incidentally you seem to have reduced the informal parking space near North Camp (it was unsightly) by the 6 month fencing 
off operation at the round-about. This must have made the problem near that station worse but left the area tidier. 

 
I am probably not affected directly by the restrictions. 

92 

I write with regard to the proposed parking changes on the Avondale Estate in Ash Vale. 
 
I have recently moved into Alder Close and our house backs on to Birch Way. I have noticed since being here that a number of 
commuters using Ash Vale station use Birch Way and the surrounding roads to park their cars during the day. I myself commute to 
London but of course am within walking distance of the station and my car (and that of my partner's) stay parked at home all day. 
 
I am very much in favour of the greater restrictions on Birch Way but there needs to be concessions for residents (such as a permit 
scheme). Alder Close alone has 36 houses so assuming each house has a car (some of course do not but others like mine have 2) 
then there is not enough space within the Close to park. Some houses have a garage but these were built in the 70s and so are not 
designed to house modern cars. Equally some of the residents use their cars for work but having the restrictions in force until 6.30pm 
means there would be a mad clamber to get a space on the Close prior to this (assuming residents work locally and finish at 5.00pm). 
 
My proposal would be to have Birch Way as no waiting between 7.30 and 9.30 and again between 2.30 and 4.30 excluding residents 
who could obtain a permit. This would mean commuters in the morning could not use the road to park and those going into London 
for the evening would also be prevented from parking whilst not penalising residents. This of course would disadvantage some 
commuters using the station and some provision should be made for them though I cannot see how any extension of parking at the 

P
age 78

IT
E

M
 10



station could be achieved. I would suggest those who use Ash Vale could use nearby Aldershot or Farnborough where parking 
facilities are more readily available. And in fact the train service from Farnborough is faster and more frequent than from Ash Vale. 

102 
Firstly you have not included Newfield Road in your letter listing the roads involved, we suffer badly from the people using Ash Vale 
station, our road is very narrow and cars parked opposite ones drive  makes difficult for us to turn out, any plans to put anything will 
still cause the same problem, arrange to come down and see for yourself. 

108 
Why hasn’t Newfield Road been included?  I have had the road in front of my house swept once in five years because of the 
commuters parking outside my house.  It is annoying when commuters park slightly across my driveway which makes it a bit more 
difficult for me to reverse out. 

112 

As a resident in Wentwoth Close, Ash Vale, I shall only comment on the (one) change you are proposing to make in our road. 
 
I am fully supportive of the proposal to reduce the length of yellow lines currently existing outside of my neighbours house (no 9).   
This is excellent news and will mean that there will then be sufficient room to park at least 2 cars ......... at the moment there is only 
room (legally) for one and a half cars which is most irritating !!!   We welcome the ability to park at least one more car there as there 
are so few parking spaces in our road. 

115 
Am I correct in assuming that any proposals for a residents parking permits scheme has been abandoned as was first mentioned 
earlier in the plans? I hope this is the case as I feel a parking permit scheme would be disastrous for this particular estate. 

117 

I understand that some parts of Avondale need yellow lines for safety reasons, but I feel that these measures have gone beyond that. 
As a residents of Station Road East, we do already have problems parking. This is due to the commuter's that park their cars in the 
day and don't return until late to collect them, thus making parking a bit of a nightmare. 
 
If the council put double yellow lines all round the Car service garage Cobbs (Station Road West) they will all just park along Station 
Road East where there are not yellow lines, making the parking for residents even worst. 
 
I'm a bit confused with the plan. On the plan Station Road East & West are mostly coloured in Orange, but with blue lines pointing to 

P
age 79

IT
E

M
 10



particular areas in the Orange. Does this mean that all the Orange bits will be double yellow lines or just where the blue lines are 
pointing in the Orange bits. Please could you confirm this. There is one section just on the junction of Station Road East & Station 
Road West that looks like it has a blue line on. This little strip on road next to the industrial units is where residents park, but is behind 
the White bending line where the road turns. I feel this bit of road doesn’t course any safety problems and would make park even 
worst if is had yellow lines on it. I don't want to moan, but feel we are being penalized because the commuter's are parking on the 
Avondale Estate, thus coursing extra traffic. Also there is not enough resident parking place to the number of houses, so residents 
can't all park in the car park. As residents we all have to extra money to maintenance the area on top of the council tax, which is 
expensive to me being a single parent, but with only one car. 

120 

We live on the Frimley Road in Ash Vale, just a few hundred meters down from Ash Vale train station. There has always been an 
issue with parking along here and this does seem to have escalated in the past year or so. Heather Cottages fronts onto the main 
road, and many of these cottages have spaces for a drive in front of their houses, including ours which has space for 2 cars. A couple 
have dropped kerbs but many do not although we do still park on what is obviously a 'drive'. We are sandwiched between two houses 
which do have dropped kerbs. I understand the law says anyone can park on a road where the kerb is not dropped, but not if it is 
blocking someone in. However this does happen on a regular basis by station users, and I have been blocked in our drive all day by 
station users (who typically park from 7.45 am until around 7 pm) which is very frustrating and also a worry in case we needed to use 
our car in an emergency. Sometimes they even park with their cars half hanging over onto our neighbours who DO have dropped 
kerbs which makes it very very difficult to drive in or out safely for them! Of course, we could pay to have our kerb dropped...... but this 
is such a lot of money! And we have to send £200 just to ask. Then pay for drawings, then for a big company to come and drop it for 
us. I understand the cost will be around £1500 which is a lot of money to us, so we feel stuck! We have a son with a disability (aged 
14 now) and I have previously asked if there is help available for a situation like this, but apparently not. 
 
So, my objection to your new parking regulations is this: putting the regulations around only the Avondale estate roads will inevitably 
push MORE station parking onto Frimley Road, where the residents (who live here and should really have a right to park here!) 
already have enough trouble parking near their own homes, and visitors sometimes have to park a LONG way away. 

124 

I have noted Newfield Road  has not been included where we have  very bad parking  matters. Over many years many new houses 
have been built and no doubt this will continue, so Ash Vale station will become more popular than it is at the present. 
 
The only solution as I see is more red lines to be painted or parking meters to be installed , the latter will then proved  more money for 
the council. 

126 

There are a couple of areas that I believe can be improved that you haven't got in you plan: 
 
1. Ash Vale, The end of "Oaklea" where it joins "Vale Road". A lot of cars park both sides of the road near the junction (both on and 
off the pavement). I know of several residents of Oaklea, myself included, that have had to slam the brakes on when turning into or 
out of Oaklea as parked cars have made the road "single width". Also cars parking around the bend in Oaklea cause a problem. 
 
2. Ash, Winchester Road the side of Shawfield Primary School. A lot of cars park on the road / pavement on the same side of the 
road as the school causing problems getting past, both in a car and on the pavement.  
I think there should only be parking on the side of the road with the houses. There have been a few times that I have had to get out of 
the way when a car has been parking on or leaving the pavement. 

P
age 80

IT
E

M
 10



132 

From what I can see on the marked plan the suggested changes to the parking controls will make very little difference to the current 
lack of parking facilities in the area close to Ash Vale Station. In certain cases however it will merely increase the deal of parking 
outside of residents properties. It should be noted that there is a marked lack of "policing" of vehicles being parked on double yellow 
lines. The only long term solution to this problem would be the provision of a decent sized car park within the vicinity of Ash Vale 
Station. With ever more  housing development plans being put into operation the problem which we are currently experiencing with 
parking will be only be made worse. 

139 

I live in Wentworth Close. 
 
I can see from your proposals that you would like to revoke the parking restrictions in our road  (remove some of the double yellow 
lines). 
 
This concerns me for several reasons. On a daily basis we have around 6 cars parked in our road who use our road as a car park so 
they can take the train at Ash vale. We at times struggle to find parking for our own visitors. We also have a growing family so may in 
the future need to use these spaces. 
 
My suggestion would be to have a waiting time of no more than 2 hours and give permits to all home owners on the road. 

140 

I am writing to you as I am extremely concerned about a notice that I saw this morning, posted by Guildford Borough Council 
regarding parking near Ash Vale train station, when I was on my way to work. 
  
I have lived in Ash Vale and then Ash for over 12 years now and during that time, as I work in central London, I have been a 
commuter, travelling daily from Ash Vale train station into London Waterloo. During this entire time I have had to drive to the station 
as my walk to Ash Vale station would take 45 minutes in the morning and 45 minutes home in the evening and when I have to leave 
for work just at 6.40 or 7.10am every day, it is simply not possible for me to walk to the station therefore I have always driven to the 
station. On the rare occasion (probably 10 times in my career) when I have been lucky enough to secure one of the limited parking 
spaces at Ash Vale train station, this has made my commute bearable. But for every other day of my commute I have been forced to 
drive around Ash Vale desperately seeking somewhere to park so that I can go to work and support my family. 
 
I, along with most other commuters who travel from Ash Vale, who are doing what we should i.e. taking the train and not driving into 
London, have no other choice but to park in any available legal space within walking distance of the station and even though this adds 
another 10 minutes on to my commute each way every day, taking me away from my family for longer periods of time, it is a 
necessary inconvenience so that I can make a living. 
 
This morning I was very surprised to see that parking restrictions will be implemented in all of the streets near Ash Vale station which 
will therefore mean, that most commuters will have nowhere to park. This is very surprising to me, particularly as I raised this problem 
to Guildford Borough Council two years ago when the planning application was submitted for 400 new houses in Ash and a further 
400 in Tongham. I raised the question, where are these people supposed to park when they commute from Ash Vale train station? 
These are commuters who, owing to them working in London, have driven up property values in and around the area and have 
therefore increased the value of properties near the train station. 
 
I would like you to let me know where commuters will be expected to park when these parking restrictions are applied? What other 

P
age 81

IT
E

M
 10



parking will be provided as the parking at Ash Vale train station is no way near ample and this has been the case for over ten years? 
What assurances are you offering to commuters who are council tax payers in this area? Are you aware of the impact this will have on 
families? 
 
I have a young family and my husband has given up work to look after our son, for this we get no support or help from the local 
authority as he is not even allowed to claim jobseekers allowance, as he is not a jobseeker. I work in London so that we can pay our 
mortgage and any time away from my family is very challenging for me. If I am unable to get to Ash Vale train station, this will mean 
that I am unable to work and what will happen to my family then? I cannot walk to the station as I am unable to leave that early, I can’t 
get the bus as when I have tried that in the past, it has been frequently late and in some cases never turned up and I cannot afford to 
be late for work. 
 
I urge you to think of hardworking, honest, taxpayers such as me as this will be absolutely catastrophic for me and my family. 
 
Please respond to me as soon as possible as I am actually sick with worry about this and am dreadfully upset. I think this is grossly 
unfair and feel that hard working people, who contribute to society, are being completely ignored. 

141 

I write to you in support of the parking restrictions in Ash Vale. 
 
I am a private tenant of a property in Cypress Grove (GU12 5QW) and on a daily basis I am left frustrated and angry at the lack of car 
parking outside our property.  
 
Commuters using the train stations regularly and in considerately park their cars in the resident spaces. This is so regular that we are 
considering moving.  
 
I would like to know whether the council will provide permits and the proposals for families with 2 cars.  
 
I'd also like to know whether the council intend to create more parking spaces on the Avondale Estate. As there are approximately 3 
areas (with dead tree stumps) that could be used to do this. 

143 

My concern is for the section of road Station Road East/West. 
 
It is currently proposed that double yellow lines (no parking at any time) restrictions be made towards the end of Station Road East 
going into Station Road West. I live at number 100 SRE. We have a forecourt for residents to park but unfortunately there are 13 
houses and only 10 parking spaces. About 50% of these homes are rented and not all include the garage en bloc round the corner 
(mine included). Therefore if double yellow lines are introduced outside on the roads around the frontage of our homes there will be 
nowhere for residents to park or any visitors (family etc). 
 
I realise that many commuters park along this road so therefore an alternative would be to restrict parking to 8.30am-5.30/6pm 
Monday to Friday as proposed for Birch Way. This would enable residents to park out of working hours. Otherwise where can we go? 

P
age 82

IT
E

M
 10



155 

We are disappointed that, with the exception of adding three short stretches of double yellow lines, there are no changes in parking 
controls proposed for the Wentworth Crescent/Newfield Road estate.  We welcome the addition of the double yellow lines as these 
cover areas where parking would be dangerous anyway.  However, we were anticipating that the council would take a view of parking 
over the estate as a whole and introduce measures which would provide a sensible control of parking.  This seems to be a missed 
opportunity. 
 
Having reviewed the survey results, I can understand many respondents stating that they do not feel there is a problem with parking 
in Wentworth Crescent.  If you review the southern side of Wentworth Crescent, this could be considered to be true.  However, the 
northern side of Wentworth Crescent and the length of Newfield Road are heavily congested with parked cars during week days 
particularly, and any controls applied in these areas would have the effect of moving the problem into the southern side of Wentworth 
Crescent. 
 
There is an added consideration with the southern side of Wentworth Crescent in that there is no turning space and any large vehicle 
is required to reverse either into or out of the road.  Parked vehicles provide an obstacle to such manoeuvres. 
 
We would request that further consideration is given to introducing parking controls which would protect access for residents and 
visitors, reduce obstruction for emergency vehicles, delivery and service vehicles.  We would also ask that the council give 
consideration to the needs of commuters, many of whom travel at times when public transport isn’t available, so must find parking 
near to Ash Vale Station. 

 We would suggest consideration of converting some of the wide verges into parking bays, as any parking controls would 
encourage parking on the verge anyway.  Parking bays could be brought within scope of any parking controls. 

 We would ask that consideration is given to introducing parking restrictions at certain times of day – e.g. 7am to 10am, 3pm to 
6pm, which would not eliminate on-street parking but would significantly reduce it. 

 Commuters using Ash Vale Station are the cause of most of the on-street parking in the area.  There is very restricted parking 
at Ash Vale Station itself.  We would suggest that consideration is given to acquiring some of the land to the east of the canal 
at Ash Vale Station, between Great Bottom Flash and the railway, to provide off-road parking for commuters.  There is space 
there to create a significant area of parking while retaining a measure of screening from the canal. 

 
We would urgently request that this opportunity is not missed.  With the recent developments in the Ash Vale area, the parking 
problem will not reduce as one of the attractions of living in this area is the easy access to London via Ash Vale Station. 

160 

You should increase the length of the double yellow lines by at least the length of one vehicle at the junction of Newfield Road with 
Vale Road.  
 
The current situation does not allow enough space to pull on to the correct side of Newfield Road after overtaking Parked Cars to 
enable one to avoid cars entering rapidly from Vale Road. 
 
Unfortunately both directions are blind until you actually reach the junction. 

P
age 83

IT
E

M
 10



165 

The parking situation on Avondale Estate in Ash Vale (GU12 5ND) as it has been a big issue for a long time. 
 
I feel that placing restrictions on parking is a very good idea, however I do have some concerns as to the details of the idea. My 
partner and I need two cars to get to work as we are both teachers and work in opposite directions, and there is no way that we drop 
each other off as the schools are closed and we both have to arrive soon after the gates open. If this plan of parking permits comes in 
to action, we would need two just to make sure we don’t get fined, otherwise we would have to move. I know that I speak for more 
than just ourselves here and as we live in a lovely area, it would be a shame to move over such a minor detail a location of work. 
 
On the topic of permits, I agree that they are necessary due to people using up parking spaces during the day to park near the station 
(I have witnessed this done personally). Another question that I have is when we have guests, will be granted visitors permits to park? 
Again, we would have to consider relocating if we couldn’t have our friends and family over once in a while.  
 
Finally, whilst I have your attention, there has been some crime regarding parking since we moved in (about 3 years ago) and we 
have suffered vandalism to our cars. I have had approximately £800 worth of damage done to my car (which I haven’t been able to 
afford) due to some self-righteous person who believes it is acceptable to ‘key’ cars and to know off side mirrors and bend/break off 
windscreen wipers (I have had all three done to me). It is not a personal vendetta against me as I have seen it done to other cars as 
well. The vandal has been doing this, according to neighbours and I conversing on the topic, for over seven years and the reason 
seems to be when we park our cars halfway on the pavement due to lack of parking spaces. I do not feel safe parking my car 
anywhere but the car park (which is full more often than not) and I do not think that this is satisfactory for anybody to feel. There have 
been several police cases opened over the years but not much done about this. Do you have any suggestions and/or solutions for 
this problem? 

168 

Having reviewed your proposal we strongly object to the proposed changes in our road, Wentworth Close. 
 
The proposal for Wentworth Close is to remove a double yellow lines on the bend in order to create an extra space, we believe this 
change to be dangerous and unnecessary. It is opposite our drive and when pulling out we are unsighted to the left, as the road goes 
round a corner and there is a high hedge to the left (in between the pavement and the road) which blocks the view of the road. 
Increasing the parking spaces opposite on this blind corner means that when a car is parked there that any traffic coming round this 
corner will have to move to the right hand side of the road and be in dangerous proximity to us as we try to pull onto the road. We 
already have to slowly pull on to the road to get to a position where we can see if it is clear to the left. Whilst it is a residential Close 
we still get drivers driving 30 miles an hour down here and we have already had near misses.  
 
The existing parking space directly opposite our drive already makes exiting our drive a difficult manoeuvre. The Close is a narrow 
road and so when a car is parked opposite the turn onto the road is very tight. As described above this manoeuvre has to be 
performed whilst trying to see if there is any oncoming traffic.  
 
The reasons above apply to the existing parking space opposite our drive and we therefore request that you extend the yellow line up 
to the drive entrance of number 11, so that this blind corner is properly protected and we can exit our drive safely. Reviewing your 
proposals most of the changes in the area seem to be to increase the safety on corners by creating and extending the yellow lines on 
them, which seems very sensible. We only request that you apply this approach to the corner on Wentworth Close and ensure that 
there is no parking on this unsighted bend.  
 

P
age 84

IT
E

M
 10



It should be noted that all residents in the Close have space to park 3 cars on their private driveways and so there is not a need to 
create additional parking for residents, and whilst I am happy for commuters to park here in the day I do not think that we should be 
providing additional spaces for them at the cost of our families safety.  
 
We appreciate that from your maps it may not be clear that there is a hedge obscuring the view around this corner. Thank you for 
taking the time to consider our views. 

169 

We have checked the proposed parking plan for Wentworth Crescent, and according to the plans we are not going to benefit from any 
parking consideration. We sent in our suggestions earlier in the year, hoping to be considered, We see that Vale Road could be 
restricted parking, which will make our road even worse if that is at all possible. 
 
I would like to inform you what it is like to live at the first dwelling in Wentworth crescent for parking. I leave for work at approximately 
7.10 everyday, even at that time, our drive entrance is surrounded by parked cars using the station. Visibility to drive my car is 
extremely restricted, due to parked cars, more often or not either their boot or bonnet is parked across our drive, making my exit 
extremely dangerous. 
 
These commuters not only block our drive but they often park both sides of the road making any emergency services access 
extremely difficult. 
 
We have been advised to put notes on their cars which we have done, but they just screw them up and throw them in the gutter. 
 
To make all this worse my Husband suffers with Parkinson's Disease he is very able and capable to drive his car but getting out of our 
drive is very awkward most days. These people that park and run for their train in the mornings, have no consideration for the people 
who live in the homes they block on a daily basis. 
 
The residence of Wentworth Crescent would like some help to be able use their own drives safely. 

171 

Me and my other half live at Station Road East, at the connecting part to Station Road West, and upon seeing your plan I can see that 
you're going to make it "No waiting at any time with double yellow lines". Now on the row of houses which we live in, there are 13 
houses, bedroomed 2-3, each with at least 2 adults living inside them. The issue I have is that with this row of houses, we only have 
10 parking bays so a lot of the road is used as parking (as you can seem 10 bays to 13 houses is not enough). 
 
I do not see how the proposed plans are going to help with the current parking issues, and for the residents that are currently living in 
the Avondale estate, what we need are more parking bays and MORE parking availability rather than have the minimum parking that 
we do have taken away from us, and making it 100x more difficult. 
 
Please tell me that you guys have some way to keep the residents happy, rather than making it more difficult than what we have 
already. 

P
age 85

IT
E

M
 10



174 

We strongly oppose the introduction of parking restrictions in our adjoining roads. We will subsequently be forced into parking in other 
local areas as a consequence of these actions, even if this creates extended walks to the work place. 
 
Why can a car park not be correctly formed in the local area which would allow train commuters proper parking facilities, we too would 
prefer this option. 
 
The alternative is if enforcement prevails, we will take our employment to a new area which will effect local shops and traders. 
 
The parking on pavements and verges is not acceptable and this must be stopped. For safety why not introduce speed humps or 
ramps and cars parked correctly will slow traffic. 
 
We strongly request that these parking restrictions are rejected and do not go ahead. 

175 

I should start off by saying that whilst I am in favour of the proposed changes, I can only voice my comments & concerns for the area 
surrounding Alder Close / Birch Way / Station Road East / Northcote Road. 
 
That said, I do feel that in some places they do not go far enough, namely: 

 Alder Close seems to be being left unrestricted? 

 Surely this will move anyone looking for a space no longer available to them in Birch Way etc. into this area  -  Who will 
monitor this? 

 Alder Close Residents Parking 

 Opposite the junction of Northcote Road & Station Road East, there are 6 x Resident Only parking spaces. 
Any restrictions could see commuters using these spaces  -  Who will monitor this? 

 Northcote Road 

 Why isn’t there ‘No Waiting’ section proposed here from Station Road East to Sycamore Drive? 

 Station Road East 

 Why isn’t there ‘No Waiting’ section proposed here from Birch Way to Avondale. Whilst this is currently is not an issue, 
commuters do park on the verges and these have become rutted and void of grass. 

 
Lastly, I think it is fair to say that over the years, the patrolling & issuing of parking fines has been sporadic to say the least. 
 
I would be very interested in understanding how this will change with these proposals? 

179 

I submit that whereas “free parking” exists on many (straight) residential roads, it is only acceptable if such parking does not reduce 
the length of the road to a single lane for traffic in both directions and is not acceptable if it does. 
 
At the Vale Road end of Newfield Road, it is commonplace for a car turning into the road to be met by a car coming along Newfield 
Road in a “head on” situation.  One or both cars come to an abrupt halt.  One or other then reverses. 
 
Delivery vehicles and refuse collecting vehicles block the road and/or are themselves inconvenienced. 
 
Our and other residents’ access to their off-road parking is sometimes made difficult by wider vehicles parking all day and 

P
age 86

IT
E

M
 10



encroaching onto the unmarked entrances.  Not in the attached photograph I of course admit, but enough times to be a nuisance 
and/or to make egress tricky if something is coming the other way.   
 
In general, coming out of off-road parking on the other side of the road to the parked cars is not straightforward especially if the 
parked car is (for example) an SUV.  
 
Visitors to both sides of the road are met with difficulty. 
 
I understand that the Council is not sympathetic to the opinion that commuters taking this free parking option are causing a form of 
blight as well as inconvenience.   I was told by a councillor a couple of years ago that such people are entitled to the right to work and 
must therefore be allowed to park where they like within the law.  If so, then it becomes a matter of environmental and residential 
protection.  Their choice of station is no doubt not relevant to their exact residence but to the opportunity to park in front of houses 
thus contributing to road blockage and to traffic activity in the road in question at certain times. 
 
If a sign were put up outside the houses saying “FREE PARKING HERE AT ANY TIME”, there would surely be an outcry.  That is the 
precise actual situation minus the sign.   
 
A great many residential streets are protected by various means – close to shops – close to a football ground.  I submit that there is 
no difference in the case of commuters taking these spaces quite near to a station for nothing.  In fact the issue is greater because it 
is by definition “all day and every (week) day”, not only during time visiting the shops or a once a fortnight football match. 
 
Looking at the proposals for Wentworth Crescent (which are entirely valid in themselves) it strikes me than the overall situation is not 
being addressed and that an opportunity is being missed. 
 
When turning right into Newfield Road (Vale Road end) from the “slip road” parked cars completely obscure the view of any oncoming 
cars coming up Newfield Road.    Conversely, when turning left out of Newfield Road (into that “slip road”) it is another blind turn as to 
oncoming cars due to parked cars obscuring.  One or other must reverse. 
 
There are numerous examples of how it becomes difficult to turn into driveways and reverse out of them! 
 
Regarding “head on” encounters at the end of Newfield Road, there are tyre marks on the road where a car skidded to a halt to avoid 
a head on in the single lane / blind turn situation. 

182 

I understand why you have tried to approach the issue of parking around the Guildford area. Its busy on the roads and there are too 
many cars especially in rush hour. 
 
However as a regular commuter I have to park my car close to Ash Vale station. And many others too. It’s a major link to London. 
 
The station car parking is very limited and the private parking area opposite is small. I can understand that residents hate us parking 
there but what’s the alternative? 
 
Many of the residents around Ash Vale station are deliberately obstructing parking opportunities by parking badly on public roads 

P
age 87

IT
E

M
 10



rather than using their own driveways. 
 
We are encouraging people to use public transport aren’t we – so why are you making it harder for those of us trying to do that? 
 
And heaven knows how much harder it will be once you add in the GBC’s strategic plan to swamp the borough with more housing – 
as cars are the result. Where will they park? 
 
You have come up with a decision – now what is the new solution to parking near transportation hubs please? 

185 

I live on Cypress Grove, one of the roads that parking controls have been proposed.  I would like to register my opposition to the 
proposal.  Our family DO NOT WANT this to happen.  As far as we are concerned, there is no problem to fix.  This is a waste of 
everyone's time. 
 
We already have to pay estate maintenance fees - which we agreed to when we bought our home.  We did not agree to additional 
parking charges (to fix a non-existing issue), which with three children and one income, we can not afford.  This will make visits from 
family and friends a big difficult issue - a massive social impact on OUR home, OUR way of living, OUR life, something that will anger 
us.  It simply wouldn't be fair.  If someone has an issue with the parking...well, they shouldn't have moved near a train station.  Like 
moving next to an airport and complaining about the noise. 
 
Please do not do this. 

188 
My husband and I think that it is better to put notices of No Parking between 9 am to 10 am and 2 pm to 3pm at Lysons Avenue, 
Station Road East, Station road west Wentworth close, Cypress grove, Birch Way, Wellesley Close, Avondale n Wentworth crescent. 

191 

I am a commuter and I travel every day from North Camp to Reading. I have several concerns about the proposed parking 
restrictions, particularly in the proximity of North Camp station. These are the following issues: 
 
1. I try wherever possible to use the station car park rather than parking on the street. However, the station car park is very small and 
runs out of space quickly. 
 
2. In these situations (usually Monday to Thursday) I am often forced to park elsewhere due to the lack of parking facilities at the 
station. 
 
3. If these parking restrictions are imposed, from your plans it looks like there will be various "no parking" zones or 1 hour zones, but 
nothing that could be of any use for someone in my position. 
 
4. May I suggest that around station road West there be parking metres consistent with the tariff of the station car park? This way 
commuters could still park if the car park is full. 
 

P
age 88

IT
E

M
 10



5. Finally, if this is not possible I would urge a reform of the North Camp Station car park to provide sufficient parking for the 
commuters who currently use it. It would of course, be nonsensical if the parking restrictions were to be brought into force and there 
was nowhere for commuters to be able to park.  
 
Of course, I understand the frustration of the residents at the Ash Vale station end of the estate. However, it is quite unfair not to allow 
commuters any parking rights whatsoever and worse still, to punish those who genuinely want to pay to park near north camp station. 
The problem for us is the lack of paid station car park space. I am sure the vast majority of people would use this, were a sufficient 
amount of commuter parking space provided.  If I am not able to park, my commute would be extremely arduous. 
 
So, as I currently understand the situation, the residents get their way, but no provision or thought is given to the situation of the 
commuter- particularly around north camp station. 
 
I look forward to hearing what the plans are to accommodate people like myself who need to be able to use North Camp station and 
its parking, in order to get to work on a daily basis. 

193 

We are residents of the Avondale estate and are writing to express our concern and objections to the proposed parking restrictions, 
particularly those affecting the area from the Enterprise/LDC business estates leading into Station Road East. 
 
Our courtyard alone consists of 13 properties (80-104), with an allocated car park for just ten cars. Given the modern day and age, 
many of these households run two cars and we believe currently for our courtyard alone we have a total of around 20 cars. This 
leaves no other option but for residents to park on the surrounding roads as there is simply not enough allocated parking available 
and with a number of the properties being rented, which do not include garage use, there are no alternative options. Combine this 
with the second courtyard opposite, as well as the additional flats and it should serve as a clear indication as to what impact the 
proposed new restrictions of double yellow lines would have on residents. 
 
Although we would concur that there are parking issues around the estate which need addressing, most of these are caused by the 
local businesses (Ash Vale Mot Centre often has numerous cars parked in this area) and railway commuters. Any proposed 
restrictions should take this into consideration as to how to restrict this usage without having a detrimental cost to residents as a 
whole. 
 
If restrictions are to be implemented, then we would like to propose a couple of alternative options to be considered around this area. 
We have tried to include diagrams indicating changes as best as possible. For clarification, the areas being talked about are as if 
entering the estate from the industrial section, having just passed the entrances to the LDC Business Centre on the right. 
 
Option1: (Ashvale-option1.pdf attached; yellow sections indicate double yellows, pink sections time restrictions) 
Just after the entrance to LDC, you go over a road narrowing point which acts as the entrance proper to the residential estate. We 
feel from this point forward the majority of proposed double yellow lines should be changed to that of restricted time zone parking, 
with enforcement between Monday-Friday, 9:00am – 4:00pm. (Although on the Ancell’s Farm estate in Fleet, they have successfully 
implemented similar Monday-Friday restrictions just covering the lunchtime period 12-2pm, which are easier to monitor as do not take 
such a large time resource). 
This would act as a deterrent to business and railway commuters, but would provide enough flexibility for residents going to and from 
work or to move cars accordingly during the day. A few exceptions for actual implementation of double yellows though should still 

P
age 89

IT
E

M
 10



apply, as enforcement on direct corners and the road area opposite the entrance to courtyard area for houses 80-104 would be 
sensible as it is unsafe for cars to park here.  
 
Just before the entrance on the left to the car park area for houses 80-104 there is safe parking for two vehicles. Also further back, 
there is a short entrance road leading to garages behind houses 129-131, on the right hand side of this entrance there is also safe 
parking for three cars, the time restrictions would work for these stretches and certainly do not require double yellow lines. Beyond the 
entrance to courtyard 80-104 on the left, no parking restrictions are planned and I feel that this is right and should remain unrestricted. 
 
Option2: (Ashvale-option2.pdf attached; yellow sections indicate double yellows, pink sections time restrictions) 
Another approach would be for the shutting/blocking of the road at the estate entrance point (just after LDC entrance on the right 
before the garage entrance on left). This would serve to separate the industrial and residential areas and effectively create two end 
turning areas. This approach would hopefully help to further discourage business vehicles from entering and parking in the residential 
estate and may actually help to better ease parking options for all.  
For the residential side, this area could then have both sides of the road converted to time restricted parking (no parking Mon-Fri, 
9am-4pm), so to discourage businesses/commuters from parking there, but allowing residents greater freedom and flexibility to park 
as required at evenings and weekends (with noted double yellow area still imposed for safety). The business side then could have 
parking restrictions lifted, which would also allow them greater flexibility in their activities. 
 
All other areas should remain unchanged to help allow for flexibility for times when vehicles cannot be moved. 
 
Option3: (Based on Option1):  
A possible further option, would be a slight revision on the time restricted option as I have proposed in Option 1, with the setting up of 
time restricted parking zones as outlined (Mon-Fri, 9am-4pm), but with the additional option that residents can park during the 
restricted times, if a residents permit was purchased and displayed (i.e. time restricted permit holder only parking). The permit(s) 
could then be purchased by a household if they wish at a small cost (£50-£100 per vehicle/per year, two maximum per household), 
for use of these areas during restricted hours, with all restrictions then lifted at evenings and weekends.  
 
All other current restrictions/non restrictions would stay in place so that residents have options for parking in certain sections of road 
during the day without issues, their own car park area, or the ability to move a vehicle as required during restricted working hour 
times, but unrestricted at evenings and weekends. 
 
Any of the above options could be combined, however the overall solution must still be one that works for the community as a whole, 
both business and residents. Given the current proposed parking restrictions, we would certainly ask the council to strongly consider 
alternatives for this area, as the current propositions would just not be workable. 
 
The current issue of parking on the estate though as a whole should actually act as a flag to the council for addressing one of the 
main causes of the problem, which is the current lack of parking facilities at Ash Vale and North Camp stations. With the recent re-
layout of the roundabout at North Camp station, parking for commuters was actually reduced, when careful planning could have 
increased these facilities. Until this issue is addressed, with investigation of possible solutions (possible purchase and conversation of 
local privately held land/business units) then the actual underlying cause will always be an issue. 

P
age 90

IT
E

M
 10



198 

I am surprised Northcote Road is not included.  The concern is there are private garages in roads coming off Northcote Road and 
DYL are needed on corners, as people are parking on them. The access roads are to around 30 garages.  There is a problem with 
sight lines and it is dangerous. I myself have had a collision.  There is also blockage of access for emergency vehicles/delivery 
vehicles. 
 
I don’t mind commuter parking in bays that nobody is using at those times, but there are no markings so people park badly and cause 
obstruction. 

199 

I have the following comments / concerns to put forward. 
 
As a home owner & resident of Wellesley Close in the Avondale estate, my main concern relates to the new double yellow line 
restrictions proposed on Station Road West. I assume that the cars parked along there during the day are either from: 

 Workers from the surrounding industrial works 
 Commuters using North Camp station 
 The Ash Vale MOT Centre 

Although cars parked there during the day are slightly annoying my concern is that these new restrictions will force parked cars and 
cars waiting for the MOT centre to move into the estate, which is already starting to have parking issues of it's own. 
 
Although I am not entirely against the new proposals, it is evident that some parking for non residents in the immediate area is 
required or rather inadequate and so should be addressed as to not impact on local residents. 

206 

It is disappointing that the control proposals for the Wentworth Crescent area merely concentrate parking into a more cumbersome 
but not safer manner.  In particular regarding the proposed double yellow lines to be set up at the lower end of the crescent. 
 
I appreciate it is not the intention to meet the needs of the Council tax and additional Parish tax paying residents in preference to the 
convenience of transient commuters parking needs of Network Rail facilities.  However, the proposals merely enforces the parking to 
then make vehicular egress and exit of properties at 48, 65 and 63 even more difficult than the current occasional respite from 
commuters parking on various sides of the road in the vicinity. 
 
The solution, short of more extensive controls as previously offered, is to at least extend the double yellow lines to cover both sides of 
the road along the frontage of properties 63 and 65.  This not only improves the safety of better sight-line but allow some semblance 
of practical egress and exist from the above mentioned properties. 
 
Unfortunately it seems the exercise is more of procedure than problem solving but I look forward to hearing of the committee’s 
common sense approach.  Failing that the king offers of a substantial drop in the properties could tax or the gratis installation of 
dropped kerbs to coincide with the width of the property access, introduced by so many residents because of the historical difficulties 
of on-road parking, I’m sure would be considered. 

P
age 91

IT
E

M
 10



216 

I am very disappointed at the extremely limited scope of the changes and feel that they amount to no more than just tinkering with a 
few yellow lines, rather than addressing the underlying problems in the area. 
 
The key issue is that of commuters using the Avondale estate and other surrounding roads as free parking for Ash Vale station. This 
increases the amount of traffic on a residential estate, posing a safety risk, and reduces the space available for residents and their 
visitors to park. 
 
The areas affected (along Avondale, Station Road East/West and Northcote road are hardly affected by the proposed changes, so 
commuters will continue to use them as a free car park instead of paying to use the station car parks at Aldershot or Farnborough. 
 
Secondly, there is a serious issue with pavement parking in the estate, as a consequence of there being insufficient free parking 
spaces for residents and their visitors. Often the pavements on the east side of Avondale and the south end of Northcote Road are 
completely blocked by vehicles, leaving no room for pedestrians to pass, let along parents with pushchairs or disabled people. This 
again poses a safety risk, as these people then have to walk in the road. 
 
Finally, experience suggests that the double yellow lines in the area are completely ineffective anyway, as many people park on them 
as a matter of course, and no enforcement action ever appears to be taken.  
This is particularly common at the junction between Northcote Road and Station Road East. 
 
I would like to see a much more comprehensive solution proposed, that addresses the problem of commuter parking, while ensuring 
that residents and their visitors have access to enough parking spaces to avoid having to park on pavements, block garages or block 
driveways. 
This should possibly include working with South West Trains, Network Rail, the MOD and other parties to come up with a proper 
parking solution for Ash Vale Station, so that commuters have alternative parking options. 

227 

I want to raise my objections I on occasion park in this estate, to visit friends or to get the train. I realise that the main concern to 
residents is commuters using the parking space in the roads where they live. If the proposed parking restrictions come into place this 
raises the question of where the commuters will park. Ash Vale train station has extremely limited parking (approx 25 spaces) which is 
why people taking the train from Ash Vale have to park in the neighbouring residential area. So the restrictions will just move the 
parking a bit further away along Vale Road or towards Stratford Road (where there is Holly Lodge school and parking and volume of 
cars in this road is already a safety issue for the children). Or there is the fear that commuters will still park in Avondale, but not park 
sensibly causing more safety risks. 
 
Is there a way to provide more parking for Ash Vale Station?  
 
Due to the impact on the surrounding area I strongly raise my objection to the proposed parking restriction in the Avondale Estate in 
Ash Vale. 

P
age 92

IT
E

M
 10



228 

Noting the absence of any reference to my road (Newfield Road), I am somewhat surprised given :- 
 
1) of all the roads surveyed, Newfield road had the highest response rate of 72% 
2) of the respondents, 86% strongly agreed that there is a parking problem and a further 10% agreed there was a problem 
3) 70% were strongly in favour of parking controls and a further 10% were in favour 
 
I am not sure how this can be ignored in favour of others with lower response rates and lower expressions of opinion regarding 
problems ? 
Having contacted my local councillor I was told that the main problem with newfield road was that there was not a majority in favour of 
a particular control method. It can't be totally surprising when you list a number of options that opinion will be split ? 
 
Surely further contact with the residents of Newfield road following this overwhelming expression of concern is not unreasonable ? Or 
if nothing else, an explanation of why nothing is being done ? 

233 

The new proposals look great and will definitely help with road safety, which is a real issue around Tesco especially at busy times; so 
I welcome your proposals. 
 
I am contacting you with reference to Station Approach in Ash Vale and wonder whether is would be possible, when the new yellow 
lines are laid down, to update the lines in the car parking.  Currently there is a problem with cars parking illegally on the yellow lines 
and out of the marked bays, including the boat slip to the canal!  My main concern, however is vehicles parking towards the bridge 
which causes the road to then be blocked for emergency vehicles preventing access to the army land.  This year was especially 
worrying as a fire was coming along the railway line and they had to reverse and find access further into the village, which all takes 
time. 
 
Originally when the car park was modernised, there was writing on the road which stated 'keep clear emergency vehicles'.  This has 
worn away over time and the parking out of spaces nearer the bridge narrows the gap and means that the fire engines cannot get 
through. 
 
I understand that there are budget restraints for this sort of thing, but I really hope that you will consider this as part of the review as it 
could genuinely save lives. 

234 

We are broadly in favour of the proposed changes, which if enforced, will remedy the current problems around the Avondale 
development (where we live) of junction and pavement parking. Pavement parking by cars and vans around Station Road West and 
Avondale is a serious problem often causing ourselves to walk on the road, often on bends. Parking on the junction of Wellesley 
Close and Avondale is a serious access and visibility issue as the parked vehicles blocked the view of oncoming traffic. 
 
These proposals appear to deal with the issues outlined above, therefore we would like to register our support. These measures will 
require serious enforcement by Guildford Borough Council as there is a clear oversubscription of parking in Avondale and as a result 
anti-social parking is well ingrained. 

P
age 93

IT
E

M
 10



238 

I would like to make a suggestion to aid the disabled and elderly people living in and around Ash Vale.  I whole heartedly approve of 
your proposals for the whole of Ash Vale including Avondale Estate. Perhaps making the zebra crossing at the station over to 
Avondale with lights as it is very dangerous when a train comes in and parkers rush down the stairs over the crossing without waiting 
for motorists to stop. 
 
My main suggestion is that the ' free parking Places with Waiting permitted for any period without time limit' be made into disabled 
parking.  There is insufficient disabled parking with one space either side of the main Wharf Road and the obliterated one at the 
mouth of Balmoral Road which is always used be able bodied drivers. The free parking area outside of the Solicitors is always double 
parked and very dangerous if left as a free for all. 

244 

We live in Wentworth Crescent in the last bungalow on the left hand side before the private end. 
 
A few years ago the Council put railings across the walkway to the private side to stop cyclists riding straight through into the middle 
of the road outside our bungalow as we had our car hit by one such cyclist. 
 
Also our neighbour across the road has a pole in the middle of their drive to stop vans and cars using it to turn round in. 
 
So the problem we have is if anyone parks tight to our driveway it makes it really tight for us to get our vehicles out. 
 
At the moment we are quite lucky we dont get many cars parking up this end, but with the car park at Ash Vale station possibly 
closing we think this will change. 

255 

Moving on to your proposals around North Camp station, I have heard a rumour that the car park may be taken away? If that is the 
case then people will still need to park near the station and it is convenient for them to do so in the roads around the station. Please 
do not restrict their options. 
 
Your proposals do not seem to take into consideration that when shopping or taking a train people need to park somewhere, our cars 
do not magically disappear nor do we have endless supplies of cash to pay for parking all the time. Please help us to go about our 
daily lives with ease and not obstruction. Your proposals are not helpful when there are not enough alternative options I.e. sufficient 
parking areas off road that are free.  
 
As a council tax payer I object strongly to your approach and it is not helpful. Why not focus on restricting parking in areas that ARE a 
problem such as Frimley Road up from Ash Vale station where the road is not wide enough to allow the traffic to flow safely as cars 
park up the whole of one side of the road. Add a bus to that and you have a recipe for accidents. 
 
Please consider the impact of what you are proposing to real people rather than just block the roads off so that Ash Vale becomes so 
restricted that its people can't go about their daily lives. 

P
age 94

IT
E

M
 10



260 
Station Road East near the junction with Birch Way.  If cars are allowed to park both sides then it is impossible for a lorry or more 
importantly a fire engine to get through.  As you are considering changes to the parking controls within Ash Vale would you please 
only let cars park on one side of the road. 

261 

I would like to re-state the comments I made in my original returned questionnaire earlier this year - all comments made then are 
relevant today. 
 
Further to my earlier comments, I would also like to add that I strongly object to any lessening of the parking restrictions in Birch 
Road, Ash Vale - the section between Lysons Avenue and Cypress Grove, on the side where there is access to the residents' garage 
area.  Any parking/waiting along this part of the road makes it extremely dangerous to exit from the garage area because the view 
is severely restricted and manoeuvrability in and out of the garage area is also restricted, particularly when there are vehicles parked 
on both sides of the road. 
 
I obviously object to any restrictions that would make parking more difficult for residents. 
 
Whatever parking regulations come into force as a result of your surveys etc., they will need to be enforced on an ongoing basis. 
 
Whilst writing, can I also make the point that the road turning off Lysons Avenue into the Tesco Express car-park is dangerous for 
pedestrians.  It might help if the pavements on both sides of the access road were continued round into the car-park . 

264 

I have now looked at the proposals and fully agree that Lysons avenue should be fully yellow lined as since Tesco opened the 
amount of traffic has increased.  
 
Birch Way should have timing restrictions as to when parking is possible but feel 830am to 6pm is too long. I would suggest 10-2pm is 
better allowing residents to still park in this area. Stopping the overflow of commuters and business parking. 
 
The yellow lines into cypress grove are, in my opinion, are going too far in and need to be reduced back as this will effect many 
residents in this road.  
 
I notice Alder Close (my road) is being left without lines, which i feel is right as there is little space here to park anyway, however to 
extend the lines into cypress will just bring more parking traffic into our road that is non-residential. I would like to see perhaps some 
passive signage “Residents Only Parking” being placed to stop commuters parking in our road.  
 
I would still like to suggest that the grassed (mud) verges in station road east and around be turned into proper parking bays to ease 
access and egress to Avondale. 

P
age 95

IT
E

M
 10



267 

I cannot believe that the only action being taken in our road (Wentworth Crescent) is to add 2 small areas to the yellow lines already 
here.  It has become a nightmare for many living in our road and also Newfield Road.  At times I cannot back into my drive due to the 
positioning of parked cars, which means I have to back out blindly hoping nothing will hit me and there are many others who are in the 
same position. 
  
I understand that the car parking area opposite the station was offered to both GBC and Network Rail but both declined so this means 
an additional amount of commuters wildly cruising round getting ever more desperate to find a parking spot.  Avondale are having 
many more yellow lines which adds to our problem. Why on earth would GBC/NR make an already difficult and dangerous situation 
even worse for us?   
  
After so many years enjoying our lives and bringing our children up here we are now being held captive by bad decisions by GBC. 
  
There are many senior residents who are severely distressed by the situation and can't comprehend what to do about it. 
  
I urgently ask that you reconsider the proposals. 

268 

I am writing to strongly object to your proposal to further restrict parking in the roads in the vicinity of Ash Vale train station. 
 
Could you please confirm to me the justification of this restriction as parking is already very limited in this area, especially as we are 
being urged to take public transport rather than use cars. 
 
I would also like you to consider the following points:- 
 

 I am a commuter and can no longer cycle to the station due to a debilitating illness, so have no option but to park close to the 
station.   

  

 The parking outside the station (Station Approach) is totally inadequate for the number of train users.  This has been the case for 
a number of years and is not a recent development.   

  

 If you are intending to further restrict parking in the immediate vicinity, additional parking elsewhere needs be provided. The 
number of commuters can only increase with more people moving further out of London due to the high cost of living in the 
capital. 

 
I have noticed that many residents, not just commuters, park in the proposed restricted areas, with some households appearing to 
have 2 or more cars or vans. 

274 

I am writing to express my surprise that, according to everything I have seen and read about the parking controls within Ash Vale and 
Ash Vale station, that Newfield Road appear to have been totally ignored reference Ash Vale station commuters parking within this 
area. 
  
I believe the response to GBC's questionnaire, from Newfield Road, was excellent although mixed some people were not bothered 
about the parking and some were very concerned. 

P
age 96

IT
E

M
 10



  
This problem is likely, in the very near future to be exacerbated by the land being sold near Ash Vale station which is being used for 
station parking at the present time and as stated in your letter dated 30 October 2015 "it may be a number of years before we look 
again at parking restrictions in this area". 
  
On my questionnaire I expressed this concern and suggested limited parking ie 4 hours, no return within 3 hours which would deter 
commuters from parking in Newfield Road, which is not very wide and although they park on one side of the road they are now 
tending to squeeze 3 cars in and overlapping the kerb drop down which makes it difficult for homeowners to manoeuvre their cars in 
and out of their drives (I had the opening to my drive widened a few years ago because of this problem). 
  
To make you aware not only do commuters park in Newfield Road/ Wentworth Crescent during the day but sometimes will leave their 
cars parked for several days and on more than one occasion for a week or two weeks! 

279 

It is apparent that no consideration has been given to the parking problems in Newfield Road. 
 
I understand that a number of residents in the road, as well as myself, replied to your original survey/questionnaire, airing their views 
on the parking problems.  In fact 95.2% stated that there is a parking problem in Newfield Road. 
 
As you are most likely aware, the road is narrow and therefore with cars being parked as close as possible to the curb drops, which 
unfortunately do not extend to the width of the drives, it proves extremely difficult - sometimes impossible - to access and exit drives. 
When cars are parked during the week by commuters,  there is only one car width left of the road, which is sometimes restricted 
during the day by vans and lorries and can be dangerous since vans and cars seem to travel at high speed in this restricted 
space. Naturally it would help if the Council was at least willing to drop all the curbs to match the entrances to the drives, which many 
residents have widened to allow more cars to park on the drives, simply because of the parking problem. 
 
Naturally most would like to see parking restricted to a few hours a day, but if this is not possible at least parking bays could be 
marked out in sensible positions with single yellow lines between, to allow a short period for off loading and a further single yellow line 
on the opposite side of the road, again to permit a limited period for off loading. 
 
It appears that for some reason the Council has failed to even discuss the parking issues in Newfield Road, or at least I could not see 
any reference in the minutes. I was of the impression that a basic rule of Councillors, especially after receiving results from a survey, 
was to debate and consider the best solution to a problem in the interest of the public who appointed them. From my conversation 
with a few residents they are angered by the little consideration given to the results of the survey which from memory was actioned 
prior to the last Council elections and which gave the impression that the Conservative Council was at long last dealing with the 
parking problem. It seems your solution is to do nothing.   
 
As you clearly state 'it may be a number of years before you look again at parking restrictions in the area' I trust that you will consider 
the parking problems in Newfield Road and advise the residents prior to making your final decision to proceed with your proposals. 
 
Incidentally, I have heard that a plot of land adjacent to Ash Vale station was offered to the Council recently to ease parking in the 
area, but apparently this offer was rejected.  This may be untrue,but if it is true perhaps you could advise why, when a car park is 
sorely needed, it was rejected, as it seems to conflict with comments made to me by a Councillor a few years ago that the Council 

P
age 97

IT
E

M
 10



had previously endeavoured to obtain land for parking but was unsuccessful. 

283 

I would like to raise an objection to those parts of the current parking proposals that reduce the available parking in the area within a 
5-minute walking distance of Ash Vale station (e.g. Wentworth Crescent and adjoining roads). For those of us that commute by train it 
is already exceedingly difficult to find suitable parking within  a reasonable distance of the station.  
 
I would further like to suggest that the council re-evaluates some of the existing parking within that area since they seem to serve little 
practical value. By having double-yellow lines in all roads within the immediate proximity of the station, all that it does it to force 
motorists to park slightly further away. This does not solve any problem and instead just moves it from one street to another. It would 
seem sensible for the council to accept that those streets that are nearest to the station should facilitate parking for the station. 

296 

I moved to my house in Frimley Road, Ash Vale just over a year ago. 
 
When I first moved in, I was aware of a certain amount of commuter parking but did not consider it a particular problem at the time we 
were asked for our opinion. 
 
However, over the last year I have seen this escalate to the point where I do consider it a significant problem.  If I leave my house 
before 730 in the morning, I know a commuter will park a car outside my house and this will remain there until at least 6pm (often 
much later).  This also applies to every free stretch of kerb for some considerable distance either side.  The only free spaces are 
spots vacated by people who leave for work after the commuters are all already parked.  Obviously we do not just need to park 
ourselves but need contractors to do work on our houses, invite visitors and accept deliveries.  All this needs planning ahead rather 
than something you can just take for granted as virtually every free space will be taken.  
 
Many of the commuter vehicles we see regularly parked are large and take up the space of more than one small car. If they remain 
parked until 6pm (often later) then residents returning from work simply struggle to find a spot. 
 
Just recently we have seen contractors regularly parking across dropped kerbs and causing an obstruction (because there were no 
other available spaces).  
 
In addition to the commuters I have also seen an increase in the parking of large commercial vehicles over night and sometimes for 
several days at a time which again puts pressure on parking spaces for residents.  Heather Cottages is a row of narrow 
cottages and some residents obviously have more than one car.  
 
A further point (but very relevant to the parking situation) is the complicated nature of a dropped kerb application which I've 
discovered requires separate applications to both Guildford Borough Council and Surrey County Council. If there was a simplified 
combined process I suspect more residents would try to improve matters by creating their own off road parking spaces. 
 

P
age 98

IT
E

M
 10



I would now actually prefer to pay for a resident's parking permit, particularly as any proposed restrictions to parking in other areas 
are likely to put even more pressure on our road. It is a busy road and all the jostling for spaces is a cause for concern. 
 
As I have seen the parking situation get more difficult in just over a year I am concerned about future developments.  I would, 
therefore, like to see further consultation about the current difficult situation in this particular stretch of road. 

309 

I am very surprised that the road nearest Ash Vale Station, Frimley Road, which is already heavily used by commuters, is not 
included. 
 
The extreme number of vehicles parked along Frimley Road - especially the few hundred yards nearest the station, has already 
resulted in it being virtually one way with few, if any, 'passing' spaces.  The restrictions put on nearby roads will, I suggest, exacerbate 
this problem.  It would seem logical that the Frimley Road be given residents' parking rather than allowing it to continue as an 
overflow car park for Ash Vale station. 

316 

Whilst I understand the need to introduce new controls (I attend the local Police meeting each month and hear from other residents 
about the issues they face on a weekly basis) I don’t feel that they will address the underlying problem.  I live along the Frimley Road 
and commute into London each day walking to Ash Vale station.  I recently moved back into the area (my parents also live along the 
Frimley Road and have done for 35 years) and have noticed the many changes that have taken place and the increase in traffic and 
cars being parked in the area.  The latest of these is the new housing development where the George Pub once stood.  The number 
of cars has increased that use Frimley Road (the opening of the bypass saw a dramatic decrease in traffic but it’s been slowly 
increasing) and the number of cars parking on Frimley Road has also increased.  I regularly have commuter cars parked on the road 
outside my driveway, some are left there for days making it extremely difficult and dangerous for me to exit.  I have on some 
occasions had to ask someone to see me out so that I don’t have an accident.  I’ve attached some photos to illustrate the problem. 
 
By introducing the proposed changes all they will do is move the problem on to other areas that surround the stations including 
Frimley Road.  Residents who are impacted will then have years to wait before Guildford Borough Council undertake another study to 
see what improvements can be done.  I note from the survey that residents along Frimley Road when asked what improvements they 
would like to see stated double yellow lines as their preferred solution.  I’d welcome double yellow lines from Ash Vale station along 
Frimley Road to deter commuters from using it for parking but this hasn’t been put forward as part of your proposal.  I didn’t have the 
opportunity to comment at the beginning of the year if I had I would also have asked for this as a solution. 
 
I’d also like to see along side the current proposals some space made for commuters so that they don’t have the need to park along 
the roads, often on bends / pavements / across driveways etc but this hasn't been provided.  I'd ask you to think again, as the number 
of cars will only grow and we actively encourage people to use public transport to travel we should help to facilitate this. 
 
I'm happy to discuss this further to see if there are any additional things that can be put in place that will make the whole of Ash Vale, 
not just a select few roads, a nicer place for it's residents. 
 
I’d welcome double yellow lines from Ash Vale station along Frimley Road to deter commuters from using it for parking but this hasn’t 
been put forward as part of your proposal.  I didn’t have the opportunity to comment at the beginning of the year. 

P
age 99

IT
E

M
 10



318 

We have lived in Frimley Road for 35 years and over this time have seen a marked increased in the number of vehicles parking along 
our road. 
 
We feel that the proposals do not address the problem but merely push it further along and therefore will lead to issues in those roads 
not covered by the proposal.  From the results of the survey taken in January residents along our road said they believed there was a 
problem with cars parking along it and of the possible solutions were in favour of double yellow lines (30%). 
 
Of the respondents asked that replied to the survey 57% agreed that there was a problem along Frimley Road  with 43% saying they 
would like formal parking controls. If neighbouring roads were to have parking controls introduced 55% of respondents in Frimley 
Road said they would also wanted to have parking controls along Frimley Road.  The reason why they responded in this way is they 
know that if you carry out what you've proposed Frimley Road will become a car park making it extremely difficult for residents to get 
in and out of driveways and making the road dangerous.  We have a nursery along Frimley Road and some parents already park on 
Frimley Road to collect their children.  Holly Lodge school traffic also impacts our road as parents park cars and cut through 
Carrington Lane park to collect children from the school.  We would be in favour of double yellow lines to keep the road safe. 
 
There are many elderly residents along Frimley Road (we are in our 60's) who find it increasingly difficult to get out of driveways 
safely.  We have a caravan and don't use it as often as we'd like due to the challenges of manoeuvring it out of the driveway due to 
the poor visibility with cars parked either side of the drive. 
 
We hope you will reconsider the proposals to address the issue properly i.e. the lack of commuter parking which we feel would help 
alleviate a large number of vehicles parked in the area. 

322 

I live with my family on Frimley Road in Ash Vale and would like to make the following comments about the proposed parking controls 
being introduced around Ash Vale and North Camp stations. 
 
Since you last wrote to us about the parking along our road there has been a noticeable increase in the number of cars parking along 
Frimley Road in front of our house.  Commuters who leave their cars on the road for 10/11 hours a day are putting increasing 
pressure on residents' parking and any visitors / workmen they use.  Although we have a drop kerb which should give us access to off 
road parking at the front of our house, we are regularly blocked into or off our driveway by people either partially or fully blocking the 
drop kerb. 
 
With regard to the proposed changes, although there are not a great deal of changes, the increased parking restrictions along roads 
which are further from or an equal distance from the station as we are can only have the effect of forcing more commuters to try and 
park along Frimley Road. 
 
In light of the rising number of commuters already restricting the parking along Frimley Road, along with the likely future increase in 
these numbers when the proposed parking restrictions you have outlined are put in place, I would now be strongly in favour of 
residents' permit parking being placed along Frimley Road. 

P
age 100

IT
E

M
 10



323 

We broadly agree with the proposals (for the Avondale Estate) and would like them to go further.  
 
We would, in addition, like to see bollards or railings at the kerb side to prevent pavement parking. This causes wear and tear 
(creates large puddles on the grass verges and areas that can't be swept and maintained), reduces the more natural areas and 
makes walking here more unpleasant. It is particularly difficult when you are walking with toddlers and a buggy for instance and must 
be difficult to negotiate too for those with disabilities.  
 
We would especially like to see this measure in Station Road West and Station Road East. Commercial vans, one company in 
particular, are using the grass area as a personal loading/ unloading / parking area on the corner of (1) Station Road East and Birch 
Way.  (2) On Station Road West outside the company SIG (on the map proposals this is marked as Lysons Link South) lorries park up 
to rest on the pavement, sometimes two at a time and there is no pavement opposite so as a pedestrian you have the choice of 
squeezing between the lorry and fence/bushes or walking in the road. This is our route to Holly Lodge Primary School and this is not 
a safe choice when you have two young children to protect. 
 
A lamppost (now replaced) was knocked down at the point outside SIG recently, presumably by a lorry reversing or driving into it 
when they were pavement parking. Please note that the lampost is not on the kerb but actually on the far pedestrian side of the 
pavement in the bush / fence area. 
 
We would also like to see railings put on Lysons Avenue across the road from the entrance to Station Road West up to Holly Lodge 
Primary School and on or at points on Station Road West. Station Road West is a main point of entrance for long industrial vehicles 
(refuse collection lorries/ cargo lorries/ trucks carrying skips etc.) It is a really busy route when children are walking to school here and 
there is no protection for children from vehicles which travel very fast on these roads and nothing to prevent children from stumbling 
into the road when there are groups of them. 
 
Recently the railings at the corner of Lysons Avenue and the entrance to Carrington Lane Recreation Ground / recycling point (used 
also for school parking) were knocked down, presumably by a vehicle coming off the roundabout (B3166/ Lysons Avenue / Stratford 
Road roundabout). The damaged railings are yet to be replaced and this could be taken as an ideal opportunity to extend their 
length and so offer greater protection. 
 
If the area towards the top of Station Road East (opposite the station) is to be used as a waiting area for drop offs then road signs 
should be put up to limit speed to 5mph.; as although we don't live there we have seen cars driving too fast there and we know that a 
pet cat has been killed by a hit and run driver in the past.  
 
In general, we would like to see road markings and signs in the area improved. Lorries are often going from Station Road West to the 
Avondale estate area and getting stuck despite 'No HGV entry' signs (which have at times faced the wrong way or been dropped to 
ground level). We would like to see speed restrictions on Station Road West and the whole estate area as (1) commercial HGV 
vehicles don't appreciate that it leads to a residential area and (2) that it is a school route for children from the estate; and (3) also car 
and other vehicle drivers in the area drive faster than necessary. We would like to see warning signs for vehicles coming off the 
roundabout and into Station Road West that school children walk these roads. We would be happy to see speed ramps installed to 
assist speed reductions, particularly in Avondale and Birch Way. 
  

P
age 101

IT
E

M
 10



We also wonder if the council will put measures in place to see that these areas will be patrolled in future by traffic wardens / officers, 
to ensure that the new regulations are put in practice to make a measurable difference to the safety and quality of life of people who 
live in the neighbourhood. 

325 

I live in the Avondale area and experience issues with parking on a regular basis. I wholly support introducing parking restrictions 
although understand the conflict with residents needing somewhere to park. My issues are purely based on safety: 

1. The entrance to Avondale (Northcote Road) must have full restrictions, double yellow lines, introduced up until the entrances 
of Alder Close and Cypress Grove. Parking of vehicles here creates a bottleneck with vehicles entering/exiting a busy estate. 
The parked vehicles on this bit of road also create blind spots which I find dangerous, especially when larger vehicles are 
parked there. With some vehicles going in or out of Avondale at speed this risk is exacerbated. 

2. I live on the ‘Avondale’ road itself and either park in my allocated courtyard parking or garage. The parking is so bad often 
when I leave where I’ve parked I am pulling out onto the road blind due to a) the double parking and b) vehicles parked too 
close to the entrances of the courtyard car parks or garaged areas. A solution needs to be explored as there is a risk of 
collision with another vehicle or worse still a pedestrian. Possibly this could be restricting parking on at least the entire section 
of one side of the road and/or introducing double yellow lines near parking and garaged areas. 

330 

I live in Newfield Road and the whole of our road Monday - Friday 7am to 6-7pm is completely full. There is no where for any van 
deliveries, any visitors, or even any emergency vehicles to park. Also I am fed up with people parking on the grass verge outside my 
house, which is starting to become a mud bog.  \please see photos taken at a week end and then taken during a week day to see the 
difference. Once you stop parking in other roads then this will become worse & worse. 

336 

I live in Sycamore Drive, Ash Vale. 
 
I am pleased that GBC are taking some action on the serious issues of parking by commuters near Ash Vale Station. 
 
I live in Sycamore Drive and I see that even though we were asked to comment last time you consulted, there is no mention of 
restrictions in parking in Sycamore Drive. 
 
We have a serious problem with station parkers not only from Ash Vale but also North Camp Station ( we have an easy walk way 
through to North Camp) I have even seen parkers who are going away on holiday with cases/ bags etc, departing on the North Camp 
Gatwick route and parking near my house for two weeks. I have seen this 3 times in the last 6 months. 
 
On one day last week (week of 23rd Nov) There were 9 station cars parked in Sycamore drive. 
 
This is a normal day and on some days the numbers of  station parkers from either station are more. Often those parking do not 
return for their vehicles until 6.30 and even later.  Residents and their visitors find it extremely difficult to park. 
 
Commuters park on our residential roads to save money, two weeks holiday parking is expensive and daily commute parking is also 

P
age 102

IT
E

M
 10



easy if it is only a few streets away from the station. 
 
I have a parking bay outside of my house and I have even come home with a station parker parked across my parking space. 
I would ask for restrictions for parking to include Sycamore Drive. 
If Sycamore Drive is not included in the debate and the new restrictions then the Drive will become the next road with total parking for 
both stations. 

337 

Love the proposal for all the yellow lines on the Avondale estate, why bother the cars parked over all the yellow lines on pavements 
outside Cobbs motors should tell you that there's not enough man power to enforce the yellow lines dangerous parking as it is. 
 
You keep building more units around the area without enough parking as it is, maybe a car park would be a bit better so the people 
using those units had somewhere to park, that's not including all the cars parked outside our house using the train station, when we 
get home from work boom no where to park. So more yellow lines would be a waste of paint, cars will be parking all over the place 
still, stop building think where people will park first let's see some carparks laybys etc to help the problem not yellow lines to cause 
more problems. 
 
Yours against these unenforceable restrictions. 

350 

What really concerns me and probably most of the residents is the dangerous, well used vehicular and pedestrian access to our 
estate from Lysons Avenue through the industrial area caused by the operatores of what was formerly “Cobbs Motors” who a appear 
to be a rough breed with seemingly little or not respect for the environment or regard for our laws. 
 
Irrespective of their large yard, they have literally commandeered the adopted road areas around their premises including the 
hammerhead and access to the next door empty factory with parked vehicles many of which may not be legal. 
 
They have also been reputed to have dumped customers scrap cars on our private estate roads thus causing towage costs to our 
Residents’ Association. 
 
Opposite their works is a 90-degree blind bend and although there are existing and barely discernable double yellow lines on both 
approaches, during the day time they are totally ignored by either theirs, their customers or suppliers vehicles who park on the 
road/pavement and any car driver or cyclist need to take this bend very much at their own risk. 
 
Even though I had right of way, I have actually encountered and had near misses on a couple of occasions with vehicles shootout out 
of their car wash into the road without stopping although there is a white stop line across their yard entrance/exit. 
 
I have also witnessed the Police patrolling this area on rare occasions but unfortunately they appear totally blinkered when passing 
obviously offending vehicles and I have never seen then either slow down, stop or take any notice whatsoever! 
 
In addition, HGV artics and other commercial vehicles have to negotiate through these vehicles to access the LDL and Guildford 
Borough Council industrial estates and on their exit, they are inclined to take the seemingly easier rout with difficulty for them along 
Station Road East through our housing estate on roads not designed/intended for HGV use. 
 

P
age 103

IT
E

M
 10



At the intersection of Station Road East / West at the start of Avondale, there is an existing width restrictions and “No HGV vehicles” 
signage but it appears that the vast majority of drivers that I have encountered getting stuck on the Avondale Estate are foreign and 
may not be able to read English, or don’t care (Isn’t there a symbolic international road sign which prohibits HGVs?) 
 
Subsequently, as a regular driver/cyclist with subsequent concerns for my safety I am now disinclined to enter or exit Avondale 
through the industrial estate. 
 
However, the alternative and main exit/entry point for Avondale directly onto Lysons Avenue also has its own safety concerns due to 
the illogical allowance of kerbside parking on the south side of Lysons Avenue opposite Barons close to its junction with Birch Way. 
 
Parked vehicles can totally obscure oncoming traffic coming form the left (North Camp Station direction) when exiting from the 
Avondale Estate, which for a right turn necessitates sticking the nose of your car almost half way across the carriageway for a better 
look, thus making you vulnerable. 
 
Returning to the aspect of road safety within the industrial area may I suggest the following: 

a) A continuous white centreline marking is installed around the blind bend outside of the waster transfer station to deter 
motorists cutting the corner on a totally blind bend. 

b) A continuous white stop line is installed across the mouth of the transfer station with internal signage to stop dustcarts driving 
straight out of their yard which for them is a blind exit to cars, cyclists and pedestrians crossing the mouth of the yard from 
North Camp Station into Station Road West. 

c) That all of the existing yellow lines around the blind bend opposite Cobbs are re-painted and added to as necessary. 
d) That all of these measures are monitored and offenders are prosecuted, a few well placed tickets get notices and the word 

quickly spreads. 

362 
I am quite happy with the parking situation in Wentworth Crescent as it is.  Nevertheless, it might be a good idea to have a parking 
area by the station. 

363 

The exit from Newfield Road onto Vale Road service road is a T-junction with no visibility of traffic coming from the left or right.  As we 
now have to exit Newfield Road on the right hand side of the road due to the commuter parking for Ash Vale station on the left hand 
side of the road it is in my opinion dangerous.  When I exit the road I stop to make sure nothing is going to fly round the corner,, and 
when I come in from the Ash direction I edge up to the entrance and look down the road before I proceed. 
 
Unfortunately, not everyone does the same especially the younger generation, yesterday I had to go out twice and on both occasions 
when I was almost up to the point where I could move over to the left side someone came round from the Ash direction at 
considerable speed, fortunately they were able to stop before they hit me.  A couple of years ago on one such occasion, I was given a 
lot of abuse from the driver fo being on his side of the road. 
 
Although I am aware of the difficulties associated with trying to prevent inconsiderate parking, I am aware that you are considering 

P
age 104

IT
E

M
 10



extending the double yellow lines in Wentworth Crescent at its junction with Newfield Road.  Because of the issues highlighted above 
I believe you should giver similar consideration to this at Newfield Road’s junction with Vale Road service road, even if it does push 
commuters further down the road.  At least it would be safer to exit the road, provided that commuters do not park across my 
driveway and make it completely impossible for me to get out. 

365 

I am writing to express my concerns about the proposed parking restriction changes around the Ash Vale station area. The main one 
is the displacement of the problem to the neighbouring roads – especially the un-gated, private ones where there is currently only a 
minor problem with trespass in the form of illegal parking and the turning of vehicles by members of the public.  Any approach to 
these drivers usually results in abusive language and threatening behaviour.  Little respect is generally shown to private property and 
their vehicles can be left abandoned anywhere.  Will the Council provide compensation to the residents that will allow the installation 
of electric gates to private roads if there is any appreciable increase in unwanted nuisance? 
 
I imagine the residents, whose properties have no off-street parking facilities and run along the public roads, will also have concerns 
about not being able to park easily outside or near their houses. 

371 

As a resident of many years the problem is just being pushed onto roads which cannot cope.  If you restrict parking on Wentworth and 
Vale roads the next stop is our small cul-de-sac which has problems when any work is being carried out on Wentworth.  If this goes 
ahead you need to consider some sort of restriction on our close or it will become a car park and as we are a cul-de-sac it means a lot 
of vehicles trying to park and when they can’t race to find somewhere so they don’t miss their train in a small area.  We realise people 
have to park somewhere but hope you will take this into account when you make your decision. 

372 

I am a resident on the Avondale Estate and I feel the proposals being put forward are on the whole unacceptable.  On our courtyard 
alone we have parking for ten cars serving thirteen properties with a total of twenty cars at present requiring spaces to park.  That in 
itself should serve to show you what your current proposals would do for us residents.  This is just our courtyard and does not include 
the one opposite us of the flats next to the other courtyard.  If have included points I have made to the council on another occasion on 
a separate piece of paper. 
 
I am going to try to offer a couple of ideas that might serve both the residents and the need for less dangerous/inconsiderate parking, 
which is a problem that does need addressing.  To do this I am going to be writing as though we have come into the estate through 
the industrial part (Station Road West).  The point I am going to start from with be just before the LDC Business Centre which will be 
on the right. 
 
As we go past the LDC we come to the garage block (on the left) after which you propose double yellow lines all the way round up to 
the entrance of our courtyard.  I think a time restrictive parking zone there would be more appropriate except where the corner itself 
its, there double yellow lines I feel are still needed as it is a danger.  The time restrictions I feel best suited for there are Monday-
Friday no parking between 8.30-16:30.  This gives residents time in the morning to move their cars or go to work and stops 
commuters and the business units parking there and being a nuisance all day long, and the slightly earlier than usual end time 
restriction means people who live here can park their cars without being inconvenienced.  I would put yellow lines on the right hand 
side from the LDC up to the junction on the right, which leads to garage blocks for the other courtyard.  I would not put yellow lines on 
the entrance on the road hand side as you can safely park three cars here, again I would impose the same parking time restrictions 

P
age 105

IT
E

M
 10



here instead.  As we go around the corner to the left there is enough space for two cars to park before the entrance to our courtyard, 
here there should be the same time restricted parking.  On the opposite side to the entrance of our courtyard should be double yellow 
lines as cars parked there are a danger.  Continuing on down the road past our courtyard up to the garage block on the left hand side 
I do not think any parking restrictions should be in place and on the right hand side there is a little bay for parking so no restrictions 
need to be in place there.  Everything else past the last garage blocks on both sides should remain the same. 
 
An alternative proposal would be to shut the road off to traffic just past the LDC entrance / exit and still improve most of the above 
restrictions with exceptions.  This will stop / restrict the businesses parking on a residential estate especially the motor businesses 
who have vehicles littered all over the place, making most of the roads hazardous where they leave them all in disarray.  If this was 
done I would like to see a turning only zone near the LDC end.  Then I think you can impose time restrictive parking as above but on 
both sides actually increase the amount of available parking spaces for residents.  It would then be possible to introduced a mirror 
image on the other side of the now blocked road, without the time restrictive parking again actually increasing the available parking for 
the businesses without being a hazard or a nuisance to any of the residents.  This way we try to segregate the residential side from 
the industrial side, which I can only see as a win-win situation for all concerned. 
 
It could also be possible to combine / merge the above ideas to suit the needs of the community rather that to restrict it.  We all have 
to live somewhere so it is in everyone’s interest if we can work together to find a suitable resolution. 
 
As I mentioned before, what it being put forward at the moment is simply not workable for pretty much everyone concerned, residents 
and businesses alike. 
 
Yours firmly against the proposed restrictions. 

373 

We are residents on the Avondale estate and are writing to express our concerns and objection to the proposed parking restrictions, 
particularly those affecting the area from the Enterprise / LDC business estates leading into Station Road East. 
 
Our courtyard alone consists of 13 properties (80-104), with an allocated car park for just 10 cars.  Given the modern day and age, 
many of these households run two cars and we believe currently in our courtyard alone we have a total of around 20 cars.  This 
leaves no other option but for residents to park on the surrounding roads as there is simply not enough allocated parking available 
and with a number of properties being rented, which do not include garage use, there are no alternative options.  Combine this with 
the second courtyard opposite, as well as the additional flats and it should serve as a clear indication as to what impact the proposed 
new restrictions of double yellow lines would have on residents. 
 
Although we would concur that there are parking issues around the estate which need addressing, most of these are caused by the 
local businesses (Ash Vale MOT Centre often has numerous cars parked in this area) and railway commuters.  Any proposed 
restrictions should take this into consideration as to how to restrict this usage without having a detrimental cost to residents as a 
whole. 
 
If restrictions are to be implemented, then we would like to proposed a couple of alternative options to be considered around this 
area. 
 
Option 1 

P
age 106

IT
E

M
 10



Just after the entrance to LDC, you go over a road narrowing point which acts as the entrance proper to the residential estate.  We 
feel from this point forward the majority of the proposed double yellow lines should be changes to that of restricted time zone parking, 
with enforcement between Monday-Friday 9am-4pm (although on the Ancell’s Farm estate in Fleet, they have successfully 
implemented similar Monday-Friday restrictions just covering the lunchtime period 12-2pm, which are easier to monitor as do not take 
such a large time resource). 
 
This would act as a deterrent to business and railway commuters, but would provide enough flexibility for residents going to and from 
work or to move cars accordingly during the day.  A few exception for actual implementation of double yellow lines should still apply, 
as enforcement on direct corners and the road area opposite the entrance to the courtyard for 80-104 would be sensible as it is 
unsafe for cars to park here. 
 
Just before the entrance on the left to the car park are for houses 80-104 there is safe parking for two vehicles.  Also further back, 
there is a short entrance road leading to the garage behind 129-131, on the right hand side of this entrance there is also safe parking 
for three cars, the time restrictions would work for these stretches and certainly do not require double yellow lines.  Beyond the 
entrance to the courtyard at 80-104 on the left, no parking restrictions are planned and I feel that this is right and should remain 
unrestricted. 
 
Option 2 
Another approach would be to close off the road at the estate entrance point (just after LDC entrance on the right before the garage 
entrance on the left).  This would serve to separate the industrial and residential areas and effectively create two turning areas.  This 
approach would hopefully help to further discourage business vehicles from entering and parking in the residential estate and may 
actually help to better ease parking options for all. 
 
For the residential side, this area could then have both sides of the road converted to time restricted parking (no parking M-F, 9am-
4pm) so to discourage businesses / commuters from parking there, but allowing residents greater freedom and flexibility to park as 
required at evenings and weekends (with noted double yellow areas still imposed for safety).  The business side then could have 
parking restrictions lifted, which would allow them greater flexibility in their activities. 
 
All other areas should remain unchanged to help allow for flexibility for times when vehicles cannot be moved. 
 
Option 3 
A possible further option, would be to slightly revise the time restriction option as I have proposed in Option 1, with the setting up of 
time restriction parking zone as outlined (M-F, 9am-4pm), but with the additional option that residents car park during the restricted 
times, if a residents permit was purchased and displayed (i.e. time restricted permit holder only parking).  The permit(s) could then be 
purchased by a household if they wish as a small cost (£50-100 per vehicle per year,, two maximum per household), for use of these 
areas during restricted hours, with all restrictions then lifted at evenings and weekends. 
 
All other current restrictions / non restrictions would stay in place so that residents have option for parking in certain sections of road 
during the day without issues, there own car park area, of the ability to move a vehicle as required during restricted working hour 
times, but unrestricted at evenings and weekends. 
 

P
age 107

IT
E

M
 10



Any of the above option could be combined, however the overall solution must still be one that works for the community as a whole, 
both businesses and residents.  Given the current proposed parking restrictions, we would certainly ask the council to strongly 
consider alternatives for this area, as the current proposals would just not be workable. 
 
The current issue of parking on the estate though as a whole should actually act as a flag to the council for addressing one of the 
main causes of the problem, which is the current lack of parking facilities at Ash Vale and North Camp stations.  With the recent re-
layout of the roundabout at North Cam station, parking for commuters was actually reduced, when careful planning could have 
increased these facilities.  Until this issue is addressed, with investigations of possible solutions (possible purchase and conversion of 
local privately held land / business units) then the actual underlying cause will always be an issue. 

377 

Station Road West is horrendous. Cobbs or whatever they call themselves now, block both sides of Station Road West with cars, 
vans etc, plus they are selling second hand cars as well. 
 
They are parked on the bend both sides, so many many times, that on several occasions, as car or van charge up the road and on 
the bend, poor me in my car gets almost smashed into. 
 
Cobbs is too big for its premises and they should move to larger ones.  GBC take rent from them I gather? 
 
The buildings are so old and dilapidated they should be pulled down.  So please please put double yellow lines down and enforce 
them. 
 
Station Road East is now getting just as bad, cars park on pavement, and on the grass verge (no grass left).  You might as well 
tarmac these areas over and let them park there, or introduce double yellow lines again to stop them (and mean it again). 
 
I have lived on the Avondale Estate in a double from new 29 years ago.  Please take note of what I am saying and bring in the 
introduction of parking restrictions ASAP. 

384 

I am extremely disappointed with the Council’s suggestion and will continue to campaign in order to ensure that every safety aspect 
regarding this dangerous corner, ref restricted parking etc be fully implemented.  Therefore I fully concur with the following: 
 
It is disappointing that the control proposals for the Wentworth Crescent area merely concentrate parking into a more cumbersome 
but not safer manner.  In particular regarding the proposed double yellow lines to be set up at the lower end of the crescent. 
 
I appreciate it is not the intention to meet the needs of the Council tax and additional Parish tax paying residents in preference to the 
convenience of transient commuters parking needs of Network Rail facilities.  However, the proposals merely enforces the parking to 
then make vehicular egress and exit of properties at 48, 65 and 63 even more difficult than the current occasional respite from 
commuters parking on various sides of the road in the vicinity. 
 
The solution, short of more extensive controls as previously offered, is to at least extend the double yellow lines to cover both sides of 
the road along the frontage of properties 63 and 65.  This not only improves the safety of better sight-line but allow some semblance 
of practical egress and exist from the above mentioned properties. 
 
Unfortunately it seems the exercise is more of procedure than problem solving but I look forward to hearing of the committee’s 

P
age 108

IT
E

M
 10



common sense approach.  Failing that the king offers of a substantial drop in the properties could tax or the gratis installation of 
dropped kerbs to coincide with the width of the property access, introduced by so many residents because of the historical difficulties 
of on-road parking, I’m sure would be considered. 

386 
I am very concerns as to where I am going to park (in Ash Street).  I have lived in the same property for 40 years and there has never 
been a problem with parking and referring to the map enclosed, I don’t think you realise that there are zigzag lines which are close to 
my property due to a pedestrian crossing. 

410 

While you have made some proposed changes, in my view, you have not made enough more direct changes, to affect the current 
over crowed parking situation. 
 
If you introduced single yellow lines on the north side of Station Road East (between Birch Way and Northcote Road) train commuters 
will only park on the other side (south side) of the road so you gain nothing.  If you introduced single yellow lines on both north and 
south sides of the road – Mon-Fri 8.30am-6pm.  You would see a marked difference during the weekdays.  Saturdays could see 
parking both sides of the road, then you have a problem. 
 
In the very near future you are going to have a problem with cars parked on the west side of Lysons Avenue, between Birch Way and 
Station Road West (both sides of the road).  Cars and lorries are beginning to park there during the day (west of Birch Way) causing a 
travelling problem for through traffic.  Single yellow lines the whole of Lysons Avenue would stop this (both sides). 
 
One of the biggest problems at present is the lack of a traffic warden.  I have lived here for 9 years and have seen a traffic warden 
TWICE.  Cars are always parked illegally in Station Road East and Birch Way, both on double yellow lines and on grass verges.  
Again this is train commuters, but also businesses in private houses parking illegally.  It needs more than just a “random check” by a 
traffic warden. 
 
Whatever is done will help the parking situation.  None will affect us as we park on our property and have double yellows outside our 
property. 

411 

I think the current restrictions should be left as they are with the exception of Lysons Avenue.  Parking opposite the BMW garage can 
cause congestion not only when delivery vehicles are trying to gain access to business, but when normal traffic is simply moving up 
and down the road any time of day.  The other area prone to congestion is around Collards yard where I understand a number of their 
staff park in the road, when they should on the premises. 

 

 

P
age 109

IT
E

M
 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
ANNEXE 4 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Effingham Junction area 
(introduce additional yellow line waiting restrictions) 

(22 representations) 

46 

In respect of your formal request for feedback, please note the following:- Old Lane service road parking issues are solely caused as 
a consequence of commuter parking and Copthorne Close. By double yellow line parking restrictions being placed along Old Lane the 
resident parking will be limited. Residents have chosen to reside in this area for multiple reasons, proximity to transport maybe one of 
these as well as the accessibility of parking. Parking control should be for the benefit of residents rather than penalising them. 
Perhaps the whole area should be residents parking for which there should be a nominal fee. Has the council considered negotiating 
with Network Rail, who place exorbitant charges on commuters who already pay heavily for travelling in overcrowded rolling stock for 
a  reduced parking tariff in the station car park. This may result in commuters parking in the designated area for rail commuters to 
park is the station car park. I strongly object to the current proposal. 

54 

Please could you provide the rational for the proposals at Old Lane? Also what provisions are you making for more car parking or 
transport by taking away the current ability for people to park outside their house. I presume you are creating off street parking and 
more public transport facilities to compensate? 
 
If not why not, if the reasons for this change is congestion please provide details (i doubt it is congestion along the lines of a town 
centre or the m25). 
 
It concerns me that you haven't thought about all issues, solutions and impacts. 

57 

As a resident of the Copthorne Place development, on the corner of Forest Road and Old Lane, I would like to register my objections 
to the proposed changes to the local parking regulations. 
 
When I purchased my property, I checked the local parking options to ensure that there are places that me and my family would be 
able to park our cars, plus options for when anyone visits us. These new regulations will cause a reduction of the available spaces for 
parking at the ends of the Old Lane service road and along Old Lane at any time, plus a real problem of parking overnight on Old 
Lane because of the early start of the time restriction on the short distance on Old Lane where parking is still to be allowed. The 
proposals will also put increased pressure on the few remaining unregulated spaces in the Old Lane service road which is used by all 
local residents of Effingham Junction and sadly by rail commuters. These proposals do not do anything to prevent commuters parking 
in the service road. 
 
When I have spoken with our local Police regarding the parking situation in Old Lane, they said that they were pleased when there 
were cars parked on Old Lane during rush hour as it helped calm the traffic as vehicles need to slow down to let others through. 
These proposals will prevent cars from being parked along Old Lane during the morning rush hour. 
 
If these proposals are put into place, I am not sure where any local residents who have an extra car would park overnight, unless we 
decide to leave before 7am for work or school every morning, as we cannot park in the station car park without buying a ticket every 

P
age 111

IT
E

M
 10



day which would be prohibitively expensive. The reduced number of spaces in the Old Lane service road will cause difficulty 
accommodating all the local residents as it is already full every evening and this is with many cars currently parking on Old Lane 
overnight. 
 
All of us who live at the Copthorne Place development have tried to work out how we could create additional parking spaces in our 
car park but without success, as we would lose as many spaces as we would create by redesigning the grassed area. All the current 
spaces (except one visitors’ space) are allocated/owned by the various residents, in a similar way to how other local houses have 
their own spaces in their front gardens. I am unable to redesign my front garden to accommodate a car as I am too near the 
staggered junction of Forest Road/Howard Road/Old Lane. 
 
Therefore, I object to these proposals and ask that you consider other options that prevent train commuters parking on these roads 
whilst allowing local residents of Effingham Junction to park on them at any time.  

60 

I would also suggest (if it is not already the case, which I know it not to be) the restriction for 7am to 11am be continued past the 
junction of Fairview along Forest road, as anyone parking between Fairview and Surrey gardens will also cause congestion. 
 
I would also suggest that a restriction on 7am to 11am waiting be applied to Effingham Common for 1/2 a mile to prevent the Rail 
passenger parking that often occurs causing major disruption in the mornings. 

81 

We live in Old Lane Gardens and I welcome parking restrictions on Old Lane. It is a veritable obstacle course when either I leave my 
house or return to it. 
 
My only concern is that if you restrict parking access on Old Lane then people start to park in Old Lane Gardens or cars on Old Lane 
travel at even faster speeds! Notwithstanding, we hope that this resolution is passed. 
 
On a separate note to whom do I ask about putting some kind of speed camera on Old Lane please. 

83 

This is just to say that I remain in support of the proposed parking restrictions in this area - particularly those on Effingham Common 
Road adjacent to the station. 
 
I am concerned about displacement. I live on the corner of Forest Road and Surrey Gardens and frequently find a car parked outside 
my house because someone has chosen not to pay at the station. I suspect this will increase and as it makes exiting Surrey Gardens 
and my/adjacent drive-ways more hazardous would appreciate you looking at this as well. 

118 

Further to the proposals for parking restrictions in Old Lane although I agree in principle that there should be permanent parking 
restrictions (double yellow lines) for a stretch of 100 metres approx. from the junction with Horsley Road down Old Lane my main 
concern is the speed of traffic from the junction down old lane. At present the traffic speed is horrendous and this combined with the 
ever increasing number of heavy lorries that illegally (the weight restriction is 7.5 tonnes) use old lane is a serious accident waiting to 
happen. My concern is that at present the cars parked on Old Lane forces the traffic to slow down. – A clear road will inevitably mean 
that a large number of drivers will use the stretch of road as a race track. Therefore as well as parking restrictions consideration 
should be given to action that can be taken to slow the traffic down and to restrict the access for oversized vehicles. Finally may I 
point out that there have been parking restrictions (double yellow lines) at the junction with Horsley Road for many years however 
these are ignored by many drivers and for 80% of the time there will be a vehicle parked illegally on the lines. This is because there is 

P
age 112

IT
E

M
 10



never any enforcement of the restrictions. How can you assure me that if the new parking restrictions come into force that there will 
be resources allocated to ensure that they are enforced? 

152 

I would like to add my support to the proposals to restrict parking in Old Lane. 
 
The main road is narrow along this stretch and cars parked on either side block the traffic and cause tailbacks, in some cases at busy 
times traffic can actually back up to partially block the junction with Forest Road. I have also witnessed some near misses due to cars 
failing to wait for oncoming traffic when their passage is partially blocked by parked cars. 

195 
I live at on the main section of Old Lane and would not want there to be double yellow lines outside my house. I would recommend 
there was a time restriction instead i.e. no parking between 7.00am and 11.00am as suggested. It is totally impractical to disallow 
parking at all times outside our homes and I would strongly contest this proposal. 

203 I am in favour of the proposals for change to Effingham Junction parking. 

230 

I understand how difficult it is for people with parking but do wonder where you expect people to park or have deliveries delivered with 
your new suggestions? 
 
You allowed developers to build new houses (and I live in one of them) but did not insist on sufficient parking to be given as well.  We 
have flats beside us that only have one parking space each but every tenant that seems to arrive has two cars! 
 
So where will people park - can you answer that for us?   Also why have you never considered turning the T leg junction, which is 
terrible dangerous at Old Lane/ Horsley Road and Effingham Common Road, into two mini roundabouts? 

273 

Could you please tell me if the new proposal will require local residents to pay for their parking permits and if so how much will they 
be? 
 
As a resident of Surrey Gardens, and a regular user of Forest Road and Old Lane, I do not understand the requirement for a new 
parking system as it seems to work perfectly well the way it is. 

P
age 113

IT
E

M
 10



312 & 320 

Whilst I welcome the review of Old Lane Service Road Parking and have campaigned for these issues to be addressed, having 
studied the proposals put forward, I do not think this has been carefully considered.  For the whole area to have parking restrictions, 
with double yellow lines on the remainder with a very small area where parking is allowed, is the worst possible outcome for every 
resident in the service road, even the ones with a drive. 
 
The proposals do not consider the fact that there are several houses and flats in the service road without any drive at all, (no drives or 
parking for 1,3,5,7 and 9 who live on the green and several houses/flats in the middle), and have no option but to park on the road. 
 They have not left enough spaces for the residents at all and I have no idea where visitors would go.  I know of one resident who sold 
their second car due to these problems. 
 
These restrictions would not help the properties living along the service road, as the residents from the flats at the corner will still park 
there both during the day and overnight.  There are 4 cars parked there long term from the flats at the moment and there have been 2 
cars recently towed away.  The flats do have their own private residents parking, which we are unable to take advantage of. 
 
The map provided is misleading as it does not show where the pavement has been dropped for the drives where there will not be any 
restrictions, so that length is not all accessible parking.  It is reduced quite considerably. 
 
This would push some cars to park further down Horsley Road towards Cobham, which would limit the view of the cars leaving the 
Old Lane Garages.   This would be a very dangerous situation as there are already speed issues in this area. 
 
I have friends who now do not call very frequently due to the parking issues and this has a detrimental and isolating effect on me and 
my fellow residents and we have been blighted with these issues for many years now.  If I were unable to park in the unrestricted 
area, I would not be able to go away as there would not be anywhere to park my car. 
 
I don’t think this proposal has taken into consideration these facts at all.  
 
I think the only option available is to operate a Residents Parking only for the houses living in the service road and on the green. 
 
I trust you will agree that to continue with this scheme is to the detriment of the Old Lane service residents and I trust you will consider 
the alternative of Residents Parking only. 
 
Despite being extremely glad that the parking situation at Old Lane is now being reviewed, considering my recent purchase of a car, I 
would like to express the problems with your proposed plan to amend the situation. 
 
By putting parking restrictions in place and limiting the area to which one can park will not solve the problem nor improve it. The 
number of cars hoping to find a space down the service road will still be the same, you will have simply limited the space in which 
they can park, and residents will continue to struggle with the availability of spaces. Considering this, it is clear that enforcing parking 
restrictions using yellow lines is the worst possible scenario for the residents. Additionally, the map provided is misleading as it does 
take into account dropped pavements in front of driveways, resulting in a considerable reduction to parking space. 
 
The main problem we face, which I feel you have overlooked in your plan, is the influx of cars from the train station and the flats 

P
age 114

IT
E

M
 10



opposite, which amounts to a large volume of cars hoping to park, for free, down the service road. 
 
The flats do have their own private residents parking, which we are unable to access, however, that does not prevent them from 
wanting additional space down Old Lane. Currently, there are 4 cars parked down Old Lane service road permanently from these 
flats. 
 
Most of the houses along the service road have a driveway big enough for one car, however, numbers 1, 3, 5, 7 and 9, the houses 
along the green, have no driveway at all. That amounts to approximately 10 cars from the green with nowhere to park. And that 
doesn’t even take into account any guests that visit these properties or second cars for the other houses along the road.  
 
Increasing the amount of spaces will only invite more cars to take advantage of the available parking, and limiting it will simply cause 
more problems for the residents. As a result I think the best way forward is provide Residents Parking only for the houses living in the 
service road and on the green. This will eliminate the issues posed by the train station and flats.  
 
Please take the time to consider the option of Residents Parking and thank you for taking the time to review this issue. 

314 

As a resident for 30 years of Old Lane, Cobham near Effingham junction I thank you for you offering the opportunity to make my 
views known about the proposed parking restrictions in particular in the service road in Old Lane. 
 
Whilst I welcome the restrictions in Old lane itself and at the two ends of the service road this will have the inevitable consequence of 
displacing any commuters opportunities to find free on street parking rather than using the chargeable station car park. 
 
These commuters will inevitably choose to park in any available space in the Old Lane service road since the proposals do not 
appear so far to provide any restrictions there. 
 
Such an increase in commuter parking would prevent this service road from serving its very function as a “service” road for the use of 
residents and their visitors to park and for access by delivery and service vehicles. 
 
The service road is already plagued with non-residents taking up valuable space not just on a daily basis preventing residents from 
parking when they return from work but sometimes for one or two weeks at a time when one presumes people have gone by train on 
holiday! 
 
I note the reasons for the parking restrictions is stated as being: 
To assist with safety, access, traffic movements, increase the availability of space and its prioritisation for various user-groups in 
various localities, and to make local improvements. 
The phrase: increase the availability of space and its prioritisation for various user-groups will, I hope, include the user-group of the 
residents on the NE side of Old Lane in the service road who expect, as immediately local Council tax payers to have priority over 
those from less immediate areas in or indeed out of the borough who use Effingham Junction station. 
 
I note that you state the aims of the restrictions when the Borough Council states: 
“We recognise that the introduction of parking restrictions can cause the availability of parking to reduce and for it to displace to 
nearby areas.  

P
age 115

IT
E

M
 10



Therefore, it is important that any changes to the controls extend far enough to deal with the issues present and any potential for 
them to move elsewhere, whilst not being overly restrictive to residents and other road users.” 

1.       The phrase  “parking restrictions can cause the availability of parking to reduce and for it to displace to nearby areas “ will 
most certainly occur and the service road in Old Lane will be where this will occur if it remain as on the plan without any 
parking restrictions. 

2.       The phrase “ to deal with the issues present and any potential for them to move elsewhere “ is not dealt with if the service 
road is left as a free for all for station users. 

 
Parking restrictions in the service road Resident parking only 
I should like to see this potentially disastrous situation prevented by introducing parking restrictions in the service road. 
 
My suggestion would be that the service road has signs stating Resident parking only. 
 
How this can be done needs to be considered carefully but I can see this may require resident parking permits to which I would not 
object in principle if at no or very low cost. 
 
Length of the double yellow lines at the end of the service road 
I should also like to suggest that the length of the double yellow lines at the end of the service road be shortened to prevent 
unnecessary loss of parking for residents. 
 
The double yellow lines on the plan currently terminate approx 48 metres from Old Lane just after the dropped kerb of No 31. 
This would therefore preventing parking by residents across the driveways of No 31 & No 33 which is a useful asset for residents of 
both properties. 
I propose that the double yellow lines terminate at the entrance to the access to driveways of No 37 & 39 approx 28 metres from Old 
Lane. 
This will prevent parking too close  to the junction obscuring visibility whilst allowing better us of space beyond that for resident 
parking. 
 
Regarding timing I must emphasise that, quite obviously, the necessary actions in the service road need to take place at the same 
time as the other restrictions. 

315 

In summary, I endorse the proposed scheme in light of the increasing numbers of cars parking on Old Lane and the corners of the 
Old Lane service road. However, it will merely displace the problem and the scheme should only operate if some form of controlled 
parking is introduced on the Old Lane service road. 
 
Looking in more detail, the scheme will address the increasing number of cars that park on Old Lane and Old Lane (service road). 
This is caused by commuters from Effingham Junction railway station avoiding the car park's charges. I know this is so because I 
regularly follow commuters from the train to their cars when I walk home from the station in the evening. The parked cars mean traffic 
weaves in and out of spaces as it drives up Old Lane away from the junction with Forest and Horsley roads which has almost caused 
accidents recently as drivers accelerate to try to beat oncoming traffic approaching the junction. 
 
In addition, drivers who park on Old Lane try to be to considerate to road users by parking as close as possible to the fence or hedge. 

P
age 116

IT
E

M
 10



This makes it difficult to walk past the car and it certainly does not allow a pushchair or wheelchair to pass through the gap. 
 
By introducing the proposed double yellow lines, this issue will disappear, however, this is flawed because there is a straight stretch 
of road on the Old Lane service road where these lines are not being introduced. I agree with this approach so that residents without 
driveways can park there. However, the downside and my biggest point of objection is that commuters no longer able to park on the 
roads with new yellow lines will now park on the straight stretch of the Old Lane service road. 
 
Therefore it is essential that a controlled parking scheme must also be introduced such as resident permits which would operate 
alongside parking restrictions that only allow parking for a set time period. This will stop commuters taking spaces in front of 
residential properties but allow visitors to residents' properties to park there. An even better approach would be to give scratch cards 
to residents that can be displayed in visitors' vehicle windows showing the date of parking. This would allow a longer parking period if 
their stay is a day or longer. I see no benefit of putting double yellow lines on the corners of the Old Lane service road as this will 
reduce the amount of space where residents already park. 

319 

We are writing to advise that we agree with the proposed amended controls for Old Lane (ref: KM/16/0003) and thus, reduced 
amount of street parking. The time limits proposed for the parking to remain, are ideal to prevent use of Old Lane as a free car park 
for Effingham Junction Station. This is long overdue and would be much appreciated as it would improve road safety (noting a 
number of collisions with parked cars over the years) and would allow residents to leave their driveways without being visually 
restricted to oncoming traffic. 
 
We do note however, that by removing a good deal of the parking, there is the possible side effect of increased speed of the traffic 
coming from the A3 toward Forest Road and we would assume that consideration has been given to this in making this proposal or 
that at least, GBC is taking this into account under a separate initiative or consultation in relation to road safety. Traffic speed far, far 
exceeds the 30mph limit already and this could increase where motorists are less restricted by parked cars and waiting cars travelling 
in the opposite direction. 

366 

I speak as a result of an upstairs flat totally reliant on on-street parking.  I am also a pensioner and appreciate being able to use my 
car. 
 
My Old Lane (service road) services the residents along this stretch perfectly well, but alas, as I have written previously, we have 
visitors from the railway station that may choose to park for the day, the week and sometime when they go on holiday! 
 
Recently this situation has worsened as works are being carried out in the station car park and the poor workers / commuters have to 
park somewhere.  Quite frequently I have been forced to park on the extreme corners (each end of our road where your want to place 
double yellow lines) until a space become available later on in the evening.  I appreciate this is dangerous and hate doing it.  I agree 
that the current situation on the entrance to our service road with parking available is unsafe, but where will I be able to park my car 
and unload shopping? The cars that use this space in the evening would need to park somewhere – they are residents I’m told. 
 
Much to my chagrin I strongly feel I need a *Residents’ Parking Permit should you press on with your proposals.  There have been 
occasions recently when I have been too afraid to go out in the afternoon as I cannot be sure of a parking space when I return. 
 
I should also point pout that the downstairs flat in our block is empty.  The new tenant will probably have a car, or maybe two.  Where 
will the tenant park?  The family downstairs have a worker’s van  containing the tools of his livelihood.  This van must be parked very 

P
age 117

IT
E

M
 10



close to their home as he has already been robbed of his tools once. 
 
*even if you don’t go ahead with your proposals, perhaps those without off street parking, i.e. the two blocks of maisonettes/flats 
should have an area in front designated for our use.  And yes, very reluctantly, I am prepared to pay for this with a permit. 
 

369 

I appreciate that the current problems have been caused by commuters parking locally, to avoid charges at the station car park. 
 
The plans for Old Lane itself as restrictions from 7am to 11am Mon to Fri seem appropriate, but I feel that the limitations on the 
service road are somewhat draconian. 
 
There is already limited parking for all the houses along this side due to the short length of road.  If you ban parking on the corners we 
are losing 6 to 8 parking spaces. 
 
I have organised parking for my personal use in front of my house.  It is small and just accommodates my little car.  I am a pensioner 
with 2 new hips and a daughter who comes to help me regularly and need to park somewhere.  There are other pensioners along this 
side with similar requirements. 
 
I also need to park in the road when the slope is icy for safety reasons (not to mention the occasional need for trades people such as 
plumbers, electricians etc…) 
 
My suggestion is that there are 2 notices either end of the service road with “Residents’ Only” signs.  This way, the parking can be 
monitored by residents who have the right to move the commuters on. 
 
Please, please don’t take away the limited parking spaces that we do have. 

370 
I wholeheartedly support the proposal to implement double yellow lines and the section of “no waiting Monday-Friday 7-11m” in Old 
Lane.  The road is getting increasingly dangerous because we are unable to see the approaching traffic (which sometimes travels 
very fast from the A3) because of all the parked cars either side of the entrance to our driveway. 

398 

I strongly oppose the restriction suggested and feel it is a dangerous precedent.  In the service road where I live nearly everyone has 
off road parking except for 2 or 3 council maisonettes.  If neighbours all put their cars in their drives there would be no problem. 
 
If yellow lines are introduced into this service road, it would be impossible for friends or visitors to park anywhere.  On Sunday I had 3 
friends visit me with cars.  Had yellow lines been here what would they do? 
 
I think maybe across the road the main section of Old Lane a restricted time as suggested could be good to stop the commuters 
parking.  Although no more please leave our (service) road as it is. 

P
age 118

IT
E

M
 10



401 

For our service road these parking proposals are a disaster.  They reduce our parking service and will significantly increase the 
pressure on the already tight provision. 
 
Taking the double yellow lines well round the corner into the service road will take away five spaces i.e. reducing our parking spaces 
by nearly a quarter,  I can see technically parking on a bend is not best practice but it has been this way for tens of years. 
 
If is only a service road not a through route.  We cannot afford to lose these five spaces where frequently all the parking space is 
occupied. 
 
These proposals do nothing to address our major problem which is ‘strangers’ using our service road as a car park.  We get three 
categories of ‘stranger’: 

1. Commuters 
2. Old Lane residents from the other side of the road. 
3. Residents of the ‘new’ flats and houses on the corner.  They were built allowing only 1.5 parking spaces per household which 

everyone knows, except the greedy developers and inept planners, knew was inadequate. 
 
It is obvious that the restriction of parking on Old Lane will only exacerbate the problem.  Then, when our road is full, there will in fact 
be nowhere else to go if Old Lane and Forest Road are no-parking.  I can forsee ‘parking rage’ problems. 
 
In some way our service road needs to be residents only.  It is, after all, a service road build to serve the needs of the houses here.  
On the other hand I’m sure there would be considerable resistance to paying permit fees to park on our own service road. 

409 

People need to park their cars, and this is no point in making life more difficult for some, if a reasonable solution can be found. 
 
When a number of cars are parked in Old Lane, one advantage is that it slows the speed of traffic.  I mention “advantage” because 
very few drive within the 30mph limit when no cars are parked. 
 
However, being such a lane, not a recognise A or B road category, reversing out of the various houses onto Old Lane can be difficult, 
with too many cars parked, some without reasonable care. 
 
Regarding the service road, I firstly don’t believe many use this road to park prior to using the train.  It is frustrating to have cars 
parked outside your own house that don’t belong to you.  However, a number of residents living locally don’t have sufficient parking 
for their own requirements i.e. flats on the corner of Forest Road / Old Lane. 
 
It should also be recognised, that numbers one to nine Old Lane, other than rented garages at the rear don’t have any means of 
parking at the front of their houses. 
 
Therefore, I would recommend a number of “marked out” bays for single parking along Old Lane that could be either on the left or 
right hand side of the road, which would not inconvenience local residents.  It could also be considered widening the Old Lane service 
road to allow parking either side of the road. 
 
I would also emphasis that should any restrictive parking be considered, it would make it very difficult for visitors including essential 

P
age 119

IT
E

M
 10



calls by plumbers / electricians etc. 
 
I would finally mention that should parking controls be introduced, the green grass areas on the left entering Old Lane could be used 
as alternative or additional parking, as was the case when the new houses and flats were built on the corner of Old Lane, would be 
unfortunate. 

 

P
age 120

IT
E

M
 10



ANNEXE 6 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Fairlands Estate 
(introduce various double yellow lines, limited waiting and formalise school keep clear) 

(37 representations) 

2 

I am sending this e mail in opposition to the proposed parking restrictions  on the Fairlands estate,  all this has started because a few 
grumpy people do not like parents parking near their houses for half a hour in the mornings  and half a hour in the afternoon to take 
their children to school .this happens everywhere there is a school. It is nothing new, so by spending tax payers money ,to install 
yellow lines and then a traffic warden to enforce this ,is a complete waste of money . The problem won't be solved by this in fact you 
will create more grumpy people, and so in the end the whole of Fairlands will be yellow lines and they will still park wherever they 
want yellow lines or not. 

3 

I am a resident of Fairlands Avenue and will therefore be directly affected by the effects of parking  restrictions and changes that you 
are about to impose. 
 
I wholly agree with all junction related changes and yellow lines proposed but - 
 
The only issues I have  are in respect of the areas related to the use of the shops  which are either presently misused by the local 
residents or others for all day parking. 
 
I agree with the purple marked area but think it should be  limited to two hours max. 
 
I also think that the proposed double yellow lined area running parallel to the marked purple area should , Monday to Friday  ALSO 
be purple and two hour restrictive. 
 
This will allow genuine shoppers to have access to more than the only three or four parking spaces you propose during regular shop 
hours, but the 2hr rule will stop the itinerant all day parkers. 
 
It is important that we have enough shopping parking to maintain the access to the businesses.  These businesses run on fine 
margins and our Community needs the services they provide. 
 
They are mutually dependant on each other for custom. If their customers cannot park they will go elsewhere , income will fall , shops 
will close , and all caused by parking restrictions. 
 
Please bear this in mind.  The Fairlands Avenue area parallel to the shops should be purple (limited waiting). 
 
Of course all of this needs to be policed - Job for a local retiree perhaps? 

P
age 121

IT
E

M
 10



21 

I object to the yellow lines in St Michael's Avenue.  I have NEVER seen a car parked on that junction, so the lines are unnecessary 
and would be an eyesore.  Even with the other new yellow lines, I don't expect there to be a big problem with cars parking on that 
junction. 
 
I also object to the yellow lines at the entrance to the estate (where Fairlands Road meets Fairlands Avenue).  I have only seen cars 
parked here when there is a big event such as the Merrist Wood shown on, so I think unsightly yellow lines are unnecessary.  It 
would not be a nice welcome to Fairlands! 
 
I think the times restrictions around the shops are a good idea.  Residents must however have adequate parking behind the flats so 
that they don't park outside the shops. 
 
I agree with formalising the restrictions around the school.  
 
I agree with all the other yellow lines, as the junctions involved are often a problem at school times and its is difficult for residents and 
buses etc. to get around the estate. 

27 

I can understand and support some of the changes suggested for safety reasons, where the proposed yellow lines would be on 
roundabouts and road junctions. However I do not support and strongly object to the proposed restrictions on Fairlands Avenue. 
 
I feel it is necessary to have adequate parking near to the shops. If the parking is restricted to one side of the road only this will not 
be sufficient for the number of users. The businesses in the shops will suffer, relying on the convenience of being able to park outside 
for quick visits. I for one (although living within walking distance) suffer from arthritis, I had one full knee replacement 6 weeks ago 
and need my other knee replaced too, I am not entitled to a disabled badge even though I cannot walk far without pain. I know that 
the number of users of these shops at all times of the day already often exceeds the spaces available so where do you think they will 
go to? The houses opposite these shops often suffer from having constant parking outside their houses and they don't all have large 
driveways so any visitors will not be able to park nearby or if they do park outside will then reduce the suggested parking spaces for 
the shops. 
 
I appeal to you to remove the restriction in Fairlands Road, but support the restricted times in the service road, as some of these 
spaces are used by shop owners/managers. 

29 

I would like to confirm that we are OPPOSED to the implementation proposed parking controls within the Fairlands estate.  We were 
of the same mind in the previous consultation, clearly the outcome of this consultation wasn't to your satisfaction, hence the need to 
do it again. 
 
There is absolutely no need to implement this other than to make money. 

P
age 122

IT
E

M
 10



33 

Having viewed the proposals for the parking controls in Fairlands, I believe that they would greatly improve the line of sight of 
vehicles entering and leaving junctions therefore making it safer for everyone including pedestrians. 
 
My only concern would be in the enforcement of these restrictions and feel it would be necessary to actually issue fines/tickets when 
vehicles are parked illegally to prove the intention of these restrictions. A mere walk by of a parking restriction officer/ police officer I 
believe would not suffice in the long run. 

49 

We would like to register our objections to parking controls on Fairlands Estate, We believe this is unnecessary, it will simply move 
any problem to adjacent roads, which by the time you have finished you will have to whole of Fairlands with parking restrictions, and 
at what cost to enforce. 
 
There are a lot of older people living on Fairlands who will be inconvenienced by any restrictions. 
 
In times of austerity this is a total waste of public money. 
 
We believe parking restrictions should be for town centres, where they should remain. 

50 

I have looked at the parking plans for double parking lines for the above road and wish to make the following comment. Whilst 
agreeing that parking restrictions could be beneficial for the flow of traffic I would prefer the double yellow lines to be on my side of 
the road i.e. by the houses. I would feel that all of us on this side have ample parking inside our properties but we suffer from large 
vehicles parking on our side of the road and cars driving onto the grass verges which at times makes exiting somewhat chancy. 
I am fortunate that I have room to turn round and drive out where reversing out would be somewhat problematic.  Others do not have 
that advantage. 
I live at number 28 Fairlands Avenue and feel if the double yellow lines were on my side of the road it would be much safer for all 
concerned. 
Whatever the final outcome there will always be someone who gets the hump so I wish you well. 
I have written this in the hope that any accidents may be prevented 
 
P.S. as an afterthought if traffic could park on the shops side of Fairlands Avenue they would not need to cross the road to get to the 
shops.  You try doing that at 1513 when the school turns out. 
 
Not a good time to collect the pension. 

53 

As a resident of Gumbrells close I am happy with the proposed parking restriction on the top corner of Gumbrells close. 
 
I am concerned that the parking restrictions at the shops will make it harder for me to access the shops and have a detrimental affect 
on the shops themselves by making parking there harder.  Redesign of the shop forecourt area like burpham shops would benefit the 
area. 

P
age 123

IT
E

M
 10



67 

First of all I am very surprised that you would consider parking restrictions in a quiet cul-de-sac as it is in Quakers Way. 
 
I can only assume that no one in your department has made a visit, as there is hardly any street parking apart from various 
tradesmen. 
 
As the council is making every effort to reduce spending, it seems a strange decision to even consider your proposals for parking 
controls in Quakers Way. 
 
As the estate has no lighting, if you have excess funds, then some of the uneven  pavements could  be repaired that would assist 
residents with walking difficulties. 
 
Please arrange to make a visit for your own benefit so that you would be able see that there is no need to consider parking controls 
in Quakers Way. 

96 

As residents of over thirty years standing we have looked at your map showing proposed double yellow lines to be placed at the 
junction of Dynevor Place with Brooke Forest which effectively would be directly outside our house and immediately in front of our 
driveway. 
 
Both my wife and I feel that this course of action is entirely unnecessary. As an example I am looking out from my office window at 
this moment, 11.00am in the morning and there is not a car nor a person in sight, this is a very quiet and pleasant residential area 
which the advent of ugly yellow lines would spoil totally. 
 
We are aware that there is an influx of traffic at school times but this for a maximum of half an hour, morning and evening and quite 
honestly of very little inconvenience to anyone. What is worrying however is that if this plan for yellow lines were to go ahead then 
there would be a totally adverse effect created as people would begin to park off the road and on our grass verges spoiling the whole 
look of the estate and damaging the verges themselves causing ruts and mud everywhere. 
 
We have not spoken to anyone who is in favour of this unnecessary and potentially very expensive proposal. Altogether yet another 
waste of our Council Tax. 

101 

I am in support of the proposed controls to Fairlands Estate, my reasoning is for the safety of the children due to the amount of traffic 
at school times. 
 
It is very difficult to see clearly when crossing the roads as there are so many vehicles blocking the views. 

104 

I am vehemently opposed to any form of parking restrictions on Fairland's, we do not have any parking problems or problem parking 
other than parking on the grass verges which yellow lines will not stop. 
 
The vast majority of the day the roads are empty even when the parents park to drop children at the school there is not any 
problems, the way is always clear to pass. 
 

P
age 124

IT
E

M
 10



The only reason the council is even considering this is to raise revenue which is appalling. 

106 

The concept, in theory looks admirable;  in practice I doubt that it will work.  It is more than likely that the double yellow lines will be 
ignored by many, for others merely to park further along the road in question.   If current habits are anything to go by, drivers will park 
over "Keep Clear" signs on the roundabout near the school;  on the zigzag lines outside the school entrance or verges along 
Fairlands Road forcing walkers into the road. 
 
The proposed times  parents/guardians will be permitted to stop (08.00 - 10.00 / 14.30 - 16.30) is likely to be the most flouted, 
especially the afternoon time frame.  A considerable number of vehicles definitely arrive much earlier so much so that it is often 
impossible for the no 17 bus drivers to navigate the route -  Aldershot Road, Fairlands Avenue, Brocks Drive, Louis Field Brook 
Forest, Fairlands Avenue, Aldershot Road.   I am given to understand that on occasion the drivers for the 15.32 passenger pick up at 
Brocks Drive are so frustrated that  they go no further than the Fairlands Avenue roundabout, thereby missing out the Brocks, Louis 
Field and Brook Forest bus stops.  I have total sympathy for the drivers, and disgusted at the arrogant selfish and inconsiderate 
attitude of these motorists. 
 
How GBC plans to enforce these new measures, I can only speculate, but whatever method it must be for the long not the short 
term.  I am sure the excuses offered by the perpetrators would fill several volumes of motorists' tall tales, and not too different from 
those who choose to turn Right out of Fairlands - even though there has been a "No Turn Right" sign up for many years.  I have 
watched many do precisely that,  then almost collide with a bus pulling into the bus stop!  The drivers are a mix of young and old, 
male and female, resident and visitor. 
 
Whatever GBC's decision is regarding these parking proposals,  local residents should be penalised in any way. 

110 

I have lived in Brooke Forest for 30 years and strongly object to the parking restrictions that you wish to place around Fairlands 
Estate, by installing double yellow lines in the places indicated in Document 9 and document 13 on your website. 
 
This is a small housing estate which has only one access road. I do not think that adding double yellow lines is necessary nor would I 
like to see them spoiling the ambiance of the estate. 
 
When we were 'asked' if such parking restrictions around the junctions and roundabouts was desired by residents in a letter , it was 
worded in such a way that you could not say' No' no restrictions wanted. Only that if restrictions were implemented would we want 
them in all places with residents parking bays or just on corners etc.  at the time I responded that I would be unhappy with the 
implementation of any double yellow lines and I still feel this way. 
 
I think it is unfair to force double yellow lines on us. I like that when you have workmen to the house they can park freely. I like that 
any guests I have may park freely. I like that I can park outside the shops and pop in for my paper when I'm on my way off the estate 
or coming home. I don't mind that I have to give way to traffic by the shops, I have been doing it for 30 years without the slightest 

P
age 125

IT
E

M
 10



problem. Residents know to be careful of parked cars on the corner of Brooke Forest and are happy to give way. 
 
I objected to the expansion of the school as it means even more parents coming onto the estate twice a day, however they are only 
there for a short time and in my opinion this does not warrant extra parking restrictions being in place permanently at all times. I DO 
NOT WANT TO LIVE IN THAT SORT OF ENVIRONMENT. 
 
Please Leave my estate as it is. NO DOUBLE YELLOW LINES AT ALL. 

136 

I live opposite the shops at fairlands avenue (32)  I did email the council when talks began about the parking restrictions with in my 
view very sensible, ideas that could benefit both visitors, residents and shop owners in a word everyone! I had no reply whatsoever 
which leads me to believe you could not have received my email or you would have had the courtesy to reply! Please think about the 
ideas I wish to put to you.  
 
Between the parade of shops and flats on Fairlands avenue and the residents on the other side of the road is an area of grass and 
bushes.  
This area could quite easily and cheaply be transformed into marked parking bays also to include at least one disabled parking bay 
or create parking bays accessible to all on this wasted ground and make the shop slip road disabled/ delivery parking only. 
 
I really think this would work and serve all local people, visitors and retailers alike.  
 
At present we get the local travellers parking ON THE GRASS in this island of wasted land. They come in there trucks and vans and 
churn up all the mud leaving a very unsightly mess and danger to pedestrians  as in winter they leave a trail of mud! 
 
The MAJORITY of residents on the Fairlands estate are ELDERLY, and if your proposed plans for double yellow lines on the post 
office side of the road go ahead these elderly people will have to park on the residential side and walk across the now busy road.  
 
Also Fairlands Avenue is on the bus route which is an added danger to pedestrians so if the vehicles were off the road it would make 
life much easier and safer for all concerned.  
 
I really feel you could accommodate more parking spaces if these were angled Like / / / / etc.  
 
Many villages and towns appear to adopt this type of parking in a central area such as this as most of the spaces are needed for 
short stay shoppers and as you have stated on your plans a time limit could be put in place.  
 
I would also support a mini roundabout construction at the entrance to the Fairlands estate for the following reasons 
 
1 To SLOW DOWN the traffic on the long stretch of the Aldershot road, particularly at night the traffic along this road makes it sound 
like a RACETRACK! 
 
2 Enable ELDERLY pedestrians / students (going to Merristwood ) to gain safe passage to the bus stop across such a busy road. (A 
crossing is needed here!)  
 

P
age 126

IT
E

M
 10



3 Allow easy safe passage both in and out of the estate to both residents and visitors 
 
4 The extra flow of traffic from school start/finish would flow much easier as the congestion out of the estate would could filter in two 
directions. 

146 

The yellow lines in Fairland’s avenue opposite the shops are going to be put opposite the houses on the other side of the road in my 
opinion this is the wrong side of the road as this will mean all the traffic for the shops will park on the houses side of the road which at 
present makes it very difficult to reverse  out on to Fairland’s avenue as there are always vehicles parked in this area and on a 
number of occasions slightly over hanging driveways .  If the yellow lines are put opposite there will be even more traffic parked 
which will make it very dangerous to reverse out .There are a number of elderly residents in Fairland’s avenue who will struggle to 
leave there own driveway if this is implemented . When its home time from Fairland’s school you can sit in your car for ten minutes 
before being able to reverse out . In the past there have been bollards installed outside the houses in Fairland’s avenue  opposite the 
shops I think all but one have been knocked down by cars who continue to park half on the road and half on the grass verge again 
blocking the view of oncoming traffic which  is waiting for an accident to happen . Could I ask why these bollards have not been 
reinstated as there were some additional ones installed over the other shop side of the road recently and these ones were left laying 
flat .  The new bollards that were installed are nice sturdy wood ones the  originally ones  installed outside the houses are cheap 
plastic ones which are obviously no deterrent . 
 
I hope the matter can be resolved . 

170 

My reservations concern the lack of any double yellow lines on a section of Fairlands Avenue between Brooke Forest and the corner 
where Fairlands Avenue meets Brocks Drive. Without any yellow lines  vehicles will be permitted to park on both sides of the road.  
 
We currently observe this situation opposite the shops which at present gets parked up on both sides so that only a single vehicle 
can go through. Vehicles coming from the opposite direction have to wait until the space between the lines of parked cars is clear. 
 
The proposed double yellow lines should prevent this but I believe that the problem will be transferred down Fairlands Avenue to the 
section without any yellow lines because people regularly stop along the Avenue to pop into the shops or use the pillar box. At peak 
times traffic trying to get in and out of the estate will have to queue in either direction causing backlogs. 
 
An additional problem at that location is that vehicles approaching the oblique bend from Brock's Drive have no visibility round it. 
They will round the corner and discover that the way ahead is blocked by cars coming through the gap between parked vehicles. If 
vehicles queue back along Brocks Drive they will block access to and from the Doctors' surgery, chemist and community centre. 
 
I would urge a re-consideration of the plans so as to include double yellow lines all the way down one side of Fairlands Avenue. 

P
age 127

IT
E

M
 10



186 

I am opposed to parking controls within Fairlands. 
  
I have lived for 18 years in Envis Way (overlooking the main roundabout near the school), am a retired police officer and was 
delighted my two children benefitted from the excellent Worplesdon Primary School albeit some years ago. I've started my e-mail like 
this to hopefully show I have some experience of this local resident issue, an understanding of law enforcement and an appreciation 
of the problems faced by Mr. Parsons and his staff at the school when faced with complaints about parking. 
  
I have a number of points and observations as follows: 
  
1. As a Fairlands resident nobody forced us to live here and in particular near a school. Anyone buying or renting here should 
adequately research the area - it is exactly the same as people who buy a house near a football ground and then complain about the 
noise, parking etc! In my 18 years the school traffic has varied with some years being worse than others depending on the attitude of 
a handful of drivers. In reality parking chaos prevails for just 10 - 15 minutes in the morning and the same in the afternoon. Being a 
primary school there are very few after school activities and the age of the children means they are supervised and leave the area 
very quickly. 
 
2. The school does try to encourage responsible parking. I feel Mr. Parsons has been extremely let down by one of his teaching staff 
as an example. She shall remain nameless and does not in any way appear disabled, however every day she drives from her house 
in Dynevor Place and looks for street parking in Envis Way or Brooke Forest! Such laziness is extraordinary.  
 
3. Fairlands needs to assess the impact of the new school buildings prior to introducing wholesale parking measures. At present it 
would be easy to vote in controls because a lot of staff cars are using the local streets to park meaning there is constant clogging up 
of the roads in and around the large roundabout nearest the school. 
 
4. The cars that park on the grass verges around the roundabout are unacceptable. They are damaging the grass, flaunting 'Keep 
Clear' messages on the road (which emergency vehicles need to gain swift access to somewhere like the school), they frequently 
obstruct the local bus to the extent it can't manoeuvre and it encourages similar behaviour in other drivers. That said I would love to 
say that every Fairlands resident is sufficiently proud of their locality by parking properly themselves. Sadly a resident almost 
opposite the school drives in behind the black and white posts and parks wholly on the grass verge meaning there is now a visible 
crater (about a foot deep) when the car is not there. Such behaviour again sends drivers visiting Fairlands the wrong message.  
 
Suggestions/Solutions: 
 
1. We have managed all these years without controls, so what's changed? Any control is only as good as the compliance and 
supervision that follows, so are local authority staff etc going to be regularly deployed to enforce the restrictions? 
 
2. Before wholesale controls are put in place, I suggest putting more black and white posts along the edge of the grass nearest the 
road and at the end of each grass section to stop cars swerving round them and parking wholly across the grass verge. 
 
3. To assist with point 2 the grass verges could be made slimmer and have a wider path or simple, maintenance free bulbs could be 
planted in the middle of the grass verge area meaning a few daffodils and/or tulips would emerge each spring and not only look nice 

P
age 128

IT
E

M
 10



but would deter anyone parking. 
 
4. Consideration should be given to making some roads 'One Way Only' to ease congestion and maintain the bus route. 
 
5. Here is another idea but would require someone to oversee implementation. That said if any controls are introduced then that 
requires staff anyway to enforce/deter etc. A lot of residents on Fairlands have long drives/parking space available. This could be 
'offered' to parents with a small charge payable for the convenience e.g. £5 a week (50p for each morning and afternoon session). 
Particularly in cold, horrible conditions the children are much closer to the school than they would otherwise have been and the £5 (or 
some of it) could even be donated to charity. Research could be done on this to find out the views of residents and potential for 'buy-
in' from the parents. The school does not need to get overly involved or be liable. I know from my commuting days that residents near 
Worplesdon Station used to put flyers on cars advertising their drive to park on for a monthly fee that undercut the station car park 
charges. I believe there's a potential solution here. Straight away I could offer one car park space everyday, the lady opposite has at 
least two spaces and an elderly man opposite the school has a permanantly empty drive which could house 3 or 4 cars.  
 
I apologise for the length of this e-mail but controls are not needed at this time. 
 
In summary - NO to parking controls as this is a term time only issue also i.e. 39 weeks of the year and the cynic in me feels this is 
just an attempt to generate income for the local authority at the expense of the real victims - Fairlands residents. 

200 

I fully support the proposals for yellow lines around the junctions and roundabouts, but wanted to add an additional concern in my 
own road, where I believe the yellow lines should be extended. 
 
I live in Fairlands Avenue, on the short stretch from the Estate entrance to the first large roundabout, just on the bend of the 
roundabout.  Whilst I agree that there should be yellow lines on the bend of the roundabout outside my house, I strongly believe 
these lines should be extended all along this first short stretch of road, from the entrance to the roundabout.  It is the only entrance in 
and out of Fairlands, so has a constant flow of traffic all day, and a large number of cars queuing at peak times.  There is a constant 
problem of parked cars on the road, particularly near the roundabout end - this causes a danger in that the cars coming into Fairlands 
have to overtake the parked cars forcing them into the middle of the road at the roundabout, which creates not only a bottle neck, but 
also a potentially dangerous situation if a car is coming round the roundabout to come out of Fairlands.  This parking is forcing all the 
cars coming in right into the oncoming path of cars coming out, a problem which is compounded when the buses are coming in and 
out regularly.  There isn’t room for larger vehicles to safely get past the parked cars and also allow the free flow of traffic at the 
roundabout.  From a personal perspective I also have difficulty coming out of my driveway as my view is obscured to the right to see 
if cars are entering Fairlands, and it is often hard to see round the parked cars as to whether it is safe to come out onto the road.  
Cars often stop temporarily all along this stretch of Fairlands Avenue, and it is just too busy a road for this.  The proposal of putting 
yellow lines only on the bend of the roundabout will not alleviate any of the problems in this particular area, as they will stop just 
before where the cars are already parking.  They need to extend further from the roundabout along towards the entrance, or 
ideally be put along the whole stretch to keep this very busy main thoroughfare free-flowing. 

P
age 129

IT
E

M
 10



205 

I would just like to have noted that the service road I live in (Fairlands Road) is used daily as a park and ride for the bus service into 
Guildford and Aldershot and also used by people visiting Merrist Wood College.   This is manageable at the moment but with new 
parking restrictions this will only move the traffic further down the road when the yellow lines are introduced on the corner of 
Fairlands Road and Fairlands Avenue. We will then experience difficulty leaving our properties from our driveways as sight is 
impeded and also the service road is quite narrow. 
 
I originally moved from 23 St Johns Road Guildford where we had a horrendous problem with parking due to the University of Surrey 
and really don't want to go back to all that entails. 

207 

I am writing to you in response to parking proposals in Louis Fields Fairlands and totally support your parking proposals for the 
surrounding School area but The school run parking and traffic has increased considerably over the last 10 years and now the school 
has increased in size I wouldn't expect the traffic and parking to do so. 
 
I live close to the roundabout and very close to the school any late comers that cannot find a space to park will automatically drive on 
the grass verges or park across driveway entrances to properties especially mine as it is so close to the school Having had several 
confrontations with mums or dads about parking across my driveway is unpleasant and stressful as you can imagine when all we 
want to do or my wife wants to do is to drive in or out of our property. 
 
Having no curbs or post to deter drivers from mounting grass verges or even yellow lines across driveway entrances makes it easy 
for late comers just abandon their cars where they feel fit to do so with no consequences to them only the residents, having  lived 
here for over 10 years I can see that the problem is worse the closer you are to the school and therefore needs further action on your 
behalf.    There are plastic posts on the opposite side of my road to me which the council and fitted years ago and therefore parking 
seems to be more uniformed and sensible but not on my side of the road. 
 
So I'm not asking you to fit curbs to the side of the road just to consider extending the yellow lines passed my property across my 
driveway or even adding some post to the grass verge four post will only be needed to correct this problem 

236 
Worplesdon 
Primary 
School 

In response to the proposed parking controls on Fairlands Estate I would like to offer the following comments on behalf of 
Worplesdon Primary School. 

         The general move to put yellow lines to protect corners and roundabout we think is sensible and will help to ensure that 
traffic can circulate and will help safer crossing for adults and children. 

         The proposal to formalise the existing advisory “School Keep Clear” markings outside the school is hugely welcomed by the 
school. Please note that the existing map onto which the proposals are drawn will soon be incorrect due to a new opening 
onto the school grounds being formed as part of the school expansion works. This will result in the positioning and extent 
of the “School Keep Clear” zone needing to be reviewed and repositioned/extended. 

263 

In my opinion the proposed changes look sensible in themselves but I have just two points to make: 
  
1.     How are the new parking restrictions going to be enforced? Will this be a SCC, Guildford or Worplesdon expense? 
  
2.    Earlier in the year the SCC expert stated that the expansion of the numbers of children attending Worplesdon Primary School at 
Fairlands over the next four years will see an increase of approximately 80 cars coming on to Fairlands twice a day during term time. 
(I believe his estimate might be a little conservative). These cars will have to park  somewhere. If the proposed parking restrictions 

P
age 130

IT
E

M
 10



are designed to help the current situation, surely, matters will only get worse as the extra cars build up and that will put added 
pressure on where to park. The subject of the effect of the school expansion and the additional traffic this will cause was glossed 
over when the school expansion proposal was first tabled. Are we any nearer a solution? My previous correspondence refers to this 
problem. However, with the new classrooms already under construction the options for an all round satisfactory solution appear very 
limited indeed. This problem should be addressed urgently. 

272 

I wish to object to the Fairlands parking proposals as they will accomplish nothing. 
 
To put yellow lines on all the roundabouts will not make any difference as drivers are already aware that they should not park on 
roundabouts so this will not accomplish the stated aims of the council.   As we know the problem is the school (mainly Envis Way, 
Brooke Forest, Louis Fields and Brocks Drive) which is presently undertaking building works will lead to a further 100+ cars coming 
onto Fairlands and parents will do and park anywhere so that their children do not have far to walk into school.   So unless  the 
council intends to enforce the parking restrictions this will be a waste of time and effort.   To slightly ease the pressure i would 
suggest that Envis Way from Louis Fields to Brocks Drive is made one-way this will stop the road being jammed up when anyone 
comes the other way. 
 
Turning now to Fairlands Avenue and the service road leading to the shops the proposals will be damaging to the shops.  The stated 
aim is to increase turnover by limiting waiting times to 20 minutes; i am sure that this is probably already the average waiting time. 
 This will seriously damage the hairdressers  whose appointments are up to 2/3 hours; this does not seem to have been taken into 
account.   Any parking restrictions will just move the problem and as this has not been requested by the residents i hope this 
proposal will be cancelled. 

305 

We strongly object to the proposals for the parking restriction contained in the  consultation “proposals for parking restrictions 
Fairlands estate - proposal KN/16/0003” 
 
Our objections/comments are specifically made in relation to the road surrounding the school namely, Brocks Drive, Brooke Forrest, 
Louis Fields, Envis Way and Wallace Close. 
 
The problems with illegal parking at the junctions and inconsiderate parking in general which these proposals seek to address only 
arise during school term time at drop off and pick up times   i.e. Monday to Friday between 8.00 - 9.30am and 2pm - 3.30pm. 
 
Whilst we acknowledge the serious and potentially dangerous nature of the problems caused by these parking issues, by their very 
nature they occur for a very limited lime each day during term time only.  The proposals put forward for yellow lines go way beyond 
the extent of the existing white corner hatching that currently exists at the corner of Brocks Drive and Louis Fields  (directly outside of 
our property) which are designed to act as a deterrent. 
 
The proposed solution to the careless, inconsiderate and illegal parking during school pick up and drop off times is  disproportionate 
to the problem.  A more sensible, measured and considered solution would be the introduction of drop off and pick up time, term time 
only yellow lines at the junctions.  This is a solution that many local authorities have opted for and one that in practice works well and 
offers a sensible solution to the problem. 
 

P
age 131

IT
E

M
 10



A practical example is Surbiton School for Girls where term time only restrictions are in place in Surbiton Crescent Kingston 
 
The proposals put forward  will greatly and unfairly affect those residents whose properties will have yellow lines in the road outside 
them and appears to be one that have received very little imaginative and considered thought for all those affected both by poor 
parking and by the proposal put forward. 

306 

Further to the proposal to introduce parking restrictions on Fairlands, as a resident in Kiln Meadows my comments are as follows: 
 

 You are considering taking a sledgehammer to crack a nut!  
 There is not a residents parking problem on Fairlands.  
 The only problem is around the shops (slip road and adjacent part of Fairlands Avenue) on occasions and the roads around 

Fairlands School during term time and school hours (due to use by non-residents).  
 This problem could be easily solved by having parking restrictions /limited waiting applied at the busy times in those areas.  
 I am not sure if proposed yellow lines would extend across residents access drives.  If so I would suggest that this is 

rethought as many residents use their access drives to park their cars.  The inability to do this would mean parking at 
appropriate places in the roads causing further congestion which could be a particular problem at night, particularly as 
Fairlands has no street lights and is very dark at night.  It would also be very unsightly and potentially dangerous. 

 
In these days of austerity, to implement the proposals seems very reckless.  This is taxpayers money that is being spent and the 
proposals I feel are wasting our money on things that are not needed. 

324 

Surely the parking issues around Fairlands do not require such drastic measures as double or single yellow lines.  The problem 
peaks when the school starts and finishes.  On Fairlands Avenue parking is short term with people visiting the shops.  It would be 
more practical to restrict parking for larger vehicles delivering to the shops, especially the Convenience store as there is adequate 
space at the rear of the shops.  Also the tenants of the shops should be required to park their vehicles at the rear.  This would free 
lots of parking outside the shops. 
 
If you are allocating money to be spent on Fairlands, then please spend on it on refurbishing all the pavements around the Estate, 
which are in a terrible state and in some places seriously dangerous. 

328 

I am concerned about the scope of the proposals and their enforcement.  
 
I note that the rationale for this review of parking is - to assist with safety, access, traffic movements, increase the availability of 
space and its prioritisation for various user-groups in various localities, and to make local improvements.  [Report of the meeting of 
the Local Committee (Guildford) held on 17/6/15 (Guildford On-Street Parking Review – Proposals For Geographic Areas).] 
 
Catch-all approach 
I am concerned that not all the proposed restrictions are required, so incurring unnecessary expenditure in installing them and 
increasing enforcement requirements and costs.  I refer to the report of the above meeting. 
 
Paragraph 2.33 states: 
 

P
age 132

IT
E

M
 10



Therefore, although a clear majority opposed controls in their own roads, respondents expressed more general concerns 
about parking associated with the school and shops. This is broadly similar to the issues highlighted in unsolicited 
correspondence received prior to the commencement of the review.  

 
So the consultation confirmed the concerns of local residents of where the problems were and forms a solid foundation on which the 
Committee were able to formulate proposals to address these problem areas.  It does not provide a mandate to impose blanket 
coverage across the estate as a whole.  The table Initial Questionnaire – Fairlands – Summary, Item 15, Annexe 8 in the above 
report shows that 75% of respondents did not want parking controls in their own road, while there was a more balanced view in 
respect of adjacent roads.  
 
Paragraph 2.34 goes on to state such an approach: 
 

In terms of a solution, by far the most popular option ([from] 13 of the 15 roads) was the introduction or amendment of limited 
controls, such as yellow line waiting restrictions at junctions, bends and other strategic places. 
 

This is an obscure conclusion from the earlier consultation.  I consider it to be an assumption rather than an analysis and response to 
the data provided by the consultation.  The underlying response from that exercise is that there is not a problem across Fairlands.  
The above report identified very specific areas of concern (the school and shops) from both residents who lived in these areas as 
well as those who did not live in these areas.  So why on earth are controls being imposed where there is not a problem?   
 
Q5 of the consultation was flawed in that it is the epitome of a closed question.  As drafted, it did not take account of the possible 
view that residents did not think that their road should be subject to parking controls at all (Q2).   The message was in fact that 75% 
of respondents did not support installing parking restrictions on their roads.  So in this event, Q5 is saying that, even though you do 
not want controls in your road, if a gun were held to your head, and you had to have controls, what form of control would you prefer?  
The answer has already been given – none but respondents were forced into selecting a control option.  The majority of options 
incurred a cost or severely restricted reasonable expectations and the soft option was therefore yellow lines.   
 
The underlying theme is spelt out in paragraph 2.33 – controls are only needed where there is a measurable problem – i.e. around 
the school and shops.  The solution referred to in 2.34 is not “popular”, as that question (Q5) did not provide respondents with an 
option to confirm that they did not want restrictions 
 
While I agree that some elements of the proposed controls have merit there are others that appear to have no justification.  In this 
respect I confirm that - 
 

1. I fully support the proposals that address the problems occurring at school drop-off and pick-up times.  I have experience of 
the problems when taking children to and from the school as a pedestrian.  From my experience the proposals for the 
junctions at Envis Way/Brocks Drive, Envis Way/Wallace Close, Envis Way/Brocks Drive, Brocks Drive/Louis Fields, Louis 
Fields/Sandpit Heath, Littlefield Way/Sandpit Heath, Littlefield Way/Littlefield Close and Brooke Forest/Dynevor Place and the 
roundabout at Louis Fields/Brooke Forest will help to deter parking that adversely affects residents access, free passage of 
traffic and improves the safety of pedestrians.  It is also pleasing to note that the School Keep Clear markings will become 
enforceable, although I am confused as to why they are not at the moment. 

P
age 133

IT
E

M
 10



 
2. I support proposals to limit the parking duration in the shop slip road, improve the free flow of traffic around the shops and 

improve sight lines when exiting the slip road on to Fairlands Avenue. However, there are knock on effects from the proposals 
that need to be considered.  I am not convinced, from reading the report, that they have been considered. 

 
a. Those working at the various shops and residents of the flats above the shops and in Fairlands Court still have to find 

somewhere to park.  By limiting parking time, where would long stay drivers park their vehicles?  Would this not just be 
increasing the parking demand on nearby roads?  I suggested in my response to the consultation that more use 
should be made of the land behind the shops for parking for these individuals and assume that the Council has little 
influence over this private land.  But has any approach been made to the freeholder or tenants of the shops/flats to 
encourage the use of the land to the rear of the shops for parking?  If parking is restricted in the slip road where will 
these residents park?  Outside the houses in Fairlands Avenue opposite the shops? This would defeat the object of 
the exercise. 

b. The imposition of restricted parking in Fairlands Avenue itself, outside the shops, would greatly improve access for 
traffic coming off the roundabout into Fairlands Avenue but inconvenience will be caused to residents living in the 
house on the North side of the road where there will be free on street parking.  Access to and egress from these 
properties will be severely affected as sight lines will be impeded and invariably parking will not always be as 
courteous as it should be and drives will be blocked.  Would there not be greater merit in imposing the parking 
restrictions on the North side of this road rather than the South side? 

 
3. I see no rationale for the inclusion of the remainder of the provisions. 

 
a. Roundabout – In the 34 years that I have lived on Fairlands, I have never seen anyone park on the roundabout road, 

or on the access roads immediately adjacent to the roundabout.  The roundabout cannot accommodate two cars 
passing.  Parking is not an issue here and does not need controlling.   

b. The proposed controls at the remaining junctions (Brocks Drive/Gumbrells Close, Brocks Drive/Quakers Way, in St. 
Michael’s Avenue, and Fairlands Road/Fairlands Avenue and the corner of Brocks Drive/Fairlands Avenue are 
unnecessary.  There are no parking problems at these locations – people just do not park there – they have more 
sense.   And even if they did the amount of traffic using most of these junctions is insignificant.  

c. These proposals seem to be the result of a desktop exercise to highlight the bad practise of parking on or near 
junctions by creating a visual deterrent in the painting of yellow lines on all junctions on the estate.  There is not one 
junction that has escaped; even junctions in cul-de-sacs have been included.  There is no need to treat all junctions in 
the same way just to demonstrate an even-handed approach.   

d. Each proposal should be supported by evidence of a problem and a need to impose controls.  You have not provided 
any such information in support of these specific proposals.  There is already legislation in force that can deal with 
parking that results in obstructions in these locations.  Do you have any information, which justifies the proposals, as 
to when or how often such enforcement action has been taken? 

 
Enforcement 
The more controls that are imposed, the greater the burden there is on the need to enforce them.  At the moment enforcement has 
been totally ineffective where problems have occurred (eg near the school or shops), even in using powers under existing legislation 

P
age 134

IT
E

M
 10



for causing an obstruction on the highway.  By imposing controls there is an inherent requirement to enforce.  While there would be a 
definite benefit for policing the controls in the school and shop areas, I see little merit where the proposed controls have not been 
justified.  I am not convinced that there would be any constructive benefit policing all the controls.  The process of policing all the 
controls would be an unnecessary burden on the Police Force/Traffic Wardens and not be cost effective.  Would these costs be 
passed on to residents in the Parish Council precept? 
 
Cost 
There is a cost to implementing and enforcing these controls, in terms of their installation and signage as well as the cost of 
enforcement.  Unless the case is made to justify the implementation of all the controls the scheme is fundamentally flawed and the 
Council is not acting in a financially astute manner.  Can you please let me know the cost for implementing the controls on the ground 
and their enforcement? 
 
In conclusion, I am concerned at the apparently arbitrary way in which the scope of the controls has been formulated. 

 The evidence base has not been fully explained to justify the implementation of all the proposed controls. 

 The interpretation of the consultation responses is flawed and the data does not support some of the proposed controls.   

 The responses do not support the introduction of controls in those areas not adjacent to the schools and shops. 
 

 I would be grateful if you would consider the following specific questions (raised above) and inform me of your views: 
 

1. Has any approach been made to the freeholder or tenants of the shops/flats to encourage the use of the land to the rear 
of the shops for parking?   

2. Has the impact of double yellow lines been fully explored in respect of properties in Fairlands Avenue? 
3. Do you have any information, which justifies the proposals, as to when or how often enforcement action has been taken 

for poor parking at the locations listed in the section numbered 3 under the “Catch-all approach” heading? 
4. Can you please let me know the cost for implementing (installing) the controls on the ground and their enforcement? 
5. Would the costs of enforcement be passed on to residents in the Parish Council precept? 

 
I would be grateful if you would refer my concerns to the Committee for consideration before the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) is 
made. 

349 I have studied the map and have no further comments to make concerning the proposed controls. 

P
age 135

IT
E

M
 10



356 

Fairlands is residential as the name implies, was constructed for those who live there.  The local school was an afterthought and 
already causes considerable traffic problems.  To increase its size without the advice or opinion of local residents should not be our 
concern.  It is therefore the responsibility of the school authorities to provide its own parking arrangements and not intrude upon 
others; there is surely adequate space and it not, why not? 
 
To install the suggested restrictions will only move the problem elsewhere, mainly to the grass verges which will be ruined in no time 
at all.  Furthermore, I assume the reduction of safety for all has not escaped your notice. 

360 

My observations only refer to the parking around the shops, since I live adjacent to them and are abundantly aware of the parking 
issue. 
 
Restrictions should rightly be place on the south side of Fairlands Avenue from the roundabout and extending down to, and around 
into, Brooke Forest (preventing parking on the corner).  Justification being that double parked vehicles  in Fairlands Avenue cause a 
hazard as any vehicle leaving the service road is unable to see if the road is clear.  Likewise, traffic travelling in either direction in the 
avenue often has to wait due to the reduced road width. 
 
Your current plan for the service road of time limited parking is unnecessary.; it will only push shop workers vehicles and those 
belonging to the residents above the shops into other areas, particularly outside Fairland Court.  This in turn causes problems for me 
and other residents.  Should you proceed with this timed parking how are you going to police compliance. 
 
Having lived in Fairlands Court for some 25 years I know the area well.  There really is no justification for restrictions at the 
roundabout, St Michael’s Avenue, St Michael’s Road.  The only safety problem is that detailed in my second paragraph. 
 
To proceed with your proposed plan is overkill and an unnecessary expense.  Additionally, such bright yellow line aesthetically 
distract from our pleasant environment. 
 
What will be required is more wooden stakes places around the entire grassed area to prevent vehicles parking thereon and 
damaging same.  This is often witnessed already. 

361 

I would like to reiterate my objection to any form of parking restriction being implemented. 
 
If you insist on bringing in parking restrictions, I would suggest that the yellow lines on Fairlands Avenue are moved to the north side 
of the road.  Having cars parked on the residential side of the road will make it more difficult for residents to safely gain access to the 
highway from their drives as the sight-lines will be affected by cars and vans parked each side of the dropped kerbs. 
 
One of my objections to parking restrictions is still that it would likely impact adversely on the trade of the shops and Post Office.  
Apart from some minor inconvenience from time to time I do not feel from my observations that there is a parking problem in 
Fairlands. 

P
age 136

IT
E

M
 10



367 I agree with all the proposals suggested. 

387 

I am in full agreement with the proposed parking restrictions on Fairlands.  The traffic has got considerably worse in the last twelve 
months especially on the corner of Fairlands Avenue and Brocks Drive with the community centre and doctor’s surgery entrance on 
that corner.  When there is something happening at both places, cars are being parked all around that corner the buses (although 
hourly) can’t get around and we don’t want to lose our bus service. 
 
I notice the double yellow line is to go up to No.50.  I live next door and would really like it extended to come up to my home, because 
if there are lorries and large vehicles parked outside, it is quite dangerous coming out on that corner without being able to see what is 
coming around. 

393 

I wish to repeat some of the comments I made during the initial stage of consultation. 
 
Fairlands does not have, and never has had, a residents’ parking problem.  The only areas of congestion caused by non-Fairlands 
residents are on the access road to the shops and the adjacent part of Fairlands Avenue and, during term times, in the road around 
the Fairlands School.  Parents taking their children to the Fairlands school DO cause problems with speeding, parking on verges and 
blocking the roads to other traffic and buses. 
 
The currently proposed parking controls would see TROS placed around all junctions throughout Fairlands for 24 hours a day, 7 days 
a week.  Since DfT rules state that these TROs should extend 15m (50ft) beyond the junction, this will prevent a large number of 
residents parking on their access drives, as they do at present.  On the other hand, the TROs will do nothing to prevent non-resident 
parking beyond the restrictions, possibly causing consequential obstruction to residents’ driveways. 
 
I realised that the new extension to the school will see a significant increase in the number of cars in Fairlands during the ‘school run’, 
and that some will park in roads remote from the school.  However, I simply do not see that the current proposals will do anything to 
alleviate the present situation: parents will simply park their cars at points in Louis Fields and Envis Way beyond the extent of the 
TROs, making the situation even worse than it is now. 
 
I would have thought a more sensible approach would have been for the Council to proposed TROs along the full length of Louis 
Fields and he relevant part of Envis Way during the school run hours ONLY. 
 
This would only inconvenience residents during the daytime on weekdays, and only those residents who are being currently 
obstructed by inconsiderate visitors.  The proposed “Limited Waiting Mon-Sat” along the access road outside the shops seems to be 
an eminently sensible solution.  If it can be implemented there, why cannot the “No Stopping on School Keep Clear Markings” be 
extended to cover the remaindere of the two roads? 

P
age 137

IT
E

M
 10



402 

This is an excellent idea as I have recently notices that several parents are encroaching on our road (Fairlands Road) which is very 
narrow and only needs one or two cars to cause a hold up if traffic come the other way. 
 
If / when the school extension goes ahead the parking can only get worse.  Even now during the school run the traffic is non-stop 
down this road. 

 

P
age 138

IT
E

M
 10



ANNEXE 8 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Merrow shopping parade area, Guildford 
(introduce limited waiting parking places and additional waiting restrictions) 

(23 representations) 

11 

I am writing with regard to the parking proposals relating to Epsom Road, and Merrow Street, Guildford. 
 
These are a welcome step in the right direction and cannot come soon enough to relieve the parking congestion that have been experienced for 
some time now.  However these proposals are will not provide a complete solution but rather they are likely to shift the problem to the unrestricted 
car park at the top of Merrow Street by the allotments. 
 
It is commonly acknowledged that a major contributing factor is the parking habits of users of the Italia Conti School based in Merrow Parade.  This 
is evident from the freely available parking spaces at times when the school is closed.  If the roadside parking is to be restricted then the problem 
will shift to the unrestricted car park in Merrow Street. 
 
A better solution therefore would be to also apply similar restrictions to that car park.  Restrictions which are acceptable to the allotment holders but 
would still discourage the space blocking by all-day parking.  Those wishing to park longer could then park at the Merrow Park and Ride and use 
the 300 service which drops off and picks up in Merrow. This would also generate a little more revenue for the council. 

31 

As a resident on Merrow Street, I am in agreement with the proposed changes. However, I think that the parking problem extends further down 
Merrow Street, particularly from the top of Merrow Street to the vehicular entrance of the care home (Merrow House). Perhaps the parking 
restrictions can be extended further down the road? 
 
I am also wondering why nothing has been proposed regarding the very bottom of Merrow Street (the Kingfisher Drive end). Even though there is 
plenty of parking on Kingfisher Drive, cars park at the very bottom of the road to use the Kingfisher Parade shops and can sometimes be parked 
there for a whole day or more; this then means that the turning circle at the end of Merrow Street (as the street is very narrow) is rendered 
unusable. This causes problems for deliveries, rubbish collections and also means that cars turn in residents' driveways, which is particularly 
hazardous when children are nearby. In my view, there should be a similar approach to that taken at the top of Down Road, where parking in the 
turning circle is strictly forbidden. 

32 

I work in Gascoigne-Pees Estate Agents, Merrow – as you can see from my details below. We received a letter from yourself, making us aware of 
the proposed parking restrictions for the parade of shops. I was very interested to share my opinion, purely because I agree with it, however – also 
have my reservations. 
 
Our office is open from 8:00am – until 6:30pm Monday to Friday, and 9:00am – 5:00pm on Saturdays. My manager has an off street parking space, 
however, there are two more of us who do not have a space, and therefore depend on being able to park outside the office.  
 
We notice, that if you arrive no later than 8:15am in the morning, the students of Italia Conti Dance School have “planted” their cars for the day, 
outside the shops, which do not move until 6:30pm when they leave for evening. If you arrive later that 8:30am – the free car park in Merrow Street 
is also fully occupied, mainly by dance students or those who are aware they are staying for the entire day, and make the sensible decision to park 
there, knowing they aren’t taking up space closer to the shops. I think Italia Conti need to be much more aware of their students “planting” their 
cars, and strongly encourage them to leave their cars further away from the dance school, allowing those like myself, and the locals residents to be 
able to come and go when needs be. Or they need to make necessary arrangement’s to find their students somewhere else to park. Again, 
something I am sure Guildford Borough Council can enforce. 

P
age 139

IT
E

M
 10



 
I myself, know that if I am in the office all day – I park in the car park, because at least then I know that I won’t be taking up a space for someone 
who needs to be closer to the shops, for a shorter amount of time. However, the times I do park outside the office, I know that at some point – I will 
have to move my car, losing a prime space. Once I return from a viewing, depending on what I have left to do for the day, I either park in the car 
park (which is rare in the middle of the day) or park half way down Merrow Street or even on a few occasions – Partridge Way. If I know I need a 
space closer to the office, I then spend an additional fifteen minutes going round the roundabout, checking again for a space, if not – I turn down 
Bushy Hill Drive, and go round again.  
 
We have also noticed a couple of vehicles, like the dark Blue van, is left, outside the parade of shops – for days on end, without be moved. There is 
also a couple of white vans that appear as well.  
 
In regards to the dancers and odd vehicles that seem to be left – I very much agree with these parking restrictions, I know it will make local 
residents much happier. However, you do need to be aware that there are also people running businesses on that parade of shops, and due to the 
lack of parking – when you think of the dancers, local residents and ourselves – there will be difficulty for everyone to park. I don’t choose to come 
and go from the office, I have to. I do not have time to be parking my car in Partridge Way and walking to the office – my schedule does not allow 
time for me to do so. I know we are extremely lucky to be able to park for free, I know that other offices pays a fortune to park. However, we still 
need easy access to the office.  
 
So, my question is – will you be distributing permits for those who need to be closer, like ourselves, or will we be unfairly affected purely because of 
others being selfish with their parking? Are you going to be able to cope with cars appearing down Bushy Hill Drive because the car park is full and 
people cannot park anywhere else? Will you be addressing those who leave their cars all day? 
 
I think you just need to be aware that some of us do need longer than three hours. Yes I have an appointment at 9:00am, I can’t spend my day 
worrying about trying to find a car parking space. Which will happen if no permits are introduced. I will park my car, my viewing will be in three and 
a half hours, but because of the restrictions, I then have to spend 15 minutes trying to find another space – to then walk back to the office. To then 
leave again, to walk back to my car and then carry on with my working day.  
 
I think it would be a good idea, to send a representative from the council to speak to the local businesses along the parade of shops and ask their 
opinion, face to face. You will quickly notice who need to park there with regular access and who doesn’t. 

48 

I am very pleased that measures are planned to restrict the parking in the designated area and agree in principle with the proposals. 
 
However, I don’t understand why the limit in front of the parade of shops is planned as 3 hours as frankly as even  restaurant customers are 
unlikely to sit there for 3 hours in the middle of the day. I would recommend a reduction in the time limit to allow greater turnover, enabling more 
people to park and carry out relatively short errands in the shops, bank, dentist etc. 
 
I would also propose that parking on the rest of Merrow St  be restricted to one side. Too often cars park  on either side of the road so closely that it 
necessitates weaving between them. The main concern here for residents is  that in the event of an  emergency, no ambulance or fire engine could 
get past. 

72 

I and my husband have reviewed the planned parking arrangements and have the following observations. We feel that the no waiting at any time 
section on Merrow street should be extended down to the start of the pavement on the other side of Merrow Street opposite the entrance to the 
residential home. There is only one pavement on the initial portion of Merrow Street which is narrow and does not allow people to cross each other 
this results in pedestrians having to walk around parked cars on the road if another pedestrian is using the pavement in the opposite direction. 
 Many of the pedestrians are coming from the Sunshine homes so need a little longer to walk up the pavement so being forced into the road is a 
further risk for these individuals who need a little longer to react to threats. In the interests of safety pedestrians should not be forced onto the main 
carriage way by parked cars. Indeed recently there was a high sided parked vehicle parked in this area which obscured motorist views for anything 

P
age 140

IT
E

M
 10



coming down Merrow Street and I narrowly missed a child on a scooter who suddenly emerged from behind this vehicle travelling towards me in 
the middle of the road. You will be fully aware that numerous parents and children from the local school access the school from Merrow Street so 
there are a high number of school children using this street. An uninterrupted view to the junction in the portion of the street with a single pavement 
would be a safety feature. 
 
We also note that the car park on Merrow Street has not been scheduled for a time restriction. This is often full from early in the morning and is a 
factor forcing motorists to park on the street. We would like to suggest that a maximum waiting time of 4 hours in this car park would ensure 
parking slots throughout the day and prevent individuals parking their car there for the entire day preventing local residents from being able to use it 
to access the shops. 

94 

Since the notices have gone up on the street furniture in the proposed area, I have noticed a large increase in the number of cars parking in 
Wykeham Road and many park very close to the junction with Bushy Hill Road.   Within the High Way Code there is a recommendation that 
vehicles are not parked within 10 metres of a junction and this is now regularly ignored.  Would it be possible to extend the yellow lines 10 meters 
into Wykeham Road? 
 
It is also interesting that many of the cars choose to park over the pavements so reducing the walking area for pedestrians.  (Also mentioned in the 
highway code).     Bearing in mind that there are alms houses in Wykeham Road this becomes difficult for the elderly residents or anyone with a 
wheelchair or pram 
 
Assuming that extra street\traffic wardens will have to be employed to monitor the hours that cars are parked, perhaps they should also look at 
these other abuses 

151 
I am basically in favour of the proposals put forward. Could i suggest that double yellow lines be placed into the entry to the Paddock (much as 
proposed for the Fairway). This would prevent "fly" parking by those thwarted by the proposed restrictions on the Epsom road itself. 

210 

I write regarding Epsom Road Merrow. 
 
In general I welcome the introduction of restrictions.  This will allow a better turnover of parking for the shops in the area.  I would, however, 
suggest that three hours is too long.  It should be 2 hours maximum.  Have you also considered having two or three bays right outside the Post 
Office/Boots area for drop-off/collection?  These could have a maximum of 15 or 30 minutes.  This would enable a much better flow of spaces for 
customers and assist the businesses. 

212 

I support the adoption of double yellow lines in and around Merrow Street and Sadlers Close as indicated on the plan, since this area can at times 
become dangerously obstructed, mainly due to overflow from the adjacent Car Park. 
 
With regard to the Epsom Road proposals, I do not think that these would be generally beneficial, since they would result in vehicles (some 
belonging to Epsom Road residents/businesses) parking for extended periods in nearby residential roads. This may affect the regular access 
required by recycling collection vehicles, and occasional other large vehicles requiring access to the premises. 
 
The imposition of the proposed 3hr parking limit would have to be monitored to be effective, thus incurring additional costs. I therefore consider that 
the present situation on the Epsom Road, should be left as it is. 

P
age 141

IT
E

M
 10



215 

Being an occupier of Merrow Heights, 253 Epsom Road, Guildford, GU1 2RE, I do hereby fully support your proposals as set forth in the formal 
advertisement of change to the parking controls within Merrow shopping parade area, with the exception that the waiting time should be set as 1 
(one) hour, with no return within 1 (one) hour.  I feel that this limit would be ample to enable any shoppers or visitors to undertake their intended 
business.  Any higher limit would be unnecessary and would open parking to abuses as is common in other parts of town. 

239 

I am a member of staff at Italia Conti Arts Centre in Merrow (221 Epsom Road). I have heard there are plans for parking restrictions along the main 
street, and I writing to express my concern and my objection against these plans, due to the fact that it would cause such a problem with all 
employees of all the businesses in the area, especially our full time staff, who travel quite far to teach at the established school, meaning travel is 
not easy. To then have parking restrictions would cause major issues.   
 
I believe everyone will agree upon this matter, and for such a small, independent business style high street I think bringing in unnecessary parking 
restrictions will ruin the atmosphere of the Merrow parade and will detract from business and cause upheaval. 

240 

I’m writing to formally object to the controlled parking within the Merrow shopping area.  I am an employee of one of the small business run in 
Merrow and need to drive to my job everyday as I do not live in close proximity to walk.  We have very few parking spaces at our offices so 3 out of 
5 days a week I need to either park on the road outside the Merrow shops or down Merrow Street.  If these roads were to be controlled I fear I 
would struggle to park for my job which would result in either lateness having to find a place to park further away or very costly. 
 
Not only would it effect me it will also effect the small business I work for which provides dance classes to the public who visit us for an hour or 
more a day.  If parking was restricted the amount of customers we could lose could be huge in which case would damage the business 
tremendously. 
 
Lastly, I am also a parent who has a son at the St John’s Nursery School and use the Merrow Allotment car park regularly.  If this was also to be 
controlled in would not only cause myself problems when dropping off or collecting my son but a lot of other parents too who would have to 
dangerously park up Trodds Lane which I could only imagine would be very dangerous and cause unnecessarily amount of traffic. 
 
I appreciate the time you have taken to read my letter and I really hope the council don’t need to make small business around the area suffer 
unnecessarily. 
 

246 

My concerns with the new proposed parking restrictions are it will bring more cars into Sadlers Close where I live . The road is quite narrow if we 
have cars parked all up one side its not easy for delivery lorries and vans to get up here and turn round. Sometimes now its not easy for me to get 
my car out of the garage when we have cars parked all up Sadlers Close going to funerals etc. I also think the white line should be continued to the 
end of the road. 
 
I agree with the proposals for double yellow lines at the top of Merrow Street and the beginning of Sadlers Close its not easy getting out into 
Merrow Street when there are cars parked all the way down from the top. 

340 
It is proposed that there should be a 3 hour limit on parking between 8.30 am and 6pm on Monday to Saturday and no return within 3 hours in front 
of the Merrow Parade of shops. We consider that the limit should be 2 hours in each case to ensure a more regular turnover of spaces. 

P
age 142

IT
E

M
 10



341 
As a resident of Sunset Homes I would like to say that I feel double yellow lines on Merrow St. would be a great disadvantage to the residents of 
Sunset Homes regarding visitors as the car park for visitors is rather small, therefore they have to park on the road, in this case I would like to see 
parking restrictions limited to 2/3 hours in this street. 

342 

I am writing on behalf of my business Italia Conti Arts Centre based on Epsom Road Merrow. We run a full time and part time college from Monday 
to Saturday. I have read the proposed plans and have seen that you are trying to enforce a 3 hour parking limit for which I am writing to object. 
 
As I’m sure you can imagine, it has been an immense struggle for us local businesses to keep afloat during this current economic climate. 
 
Indeed, my retail shop has suffered quite badly, although fortunately for me I am able to subsidise that side of our business by virtue of our 
Performing Arts Studio which has grown steadily. 
 
We are a very lucky unlike some of the other businesses along the Merrow parade that we do we have our own car parking spaces with our 
buildings. On a Saturday however, we have many parents, who bring their children for lessons for longer than 3 hours. Due to their age they cannot 
be left. Where would these parents park, if the changes were made? Our clients very often visit the other businesses along the Epsom Road whilst 
they are in the area. By pushing our clients away, you are taking revenue from the other businesses as well as us.  
 
There is no large car park for them to park in all day? 
 
We also already have the added problems with people using our car park while they just pop into the bank. This would get even worse, as they will 
not want to pay on a ten minute stop over. Concerns raised with the public regarding access and obstructive parking issues is a huge health and 
safety problem with young children going in and out of our building, especially on these dark evenings. I feel it is accident waiting to happen on the 
entrance to Lime Quarry Mews. 
  
In our own modest way, I would also like to think that our presence has contributed much to the local community. In addition to providing local 
employment and education in the Arts, we have remained very conscientious over the years when we have been asked to participate in 
local charity functions.  
  
I am sure you are thinking just about parking revenue, however, to continue to survive as a viable business, it is imperative that we stay competitive 
and improve our facilities when the opportunity arises. (A new dance Academy has opened within the last 3 years making our market even 
tougher.) 
 
Surely councils should be supporting local business’s not trying to close them down? 
 
Maybe if the Park & Ride stopped at  Merrow on the way to Guildford, I agree  this would help us? At the moment it doesn’t. I also have a problem 
with young girls in the winter on dark nights being up there on their own. Who will take that responsibility on should they be attacked as it is often 
deserted? 
  
 This scheme would be detrimental to the running of the shop & studio. Our studio & retail shop bring huge revenue to the area, with many parents 
using M&S, the charity shops, and McColl’s every day.  
 
With our lease being up mid 2017 it is forcing us out of the area to somewhere with easier and safer parking. Maybe that would leave our premises 

P
age 143

IT
E

M
 10



open to a 3
rd

 charity shop on the parade. 
 
In conclusion, I trust that I have been able to explain my predicament in a fair and reasonable manner. I have dedicated most of my life to the 
performing Arts, as a performer, a teacher and now as the principal of a school that I am extremely proud of. Even in the best of times, it can be a 
struggle to keep things afloat, which invariably applies without exception to all businesses. Needless to say I am no exception to this rule, although 
I would like to think that the Arts Centre in Merrow has proved itself as an enterprise of value within the community at large.  
  
Balancing the needs of residents whilst maintaining a clear access on the road  access to our office building it is our primary concern.  
 
We recommended revising the proposed waiting restrictions so we don’t drive the already limited customers away and keep our young safe. 

343 

I am writing to comment on behalf of the Merrow Residents’ Association to this consultation. 
 
As our Ward Councillors are aware we have been concerned about long stay car parking in Epsom Road Merrow- the Merrow Parade - for a very 
long time and therefore welcome the thrust of these proposals. We shall restrict our comments to the proposals for Merrow. 
 
In order to obtain a clear view from our members on these proposals we sent an email to our members to ask them for their views. 
 
The email was sent to 242 members and we received 78 responses from 66 email accounts. 
 
Respondents Recommendation / comment 

4 Were happy with the status quo and did not support any parking 
restrictions on the Merrow Parade 

3  30 minute - 1 hour parking limit in Merrow Parade 

16 1 hour parking limit in Merrow Parade 

2 1-2 hour parking limit in Merrow Parade 

37 2 hour parking limit in Merrow Parade 

1 2 - 3 hour parking limit in Merrow Parade 

10 Supported the 3 hour parking limit proposed by GBC 

1 Supported parking restrictions- no specific period suggested 

4 Offered no view 

 
On the basis therefore of the comments from those MRA members who responded we cannot support the proposal for a 3 hour parking limit in 
Merrow Parade between the hours of 8.30am to 6pm Monday to Saturday and recommend that further consideration should be given to a 2 hour 
parking limit with no return within 2 hours. 
 
A number of our members: 

 Suggested that there should be some restricted parking for disabled people in Merrow Parade and we ask that this suggestion be given 
further consideration. 

 Expressed concern that the imposition of restricted parking in Merrow Parade would lead to all day parking in the free car park beside the 
Merrow allotments. We feel that there is some strength in this argument which needs to be considered further. 

 Expressed concern about the proposals for double yellow lines in Merrow Street. Members took the view that the double yellow lines 
stretched too far down Merrow Street and should only be extended for a metre or so below Sadlers Close. 

 Expressed the view that although double yellow lines were necessary in accordance with the requirements in the Road Traffic Act close to 
the mouth of Merrow Street at the junction with Epsom Road that consideration should be given to the suggestion that other yellow lines 

P
age 144

IT
E

M
 10



should be single and not double to allow parking after 6pm at which time the parking restrictions in Merrow Parade would no longer apply.  
It has to be said that Merrow Street is frequently full of parked cars when there is a service at St John’s Parish Church or when there is a 
large meeting in the St John’s Centre and we would be concerned if parking became even more problematical on Sundays and in the 
evening which would happen if the double yellow lines extended too far down Merrow Street. 

 
In conclusion we can say that 64 of the 78 (82%) members who responded to our own consultation did not support the GBC proposal that there 
should be a 3 hour parking restriction in Merrow Parade and 58 (74%) recommended that there should be a parking restriction of 2 hours or less. 

344 
I would like to offer my support of these long awaited proposals to introduce no waiting at any time to the southern end of Merrow Street, Merrow 
which will eliminate the dangerous parking that currently occurs at this location and will greatly improve safety in the area. 

345 

It will be a good idea that all people with cars and driveways to their homes should be taken off roads, such as Bushy Hill Drive.  Most have got 
garages, so why don’t they use them.  All the estates in Burpham have driveways but residents leave their cars out on the road and this does make 
it very very difficult for bus drivers. 
 
Cars should not be left outside the shops and Merrow Street is getting very congested.  The path is very narrow and it is difficult and dangerous 
when cars are parked all the way down Merrow Street.  A lot of people in Sunset Home are complaining about these cars parked down here. 

346 

I am writing to object to the proposals to restrict parking along Epsom Road.  I am a residents along the street and don’t have parking allocated 
with my flat, so I have to park in the designated spaces along the road. 
 
Obviously if restrictions are in order I won’t be able to park my car for longer than 3 hours at a time.  Where shall I park?  Will residents get 
permits? 
 
I don’t feel parking is a problem along Epsom Road, people come and go all the time and most of the time there is always a space during each 
point of the day. 
 
Why change something that works smoothly? 

347 

I live in one of the flats above the parade of shops and I park my car along Epsom Road, as there is nowhere else to park.  This is in place of 
residents parking and has worked very well, perfectly in fact.  There is never a problem parking, and works seamlessly with intermingling of those 
parking for different reasons.  Those who park at this area are there for one of the following reasons: 
 

1) Residents’ parking (such as myself), 
2) To attend the college there, 
3) To work in one of the businesses there, 
4) Visiting one of the businesses there, 
5) People going into a shop for 5 minutes – so therefore the 3 hour time limit seems pointless and irrelevant to this situation/location. 

 
The area of Merrow, despite its small size, is a thriving community that functions very well.  It is sad to see this is not valued or recognized.  The 
parking areas put into threat for development are not viable for payment because those that stay there all day for business / visiting reasons have 
nowhere else to park.  This would have a knock on effect for the surrounding area that would then get congested and clogged up.  Merrow and the 

P
age 145

IT
E

M
 10



parking system in place does work already.  It affects those that live and work here, and as it runs it runs perfectly. 
 
I know the support for this not going ahead is unanimous for the area, and surely the council are about supporting the area and making the area 
work so we would be in agreement on this? 

348 

I live in the flats above the shops and rely on this parking as there is no other space available.  I would not have anywhere else to park my car, 
would it be possible for residents of these flats to be given permits to park on Epsom Road if the restrictions are put in place? 
 
I feel that if this is put in place it will cause more problems for the local community as people will state to park in the BP garage or round the back of 
the shops in staff parking areas.  It will also affect staff of the local small businesses as they also rely on this parking which therefore could affect 
the financial side of small local businesses such as charity shops and everyday necessities such as a chemist – people will only want to use the 
chemist next to the doctors surgery rather than on Epsom Road. 
 
Please take this into account as I would not be able to afford to park here every day. 

 

P
age 146

IT
E

M
 10



ANNEXE 10 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Shalford area 
(introduce various double yellow lines and additional limited waiting) 

(81 representations) 

5 

I am opposed to the proposals to introduce double yellow lines where there are currently single yellow lines on Shalford road. The 
parking in the street and surrounding area is already appalling. The introduction of the new builds 72-78 reduced available parking on 
the street considerably. 
 
I cannot see how adding further restrictions will assist this, and would only exacerbate the problem.  There will be increased 
arguments about parking, increases in resident proposals to drop kerbs, (thus reducing parking spaces further), and a push of even 
more parking to where there are currently no restrictions (such as by the common or on pound place) which is already full. 
 
While I don't disagree that something needs to be done, I don't believe this is the answer. 

8 

As a resident in Shalford living off Chinthurst Lane I write to fully support the proposed restrictions outlined on the borough website.  
 
1. It is becoming a commuter parking lane and causes significant traffic delays in the week. 
2. The number of cars parked on Chinthurst Lane between the greens means it has become a single track road. 
3. Viability at the top (Kings Rd) is non existent when turning off Kings Rd due the number of cars parked close to the junction. 
4. Children crossing between the greens can not be seen due to the cars blocking visibility.  
5. It restricts business to local shops as there is no where to park for short term parking. 

10 
I am completely in favour of the proposed parking restrictions in Orchard Road, Shalford, the bends are dangerous as there are no 
sight lines around them. 

13 

I have been contacting the council/parking team and even the local community officer regarding a parking issue we are facing since 
moving into the new development on Kings road. Unfortunately i haven't managed to get anywhere with my emails/photos and we are 
still facing the issue. 
 
The problem we have is cars overhanging the entrance to our private parking area. Basically outside the drive way of number 12 (The 
firs) there is a white line which has been put in, this line runs from their drive to a third the way along the wall outside our parking 
area. Cars are parking up to this white line but it means they are overhanging the entrance to our parking area. It is causing such an 
obstruction, we have difficulty pulling into the parking, sometimes having to do a 3/4 point turn in the middle of what is a busy road. It 
also makes it so dangerous trying to turn out of the parking area as its totally blind, and we have to pull out and just hope nothing is 
coming. 
 

P
age 147

IT
E

M
 10



I have attached 3 photos showing some of the parking, they are illegally parking. My request to the council was always to just have 
the white line which is already part way along there extended to come up to the wall to prevent this  parking.  Cars/vans park there 
and do not seem to care they are completely hanging over a private access. 
 
Its seriously dangerous and people are parking there and leaving the car there all day, heading to the station etc. 
 
I leave notes but its too late as we are struggling to get in and out of the private parking area. I have researched it online and it does 
say that parking a vehicle across a dropped kerb is classed as an obstruction and either the police or local council can enforce the 
contravention? It also says the council can provide the address owner with white bar markings (which is what is outside number 12) 
along the dropped kerb to act as an advisory area where not to park. 
 
Is this something that could be looked into? As i note from the information on your website that it says to forward comments etc as it 
maybe years before the parking is looked at again, all i am asking for/and have been asking for since May is to have the white bar 
markings extended up to the end of the wall outside our parking area. The space which has been left isn't enough for a car to fit 
anyway, so it seems logical to have it extended? 

16 
We completely support the proposals for Tillingbourne Road. There have been so many near misses round these corners with people 
parking on the corners. It is way beyond time that something was done. 
Thank you. 

18 

We wish to express our strong support for the proposals, and make an additional suggestion. 
 
The current use of Chinthurst Lane as a free long term commuters' car park reduces the road to single lane for 400 yards, which 
results in some dangerous passing, and makes the village green look like a car park. 
 
The parking on the apex of the bend in Poplar Road totally obscures the view around the bend, and forces traffic onto the wrong side 
of the road for the whole length of the bend. 
 
We think the four hour restriction should be extended to the remainder of Chinthurst Lane and Poplar Road, because otherwise the 
commuter parking displaced from the north end of Chinthurst Lane will simply be displaced into these alternative stretches of road.   
 
These are well considered and welcome changes. 

20 

I am writing to object to the proposed introduction of parking restrictions in Orchard Road, Shalford. Specifically, to question the need 
for double yellow lines on the bend just before the T junction with Tillingbourne Road. I have lived on Orchard Road for 24 years and 
have not during this time been aware of any obstruction caused by parking on this bend. I do not therefore understand the rationale 
for this restriction and object to precious council funds being spent on enforcing this restriction and also the costs of signage and 
upkeep. 

P
age 148

IT
E

M
 10



22 

I am writing to you to lodge my objections to the proposed introduction of parking controls on Tillingbourne road. As a resident of 
several years I can confirm that many vehicles are parked around the Tillingbourne school at peak times. However, I have never 
observed an accident or witnessed a situation that I considered to be hazardous or likely to result in an accident. Generally there is 
sufficient parking in the road for existing residents. 
 
My concern is that by introducing the proposed restrictions vehicles will increasing park further along Tillingbourne Road placing 
pressure on the availability of parking for residents. The impact of this migration is further exacerbated  by the fact that further along 
the road many homes do not have the private drives or off street parking available that those households near the school have. 

28 
I am happy that all the new plans to be enforced seem sensible. I have one additional request however, that the entrance to Boundary 
House gravel driveway (in between Chada thai restaurant and Snooty's cafe) have a 'no parking at any time' restraint clearly marked 
please as we often have people parking across our driveway and struggle to get out on a day to day basis. 

30 

Re: Poplar Road 
I fully support the introduction of yellow lines at the Chinthurst Lane and Horsham Road ends of Poplar Road. While I can understand 
the reason for proposing yellow lines on the bend in Poplar Road, by the entrance to Grantley Close, I fear that it would seriously 
reduce parking in the section of the road most heavily used for parking. Most users of this road observe the need for caution on that 
bend and I'm not aware that accidents occur there, so I feel it's an unnecessary measure which will cause inconvenience to residents 
of that part of Poplar Road. 
 
Re: Chinthurst Lane 
I fully support the proposed extension to the yellow lines at the entrance to Chinthurst Lane. I would support limited sections of yellow 
lines further along the Lane, in order to allow passing places. However, unless additional parking is provided for users of Shalford 
Station, I am very concerned that all the cars which currently block that section of Chinthurst Lane during the week will move further 
into the residential area of the Lane or into Ashcroft and Poplar Road, causing further road problems for residents. These roads are 
quite narrow and any increase in parking will cause problems to residents. 

34 

I support all of the proposed changes within the area although I feel they do not go far enough in some respects. 
 
Kings Road. 
We regularly see cars parking on both sides of the Kings Road slip road as it joins from the A281 just after the railway bridge. This is 
the slip road providing access to the railway station car park and is the road fronting The Snooty Fox Cafe and the Chada Thai 
restaurant and the triangle of common land between both sections of Kings Road. 
 
Cars frequently park on both sides of the slip road and those parked on the grass verge of the triangle of common land do restrict the 
road width ( a problem for lorries ) and for other road users and pedestrians. There have a number of near misses  in the slip road as 
a result and of course they are eroding the common land. 
 
I would strongly support double yellow lines and  parking bollards being installed on the common land side to prevent parking on the 
common land verges 

P
age 149

IT
E

M
 10



 
Dagden Road 
The proposed No Parking restrictions  where the road joins the A 281 would be welcome  to ensure site lines and a clear entry into 
the road for traffic exiting from the A 281 - Thank you 
 
Another problem in Dagden Road has arisen since the construction of Montague Close  with visiting cars, delivery vehicles etc 
parking on the inner and outer bends of the road facing the entry into the Close.  Vehicles coming around the bend from both 
directions  have to be in the middle of the road and can be unsighted. 
 
Double Yellow lines on both sides of the Dagden Road bend at this point would be appreciated by the residents. 
 
Shalford Station car park 
This is probably outside of your remit but could the container storage site be removed from the station and additional parking be 
provided at this location ? 
 
If this area could also be served by a park and ride bus  or park and rail service  this may assist congestion issues in Guildford Town 
Centre, also a side benefit would be added passing business for local Shalford shops. 

39 

I write regarding the proposed on-street parking restriction changes to the Station Road, Shalford area. 
 
Having examined the proposals on your website I can see that the only obvious changes to Station Road itself are the addition of ‘No 
Waiting At Any Time’ restrictions for the areas of danger at blind bends and junctions.  I am in favour of these proposals. 
 
However, the wider plan to restrict parking around the Kings Road/Station Approach area will, I fear, simply lead to a movement of the 
problem into the residential parts of Station Road.  This road is already suffering from overcrowding by vehicles and the narrow nature 
of the road forces cars to park on the footway in significant numbers.  I am unable to offer a solution to this but do believe this 
situation will deteriorate significantly should the nearby proposals go ahead. 
 
Additionally, I note that there is no restriction suggested for the area of Kings Road adjacent to the green and Station Approach.  The 
other side of this road has a proposed parking area with a 2 hour limit but the green side is ignored.  This stretch of road is always 
used by cars that park half on the verge/half on the road for prolonged periods (possibly commuters) and thereby narrowing the 
roadway sufficiently to cause danger by narrowing the road or ‘masking’ pedestrians.  Either, part of this could be appropriately 
adapted and marked for legal parking bays or, restricted fully where not considered appropriate. 

43 

I wish to complain about the illegal parking of cars and vans on the common land in front of my house, especially vans which are 
constantly blocking my view from the front windows. 
 
No action is being is being taken and the situation is progressively worsening. 
 
Please can you mark this as urgent in your list of priorities. 

P
age 150

IT
E

M
 10



44 

I am resident of Florida Road, GU48EZ, at the intersection between Florida Road and Tillingbourne Road. The proposed restrictions 
would result in a double yellow line being place directly outside my house. 
 
Having purchased my home last year with the access to the corner plot being one of the key factors I would strongly like to argue 
against the restriction on this corner. We regularly use this space and as residents with a small family this is something that is 
imperative we maintain for the safe unloading of passengers and children onto the pavement. we currently have a driveway to the 
back of the property but this will be removed in early 2016 as part of larger renovations that have been approved by the planning 
office. 
 
Placing restrictions on this side of the road would make very little difference to traffic flow - we hardly ever experience anything of the 
sort at this junction. However, I can see an argument for placing double yellow markers on the opposite corner as it would allow clear 
sight lines when driving in each direction. 

45 

I agree with your proposals for Chinthurst Lane, Shalford- it has become increasingly dangerous due to so many cars parking along 
the street all day ( for station) and has made it sometimes impossible for me to turn into Chinthurst Lane from our drive without getting 
out of the car first to stop oncoming traffic! 
 
The congestion now caused has become a real danger especially at peak times. 
 
My children will be a lot safer thanks to the double yellow lines and controlled parking you are proposing. 

47 
We were pleased you propose new controls at the junction of Orchard Road and the A 281. 
 
In our view, such controls will markedly improve road safety. 

51 

I am a resident of Poplar Road, Shalford. 
 
In reference to the proposed parking restrictions on Chinthurst Lane, Shalford: 
 
1)  I agree with the double yellow line sections at either end of the proposed 4 hour zone.  These are necessary to break up the row of 
traffic and allow cars to pull in when required. 
  
2)  The double yellow lines at the junction of Poplar Road and Chinthurst Lane may become needed as this is a blind corner.  At 
present no-one parks there, but this may change if the other proposed restrictions are implemented. 
  
3)  The proposed 4 hour zone on Chinthurst Lane is not necessary.  This is a straight piece of road with good visibility, and a 4 hour 
limitation can only be aimed at commuters and other drivers parking in order to use the nearby station.  Its effect will be to displace 
those currently parking on Chinthurst Lane (where there are no adjacent houses) to nearby streets where they will impact more 
severely on local residents. 
  

P
age 151

IT
E

M
 10



4)  The longest stretch of double yellow lines is not needed.  This is still a straight stretch of road with good visibility and preventing 
parking here will only displace the parking to nearby roads which are not so appropriate for parking as visibility is worse. 

59 

With respect to the proposed parking restrictions in Shalford, I fully support the proposals. These restrictions are long overdue to help 
prevent dangerous and inconsiderate parking practices that cause blind spots, dangerous bottlenecks and often force vulnerable 
people such as young children, mothers with pushchairs and senior citizens to walk on the road around cars parked on the pavement. 
I have previously raised the issue with the police on more than one occasion but little seems to have been done. 

68 

I would be grateful if you could give a little time to my thoughts on this matter. 
 
Station Row consists of 5 residential houses, a number of flats, a pub, 2 thriving businesses and most significant a primary school 
and Nursery. There are several points I want to raise: 
 
1    The entrance to Station Row at the northern end is very narrow and is regularly blocked at school pick-up time meaning access is 
significantly impaired and regularly completely blocked. 
 
2.   There are no pavements for children to walk on. Instead we have spaced wooden posts separating a walk way from the road. A 
number of these posts have been damaged and are dangerous. We had holes in the ground for almost a year where 2 had been hit 
by cars and removed. These have been replaced but one damaged post remains a danger to small kids and looks awful (photo will 
follow).  My own daughter suffered a painful graze to her ankle recently when she fell against it. 
 
3.   The pub is popular and adds to the traffic. Very often pub users leave vans and cars on Station Row for days on end.  
 
4.   Commuters using Shalford Station park in Station Row Mon-Fri. 
 
5.   Where the path and road is not separated by the posts it is not uncommon to see vans and cars parking within 18 inches of 
peoples gates meaning getting small children in and out in pushchairs is impossible. People appear quite relaxed about blocking 
residents cars in their driveway while they visit the pub or worse get the train to London. 
 
In summary the demand on parking in Station Row and the lay-out of the road does not add up to a safe environment for small kids 
who live on the road or are attending the school / nursery. There is often tension around the way people park particularly in relation to 
points 1 & 5. This wont be helped by the restrictions you plan for Tillingbourne Rd.  
 
I would like you to reconsider your plans for Station Row and in particular the issue of the safety of the resident children and school 
attendees. I believe a max waiting period of 2 hours plus stronger restrictions on parking at the northern end would go a long way to 
achieving a safer environment along side the removal of the posts and the installation of proper paved pathways. 

P
age 152

IT
E

M
 10



69 

I live in Grantley Close, Shalford (GU4 8DL) and I am writing in respect of the proposals to change on street parking. 
 
These changes are long overdue. The situation around Shalford village, especially Chinthurst Lane has become intolerable. In my 
view parking there and in Poplar Road should be restricted to residents with some allowance for visitors to park for a maximum of 2 
hours.  
 
There is serious risk of an accident and/or conflict in Chinthurst Lane, given the amount of traffic in the morning and evening and the 
selfish nature of those who leave their cars parked all day, despite not living in the village.  
 
Another possible solution would be to enlarge the Shalford station car park. Charges of £1 per day could be imposed to help meet 
some of the cost.  
 
I support the proposed parking restrictions and only hope that once in place, these are enforced. 

77 
I wish to express support regarding the proposed parking changes in Tillingbourne Road, Shalford.  As a resident of the road, current 
parking related to the school can be very dangerous at the corner and junction areas, and I feel that the changes will go a long way to 
help with this. 

79 

The proposals as they impact upon my wife and I are sensible and helpful and we support them. 
 
Even so I am disappointed that the proposals, if implemented, will not be in operation for many months.  I appreciate the consultation 
hoops that one has to jump through, but nevertheless it is a long time scale. 
 
The proposals for parking restrictions in Orchard Road are sensible and I support them. However I wrote earlier in this year to Surrey 
CC suggesting some form of traffic calming in Orchard Road -Surrey Highways Ref ME-62442. The danger even with the sensible 
proposal is that it could encourage traffic to travel faster along this residential road. 
 
I support the proposal for Tillingbourne Road and also that for Chinthurst Lane. Similarly for Station Road, although the problem here 
is compounded by vehicles parking on the pavement, which has caused many of us to have to take pushchairs into the road, rather 
than on the pavement which is obstructed. It is high time our authorities grasped the nettle of vehicle parking on pavements, not only 
in Station Road but also generally on the highways. 

86 

We welcome the proposals but are concerned that they they do not go far enough. 
 
1. The stretch between the double yellow lines covering the entrance to Woodbine Cottages/ The Common and Ashcroft appears to 
allow unlimited parking. This stretch is not wide enough for safe parking when larger vehicles wish to pass. It should be "No parking at 
any time". 
 
2. We are sure that vehicles will now use Ashcroft for all day parking (as happens already to a small extent), to the detriment of the 
residents, and will preclude their visitors/trades people from parking and make entry into and out of their drives more difficult, 

P
age 153

IT
E

M
 10



particularly at the end nearest Chinthurst Lane.  Ashcroft should be either 2 or 4 hour parking plus "residents (and their visitors) only" 
 reference Clifford Manor Road. 

87 

We welcome your proposals for parking in Shalford. 
 
The proposals for Chinthurst Lane are eminently sensible. Extending the double yellow lines at the entrance to Chinthurst Lane will 
improve sight lines and hence safety. Placing a four hour restriction on the first available parking area on the lane will allow parking 
for the excellent businesses in the centre of Shalford while discouraging parking by commuters. 
 
The proposal for Poplar Road with double yellow lines at the intersection at Grantley Close are also very sensible. It may however 
give problems with the safe entry and exit from my property 1, Grantley Close. Parking at the entry to Grantley Close makes it slow 
and difficult to come out of my drive. While this is happening you are exposed to potential collisions from cars swinging in to Grantley 
Close. The speed of these cars is likely to increase once the congestion in Poplar Road has been removed. We would like to see the 
double yellow lines extended into the entry of Grantley Close to prevent this happing. Similar restrictions have been introduced in the 
plan for roads intersecting with Chinthurst Lane. I am not clear what impact Grantley Close being a private road has on your ability to 
act. Nor am I clear on the residents ability to act if parking created by these changes becomes a problem. Are we allowed to clamp? 
Your advice would be appreciated. 

88 

Having studied the proposed changes to parking controls within Shalford, I am in favour of all the proposals. 
 
In addition, I would like you to introduce 'No waiting at any time double yellow lines' on the slip road between the A281 and Kings 
Road Shalford, (just before the roundabout at the A281/Kings Road junction) on the opposite side of the road to the houses and 
shops (ie opposite the proposed 4 hour parking places and disabled place).  This would prevent the present situation where cars are 
parking with one set of wheels on the road and one set on the kerb. When cars are also parked on the opposite side of the slip road it 
is very difficult to drive safely down the slip road, particularly for wider vehicles. 

103 
In general I have no objections to the proposed plans for Shalford.  There are several access points to the football pitch side of the 
common from Chinthurst Lane, which are often blocked by vehicles.  Could I ask that double yellow lines protect all these points - not 
certain they are all covered by the proposed plans. 

109 
Shalford 
Infant 
School 

I support the proposals to change the parking controls on Tillingbourne Road in Shalford. These changes will mean that children 
coming to and from school will be able to do so in a safer way. They will be able to cross Tillingbourne Road safely at the junction. It 
will also mean that all parents parking to drop off and pick up at the school will hopefully park in a more considerate and sensible way 
than some of them currently do so now. 

P
age 154

IT
E

M
 10



114 

I write concerning your letter received and the parking controls within Shalford 
 
Living in Tillingbourne Road it is clear that at least 90% of parking is done by residents who are then going to be penalised by your 
proposed parking restrictions and no doubt associate charges 
 
I moved here to get away from the mad parking problems and restriction found around Guildford which does not exist here. 
 
I notice from some of the maps you are suggesting places restrictions Monday - Saturday 08.30 to 18.00.  Why on Saturdays?  What 
is the aim of this just to ensure resident must pay you to park outside their homes. 
 
In some places I am aware that restrictions are 10-12 on one side of the street and 1-3 on the other side on Monday to Friday. If you 
must do restrictions then residents can move cars between 12-1 to the opposite side. 
 
I agree that restrictions in Guildford are necessary but not in Shalford. 
 
You will be basically forcing me to dig up my front garden and move my car off road which will then not be good for the environment. 
 
I look forward to hearing back as to the reason of your proposal. 
 
Send someone over to this road and see for yourself who actually uses it! 

122 

In response to the proposals and specifically for those planned within Orchard Road, Shalford we make the following observations: 
 
The areas highlighted for proposed double yellow lines are locations identified within the Highway Code as areas where parking 
should not occur. If you consider the appropriate expenditure necessary to reinforce this by installing double yellow lines, then 
consideration should also be given to providing a means of traffic calming within the road. 
 
Most importantly for the residents of Orchard Road, it appears your proposals omit ‘Residents Parking Permit’ arrangements. By 
excluding this from the scheme the resulting consequences will surely result in Orchard Road becoming the ‘local free parking 
compound’. 
 
Finally, please can you provide details of your proposals on how the enforcement of your proposed parking restrictions will be 
implemented and the resources you propose to assign to enforcement? 

131 

While I have no objection to what is being put forward I am concerned that the changes may force people to park in places which are 
not currently used for parking. Currently many of the parking spaces on Chinthurst Lane and Kings Road are used by people who are 
leaving their cars for the whole day because they are travelling by train into Guildford. Consideration needs to be given to ensuring 
sufficient parking is available to those using Shalford station 
 
The track that runs from Chinthurst Lane along the end of the football pitch to several houses is sometimes used for parking when 
there are football matches etc. I am concerned that people will start to park along this track during the week as there is no indication 
that it is not permissible to do so. There used to be a sign at the end of this track saying that parking on the Common is not permitted. 
There is currently a sign on the cricket pitch side of Chinthurst Lane to this effect but not on the football pitch side. 

P
age 155

IT
E

M
 10



 
I would strongly request that there is a sign on both sides making it clear that parking is not permitted on the Common otherwise the 
track will be used for parking and access to my home and the other houses may become blocked. 

133 

As a resident of Shalford and Poplar Road I object to the way the proposed parking changes have been undertaken. 
 
Your letter states that residents were sent a letter earlier in the process to invite their views. This is not true as I did not receive such a 
letter and having spoken to my neighbours they did not receive the letter either.  
 
This being the case the Council has an obligation to consult with residents properly and this has not happened as it should have done 
and therefore these proposals should be withdrawn and the process implemented correctly.  
 
Whilst I support the introduction of the proposed changes to parking arrangements near the entrance to Grantly Close which is a 
bottle neck, this will just move the problem further down Poplar Road. Add this to other proposals for parking across the Common and 
this will make the parking problem at either end of Poplar Road even worse and more dangerous than present. 
 
Therefore I strongly hold the view that the Council should: 
 
1. Start the process again and consult with residents as you should have done and stated that you did to ensure that the letters are 
sent as promised and residents can therefore express a view. 
 
2. Make Poplar Road Residents Parking Only to ensure that you do not simply move the problem to other parts of Poplar Road as will 
be the case if these proposals are implemented as proposed. 
 
Residents should have been consulted as stated and not mislead. When you state we have been offered the chance to give a view 
following an earlier letter this is not true as no such letter was received by either me or my neighbors that I have spoken to and the 
council should therefore undertake the governance and consultation process correctly before making any proposals or decisions. 

134 

May I commend you and all your staff on the magnificent work you have done to recognise the problems with car parking in the 
Guildford Borough and particularly in Shalford. At your convenience can you please let me have your response to a few points of my 
own. 
 
1. The uncontrolled parking in Kings Road has been a road safety issue for some time. May I suggest that parking is restricted to 
residents parking only? A similar system works extremely well in the Borough of Richmond London with respect to Station Road 
Teddington. Here, cars were parked all day for passenger using the station, probably a similar situation in Kings Road Shalford. There 
is now no parking, except for residents between the hours of 7 am to 10 am in Station Road Teddington. Exceptions of course for 
deliveries etc. 
 
2. There is double yellow lines on the approach road to Shalford station, with a couple of breaks designated exclusively for a 

P
age 156

IT
E

M
 10



commercial property. What is the statute that permits the commercial property to reserve spaces on the highway? 
 
3. Please consider curtailing parking on verges (I notice this was a major concern in Fairlands). The verge around the grass area 
opposite the station entrance is now completely broken down, cars are now parking on the opposite side  with near side wheels on 
the pavement. Cars parking on the verge of The Street present a road safety hazard as residents cannot see approaching traffic 
around the parked cars. Apart from the hazard The Street presents a particularly attractive tree lined approach to to Guildford. Some 
residents plant bulbs to enhance the verges appearance during the spring and summer months. (I declare an interest in this as I live 
The Street). 
 
Again, my thanks to you and all your team for the work you do on behalf of the residents. I hope that the restrictions when 
implemented are vigorously enforced. 

142 

Approach road to Ashley House (Care Home)/Ashley Gardens Retirement Flats 
 
Further to my communication last year on the parking changes, you may not be aware that when there are well attended events at the 
Village Hall, the CONSIDERABLE overflow of parking  to displace to the above approach road (un-named) and as there is a ditch on 
one side it can make it very difficult if not impossible for the services (ambulances, fire engines and refuse collection vans) to gain 
access and in an emergency could cause chaos.  This is also an approach road for some Christmas Hill properties. 
 
It is important to take these factors into consideration especially with the intention to reduce the parking of the Kings Road/Station 
Road Junction and we would appreciate hearing your feelings on this matter. 

148 

PARKING CONTROLS _ KINGS ROAD, SHALFORD 
 
I have seen a plan of proposed amendments to the parking control layout in Kings Road, Shalford. 
 
As I read the plan, it is proposed to lift the present "20 minute" restriction outside 'Dapper' [cleaners and laundry], and make that 
stretch of the road unrestricted. 
 
I wish to object to the lifting of this restriction. 
 
You will understand that I [ with others] use 'Dapper' for my household laundry. 
 
I observe that much of the rest of that stretch of Kings Road is occupied by long term parking, and if this restriction is lifted I expect 
that that section will also be occupied long-term. This means that I will have to carry the laundry some distance - possibly a 
considerable distance as long term parking stretches over a wide area of that part of Shalford. At age 82, I will find this most 
troublesome. 

P
age 157

IT
E

M
 10



157 

While the proposal for Chinthurst Lane are both appropriate and needed, my concern is for the impact on Ashcroft. 
 
Today most of the cars parking on Chinthurst Lane in the weeks are commuters using the trains. If they no longer can park on 
Chinthurst Lane, they will now start parking on Ashcroft and when Ashcroft is full, then start filling up other roads further away. 
 
On Ashcroft there lives a substantial number of elderly people that rely on carers, gardeners, cleaners, nurses, relatives etc. that 
frequently visit them by car and need to find parking on the road close to their houses. 
 
I suggest to stop commuters (and others) parking on Ashcroft, a daytime 4 hour restriction on Ashcroft would be needed. 
 
(Mon-Fri 8.30am-6pm, 4 hour limited waiting, no return 4 hour). 

162 

Bryant Mews is a relatively new development (completed in October 2014) with access via Station Road.  The residents of Bryant 
Mews were not invited to participate in the extensive questionnaire survey that took place in January and February 2015 so our views 
have not been taken into consideration.  Hence whilst I fully support the proposed controls that relate to Station Road, I do not think 
they go far enough.  For example, the introduction of parking restrictions on the junctions of Atherton Close and Mitchells Close will 
not stop people parking on the pavements in the rest of Station Road.  There need to be other measures put in place to specifically 
prevent parking which a) makes it impossible for pedestrians to use the pavements, and b) renders Station Road effectively a single 
lane.  Has consideration been given to making Station Road one way to alleviate both of these issues? 
 
I would also like to make the point that parking controls of any description are only effective if they are properly and consistently 
policed.  Can we be assured that this will be the case? 
 
In relation to the dangers associated with access to/from Bryant Mews due to inconsiderate parking on either side of the access way, 
I understand from earlier correspondence with Andrew Harkin that there are generally “no such controls used to protect individual 
points of private access serving one, or only a few properties”.  I do not understand why the four families living in Bryant Mews should 
be granted any less protection than the lives of the residents of either Mitchells Close or Atherton Close, and would welcome this 
particular issue being given further consideration. 

163 
I see that the proposals for Tillingbourne Road are limited to  ‘no waiting’ restrictions in the areas immediately around junctions, where 
parked cars cause visibility issues and a consequent risk hazard, I therefore have no objection to those proposals and would indeed 
welcome them for road safety reasons. 

164 
Could I register my objections to the proposal as seen on the plan.  As residents of Ashcroft we are concerned that the overflow of 
vehicles caused by the restrictions will result in a number of cars parking in Ashcroft both on the road and footpaths. There are a large 
number of elderly & disabled residents who are very concerned about this already. 

P
age 158

IT
E

M
 10



172 

I support the proposals for Station Road because the unrestricted parking there is dangerous, both from a traffic and a pedestrian 
point of view.  Many vehicles park halfway on pavements making it necessary to step into the road and some people cannot move as 
quickly as others to get out of the way of a moving vehicle, including bicycles.  The bad parking also obscures vision on the corners. 
 
Also with regard to Station Road, on the part which leads out onto the main road at the Christmas Hill end, quite a number of people 
park there and go to get a train at the station, or cycle off somewhere to work, which does not seem quite fair, although I appreciate 
that it is a public road currently with no parking restrictions.   
 
Road Safety - Turning left into the Christmas Hill end of Station Road from Kings Road  is a tight turn and there is not much room if 
someone is turning out as well.  Would it be possible to extend the double yellow lines in Station Road a bit further for this reason? 
 And would it be possible to put in some yellow lines to keep people from parking too close to the bus stop in Kings Road?  I ask this 
because if parking restrictions are made near to the post office and along opposite the pond, people will go further along towards the 
bus stop and it is very difficult to turn right out of Station Road with cars parked very close to the bus stop, because they significantly 
restrict sight of the traffic coming along until the last moment.  These are obviously road safety matters rather than parking issues but 
I would like to make you aware of them. 

178 

1.  Kings Road (Service Road) – South West Side 
Add “Introduce No waiting at any time double yellow lines” from the A281 to the existing “No Waiting At Any Time”.  At present cars 
and vans are parked in this area straddling the grass verge on most working days making the road dangerous.  I suggest that this 
restriction could be reinforced by the addition of wooden posts/metal bollards, as used elsewhere in Shalford. 
 
2.  Station Road – South East Side 
Add existing “Introduce No waiting at any time double yellow lines” near the station car park. 
 
3.  Station Road – South East Side 
Add “Introduce Mon-Sat 8.30am-6pm 20 minutes limited waiting no return 30 minutes parking places”.  This parking should be for 
those people using the local shops, as per the existing restrictions outside the dry cleaners and Post Office.  
 
4.  Kings Road (Service Road) – North East Side 
Delete “Introduce Mon-Sat 8.30am-6pm 2 hours limited waiting no return 4 hour parking places”; and Insert “Introduce Mon-Sat 
8.30am-6pm 20 minutes limited waiting no return 30 minutes parking places”.  This parking should be for those people using the local 
shops, as per the existing restrictions outside the dry cleaners and Post Office. 
 
5.  Shalford Station Car Park 
The existing station car park needs to be marked to ensure that the commuters’ vehicles are parked optimally and safely on 
weekdays.  Although outside the scope of this representation, the possibility of expanding the existing station car park to relieve the 
pressure on local roads should also be investigated. 
 
6.  General 
In order to be effective, the proposed measures need to be policed regularly.  At the moment the existing restrictions are ignored on 
an almost daily basis making driving hazardous, particularly (a) at the northern end of Chinthurst Lane where it joins Kings Road; and 
(b) the southern end of Kings Road (Service Road) where it joins the main Kings Road. 

P
age 159

IT
E

M
 10



181 

Having looked carefully at the proposed plans we would like to object to the limited time parking in Chinthurst Lane as we feel this will 
lead to people parking for the station in Tillingbourne Road instead. 
 
We do not want yellow lines in Tillingbourne Road of course. 

183 I think the proposals for Chinthurst Lane will be very helpful, thank you for addressing this problem. 

187 

I was very pleased that changes are proposed to this junction with The Street. This is a very busy junction and is continually restricted 
by parked vehicles. 
 
 My only concern is the extent of the double yellow lines, I feel they should extend to cover the Lemon Bridge. I regularly walk along 
Shalford Lane and routinely have to walk on the road over this bridge as I am unable to use the pavement provided due to parked 
vehicles, at all times day and night. I have been intending to request the Police to take action but this may be avoided with yellow 
lines. If you feel unable to extend the yellow lines over the bridge then I suggest you remove the pavement as currently it serves little 
purpose, other than being a problem for cars to mount as they park over it. 

189 

I agree there must be improvements to parking control in Shalford in particular the congestion caused by parked cars along 
Chinthurst Lane and parking restrictions would seem to be the only way. Putting a four hour limit would deter that those parking to 
commute and free up space for people using the shops. I am however concerned that when faced with no space or restrictions on 
Chinthurst Lane people will park on The Common where there is no enforceable deterrent. 
 
Since Snooty's Cafe opened the area has undoubtedly become a lot busier in terms of parked cars and people have already started 
leaving their cars along the track whilst they walk across to the cafe. Maybe the parking area by the Scout Hut being near the shops 
and cafe could become a short stay car park rather than just for commuters parking for free. 
 
Cars also frequently park on the verge of the slip road that passes the shops (the road that cuts through from the A281 onto Kings 
Road) this is not wide enough often meaning cars are on the pavement/verge and dangerously and erratically parked. If this section 
was double yellow lines with parking bollards it would help to keep sight lines clear and improve traffic flow. 

196 
Do not implement any parking controls / charges on Tillingbourne road, as there are no issues as far as parking is concerned on this 
road. 

P
age 160

IT
E

M
 10



201 

I have just had discussion with my consultant.  They have requested we leave things (outside the former Methodist Chapel) as they 
are.........with our request for a dropped curb. 
 
I must have not articulated correctly.  What I am trying to say is that we do want to retain the application for the vehicle crossover 
-   My consultant requested we leave things as they are.........with our request for a dropped curb.)  In your words, we DO INTEND to 
create a vehicle crossover.  Sorry for my poor articulation. 

204 

Part of your proposal includes the introduction of “No Waiting At Any Time Double Yellow Lines” directly outside my home and along 
the entire length of the plot. You will be aware that Poplar Road is entirely residential and No.35 Poplar Road comprises 5 individual 
conversion flats. To my knowledge these flats are homes to 5 young children, the eldest of which is 10, the youngest just a 
few weeks. It is therefore important for obvious reasons for the parents of these children to be able to park outside their homes as 
they have in the past and do so presently.  All 5 children without exception live in the 3 Flats that have access on the North 
side of the property  i.e. not on the bend. 
 
A resident of Grantley Close (opposite) has informed me that he approves of parking in Poplar Road as it slows the traffic, fearing an 
accident at this junction if the traffic is encouraged to speed up. The junction is well lit at night by the only streetlamp in the area which 
is presumably why it is there. However, this safety feature would certainly be negated by speed. 
 
Yellow lines on the Grantley Close side of Poplar Road seems perfectly acceptable though unnecessary since I have never seen a 
vehicle parked there in the last 18 years. It follows that yellow lines to the South side of No.35 Poplar Road around the bend are also 
acceptable although once again, nobody parks there. Because No.35 Poplar Road comprises 5 dwellings, it has a higher 
concentration of vehicles despite it being only 1 plot. 
 
Due to the traffic congestion at the lower end of Chinthurst Lane, Poplar Road is already increasingly used as a cut through or rat run 
at peak times of day from Chinthurst Lane to the A281 Horsham Road (and vice versa) by speeding motorists. The current parking 
situation in fact acts as a traffic slowing and calming feature. The introduction of double yellow lines will undoubtedly speed up 
already speeding traffic directly outside the homes of young children where the speed limit ought to be 10mph. It follows that the 
major offenders are not the residents of Poplar Road which presumably is one of the “9 roads consulted that do not form part of the 
public highway.” 
 
Poplar Road does not have a parking issue and I note that it is not mentioned once in your expansive document under 
paragraphs 2.46 , 2.47 , 2.48 , 2.49 Page 71. I would request that your proposed plan is slightly modified so that the double 
yellow lines run Southwards of the No.35 driveway but not Northwards along the front of the property. 
 
The reasons for your recommendation seem to be conflicting. To “assist with safety” seems to fly in the face of “to assist with traffic 
movements” – speeding up the traffic in Poplar Road does not assist with safety, especially where young children are living. 
 
I have studied your plan and notice that many of the roads in question are a cul-de-sac or lead to cul-de-sacs which are therefore 
used primarily by the residents (Orchard/Tillingbourne). Poplar Road however, is not a cul-de-sac and has therefore attracted through 
traffic due to congestion in Chinthurst Lane. In my view, this traffic could be significantly reduced and slowed down by the introduction 
of:- 

P
age 161

IT
E

M
 10



1) Strategically placed speed humps (sleeping policemen) with white painted triangles in Poplar Road (similar to Warwicks 
Bench/Pilgrims Way, Guildford) 

2) Narrowing Posts and/or possible zigzags 
3) 10mph speed restriction signs 
4) Warning – “Pedestrians” and “Children Playing” signs 
5) “Access Only” signs. 

 
Consideration could perhaps be given to the possibility of a barrier on Poplar Road at roughly the halfway point south of No.35 
(with access for emergency services) thus making it a “no through road”. Access for some residents could be via Chinthurst 
Lane and other residents via the A281 Horsham Road but pedestrians and cyclists could move freely between the 2 halves 
(Just a thought). 
 

SURROUNDING AREA IN SHALFORD 
I am concerned that there is a tendency to paint yellow lines where it is not necessary simply because the “not more than £50k 
cost can be met by the on street parking surplus.” (Item 15, page 73). Just because there is a surplus does not mean it has to 
be spent. Would spending now ensure a healthy budget allocation for the following year rather than a cut in the budget? 
Furthermore there are hotspots where something ought to be done. For example:- 
 
The area on the bends in Summersbury Drive, outside the flats at Summersbury Hall and the nearby cul-de-sac 
junctions of Highfield, Tannersfield and Northfield. There is most definitely a problem here with many vehicles parked 
on pavements and junction corners. This sometimes renders the area close to impassable. Can you advise me if 
there are any plans to do anything about this and if not, why not? I feel the surplus would be better spent in this 
area? 
 
The success of the newly relocated Snooty Fox Cafe in Shalford has attracted many more customers whom sometimes park 
in Chinthurst Lane. I am unsure if Snooty Fox provide any parking facilities for their customers but they might be more readily 
persuaded to park in the car park outside the nearby Scout Hut and Recycling Banks if this existing and under utilised  heavily 
cratered car park were to be resurfaced. 
 

Lastly, the whole of Shalford (including Poplar Road) would undoubtedly benefit with improved traffic flow in the heart of the village if 
a YELLOW BOX were painted on the road at the junction of Chinthurst Lane, Kings Road and Station Road outside Boots Pharmacy. 
This would almost certainly achieve a better flow and release congestion at the lower part of Chinthurst Lane at peak times. 

209 

We would appreciate GBC also considering restricting parking in the access road from Kings Road leading to Ashley House, Ashley 
Gardens and Christmas Hill. This short length of road becomes very congested with vehicles, especially when functions are held at 
the Village Hall both daytime and evenings. On occasions emergency vehicles have had difficulty accessing both the Retirement 
Apartments and the Nursing Home.  
 
Kings Road in particular is becoming most hazardous with parking and the excessive speed of vehicles travelling in both directions.  
There appears to be little or no regard to the 30 mile an hour speed limit along Kings Road. With no attempt by Surrey Police to 
enforce the limit or GBC to make the limit more prominent with signs etc as they have in numerous other roads in the Guildford area. 

P
age 162

IT
E

M
 10



214 & 218 

My comments are limited to the proposals affecting Chinthurst Lane and Poplar Road. 
 
1) I believe the extension of the "no parking at any time" on the corner of Kings Road and Chinthurst Lane is a sensible proposal as it 
will allow proper "line of sight" for drivers up the length of Chinthurst Lane when seeking to pass parked cars; 
 
2) I believe all of Chinthurst Lane up to Ashcroft should be designated 2 hour parking with no return within 2 hours Mon - Fri (so as to 
give space to those who wish to visit the various retail premises for a limited time) and 4 hour parking with no return within 4 hours on 
Saturday and Sunday to allow some longer parking for those using the football and cricket grounds. This would eliminate the use of 
Chinthurst Lane as an "all day station car park." 
 
3) The "no parking at any time" proposals further up Chinthurst Lane and in Poplar Road seem sensible to me. 
 
However even my proposals will result in a significant number of commuters cars looking for all day alternatives and the surrounding 
roads, including Poplar Road, should therefore be designated 4 hour waiting with no return within 4 hours to prevent this all day 
displacement taking place but not seriously inconveniencing residents - particularly those without access to their own driveway. 

219 

As a resident in Shalford, I have concerns with regards to the new proposals. 
 
Those people, like myself, that live in Station Road, already find it hard to park here, there are no spaces, only spaces mainly 
available are having to park half way on the pavement, in Station Road, which gets you a ticket. 
 
So often we have to park along Kings Road or Chinthurst Lane. If you introduce limited parking/stay time, then where do the residents 
of Shalford park? 
 
I can see your proposals are probably mainly to stop commuters parking in Shalford all day, they park here i assume because its 
impossible or too expensive to park near Guildford railway station, but where are they meant to park now? Even with them parking in 
Shalford we can still get a space in Chinthurst Road or Kings Road. 
 
I think you are introducing new measures for the sake of it.  That there should be no changes made. 
 
If you go ahead with these plans, then please give parking permits to those of us that are residents in Station Road, so when working 
from home or parked up for the weekend, we don’t have to move our cars every 2-4hours to avoid getting a ticket. 

221 

The parking in Chinthurst lane is untenable. 
 
During the morning rush hour commuters park their cars at the Guildford end of the Lane to catch the train at Shalford station. 
Therefore the cars remain in position all day. This in effect makes this part of the lane one way . Unfortunately cars turning into 
Chinthurst Lane from the A248 (Kings road) cannot see if there is another car coming in the opposite direction therefore they have to 
reverse . If there are two cars the second has to reverse out onto the main road . An accident waiting to happen. This is a very 
congested area with four roads and a pedestrian crossing. Also at morning rush hour the traffic backs up to Poplar Road so block's 
Chinthurst lane for southbound traffic. Therefore if you turn in you are stuck or have to reverse out into the main road during rush 
hour. On occasions I cannot turn right out of my drive ( Tall Trees, Chinthurst Lane). The extra traffic is due to both the A281 and 
A248  being blocked with traffic. 

P
age 163

IT
E

M
 10



 
The long term fix is a bigger car park for the station perhaps behind the Scout hut but I understand this is common land so 
problematic. In the short term I would like to see limited time parking (2/3 hrs) with some double yellow to allow passing places. This 
would allow local residents to park and use the shops/café but not the commuters to park all day. I understand this will put pressure 
on other roads in the area but feel that keeping Chinthurst lane free is a safety issue due to the need to reverse onto a main road. 
 
I had to drive my son to Guildford station during the rush hour . On my return Chinthurst Lane was completely blocked by parked cars 
and commuter's coming in the other direction. Therefore I had to use Popular rd to gain access to my house. However the traffic was 
passed the popular road turning so I had to drive to my house on the wrong side of the road . Completely ridiculous , although on a 
bend I felt safe in the knowledge that the road was impassable in a southerly direction. It really needs to be fixed urgently. 

222 I agree with the proposals for Station Rd Shalford which are in line with what I said I was hoping for in reply to your initial consultation. 

223 

We agree with the plans for No Waiting at any time double yellow lines on both sides of the road at the entrance to Dagden Road 
from The Street. 
 
We also observe the proposal to place similar double yellow lines at dangerous corners other than junctions, in other roads in 
Shalford, which we consider essential. 
 
However we would like to bring to your attention, the problems caused by the arrival of a new estate of 5 houses called Montagu 
Place in Dagden Road. 
 
One of the objections to the plans submitted by Berkeley Homes for Montagu Place, was the danger of vehicles entering/leaving the 
estate colliding with cars travelling up/down Dagden Road. 
 
The other objection was that as the roadway in Montagu Place is very narrow, cars for visitors to the houses in Montagu Place would 
be forced to park in Dagden Road itself. 
 
This has become a reality and whilst the drivers concerned could park safely in other parts of Dagden Road, unfortunately they 
choose to park on either side of Dagden Road where it bends round at the entrance to Mongtagu Place. 
 
There have already been a number of near misses as cars rounding this bend have to move into the centre of Dagden Road  to get 
round the parked cars, and it is only time before there is a serious accident at this location. 
 
The simple solution is to introduce No waiting at any time yellow lines on both sides of the bend in the road at Montagu 
Place. 
 

P
age 164

IT
E

M
 10



This would entail a very small amount of extra costs but could literally save lives. 

224 

I fully understand that the parking issues in the village of Shalford and Guildford have to be addressed, however as a resident of 
Orchard Road, Shalford I would like to raise couple of points. 
 
If the proposed changes go ahead restricting all day parking in other parts of the village, this will mean that Tillingbourne, Orchard, 
Dagden Roads and East Shalford Lane will be the only roads without timed parking between Shalford Station and the centre of 
Guildford.  There is already an issue in the village with commuters and it would appear that this problem is not being solved only 
moved. 
 
We already have issues with the sharp bend in Orchard Road and getting safely in and out of our drives, this is always exacerbated 
when we have cars and vans parked on the street, which can be particularly dangerous if the vehicles are parked on both sides of the 
street and some drivers using excessive speed heading to blind corner!! 
 
I trust that you will consider these issues when coming to a final decision. 
 
However, if the proposed changes are made, how will it be monitored and enforced.  What happens if the changes made cause 
problems, do the residence have any recourse? 

229 

As a resident of 35 Poplar Road, I strongly oppose the current plan to introduce double yellow lines on the corner where Poplar Road 
meets Grantley Close. I first moved to 35 Poplar Road around early 2007, and since then parking has never caused issue in this area. 
In fact, allowing cars to park in this area results in Poplar Road being a safer road for the local residents, pets and wildlife – I fear 
parking restrictions would equate to a clear road and faster traffic around the corner, where adults and children from Grantley Close 
cross the road onto the pavement on the west edge of Poplar Road, for the daily commute to work and school.  
 
35 Poplar Road is a property made up of 5 conversion flats, all 2/3 bedrooms and most have young children resident. The proposal 
would place parking restrictions outside the entire length and beyond 35 Poplar Road, leaving few options for parking and would 
result in parking options moving further away from the property and on to the rest of Poplar Road (already used in some areas by 
other residents/visitors often park cars too). The proposal seems overly restrictive and of little benefit, with the addition of the 
increased risk noted above with cars travelling at greater speeds. If the primary goal is around safety then perhaps a few speed 
bumps along Poplar Road would be a better solution – the road is used by many non-residents as a cut through between Chinthurst 
Lane and the A281. 

P
age 165

IT
E

M
 10



257 

Your proposal of placing yellow lines in Ashcroft is wholly unfounded, as we don't have a parking problem here. It would be a total 
waste of tax payers money, and an unacceptable inconvenience for the residents. Most of us living here are elderly and some like my 
wife and I are disabled and rely on the support of others popping over to help us live in dignity in our waning years. 
 
      We have carers contracted to come 3 times a day, plus our families popping over to help with shopping, taking us out to 
appointments and just visiting to ensure we are alright etc. At family times like Christmas and Birthdays when families from near and 
far turn up, not being able to park outside our homes would be intolerable. Please leave well alone and let us live in peace to enjoy 
our retirement, with the knowledge that the support of our families and friends can come and go as they please and carry on 
supporting us. Without the added extreme hindrance parking restrictions would cause. 
 
       While the Council seems flush with money to waste, why not put it to good use for the residents, by piping the ditch that runs 
along side the football pitch of Chinthurst Lane, fill it in and make a layby with say 20 parking spaces, add a ticket machine and 
charge for daily parking or short term parking for residents using the shops and chemist etc. that way, it takes the cars off the road 
and enables you to get an income at the same time. 
 
My wife and I object to the proposed parking restrictions in Ashcroft 

265 

In reply to your consultation I am writing strongly in favour of the proposed parking controls most notably the double yellow lines 
running opposite houses 31 to 39. I support the proposal based on the following:  
 
Safety  
Cars are always parked on the 90 degree bend in question which is extremely dangerous and is an accident in the making. An 
accident could quite easily involve vehicle on vehicle, vehicle on cyclist or vehicle on pedestrian. There is a high risk of collision on 
this bend due to vehicles travelling in opposing directions whilst sharing the same lane of road; a situation created by vehicles parked 
on the inside of the bend and compounded by the bend being a blind bend and the speed vehicles travel round it. When vehicles 
meet on the bend it requires one of the vehicles to reverse back potentially into oncoming traffic further compounding the risk of an 
accident. 
 
Vehicles are constantly parked hard upon either side of the driveway to 39 Poplar Road making reversing out extremely difficult and 
risky. It is impossible to see whether a car is approaching in either direction. We have had a number of close shaves requiring both 
vehicles to brake hard. It is essential that the double yellow lines extend beyond 39 Poplar Road to reduce the risk of collision in 
either direction. 
 
With a number of children living in the area it is essential that both lanes of the road are opened up to traffic to provide full visibility 
around the bend and junction of Grantley Close for pedestrians and road users before a serious accident happens.  
 
Access  
Access in and out of 39 Poplar Road is impeded by the number of vehicles parked on either side of the driveway, very often 
extremely close to its boundaries. With limited space and the proximity of these parked cars access to the road is difficult and 
dangerous. 
 
Availability of space  

P
age 166

IT
E

M
 10



The vehicles that are parked on the bend of Poplar Road and on either side of 39 Poplar Road are owned by the residents of 35 
Poplar Road. They park there for convenience despite having a large car parking area and garaging behind the building/flats. Cars 
are often parked in the proposed double yellow line area for days or weeks on end in the same place. Residents of 35 Poplar Road 
have plenty of available space in the building’s car park to park their cars off the public highway so the addition of double yellow lines 
will not cause them any material inconvenience or put pressure on available parking space. 
 
Recommendation  
I would advocate the extension of the double yellow lines directly in front of 41 Poplar Road and 1 and 31 Grantley Close to ensure 
full visibility and road safety for vehicles travelling in either direction of Poplar Road and Grantley Close.  
In summary, I strongly support the on street parking review and planned proposals to improve Poplar Road. Without them the 
congestion and road safety problems clearly recognised by the Council will persist. 

266 

I am writing in support of the parking proposals for Chinthurst Lane in Shalford. The proposals finally address what, for too long, has 
been a serious issue for Shalford with a ‘common sense’ solution which supports the village. Currently, from 7am in the morning 
commuters park along the length of Chinthurst Lane. This causes gridlock for the village inconveniencing residents, raises safety 
issues and fails to support the local businesses as there is limited parking available for passing trade. 
 
Generally, commuters use Chinthurst Lane to take advantage of free parking and avoid paying parking charges at other stations. 
Such commuters bring little to the economy of the village and leave as soon as their train arrives in the village.  
 
The long run of parked cars along Chinthurst Lane causes gridlock for Shalford during the day. The parked cars make it extremely 
difficult for cars approaching Kings Road from Chinthurst Lane and also cars turning into Chinthurst Lane from Kings Road. Due to 
the ability to park on the corner of Chinthurst Lane adjacent to Kings Road it becomes difficult to see any cars approaching down 
Chinthurst Lane. Inevitably this leads to traffic jams in all directions and a great deal of time is lost for local residents (not commuters) 
who are simply attempting to go about their daily routines. This has even resulting in vehicles mounting the curb and travelling along 
the Common to avoid queues when the traffic is exceptionally bad.  By preventing cars from parking on the corner, reducing the 
duration that cars can park and introducing an ‘island’ between the parking bays it should alleviate these issues. 
 
There are considerable safety concerns at present. The permanently parked cars force larger vehicles to traverse the length of 
Chinthurst Lane close to the pedestrian pavement, with the wing mirrors of such vehicles often over-hanging the curb. This runs the 
risk of hitting pedestrians, especially given the speed of some of the vehicles (see following point). In addition, the considerable length 
of the run of parked cars (with no room to pull in and allow overtaking) and the length of time that people are required to sit in traffic 
jams results in vehicles accelerating aggressively to ensure that they pass the parked vehicles before a vehicle comes in the opposite 
direction. As a father with a young child I have grave concerns that an accidental slip or trip over into road by a child could be fatal 
given the speed of acceleration that drivers feel the need to implement to pass the long line of parked cars. Limiting the duration of 
parking and introducing ‘islands’ should greatly reduce the safety concerns. 
 
By limiting the length of time that cars can park on Chinthurst Lane this will specifically target commuters. Freeing up a number of 
parking spaces near the businesses on Kings Road with four hour parking spaces will support local businesses and increase the 
possibility of customers ‘dropping in’. Having limited time parking should also not inconvenience the recreational users of the 
Common, such as footballers, as four hours should be ample time. The economic benefits of this proposal in supporting the village 
are clear. 

P
age 167

IT
E

M
 10



 
As a resident of Shalford who lives on the Common adjacent to the football pitch, access to my property is from Chinthurst Lane. At 
present, it is not uncommon for vehicles to park upto and encroaching over this turning. Due to the physics of this, it makes it 
extremely challenging to turn right off the Common onto Chinthurst Lane without risking mounting the curb opposite, all the time with 
a restricted view due to the parked cars. During  extremely busy periods there have also been instances when refuse trucks have 
been unable to turn off Chinthurst Lane past the football pitch due to the parked cars making such a manoeuvre impossible. This 
again results in commuters causing significant inconvenience to the residents of the village. There are also considerable safety 
concerns at present as parked cars potentially run the risk of preventing emergency vehicles from turning off Chinthurst Lane to the 
properties around the football pitch. The proposals for prohibiting parking in this area are a ‘godsend’ for residents and are supported. 
 
The one request that I have is that signage is placed on the Common, adjacent to the football pitch to prevent the parked cars 
migrating from Chinthurst Lane onto the Common. Examples of this have been witnessed on occasion. Appropriate signage near the 
football pitch, replicating that on the Common adjacent to the cricket pitch should help solve this issue. Additionally, it is requested 
that sufficient enforcement patrols are provided to help settle this new approach otherwise there is a risk that the current practices will 
continue. 
 
In summary, the parking proposals are a pragmatic and sensible solution to a long term (and perpetually increasing problem) and 
have my wholehearted support as a local resident. 

270 

I object to the proposed parking control changes for Shalford. 
 
Those proposed for the purely residential roads such as Orchard Road are unnecessary. The Highway Code requires drivers to park 
safely and not obstruct traffic. Adding road marking will inconvenience residents and add to Council costs for no demonstrated 
benefit.  If Council has spare funds please repair roads and footpaths. 
 
Rather than more restrictions for The Street and Chinthurst Lane which will shift parking to other parts of Shalford I’d prefer the 
Council encourage scheme/s to provide adequate off road parking for commuters and shoppers. 

286 

To achieve any improvement, the proposed double yellow lines should be extended from the A281 Horsham Road further into Poplar 
Road by 10 to 15 metres so that a longer view is obtained of any oncoming traffic for those vehicles taking the junction from Horsham 
Road.  Usually, there are some residents cars parked close to the junction which interfere with visibility along Poplar Road.  Also, 
these parked cars, which will not be concerned by the extent of the present proposal, do not permit easy turning off the A281, 
particularly, when there are two or more vehicles waiting to leave Poplar Road on the opposite side of the road to these usually long 
term parked cars. 
 
Elsewhere, the parking restriction proposal on the bend half way along Poplar Road would be most helpful for traffic and GBC road 
cleaning activities. 

P
age 168

IT
E

M
 10



287 

I am writing in response and to oppose your proposed parking changes, along Poplar Road in Shalford. I do not believe that presently 
there is an issue with the parking along Poplar Road and the suggestion to add double yellow lines along it, is not only a waste of my 
money as a taxpayer, but will actually jeopardise my safety and the safety of other local residents. 
 
I live at 35 Poplar Road and as you are aware the proposed double yellow lines run the entire length of plot 35, thus they will have a 
significant negative impact upon us as residents. I am the mother to 2 small children, aged 3yrs and 4 months old and regularly need 
to be able to easily get my children in and out of my car and between the car and flat in a controlled manner, which means within 
close proximity to my home. Moreover, number 35 is also home to other small children aged 3, 5 and 10. If the suggested double 
yellow lines are to be placed along the length of the property as proposed, then I shall be forced to park further away from my home 
and even across the road with two very small children. Presumably the aim of these suggested changes is to increase safety within 
the area. However, for myself, my children and the other residents of number 35, they will have completely the opposite effect, 
instead making accessing our home from where we park much more dangerous. 
 
This is especially the case because of the significant lack of street lighting along Poplar Road, meaning that on many occasions, and 
particularly during winter nights, we may have to cross the road in the dark, as we are no longer able to park outside our home. As 
number 35 comprises 5 flats we will be disproportionately disadvantaged by the changes in comparison to our neighbours, many of 
whom own large detached properties with private driveways. This hardly seems fair to restrict our parking without providing a valid 
alternative. What will be done about this? 
 
When we purchased the property in 2013, a substantial deciding factor was the ability to park directly outside the entrance to our flat 
because of the convenience of being able to transport the children and the heavy equipment that goes along with them, such as 
pushchairs, with ease. 
 
However, these changes are set, only to take away this convenience at a time when I need it the most. Furthermore, I also fear that 
the parking restrictions will devalue our property, as likeminded families with children of a similar age will be put off by the 
inconvenient parking restrictions. 
 
Having a few cars parked on the road actually forces vehicles using Poplar Road to slow down, without causing any obstruction, thus 
acting as a traffic calming measure. This road is frequently used as a cut through between Horsham Road and Chinthurst Lane. 
Without the parked cars, the volume, and especially speed of traffic along Poplar Road will be increased, yet there seems to be little 
consideration of this by Guildford County Council. Since moving here in 2013 we have witnessed two near miss incidents on the bend 
outside our property. On both occasions, around this time last year, the driver lost control of their car and spun to a stop, having 
driven far too fast precisely because it was the middle of the day and there were no cars parked there, confidently accelerating into 
the clear corner while failing to realise the amount of leaves covering the road. The incidents were within two weeks of each other, 
and the second time it happened the car actually spun out and mounted the curb in front of me and my son. It is obvious that the cars 
parked there act as a very effective traffic calming measure, and if you are to implement your proposed changes, I want to know what 
concrete measures you intend to take to deal with the inevitable increase in speeding vehicles along this bend and compensate for 
the detriment to the safety of me and my children and the other residents of number 35 and their children. I not only feel that the 
parking changes will increase the level of danger along the road, but I also feel that they are unnecessary and a waste of my money 
as a tax payer’. 
 

P
age 169

IT
E

M
 10



According to http://www.crashmap.co.uk/Search (which provides public data of road traffic incidents reported to the police) in the last 
10 years there has only been one slight incident around the bend in front of plot 35, just beyond the junction with Grantley Close. 
Therefore, surely the extensive double yellow lines seem to be disproportionate to the current level of danger. I wish to see the 
council’s justification of spending, given these figures for this section of the road. Surely they could be better spent on appropriately 
slowing traffic, or improving the street lighting in the area? 
 
That said, I can see where the road narrows around the bend, there is need for traffic calming of some sort and so if the double yellow 
lines are to be painted, they should be limited only to this part of the bend. There is no need for them to be placed along the entire 
length of plot 35, or in front of plot 39. I can only assume the justification for placing them opposite the junction with Grantley Close is 
that it is opposite a junction. But why then are they not also being proposed opposite the junction with Little Orchard Close or 
Holbrook Close as well? It is here that there is actually need for double yellow lines as the road is significantly narrower here. 
 
In conclusion, I am strongly opposed to the proposed double yellow lines along the length of plot 35 and 39, which I feel are 
unnecessary and overly extensive. If they are to be painted, then they should be limited to the bend only, where the road narrows, 
without restricting parking completely for residents of number 35, so that the cars parked there can continue to calm the traffic outside 
our home. I also wish to understand exactly what the council proposes to do to improve the safety for myself and my children, and 
since there appears to be budget available for road improvements, suggest that you spend it on improving the extremely poor street 
lighting down our road. The council has a duty to all residents of Guildford (including those who do not have large private driveways) 
and ensure that our needs in the area are represented fairly, particularly for those of us with small children. 

288 

Broadly I am in favour of stricter controls and the plans that have been suggested. As a business owner in Shalford I am particularly 
keen to make sure that the vitally important 20 minute limited zones remain and I am pleased that the proposals intimate that they 
will. It is also important that new zones are created that will prevent commuters from leaving their cars near the station all day on 
already congested roads. However, my only concern is that these same commuters will still seek to find other spaces within the 
village in which to leave their cars and thus this particular problem will not be entirely solved. 

290 

I live in Station Road Shalford and have some comments about the proposed changes to parking in my area. 
 
- I have heard that the station car park is going to be closed for 3 months next year, so I hope any new restrictions you implement will 
be after this has happened. 
 - I see that only 36.8% of people in my road responded to the consultation.  I see that the majority of those who responded felt there 
was a problem in Station Road, but the majority didn't respond - probably they weren't motivated to do so as didn't see a problem. 
 - Of the responses, the preferred option for restrictions was for residents parking which you are not doing. So, are you listening to the 
consultation or not? 
 - The changes you are planning in other parts of Shalford will push more non residents into parking in our road which will create more 
problems for us residents. So, if the other changes go ahead, I would prefer to see residents parking introduced in Station Road. 

P
age 170

IT
E

M
 10



295 

As a concerned resident, I don't think that the proposed parking restriction outside and adjacent to No. 53 Station Road makes much 
sense. It is presently a daytime restriction which serves well during the day when there are fewer residents around, however in the 
evening more parking is needed by the residents, and this space makes all the difference. In the past few years available parking has 
been significantly reduced due to the building of new houses on the street, and I can only see this problem getting worse as No. 53 
Thursley House will inevitably become residential housing in the not too distant future. 
 
Residents on the street park conscientiously and courteously. Putting in more double yellow lines will just push the parking out of 
Station Road and onto Christmas Hill, a much faster and more dangerous road. Station Road is on the whole a quiet road, very little 
through traffic, and vehicle speeds are low. I feel that there will be very little to gain from this as far as safety is concerned. 

299 

I was delighted to hear that there are going to be some changes to the parking arrangements in Chinthurst Lane, Shalford adjoining 
the village green but having looked at the plan I can see that what is proposed is going to make very little difference to the terrible 
congestion we have there at the moment.  I would like to ask if anyone is going to monitor the four hour parking bays as shown in the 
plan because at the moment, people park all day on the double yellow lines at the junction of Chinthurst Lane and the main road and 
no penalties are given.  People use this road as an extension to the station car park and go to London for the day and as a result 
there is traffic chaos until the late evening when these cars are removed.  Living where I do in Highfield, my neighbours and I no 
longer use Chinthurst Lane as an access into Guildford because in the mornings it can fifteen minutes just to travel the half mile to the 
main road.  If there is a permanent traffic warden in the area then it would help but at the moment there is no traffic warden.  Will one 
be put in place if the new plans are accepted?  If not, the whole of the lane needs double yellow lines up to the end of the village 
green.  There is so much space behind the Scout Hut and recycling centre on the A281 which could be used as a car park but at the 
open moment is just open ground.  I fear unless this new proposal is amended, we will have more years of traffic chaos. 

301 

We support the introduction of "No waiting at any time double yellow lines" at the end of East Shalford Lane. 
 
We have noticed difficulty with vehicles turning in and out of the lane, which has been increased by recent modification of the 
pavement to accommodate the bus stop.  
 
Furthermore we would like to see the yellow lines extended further up the lane on the north side of the road because parking on both 
sides of this narrow road causes blockage of the lane, particularly weekday mornings and evenings. 

302 

I wish to comment on the proposed parking restrictions along Orchard Road Shalford (ref KM/16/0003) as below: 
 

 I agree with the proposal for yellow lines at the junction of the A281 and Orchard Road.  Traffic is often travelling relatively fast 
along the A281 and a car parked close to the junction is a hazard. 

 I do not agree with the proposed yellow lines at the junction of Orchard Road and Tillingbourne Road.  These are unnecessary 
in a quiet residential road in a village.  At present the possibility of cars parked relatively close to the corner serves to reduce 
car speeds along the road.   Anything that results in greater car speeds will increase the likelihood of a pedestrian casualty. 

 
Similarly I strongly disagree with the proposed yellow lines at the bends in Orchard Road.  Yellow lines will detract from the more 
villagey feel of the area and give the appearance of a townscape.  There are relatively few cars parked in Orchard Road which makes 
giving way to cars travelling in the opposite direction easy.  Any parked cars near the bends serve to naturally limit car speeds along 
Orchard Road.  The bend towards the Tillingbourne Road end is not that sharp and there is absolutely no case for having road 
markings here.  The presence of yellow lines on these bends is more likely to result in serious pedestrian accidents through increased 

P
age 171

IT
E

M
 10



car speed.  Yellow lines are completely unnecessary and a waste of Council Tax money. 

311 

As a past resident of Shalford Village, I do share the opinion that changes can be made to better optimise the traffic flow in the village. 
 
In particular, the proposed passing space proposed for Chinthurst Lane is a very good idea to help traffic heading south on that road. 
 
That said, I must question if the demographic of those parking in the village has been considered in these plans. 
 
A large majority of those parking during the week are commuters heading to Shalford Rail Station; I myself am included in this 
demographic, now travelling from Bramley. 
 
From the plans, it seems there is a disproportionate priority toward short-stay spaces relevant to those using the shops on the main 
King's Road and other village facilities. 
 
The proposed 4-hour limited-waiting bays do not appear to correctly satisfy either the commuter or the shopper demographic 
because: 

 Commuters to London will typically be away from their cars for 12 hours. 
 Shoppers are likely to be visiting the village shops for no more than 1-2 hours only. 
 Enforcing this also on Saturday is wholly unnecessary as the largest proportion of those parking (the commuters) will not be 

there. 
 
Should there be appropriate alternative parking available to absorb those who will be displaced by this change, this will have been 
less of an issue. 
Unfortunately, the formally available parking in the Shalford is finite and already overstretched during the weekdays. 
 
Parking in the Shalford Station car park is usually impossible after 07:15 AM during the week as it at capacity. 
Also, the "(unofficial) overflow" car park by the Scout Hut can also hit capacity during the morning rush hour which can impede access 
to those using (and servicing) the refuse facilities at the same location and also the Scouts as well. 
 
This is further impacted when the car park at Shalford Station floods, displacing yet more drivers and forcing them to park in other 
areas of the village. 
 
There are further examples in Shalford village where the demographic has not been considered in relation to road users. 
 
Shalford Station introduced two disabled parking bays a short time ago at the expense of approximately 4 standard parking spaces. 
 

P
age 172

IT
E

M
 10

http://www.guildford.gov.uk/media/20168/ShalfordProposals-InitialDraft1of4-AshcroftAthertonClChinthurstLnKingsRdMitchellsClStationRd/pdf/ShalfordProposals-InitialDraft1of4-AshcroftAthertonClChinthurstLnKingsRdMitchellsClStationRd.pdf


I am sorry to report that their primary usage appears exclusively to be pick-up / drop-off bays only, not actually for blue-badge 
holders. 
 
The idea of locating these disabled bays at the station is also misguided because: 

 The main cross-over between the platforms involves stairs - no good for wheelchair users and challenging for limited mobility 
individuals. 

 The alternative involves going up a hill, off pavement, over the road bridge, around the veterinary practice building and 
eventually back down a ramp onto the opposite platform. 

 There are no apparent ramp facilities either at the station or on board the trains through the village allowing wheelchair users 
to board. 

 
Please, I ask you to review these plans to ensure that they are proportionate and considerate to those who travel through the village, 
and to prevent alienating the current users of these spaces.  
 
If the plans proceed as currently proposed, I fear that these spaces will be underutilised like those I detailed at Shalford Rail Station 
invalidating the purpose of these plans. 

313 

I am writing in support of the parking proposals for Chinthurst Lane in Shalford. The proposals finally address what, for too long, has 
been a serious issue for Shalford with a ‘common sense’ solution which supports the village. As you may be aware, from 7am in the 
morning commuters park along the length of Chinthurst Lane. This causes gridlock for the village inconveniencing residents, raises 
safety issues and fails to support the local businesses as there is limited parking available for passing trade. 
 
Generally, commuters use Chinthurst Lane to take advantage of free parking and avoid paying parking charges at other stations. 
Such commuters bring little to the economy of the village and leave as soon as their train arrives in the village.  
 
The long run of parked cars along Chinthurst Lane causes gridlock for Shalford during the day. The parked cars make it extremely 
difficult for cars approaching Kings Road from Chinthurst Lane and also cars turning into Chinthurst Lane from Kings Road.  This has 
lead to many dangerous situations where mothers and children have had to quickly step off the pavement onto the common, to avoid 
cars mounting the pavement to get past the parked cars.  Sometimes cars have even be seen to be parked on the pavement!  
 
Further, because the current yellow lines around the corner of Chinthurst Lane adjacent to Kings Road are not long enough, people 
park on this corner and so it becomes difficult to see any cars approaching down Chinthurst Lane. Inevitably this leads to traffic jams 
in all directions and a great deal of time is lost for local residents (not commuters) who are simply attempting to go about their daily 
routines. This has even resulting in vehicles mounting the curb and travelling along the Common to avoid queues when the traffic is 
exceptionally bad.  By preventing cars from parking on the corner, reducing the duration that cars can park and introducing an ‘island’ 
between the parking bays it should alleviate these issues. 
 
Limiting the duration of parking and introducing ‘islands’ should greatly reduce the safety concerns. 
 
By limiting the length of time that cars can park on Chinthurst Lane this will specifically target commuters. Freeing up a number of 
parking spaces near the businesses on Kings Road with four hour parking spaces will support local businesses and increase the 
possibility of customers ‘dropping in’. Having limited time parking should also not inconvenience the recreational users of the 

P
age 173

IT
E

M
 10



Common, such as footballers, as four hours should be ample time. The economic benefits of this proposal in supporting the village 
are clear. 
 
As a resident of Shalford who lives on the Common adjacent to the football pitch, access to my property is from Chinthurst Lane. At 
present, it is not uncommon for vehicles to park up to and encroaching over this turning. Due to the physics of this, it makes it 
extremely challenging to turn right off the Common onto Chinthurst Lane without risking mounting the curb opposite, all the time with 
a restricted view due to the parked cars. During  extremely busy periods there have also been instances when refuse trucks have 
been unable to turn off Chinthurst Lane past the football pitch due to the parked cars making such a manoeuvre impossible. This 
again results in commuters causing significant inconvenience to the residents of the village. There are also considerable safety 
concerns at present as parked cars potentially run the risk of preventing emergency vehicles from turning off Chinthurst Lane to the 
properties around the football pitch. The proposals for prohibiting parking in this area are a ‘godsend’ for residents and are supported. 
 
The one request that I have is that signage is placed on the Common, adjacent to the football pitch to prevent the parked cars 
migrating from Chinthurst Lane onto the Common. Examples of this have been witnessed on occasion. Appropriate signage near the 
football pitch, replicating that on the Common adjacent to the cricket pitch should help solve this issue. Additionally, it is requested 
that sufficient enforcement patrols are provided to help settle this new approach otherwise there is a risk that the current practices will 
continue. It would also be helpful to limit the area outside of Somersbury Cottage, on the map, to a four-hour parking spot, to avoid 
simply moving the current problem further along Chinthurst lane. 
 
In summary, the parking proposals are a pragmatic and sensible solution to a long term (and perpetually increasing problem) and 
have my wholehearted support as a local resident., subject to an appropriate - private no parking sign on the fort all pitch side of the 
common. 

317 

I am writing with regards to the proposed parking restrictions in Shalford, Surrey, in particular Chinthurst Lane and Kings Road, as 
well as the other surrounding roads. We are one of the local businesses in Shalford and the implications on us of any such restrictions 
would be significant. 
 
David Shepherd Wildlife Foundation is a small charitable organisation that moved to Shalford in 2012 and has since become a part of 
the village community. We have 12 staff and numerous volunteers working from the Shalford office. Without access to daily parking 
we would simply be unable to function as the majority of our staff and volunteers have to travel to work by car as there are no viable 
public transport options for them. 
 
The imposition of time restrictions on local roads without the provision of parking spaces elsewhere in the village would cause 
enormous problems for many people. At present, there is a particularly high volume of cars parking in Shalford. The volume has 
increased significantly in the three years we have been in the village and this is already causing difficulty in finding parking spaces for 
staff of local businesses. This does suggest that it is not just Shalford residents and local businesses who are parking here but maybe 
others who are travelling on to a further destination. With a train station in the village this is understandable but in preventing 
commuters from using Shalford for parking during the day there will be a very negative knock on affect for all local businesses as well. 
 
We would like to ask that our parking needs, and those of other local businesses, are taken into account in the review of parking in 
Shalford. If restrictions are to be placed as proposed, please would you consider the issuing of permits to local businesses so that 
staff can travel to their place of work and park there free of these restrictions and considering making the spaces in the immediate 

P
age 174

IT
E

M
 10



vicinity of the local businesses as short term stay of 1 – 2 hours to be used by customers? 

321 

With reference to your proposed plans to alter the parking arrangements on Orchard Road, Shalford, I live on the bend.  With the 
proposed yellow lines we have already noticed that people are parking outside our house on both sides of the road making it difficult 
to turn out of our driveway in terms of safety of viewing other cars coming and having to take two attempts to get round and not hit the 
car on the far side. 
 
Our concern is with the proposed new yellow lines in place we will have a constant flow of cars parked blocking our turning in and out 
of our house as the traffic is displaced.  We would like to suggest extending the double yellow lines on the opposite side of the road to 
us up to the gate of 6 Orchard Road to prevent double parking just before the bend in the road which would also force the traffic into 
the middle of the road as it head around the bend. 

333 

I am writing mainly in support of the proposed controls along the first part of Chinthurst Lane at Shalford Green.   It has become 
increasingly difficult to pass this part of the road at busy times, often with neither party able (or willing) to make space for the other.  I 
have sat for 5-10 minutes at times watching drivers unwilling to "back down", each convinced that they have right of way.   It 
happened to me only yesterday. I was headed towards the green and the oncoming car (only three cars from the end of the road) with 
the obstructing cars on his side of the road was driving straight at me, unwilling to move.   He eventually saw a space just behind him 
which he took three attempts to reverse into.  Finally, after much verbal abuse, he allowed me to pass, hooting and gesticulating 
wildly as I did so.    Perhaps he was just unable to reverse competently and was worried about damaging his car?  Who knows? 
 
I have often discussed that some restrictions being put in place would alleviate the problems we are all experiencing. 
 
My concern, however, is that the cars that currently park along Chinthurst Lane at Shalford Green are clearly doing so in order to 
make use of the station which has limited car parking.   These regular station users will surely just move up the road parking a little 
further away from the station, thus just shifting the problem a few hundred metres.    We are at Burnside, just beyond Poplar Road on 
the left hand side, a part of the road which, again, is not wide enough for people to park without causing obstruction.   The blind bend 
at the point that Poplar Road joins Chinthurst Lane is particularly difficult.  Vehicles often exceed the speed limit along this part of the 
road in any case and allowing people to park there will just create another danger spot. 
 
I look forward to hearing from you with regard to what plan will be put in place in order not to just shift the problem away from the 
Green. 

353 

I object to the removal of the no waiting sign outside Thursley House in Station Road.  I request that the double yellow line is 
extended to cover the front of Thursley House for the reasons below: 
 
We are the last business left on the road, and as such need access for our company vehicles at all times on to our hard standing 
parking.  We are often blocked in as cars are parked across the dropped kerb, albeit for short periods.  With the removal of some of 
the parking opportunities on the road this will increase. 

P
age 175

IT
E

M
 10



 
With further regard to Station Road, the problems would ease if the road was patrolled regularly to prevent cars being parked up on 
the pavements.  This is causing serious issues with visibility of traffic when leaving our office.  I also find it disturbing having to watch 
schoolchildren and parents walk in the road as they cannot use the pavements. 

355 

I live in Station Road, Shalford.  The double yellow lines in Station Road should be extended further eastwards from its junction with 
Chinthurst Lane, on both sides, to improve visibility.  This is presently a hazard. 
 
Conversely, the proposed yellow lines in Chinthurst Lane that protect the points of vehicular access to the properties on the southern 
side of the  
Common should be curtailed to provide more parking. 

357 The only amended controls I would like to see is in Chinthurst Lane, at the Wonersh Road end. 

368 

Victoria Court, Station Row is a 2-storey building comprising of 3 ground floor and 3 first floor flats.  Parking spaces have never been 
allocated – I have never driven.  The boundary wall has been damaged several times so the bollard are very welcome. 
 
This is a very narrow area with a great deal of traffic – vehicles of all sizes for the station, the school and delivery vans for the Queen 
Victoria pub.  It is even busier since the estate agents moved into part of anchor house. 
 
I should mention that owners here, because of the lack of space, quite often park in front of the garages at the rear of this street, 
which would not be possible if they were all in use. 

388 

In general we support the proposals with the exception of one in Chinthurst Lane.  The proposed free parking slot from Kings Road 
should be Mon/Sat 8.30am-6pm like the earlier slot in the road.  The traffic on Chinthurst Lane is chaotic during the day and parking 
in it should be restricted in the slot mentioned above otherwise parking will be taken up all day by some of the many users of this 
parking area. 

394 

As someone who lives in Bramley and uses the Shalford train services into Guildford as part of a daily commute to London I would 
have to say that the opportunity to park in Shalford , use a local train service, and not add to the general traffic congestion going into 
Guildford in the morning are all important considerations for a local constituent living outside the city limits of Guildford. 
 
The proposed parking restrictions if not accompanied by additional new parking areas by the station, would be a retrograde step; and 
have the effect of adding to further traffic congestion as people are constrained to drive on further into Guildford in the morning rather 
than take a local commuter train. 

P
age 176

IT
E

M
 10



 
I would ask you to reconsider your plans and at least put them on hold until sufficient alternative provisions are put in place for 
additional parking spaces in the immediate vicinity of the station.  Parking places at the Shalford Station car park are filled by 0710 in 
the morning, leaving little option to those departing at 0800 from Shalford Station to park anywhere else other than near the Common. 

403 

Your team has done an excellent job and we support its proposals for Tillingbourne Road and Orchard Road for the following main 
reasons: 
 
Safety.  The double yellow lines are necessary.  All complaints should be directed to those who have parked dangerously and 
irresponsibly. 
 
Low Cost.  By keeping it simple, the minimum amount of public money will be spent. 
 
Responsiveness.  Your team has listened to our initial responses last year and produced a balance and effective solution for this final 
stage of consultation. 

405 

Initially I would state that I have no records of having received a letter late last year on this subject, nor does it appear that any of my 
immediate neighbours received any such notification at that time. 
 
In respect to Chinthurst Lane, Ashcroft and Poplar Road shown in Plans 1 and 3 I would comment as follows: 
 
I would support the proposals for Kings Road and Station Road, and also the approaches to Ashcroft and Poplar Road, all of which 
seem logical and sensible.  In respect to Chinthurst Lane however, I appreciate that the proposal for 4 hour limited parking and ‘No 
parking’ areas would undoubtedly address the problems of congestion caused by commuter parking. 
 
It should, I believe, be noted that the present delays caused to through traffic by enforced single way movements do in fact help 
reduce traffic speed across the common and restricted the ‘rat run’ effect of traffic movements. 
 
The new proposals, whilst allowing ‘passing places’ for traffic, could well have the effect of increasing general traffic speeds beyond 
the present situation and therefore cause a potential for increase risk to pedestrians in this respect, albeit benefiting the general 
appearance of the area. 
 
There can be no doubt that any parking restrictions will cause displacement into nearby areas, and in this respect, Ashcroft and 
Poplar Road would undoubtedly be affected. 
 
Having moved to the Shalford area three years ago after living in London for 40 years, I am fully aware of the problems caused by 
displacement when parking is restricted, and the only normal solution that satisfies everybody is the provision of alternative parking 
facilities. 
 
This, in my experience, is invariably not cost effective unless meter parking is introduced, not always a popular move, and that 

P
age 177

IT
E

M
 10



assumes space being available for that provision, otherwise I believe that there are only two low cost solutions. 
 
Firstly, restricted parking signs Mon-Fri, say 9-10am and 3-4pm which ‘dissuades’ commuters from parking and is of minimal 
additional expense to the community. 
 
Or, ‘Residents Parking Only’, which would be available to those residents who require additional ‘on road’ parking facilities, and could 
therefore be self-funding, although in the case of Poplar Road for instance, most if not all properties, have off-road facilities. 
 
Commuters will not disappear – they have to go somewhere unless the Rail companies make that provision (wee all know this to be a 
thing of the past since the benefits of escalating land values became more attractive that the requirement for promoting business and 
attractive custom!!) 
 
This displacement could obviously be in any of the roads show on any of the plans. 
 
I would support the proposals show on Plan 2 and 4 although I would be personally affected and I therefore feel I have no right to 
comment. 
 
The proposed intentions shown on Plan 3 however, whilst addressing safety issues, would not allow for any future risk of commuter 
parking without additional restrictions by signage as stated above. 
 
Depending of course on future numbers of commuter vehicles, I believe that the proposals would not address the potential of Poplar 
Road becoming a ‘car park’ in the future without provisions being made.  Access to the Station would then be either via Chinthurst 
Lane or the A281 Horsham Road. 

406 

The general outline of your parking proposals for Shalford seem very sensible and practical. 
 
My observation as a resident of Poplar Road, is clearly expressed in your correspondence i.e. “the introduction of parking restrictions 
car cause parking to displace to nearby areas.”  There is already evidence of cars being abandoned for the day in our area. 
 
Two points for consideration: 

1. Within a short distance of our location, the Borough already provide and excellent Park & Ride facility at Artington, Old 
Portsmouth Road, with connection to rail and bus services. 

2. Introduce, as is the norm in many Guildford locations, a Monday-Saturday 8.30am-6pm 2 hour waiting limit with no 
return within 4 hours.  This would give a reasonable consideration for visitor parking but would eliminate daily business 
parking. 

 

P
age 178

IT
E

M
 10



 
ANNEXE 12 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Ash Church Road, Ash 
(introduced double yellow lines at brow of hill and limited waiting in lay-by) 

(6 representations) 

71 

I have a number of comments; 
 

1. I support the proposal to remove all day parking in the lay by near Ash Station. However, as as been the case in the past, 
when the lay by is full, drivers park their vehicles on the adjacent grass verge wrecking the only green space we have nearby. 
There needs to be a low one bar fence positioned around the verge to stop this happening. 

2. Controlling parking in the lay by will cause drivers, as the do now, to park over the other side of the road masking observation 
for residents emerging from our driveways and creating a significant safety hazard to resident drivers, other road users and 
pedestrians using the footpath. Double yellow lines along the side of the road would prevent this dangerous condition. 

3. I support the proposal to control parking on the brow of the hill near St Peter's church and the church hall. 
4. Since the introduction of parking charges at Ash Station more and more vehicles are parking along Foreman Road. I use this 

road most days and find it a significant hazard to drivers as due to the curvature of the road you often cannot see the where 
the end of the parked vehicle's are from either end. As a result vehicles meet in the middle, causing have to reverse with other 
vehicles behind them needing to do the same. In addition, there is only a footpath along a short stretch of the road which puts 
pedestrians at risk as well. Double yellow lines from the junction of Ash Church Road and Foreman Road to near the junction 
of Grange Road would control the risk. 

5. There is ample free parking in two car parks on Ash Hill Road, encouraging well being through physical activity with a longer 
walk to Ash Station.  

75 

As a resident of this street, I concur entirely with the proposals in the letter.  It is a shame that the station car park has such limited 
space because that is, of course, the primary cause of the on-street parking situation as it currently stands.  I would also request that 
the proposals are further enhanced to preclude parking in the "no-mans land" between the front boundaries of Numbers 16 to 24 Ash 
Church Road and the pavement.  I understand that this land was compulsorily purchased from the then owners in order to allow the 
development in Britten Close to proceed and thus to facilitate a good view of the road towards Ash village centre when exiting the 
street.  The "no-mans land" does not belong to those of us who live in Numbers 16 to 24 inclusive and it is very aggravating when 
members of the public park their vehicles there, usually in order to use the station.  Our view towards Ash village centre is thus 
severely impeded when exiting our driveways.  Given the proximity of the right hand bend approaching the brow of the hill towards St 
Peters Church, it can be a daunting prospect when exiting the driveway to head towards the village centre when one's visibility is 
impeded, particularly when vehicles coming from the village centre are exceeding the speed limit. 

P
age 179

IT
E

M
 10



125 
Kendall 
Cars 

I am glad the Local Committee propose to remove parking near the brow of the hill close to St Peter's Church and the church hall, and 
introduce 'no waiting at any time' on the approach to the crossroad with Britten Close - areas marked in amber on your map. In my 
opinion this is a safety conscious decision, and will benefit local residents, businesses, and other road users not familiar with the area. 
 
I must, however, disagree with introduction of 2 hour limited waiting and no return within 4 hours in the lay-by near Ash Station and 
opposite to the entrance to our yard- marked purple on your map. The lay-by can accommodate five to six vehicles and is used 
mostly by Ash Train Station customers or visitors. Occasionally you will find there a vehicle which has been parked there by a trade 
person or private individual with the intention of selling it. The lay-by is not used by Kendall Cars Ltd. My fear is that once the 
restriction is in place, station customers will start using parking spaces which we provide to our customers in our own yard. We 
provide 10 allocated spaces to our customers, and parking availability can be increased by additional spaces during busy periods. We 
have had problems in the past with vehicles left for days in our car park by Station users. If the parking restriction is approved our 
customers will potentially have no choice but to park in the surrounding area, causing disruptions to local residents, with whom we 
have good relationship. 

129 

We write on behalf of Holy Angles Roman Catholic Parish Church situated upon Ash Church Road in response to the draft parking 
proposals for the Ash Church Road area. 
 
Our concern is that if traffic is being forced further back along the road, it will put increased parking pressure on top  the area opposite 
Ash Grange Children’s Centre and Primary school where the parking situation is already very busy and dangerous. 
 
Our church car park is already being utilised by parents of the school, since there is not enough parking space, which is causing 
many problems for our parish and particularly affects elderly parishioners who find that their parking is already taken up by local 
parents, many of whom have exhibited aggressive behaviour. Holy Angels Church has consulted with the head of school who is 
supporting us  with regards to the dangerous parking situation. The problem is especially compounded by the fact that there is no 
parking available for the council cemetery directly opposite the church. Families understandably tend to avail themselves of our car 
park but believe this is their entitlement. 
 
While we understand the reasons behind the parking restrictions we feel we ought to inform you that we are concerned about the 
increased pressure and traffic overspill  on our car park and also the drive to the priests’ house which contains a young family who 
often find themselves blocked in at school pick up and collection time. 

153 

I am very concerned, to say the least. 
 
I can see that the reason for this proposal could be to solve a problem, for example, parents parking their vehicles in this key location, 
close to Ash Grange School, for pick-up and drop-off of their school children.  Painting double yellows in this area, right outside St 
Peter's Church, on both sides, would prevent the road narrowing down on either side, at either end of the school day; this could, 
consequently, prevent traffic accidents. 
 
However, I would like to ask whether or not there can be any provision made for weddings and funerals that currently take place at St 
Peter's Church, outside where the proposed double yellow lines are going to be painted.  The bride surely cannot be expected to hoist 
up her skirts and cross the road to her wedding, from St Peter's Centre car park.  By the same token, how can anyone be reasonably 
expected to unload a coffin from a hearse to transfer this from the hearse to the inside of St Peter's Church?  I would ask that 
someone reassure me that, should this proposal go ahead, certain exceptions would be made in these cases - for the bride's vehicle, 

P
age 180

IT
E

M
 10



or a funeral hearse, to park outside the church, so that unloading and reloading can be effectively carried out.  I'm not certain how this 
would actually work in practice, as some vehicles can be quite large, therefore not suitable for parking to wait, during the services, in 
St Peter's Church car park, so it may be that an exception would need to be made for these vehicles to park and wait until the 
services are over, then move on. 
 
I would ask you to give this proposal some serious consideration before this goes ahead, as the consequences of this happening 
could be quite disastrous for St Peter's Church, Ash, in respect of future weddings and funerals - the double yellow lines would deter 
anyone from arranging such services to take place there at all.  St Peter's Church is a beautiful church and its people and clergy 
provide an essential service, in many respects, to the local community, within the parish of Ash and surrounding areas. 
 
I would like to propose that you include Winchester Road in the double yellow lines proposal. 
  
The specific location I recommend is outside of Shawfield School gates, heading down past the Caretaker's bungalow, right down to 
the end of the road, where it would meet Shawfield Road. 
 
The reason for my recommendation is that there are people who use this side of the road to park their car, part on the road, and part 
on the pavement, thereby narrowing the path for walkers, pram users and other pedestrians, causing a dangerous situation, 
particularly during certain times of the day during school pick-up and drop-off and also pick-up after the "after school" clubs.  They 
have no consideration whatsoever that there are cars already parked outside the houses on the opposite side and the road narrows 
very dangerously for oncoming vehicles, potentially causing accidents. 
 
Please consider this proposal and, if possible, include this in your overall double yellow line plan. 

339 

I fully understand the need for additional parking controls as on street commuter parking for Ash station has increased recently.  
However, as a local resident in Britten Close my concern is that this will cause additional parking concerns in Britten Close, where 
there is already pressure for parking for residents without displaced commuter parking impacting on this. 
 
I am sure this will be the case for all the residential roads located around Ash station and although the proposed parking restrictions 
do not take too many of the currently used spaces away in this area, it will still have an effect on these residential roads which I feel 
should be considered in this and any future parking proposals. 

 

P
age 181

IT
E

M
 10



ANNEXE 12 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Foreman Park, Ash 
(formalise existing disabled space) 

(3 representations) 

1 

I am writing regarding the formalization of the existing disabled parking bay.  This bay does not enable many disabled drivers to use it 
due to the location of the bay.  I regularly have a disabled friend visit who uses a wheelchair , and this bay is completely unsuitable.  
Should she drive in forwards then being next to the kerb stops her getting out of the car. should she reverse in she can not open her 
drivers door as there are cars parked next door.  We also have the same problem when elderly relatives who have blue badges visit.  
This would make much more sense to have it on Foreman Park road not in the bay, i.e. about a metre away from the existing bay, so 
that any disabled driver could use it, or is it only aimed at those who are disabled but don't need walking aids?  
 
The person who parks in the disabled bay owns the white van ! 
He blocked it so he couldn't get back in so parked further down road.  His cars are the black and silver ones ! Ho got out of space as 
no car next door to his originally  
 
Please tell me that with the bay becoming compulsory that this is not madness! 
 
This is why this disabled space needs to be on the road not in this bay.    
 
In 25 years of living here we've never had parking problems until this bay was put in.  The original person who wanted the bay walks 
with two sticks yet parks by his garage now.  The bay on the road would have enabled him to park closer to his back gate. 
 
Just wondering why there are to be no new restrictions in Foreman Road, to the right as you come out of Foreman Park? 
 
The parking there is manic leaving us having to overtake up to 18 parked cars.  We can’t see what is coming.  It is so dangerous and 
won’t be long until a serious accident happens.  We can’t see to exit Foreman Park and the Parish Council have been unable to cut 
back the hedgerow this years. 
 
I feel this really needs looking at. 

192 

Firstly I'd just like to say the majority of these proposals look sensible and will improve safety. One area I think you would be advised 
to extend the no waiting at all times restriction would be on Foreman Road outside of Foreman Park. We've lived in Foreman Park for 
nearly 5 years now and steadily the number of people parking here to use the train station has increased which up until recently 
hasn’t caused any safety issues (as people are just parking in Foreman Park). 
 
What people have recently started doing is parking on Foreman Road (and at the entrance to Foreman Park) which I've tried to 
highlight on your map in green: 
 

P
age 182

IT
E

M
 10



 
 
The cars parked in the green area reduce the road to a single carriageway and as its a 40mph road (and not everyone reduces their 
speed for this hazard) leaving Foreman Park to turn right can often lead to a potential head on collision with fast moving traffic from 
the south of Foreman Road. Cautiously coming up from the south you can be met by fast moving traffic from the North as by the time 
people reach this point after entering Foreman Road their speed is up. This hazard is increased further as this is a bend. If parking 
restrictions cant be imposed further down this road the speed limit should be reduced to ~20mph. 
 
The parking in the green area at the entrance to Foreman Park is also a safety issue as it means people leaving Foreman Park have 
to be on the wrong side of the road, meaning people entering are met with a potential head on collision as well. 
 
I'd recommend those responsible for parking changes visit the area during a working day to see how bad this can be. I don’t doubt 
there will be an accident at this part of Foreman Road soon. 
 
Thanks for your time and if possible I'd appreciate some feedback on these comments from those involved in these changes. 

252 

I live on Foreman Park, I have no objection to the formalising of the disabled bay. 
 
I do have a big issue however with the vehicles parking on Foreman Road by persons using the rail station. The current double yellow 
lines have eased the issue in one respect, however it has now pushed the parking on Foreman Road further up towards Ash Green. 
 
There are at times up to 30 vehicles parked here, meaning vehicles travelling from Ash Green towards the level crossing have to pass 
them on what is a blind bend and often meet on coming vehicles. 
 
This has resulted in a number of very near miss collisions - I myself have been subject to some verbal abuse on my motorcycle when 
negotiating these parked vehicles and having to take avoiding action with on coming vehicles who technically have right of way but as 
the bend is blind because of these parked vehicles it was impossible to know either of us was coming. 
 
In summary please extend the current double yellow lines from Foreman Park up to Grange Road to prevent this dangerous situation. 

P
age 183

IT
E

M
 10



 
ANNEXE 12 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Ash Street and Star Lane, Ash 
(introduce various double yellow lines and limited waiting) 

(38 representations) 

12 

I am a resident of Ash st., having just seen the notice regarding proposed parking changes, I read the online details in the pdf, and 
straight away I see proposed changes that will definitely cause big problems for residents from the petrol station to the Greyhound 
pub, with knock on affects to other residents & traffic (particularly during the rush hours). 
 
As the parking situation is now there is already insufficient parking spaces available.  If I go out during the evening, I often find when I 
return I am forced to park nearly 1/4 of a mile away outside the hairdressers (no 47).  Whilst it doesn't take long to walk there, it is a 
pain, (particularly if it's raining!), but more importantly if the alarm goes off in my car I won't hear it from home, which would cause a 
nuisance & I would miss the possibility to see what the problem is. Likewise if my car is hit or vandalised (it's been hit several times 
over the years & vandalised twice here!) I have zero chance of seeing who did it & so won't discover it until much later, & if anyone 
were to witness it, no one there is likely to know who my car belongs to. 
 
But this secondary choice of parking for me is where you propose to put double yellow lines!! And worse, the parking restrictions you 
propose outside the shops (not all spaces I realise) means it's unlikely I could park there either (not that I'd want to park that far!). I 
don't take my car to work as I walk in, (I'm lucky enough to work on the same street at the garage at No 62-66), so I leave it parked up 
near home. 
 
So if you get rid of the parking spaces outside the hairdressers, I & other residents will have to park much further away! (making the 
above problems worse). Although legally I could park on Shawfield rd (I believe), I have previously ruled out parking there as it would 
block 1 side of the road & cause traffic problems during the rush hour. 
 
Clearly no one has visited this end of Ash street after 6pm on a week day as anyone would of seen that all parking spaces are taken 
up between the Greyhound pub & the pedestrian crossing (the vast majority of the time), & nearly all are taken between that crossing 
& the area outside the hairdressers. As it is, some people are finding 'unofficial' parking spaces. 
 
I can only think that myself & other residents at this end of Ash st. who can't park here will either park on Shawfield rd or on Manor rd , 
obstructing those roads. (I'm sure those residents would be delighted about that!). 
 
I counter propose that you ditch the plans for double yellow lines between 47 Ash St. & the library (just that side, the other side it does 
make sense to put double yellow lines there & would cause no parking problems).  Also I propose that you ditch a small part of the 
double yellow line proposal outside of no 6 to no 4 (I believe, no 4 is not shown on your map) & instead create 3 spaces with marked 
bays being 1/2 on the road & 1/2 on the pavement, the path is sufficiently wide enough to accommodate 1/2 of a cars width and still 
allow a double width pram to pass through with ease (I have seen it been done). The road is also wide enough to still allow cars & 
vans to pass both ways when cars are parked there, although admittedly not wide enough for lorries, coaches or buses.  I have seen 

P
age 184

IT
E

M
 10



marked parking bays on paths before so I know this is not without precedent, however I don't know what the regulations are regarding 
the difficulties for buses & lorries etc to pass.  I also wonder if it would be made possible for residents to park on the school slip road 
overnight only on weekdays & over the weekend, it wouldn't help me directly during the week but it would other residents. 
 
Even if the 3 bays I suggest is not possible I strongly object to your current parking proposals which would turn a current parking 
nightmare into a parking hell! I shall be speaking to our neighbours over the weekend about this & I'm sure you'll hear from at least 
some of them. 

15 

I am writing to advise I fully support the parking proposals for Ash Street. 
 
The introduction of No waiting at any time double yellow lines where indicated is fantastic news for the residents of Ash Street and is 
a necessary and long overdue change.  
 
I live in Ash Street and the cars and vans that currently park on the road opposite our house make it extremely difficult and dangerous 
to leave and enter our driveway and the constant congestion caused directly outside our house is not only an extremely bothersome 
noise and access issue but also a serious health and safety one for various reasons but especially the fact that cars/vans/regular 
buses are forced to drive on the wrong side of the road for a substantial distance. 
 
I look forward to these No waiting at any time double yellow lines proposed outside our home being put in place as soon as possible. 

17 Please add my name as a supporter for the double yellow lines proposal along Ash Street, Ash, Guildford/Aldershot. 

19 
I would like to voice my support for the Ash Street parking proposals. The road has become increasingly congested thus making the 
extensive parking an issue for cars turning onto Ash Street. The proposals would ease the issue greatly. 

36 

We are writing in total support of the proposed parking controls on Ash Street. 
 
Although we have moved into the area only for one year, we have been continuously bothered by the people who park wherever they 
like on Ash Street and disregard other people's safety. Ash Street is not a very wide street, so people sometimes park partially on 
pavement which in turn obstructs pedestrians with say buggies or mobility scooters, etc. That creates hazards to other road users!! 
Moreover, due to the location of our house, when we come off our drive and get onto Ash Street itself, our view is always vastly 
obstructed by the row of parked cars partially parked on the pavement on the near side of the road. There have been many 'near 
miss' occasions because of the obstruction of views of the on-coming traffic. This is so unfair to us!  
 
The irony is that we know a couple of cars that parked there most of the time belong to the neighbours on the opposite side of the 

P
age 185

IT
E

M
 10



street which has no off road parking. So conveniently they park on our side of the street when the lay-by parking spaces on their side 
have been taken. This is a long term nuisance to us as it's not just school run parking, they are there most of the time, even on non 
school days. I think they have been warned by the police before but it is still happening as I type. I think enough is enough!! That is 
why we support the proposal 100%. Something needs to be done to improve the situation. 
 

41 
I am fully supportive of the proposed parking restrictions for Ash Street as they will go some way to improving the flow of traffic and 
therefore the safety of pedestrians and drivers. I am surprised that a speed limit of 20mph is not being considered. 

56 
I would like to object to the above proposals, I am registered disabled and have a motorbility car. I need to park close to my house so 
I do not have far to walk to my front door. I am in constant pain have had 2 back operations as well as 2 knee replacements and now 
waiting for a hip replacement. 

74 

I would like to oppose the suggested parking measures for Ash Street, Ash. 
 
Firstly, as a resident on the street, finding a parking spot is difficult at the best of times. Taking away parking opportunities for 
residents is only going to result in us having to park in other nearby streets. As a pregnant lady with a young child, this isn't great for 
me to say the least. And thinking of elderly neighbours, they too may have to park further away from their homes, meaning a further 
distance to walk to get home. There are quite a number of properties that are 100+ years old, with no facility to accommodate parking 
on their plot of land. Residents have to park somewhere. Considering each property has at least one car per household, I believe too 
many spaces will be lost. 
 
With regards to calming measures for traffic, if there are less cars parked on the road, will only mean cars going at even greater 
speed than they do now. We are lucky enough to have a traffic light crossing system outside the school to enable us safely to cross. 
 
I cannot understand what will be achieved from the double yellow lines apart from causing stress for residents trying to park and 
resulting in us aimlessly driving around parking in other roads with our cars and potentially having to walk a great distance with 
children/shopping etc to get to our houses. 

95 

In reference to the parking restriction proposals on Ash Street, I am writing to express that I am opposed to the plans to introduce 
double yellow lines. In particular, at the Greyhound end of the road and also outside the Co-op. 
 
I live in Ash Street (next to the pub) and parking can only be described as inadequate for the street already, the addition of yellow 
lines will deplete availability further. Where is it proposed that residents will park if these are introduced? People will have to park 
miles away from their homes and walk in the dark across the busy road. We already have to park in the pub car park often which is 

P
age 186

IT
E

M
 10



not fair on them as their spaces are for their customers. I do not wish to impose on their kind hospitality any further and assume my 
neighbours feel the same. 
 
We have actually just had to have our front driveway paved in order to ensure parking for our two cars (although until the council 
grant our permission to drop the curb we are unable to use it- that is another matter). Despite this move, there is still not enough 
parking for the residents, let alone visitors to the school. I cannot see where these cars are expected to vanish to if lines are added. I 
fear that our new expensive drive will simply be blocked constantly if drivers can see no alternative location. This would be offensive 
and unacceptable to us. 
 
The Co-op further along Ash Street requires parking availability- there is no question of this. It is already a struggle for customers to 
park and shop in there- this is an observation as we are able to walk there but I often see parents struggling with bags and small 
children, or older patrons finding difficulty to park nearby or walk to a far-off car. Surely local business are encouraged to thrive in the 
community rather than be restricted? 

116 

My concern is that if 'no waiting at any time' restrictions are put in place this could then increase the speed of traffic travelling along 
Ash Street. As an Ash Street resident when the road is clear, particularly at night, the speed in which cars drive through the village is 
frightening. I am very concerned that a clear road, outside a school, will not be safe for our children. Whilst I do agree that the parking 
issues need to be looked at I strongly feel that traffic speed also needs to be addressed. 

135 

I am a resident of Old Chapel Lane in Ash and am emailing regarding the proposed changes to the parking controls in Ash Street and 
Star Lane – ref KM/16/0003. 
 
I am extremely concerned about the impact of displaced parking to Old Chapel Lane caused by the introduction of parking controls to 
Ash Street and Star Lane. This is a narrow private road used for access to and from 8 houses near to the Co-Operative shop. There 
is already a problem with inconsiderate parking by people using the local shops and lorries unloading/loading, frequently making it 
difficult to use the road and blocking the pavement. On 2 recent occasions, Old Chapel Lane has been completely blocked by 
inconsiderate parking, which has caused us to be late for work and our children late to school. I know from discussions with the other 
residents of Old Chapel Lane that they have been similarly affected by the problem. I am very worried that stricter parking controls on 
Ash Street will cause more people to use Old Chapel Lane to park their cars and will increase the frequency of us being unable to use 
the road and leave for school/work. 
 
May I please ask what consideration is being given to the impact of displaced parking to local residents and if there are any proposals 
to tackle the problem? 
 
While I do understand that parking controls need to be considered, if the end result is that parking will be displaced to Old Chapel 
Lane, then I would like to object to the proposals please. 

P
age 187

IT
E

M
 10



161 

I have been living in Ash Street, Ash, GU12 6LG for 33 years now, having moved in during November 1982 and during that time I 
have found that the number of cars/vans parked along the street to have increased exponentially. 
 
Having read through the proposed changes to the parking regulations along Ash Street I would like to counter with the following 
comments. 

A. The two “Ash Library” bus stops are offered no protection whatsoever; at present both bus stops are frequently full of parked 
cars/vans, causing the buses to double park and bring the flow of traffic to a halt.  Indeed the abuse of the Aldershot bound 
bus stop often results in west bound cars passing the wrong side of the “Keep Left” island outside the Library, an action 
dangerous to pedestrians looking the wrong way when crossing the road. 

B. Putting a two hour limit on the parking bays outside 65 and 67 Ash Street is rather pointless, unless the purpose is to protect 
parking spaces for the shop’s customers; the problem is not the longevity of the parking but the selfish and inconsiderate 
attitude of the drivers.  Apart from one or two employees at the Co-op at number 69, people very rarely park along this stretch 
for more than 15 minutes or so. 

C. Numbers 65 and 67 have “Access Protection Lines”, Council applied white lines (getting very faint now), which are ignored by 
a large minority of the drivers and indeed on occasion they are used by some as a marked out parking bay!  I have, on 
average, up to 10 cars a day obstructing or partially obstructing my driveway, each being there for between 5 and 15 minutes 
which means that for at least one, possibly two, hours a day I cannot leave or enter my driveway with a vehicle, unless I 
choose to go to the shop and find the driver.  Both my wife and I have been verbally abused on occasions when confronting 
these drivers about their parking.  The driveways of these three properties (63, 65 & 67), require better protection from 
inconsiderate drivers. 

D. I applaud the addition of the double yellow lines to be applied on the North side of the street between the Library and the 
Walsh Infant School; this should help the flow of traffic along that section of Ash Street, especially buses and other large 
vehicles which are forced to wait for a gap in the on-coming traffic in order to proceed. 

E. Having said all of the above, the main problem is of course not the application of paint to the road’s surface but the 
enforcement of the regulations.  As an example the double yellow lines outside number 61 Ash Street are often ignored by 
drivers parking to go to the Co-op shop. 

211 

My husband and I have resided in Ash Street for 25 years, and feel that the proposed parking restrictions are neither necessary or an 
advantage to the safety of our street.  
 
We think the existing double yellow lines are perfectly adequate, and whilst we can see that a lot of passing cars actually take no 
notice of these outside shops, that is something that could be policed and if some drivers were actually prosecuted this might make 
people take notice, as they certainly don't at the moment. That sort of parking of course causes problems. 
 
By giving so many areas with no parking lines you are actually inviting drivers to pass through the this area at much faster speed 
levels than the current 30 mph. Surely with a school and a library in such close proximity we should have a 20 mph speed limit, now 
that would definitely make the roads safer for our children, and young and old, as we often see cars travelling through much faster 
than 30 mph as it stands, more open areas will invite motorists to speed more. We can see this already, once some drivers go slowly 
along where cars are parked, they speed up. 
 
At least with the existing parking bays where they currently are, drivers, in the main, reduce their speed when approaching parked 
vehicles. 

P
age 188

IT
E

M
 10



 
To prevent speeding in all drivers, why can we not have speed bumps installed similar to the Shawfield Road area, which I can see 
has definitely controlled the speed along that road. 
 
By doing away with some of the existing parking areas, where are some of these residents going to park their cars, what 
consideration has been given to us residents, not a lot from what I can see.  
 
Are you seriously expecting us and our families to park and then block the roads around Star Lane, Ashley Lodge Drive and even 
Manor Road and walk back to our houses. 
 
Many of us residents are OAP's and that is not a practical or safe solution for us not to be able to park near our houses.   We have 
grown up children with babies and small children coming in to their grand parents, are mothers really expected to park in Star Lane to 
struggle to come and see us. AND Are we really expected to park half a mile from where are houses are? 
 
It would be interesting for you to inform us of exactly how many accidents are caused along our road? As in 25 years I can not 
remember a single incident. 
 
Control the speed through our village, that should be your top priority, by reducing the speed limit as I have mentioned above. 
 
Living opposite a school, we can see that the school have done their bit by introducing a drop off system for parents, but even I can 
see that there needs some roadside parking for mothers, due to the numbers that attend both schools, by taking this away the little 
parking they can find once home owners gave gone to work, you are creating more of a problem with them,  they will just park 
regardless in front of people's drives and create personal problems.  
 
We are opposed to your plan as it stands at the moment. 

217 

I am opposed to your idea of additional yellow lines in Ash Street and outside Gordon Farleys. 
 
If these parking spaces are lost I feel there will be a knock-on affect as car owners fight over the remaining spaces and that I will 
loose the ability to park outside my house. I am 85 years old and have lived in Ash Street for 42 years and understand fully the traffic 
problem you are trying to solve. The busy traffic along Ash Street at certain times of the day are unavoidable due to the children 
attending school, but we know these proposed lines will not solve the problem, it will create others.  There are several elderly and 
disabled residents that rely on their cars so please leave the parking as it is. 
 
We can put up with the bad traffic, but we cannot cope with the loss of parking spaces that are vital to our everyday living.  Please 
listen to the residents that live with this problem every day. 

P
age 189

IT
E

M
 10



226 

As a resident of Ash Street, i am very pleased to see the proposals and consider they will make the egress from my property much 
easier, especially at busy times.  it will also contribute to road safety, given the number of children and families crossing  the road to 
access the three schools in the area. 
 
However, there is clearly a need for adequate parking for those collecting and dropping-off schoolchildren, and it would be interesting 
to know how you think this need is likely to be met, if the proposed changes go ahead. 

245 

I am writing this email to lodge my objection to the proposal for alterations to Parking restrictions made in Ash Street and Star Lane, 
Ash (reference KM/16/0003). 
 
My father (who is now 85 years old) and I have resided in Ash Street for over 40 years, during which time we have already fell victim 
to similar changes Made when a pedestrian crossing was built adjacent to our house, which meant we were then unable to park 
outside our residence. 
 
We had no option but to concrete & tarmac over our front garden at over £1000 expense to us,  in order to be able to park within 
reasonable distance our house. 
 
This is especially relevant these days as my father is on full disability living allowance, so requires a vehicle to be in close vicinity to 
our property. 
 
Having no parking - as well as a heavily used pedestrian traffic light - has also had the effect of devaluing the value of our property, so 
we have personally suffered more than most by previous parking control  developments. 
 
My main concern with the new proposal is that residents just down from The Greyhound Public House will not have sufficient car 
parking spaces for their vehicles; 
There are 22 properties from The Greyhound to where the current zig-zag lines commence that are part of the pedestrian crossing, 
and if the new proposals were implemented this would leave only in the region of 12 spaces – therefore where exactly do those who 
live in these 22 houses park if no places are available? 
 
Certainly not in Ash Street – as under the new proposals no further parking spots seem to be available in Ash Street at all, with the 
adjacent Star Lane having new parking restrictions imposed in addition. 
 
Another problem I see regularly is a huge build-up of traffic in Ash Street between the hours of 8am & 9.15am & 2.30pm & 3.45pm, 
due the presence of the two schools in Ash Street (plus two more in close proximity). 
 
The new proposals I believe will only lead to worsen the inevitable bun fight for parents seeking to park their vehicles to drop off/pick 
up their children at the schools in any vacant spaces down from The Greyhound, increasing the already high level of congestion. 
 
I also would query how these additional parking restrictions would be policed and therein the extra costs to providing resources to do 
this, as I have witnessed on many occasions parents during these drop off/pick up times parking illegally in Ash Street, without 
apparent care or concern as to where they park as they know they are highly unlikely to be penalised in any event. 

P
age 190

IT
E

M
 10



 
My suggestion therefore is these proposals should be rejected, and things left as they are unless a better, more sensible proposal can 
be made, which protects Ash Street’s residents as the first priority. 
 
As someone who has been denied this by previous developments, I believe they have a perfect honest right to park outside their own 
properties, without having to put up with the inconvenience and cost that we incurred previously through no fault of our own. 
 
As someone who experiences traffic conditions in Ash Street on a daily basis for many years I feel better qualified than most to 
comment on this proposal and I hope you will strongly consider the points I have made above in objection to this proposal and its 
conclusion. 

253 

I am writing to object to the proposed parking restrictions in Ash Street, initially I thought it was a good idea but when I was walking to 
the school the other morning and I realised that I think this will actually cause more harm than good as without the parked cars it will 
become a faster road.  Cars have to naturally slow down as they approval the one stop shop as the road narrows a little and there 
cars park on one side, without these cars they will not decrease speed and I fear a nasty accident.  In my opinion a better and safer 
option would be to install railings down the school side of the road between the shop and the school or pillars which would stop cars 
mounting the pavement and reassure parents who have heard of people being struck by wing mirrors. Also I think it unfair on parents 
who drive their children to school as I don't know where they will park and the school only offers a drop off system in the morning, 
there is no such procedure to pick up your children. 

256 

I would like to register my objection to the proposed parking restriction in Ash street, as this would make it impossible to visit my 
elderly parents with there grandchildren. There will be no spaces left for the residents like my parents to park outside the own home if 
there is yellow lines there will only be a few spaces left which everyone will be fighting for.  It would also cause problems for myself 
trying to take my children to and from school. We don't all live in walking distance to the school and a lot of the mums have to go 
straight to work after dropping the children off. Also the parents from both school have not been told about these restriction and I not 
sure they will not be happy as there will not be anywhere to park which will cause uproar.  

258 

The traffic around this area on the morning is awful. But we need somewhere to park to drop the children too school. 
 
Walking further along this roads with my child make me feel un safe. There are big lorries coming along and fast vehicles. Please 
could you consider putting in speed bumps and changing the speed to 20 miles per hour. 
 
People will still park there to drop their children off even if it is a double yellow line!! 

259 

I’d like to start by thanking the council for reviewing the parking situation in Ash Street in light of recent issues.  I was hit on the 
shoulder by the wing mirror of a van when walking my daughter to school a few months ago, because the available road space is too 
narrow for the traffic using it at peak times.  I’m a resident on Ash Street and can confirm that peak traffic flow is intense.  However, 
we also have other issues to deal with and so my feedback to the proposals falls into the following categories: 
 

1) Proposal to restrict parking using double yellow lines between the library and Walsh Memorial Infants and Junior schools. 
Your proposals aim to restrict parking along this stretch of road, permanently, by use of double yellow lines.  An admirable 
proposal and probably better than doing nothing, but not my preferred solution.  I feel this is a blunt weapon, causing other 
problems and in fact only useful if properly enforced.  I am, however, fully in favour of enforcement to prevent parking in the 
bus stop outside the One Stop as this does cause havoc on a regular basis, with buses having to stop in the road and some 

P
age 191

IT
E

M
 10



drivers overtaking them, going the wrong way around the central bollard and generally causing a danger to those around 
them. 

 
2) Amenity for local residents and businesses 

Loss of parking outside of peak times is actually going to be more detrimental to local residents and businesses (the hair 
salon, library, One Stop and others) and especially outside of peak traffic flow times when it’s still relatively safe to park along 
this stretch.  Peak traffic problems are between 8.15 and 9.00 in the morning, 2.45 and 3.30 in the afternoon, and 5.00 to 6.00 
in the evening.  At evenings and weekends it seems entirely reasonable for visitors to houses on this stretch of road to park 
here, without causing difficulty to traffic flow. 

 
3) Road safety / traffic calming requirements. 

What Ash Street particularly needs is traffic calming.  At peak traffic flow times, parking restricts the available space but 
nothing stops large articulated lorries, car transporters, tractors, funfair operators etc from using this route as the SatNav 
recommended route from Aldershot to Guildford and Woking, when the landscape of the road cannot cope with these 
vehicles.  Out of peak traffic flow times, drivers are often tempted to travel along this stretch faster than the mandated speed 
limit.  Physical traffic calming measures would help ensure that large vehicles seek alternative routes while ensuring that 
regular traffic keeps to a safe speed limit.  Personally, I do not like “speed bumps” as I drive a classic car with minimal ground 
clearance, but would favour the introduction of priority chicanes as can be seen in Tongham.  I would also favour a lower 
speed limit outside the school, with the introduction of textured tarmac so drivers are encouraged to slow down through 
feedback through the wheel. 

269 

I wish to express my full support of the proposed, No waiting at anytime yellow lines, between 34&54 Ash Street and 10 Ash Street 
towards The Greyhound pub. 
 
My reasons are wholly due to promote a safer journey to school for the children of Ash Walsh infants and juniors. 
 
On numerous occasions, over the last year, pedestrians on the pavement, on their walk towards the school (and many years previous 
I speculate), on the pavement between 34&54 Ash Street, have been stuck by passing vehicles wing mirrors. The reason for this is 
due to the cars parked cars on the opposite side of the road, between 47&55 in particular. It forces vehicles travelling in both 
directions through a narrow passage way, forcing cars to travel so closely up against the kerb stone that the vehicles wing mirror 
overhangs the pavement. I myself have been a recent victim to such an issue, incident reported to the police, ref OR-5101267-777 
where upon, as a result of the vehicles collision, it has caused injury to my wrist, that now requires medical attention. 
 
Having said that though, I am aware that if the road is clear of parked cars on both sides of Ash Street, then the speed at which 
vehicles travel at will then increase, posing a further danger to the children. Perhaps, in addition to the yellow lines you could 
introduce railings outside house numbers 46-30??????? 
 
I am AGAINST new parking restrictions (yellow lines) down Star Lane. Parking down Star Lane allows working parents to collect their 
child straight from work, there is not other parking solution. Yellow lines placed where you have proposed will only cause a parking 
issue further down Star Lane, a pointless exercise! cars will just park on opposite side, solving nothing. 

P
age 192

IT
E

M
 10



275 

I write to register my opposition to the proposed parking controls for Ash Street and Star Lane. I refer specifically to the drawing "Draft 
proposals, Ash Street and Star Lane, Ash" where the diagram shows that further areas will be covered by double yellow lines. 
 
Congestion and parking problems in the vicinity of my property are primarily caused by parents of children at the two nearby schools. 
The issue that affects me is the very frequent blockage of the drive to my house on school days. 
 
The likely effect of the proposed controls will be to cause there to be more vehicles parked in the vicinity of my property and 
significantly increase the liklihood of my drive being blocked. I suspect that the situation could become so bad that I would have to 
leave my car outside on the street, rather than on the drive. 
 
The only way to resolve the parking issues in the area will be to require the schools to provide adequate parking on site, such that 
parents are not parking inconsiderately in the area. 
 
At school pick up time I have seen cars parked on private property outside no 47 and no 32. Attempting to prevent people parking 
outside a narrow defined area will likely lead to a greater frequency of such incidents. 
 
From my point of view, the issue of my drive being blocked could, in theory, be solved by further extending the double yellow lines so 
that they reach to no 43, however I am sceptical about the effectiveness of enforcement. It seems to me that people frequently ignore 
the double yellow lines that currently exist in the area. 
 
If any change to the parking in the area causes me increased problems, then I will have to be in contact with the planning committee 
to suggest further amendments. 

277 

I would like to OBJECT to the proposed Yellow Lines in Ash Street. 
 
Ash Street is already a fast road, if you add yellow lines and take away the parked cars this will make the road much faster.  As there 
are two schools on Ash Street this really isn’t a good idea!! 
 
Also, where are all the residents who have lived there for years going to park??   Some have lived in Ash Street for 40 years they 
have got used to the fact they can’t park outside their houses at school pick up and drop off, but not being able to park at all is 
madness, where will all the cars go???  This will impact on the valve of their houses as well. 
 
Where will all the school parents and visitors to the school park, not everyone can walk to school.  The school have also asked that 
no one parks on the school site when collecting from afterschool clubs… Where are they all going to park when collecting???   I can 
see its going to be mayhem, with all parents driving round trying to find a space.   I would assume they will all park where the yellow 
lines stop so further down star lane etc… making those places even busier. 
 
Lots of school parents park on the Front of Gordon Farley’s shop, I see he has put in planning for 5 flats, which will bring probably 
another 10 cars to Ash Street and the school parent won’t be able to park there either. 
 
The parked cars on Ash Street, aren’t the reason for slow traffic in Ash Street, the only time its slow and busy are school times/rush 
hour.  The other day the co-op delivery Truck double parked outside the co-op causing a huge traffic jam both ways down Ash Street 

P
age 193

IT
E

M
 10



they were stand still for ages. 
 
I really don’t know how the Yellow Lines will help anything, I believe they will make it worse. 
 
If these yellow lines do go ahead, what are you going to do about the speed on Ash Street, how will you slow the traffic outside and 
near to the schools???  I believe you will cause more traffic problems, with parents driving round and round trying to park. 

284 

As a resident of Ash Street for 45 years I would like to strongly object to your proposals and appeal to Guildford Borough Council to 
reconsider the necessity of this scheme. I would also suggest that views of the local residents that are affected by such changes 
should be considered at a far earlier stage. 
 
The real issue for Ash Street is the completely inadequate provision of parking for both Walsh First and Walsh Middle Schools which 
creates chaos twice a day where parents dropping off and picking up school children park anywhere and everywhere. 
 
This is compounded by the poorly considered decision to allow a co-op store to be built within a few hundred yards again with no 
provision for parking other than along Ash Street. 
 
It should be noted that outside of school opening and pick up times the street provides sufficient parking for local residents and users 
of both shops and is neither unsafe or affects traffic flow. 
 
It seems patently obvious that far from improving the situation, decreasing the number of available spaces will actually make things 
far worse and in view of this we strongly reject the proposals. 

297 

I wish to object in the strongest possible terms to the proposed parking controls on Ash Street and Star Lane. 
 
I live in Ash Street, on the corner of Ash Street and Star Lane, and currently have no off-street parking available.  When I purchased 
this property, I was able to park directly outside the house.  But then double yellow lines were extended along the entire frontage of 
the property which caused friction between myself and my neighbours in competing for space. 
 
There is now precious little space available, and I cannot understand how reducing the available parking further is going to help.  I 
would suggest that you should look at providing *more* parking, rather than further restrictions.  Perhaps the car park at Ash Library 
could be left open? 
 
Looking at your map, please note the white spaces which it might be assumed are available for parking are in fact in front of 
driveways and a bus stop.  Although the bus stop is not indicated on the ground, I have had the police on one occasion call on me at 
home to ask me to move my car from the vicinity of the bus stop.  So it will essentially not be possible for me to park anywhere near 
my home. 
 
There is a serious problem with parking in the area, due to both customers visiting the Co-op and, more seriously, parents dropping 
off and waiting for children from the junior school.  Due to this intense competition people often park outside my house on the double 
yellow lines, or in the bus stop.  Employing a two-hour restriction will do nothing to deter this behaviour, but will only serve to penalise 
residents who need somewhere to park their vehicles when at home. 

P
age 194

IT
E

M
 10



 
I also believe that the proposed restrictions will adversely affect the value of my home because prospective buyers will be aware that 
there is no parking available for themselves or their guests. 
 
Please don't do this.  It's enough of a struggle to find a parking space as it is.  These proposals would make my life hell. 

300 

I am writing to object to the proposed changes to parking restrictions along Ash  Street, Ash. 
 
The section of road between the library and greyhound pH consists mainly of pre-war housing with no driveways or other form of off-
road parking.  There are a significant number of young families and older people in the road who rely on the current parking 
arrangements and their ability to park outside of, or very near to their properties.  Additionally, people visiting the post office rely on 
the small section of on street parking near to the library.  
 
We feel that the current parking situation is just about adequate for residents needs, and for those visiting the shops and school. A 
further reduction in on-street parking would cause chaos along this busy stretch of road. 

327 

We are writing to express our concern regarding the proposed parking changes to Ash Street. 
 
As residents of Ash street we believe the proposed changes will lead to greater congestion in the area where  '2 hours no return for 
four hour zone' is proposed. The majority of traffic that parks in this area does so to pop in and use the Co-Op shop. The cars are 
therefore parked for about 5 - 15 minutes and restricting it to 2 hours maximum will not reduce this. As the other part of the road is set 
to become double yellow this will cause cars to park in this 2 hour zone and also in Ash Lodge Drive, or for cars to risk it and park on 
the double yellows if they just plan to pop into the shop. 
 
Parking is already difficult for us, we live in the proposed two hour zone and we believe this will make parking for us even more 
difficult as cars that could park more towards star lane will not be able to so will park in the zone outside our house. 
 
We believe a possible solution, if the proposed changes are agreed, could be for the residents in this section of road to have permits 
which allow them to park in this zone with no restrictions. 
 
We appreciate that there can be congestion in this area, particularly during peak times. This is often caused when larger vehicles 
such as buses or lorries pass through - particularly when the large delivery lorries for the Co-Op are parked. Implementing the 
proposed changes will not solve this problem as there is no-where else for the lorries to park and traffic is only able to pass in a single 
flow at these times. 

332 

I disagree with the traffic proposal for ash road, near the Walsh infant primary. 
 
There us already lack of parking to get to school and this would just make it even harder for parents go park and get to school. 
 
Also what is needed down this road is traffic calming measures as cars speed down this road and also across pedestrian  crossing 
whilst people still crossing. I have personally  documented events like this that have happened  to me and complained to school in 
hope to get some traffic calming measures or a lollipop lady or longer time on crossing that us there. 

P
age 195

IT
E

M
 10



 
I believe that taken out yellow lines would in fact increase  speeding that is already present and make the road faster than it already 
is!! Presenting and even harder problem to keep children safe whilst using the road. 
 
The crossing in front of one stop on ash road is frequently  a trouble spot as motorist unwilling to wait for those crossing and rush 
through leaving mothers stranded with large pushchairs and you children on a very small crossing. 
 
There is not enough safety measures  on this road and not only have over four near misses with careless drivers on the way to school 
I have heard and seen on the PTA at school that there has been many a reported near miss. 
 
The yellow lines ,would like I say, would just make it a speedway  , which it already is a problem. Plus even more lack of parking for 
parents using cars. 

335 

I have recently moved to Ash and live on Ash Street so these proposed changes would have a significant impact on me. I am aware 
that having on street parking affects the flow of traffic through Ash but I see this as a positive impact as it slows traffic, making this a 
safer and potentially quieter road. I believe cars would frequently far exceed the speed limit with these parking restrictions in place. 
There is also little opportunity to park else where so if there is no on street parking, where are residents, visitors and shop users 
supposed to park? 
 
In conclusion, I am strongly opposed to these planned parking changes. 

338 

I live on Ash Street near the pub and the parking situation this end is dangerous. We have cars parked with 2 wheels on the 
pavement most evenings and weekends and often during the day too, especially at school start and finish times. This makes our view 
of the oncoming traffic from the right towards the roundabout very restricted and dangerous when we are trying to pull out. This road 
can be very busy at times especially as it is a main route to Aldershot from the station.  The other problem is access on the pavement 
for wheelchairs and buggies. There is a disabled bungalow down this end and I have seen the staff have to push the wheelchairs out 
into the road to get round the cars because there isn't enough room on the pavement. They have called the police before who spoke 
to the owners but they soon come back again. I really think it is only a matter of time before an accident occurs here. 

375 

Our concerns are that this will not leave enough parking spaces along the Ash Street section form the pedestrian crossing zig zag 
lines to the traffic islands by the post office so we would object to these parking restrictions.  I did notice that your map does not show 
the existing pedestrian crossing of zigzag no parking lines which already restricts parking in this area.  If your plans go through it will 
leave five parking spaces outside our houses and one of our neighbours will be putting in for a disabled bay shortly, so we would be 
lucky to get one of the other spaces when everyone including school workers are fighting over the last few.  Also the rest of us are not 
getting any younger and can do without having to carry shopping from miles away + the supermarkets will not stop on yellow lines to 
deliver goods.  So if this goes through as I am usually the last one home on shift work I will have to park in one of the estates outside 
someone else’s house. 
 
A couple of years ago we did have a meeting with the police and council members on Ash Street traffic (they left the crossing off their 
diagram as well) and the decision was that parking in Ash Street was good because it slowed the traffic down to a reasonable speed 
which was a good thing. 
 
It seems to me that most of the problem are caused by the parents twice a day going to school and then they do most of the 

P
age 196

IT
E

M
 10



complaining but they cause the problems because they park anywhere and you never see any police on site to advise these drivers of 
their mistakes. 
 
If these restrictions happen that means we can say goodbye to any visits from family of friends who at the moment have to work 
around school drop off and pick up times or they have nowhere to park. 
 
We did apply for planning to have a dropped kern (not cheap) and we were turned down by the council for this and now will be lucky 
to park outside our house if these restrictions go through. 
 
There are not that many parking bay between the roundabout and pedestrian crossing so I guess they will also be trying to park down 
this end as well. 
 
I notice there will be no parking outside the local shops so I guess these will probably close once customers drop off so no more local 
shops either. 
 
Obviously this will also devalue our properties with the restricted parking in the street. 

376 

Unfortunately, the traffic problems seem to be insoluble, given the ever increasing volume of traffic. 
 
However, I do have a couple of points concerning Star Lane which over the last 7 years has become a cut through between Ash 
Street (A323) and Shawfield Road (B3206).  As you are doubtless aware, there is frequently gridlock at the top end, particularly 
between 14:30-15:30 when parents park to collect children from the schools.  It is quite alarming witnessing the antics and impatience 
of some drivers – driving on pavements is common. 
 
Regarding the introduction of ‘No waiting yellow lines’ I would suggest that these should be mirrored on the other side of the road, 
otherwise motorists will merely changes side to park, thus creating a chicane effect.  If this small section which happens to be just 
about where the road bends, it kept clear it will help keep traffic moving.  I also suggest removing the single parking space. 
 
Finally, I should mention that a number of other residents have queried whether it would be possible for a temporary parking space to 
be provided behind the schools for parents collecting their children. 

378 

NO TO PARKING RESTRICTIONS in ASH ST. 
 
I would like to strongly oppose your plans to control parking in Ash Street and Star Lane.  Our community in Ash Street feel our 
parking arrangements are as good as they can be for shops, school and library.  There residents have adequate overnight parking at 
present but this would be lost with your plans for new parking restrictions. 
 
Your plan of the area is very misleading.  Opposite the school in Ash Street it shows a parking area in front of 22 hours, this area is 
reduced by 50% by existing ‘no park’ road markings that you have omitted to show.  Your new arrangements only allow for 16 spaces 
when most of my neighbours are 2 car families.  Why do you wish to prohibit parking in front of the shops leading to the library,  it’s 
ideal for school/shop/library and residents overnight parking with no adverse affect to traffic flow whatsoever.  I have not met anyone 
that can see any merit in your proposals.  Drawing a few coloured lines on a map and discussing it at a meeting does not show a true 
picture of what these palns will have on our community. 

P
age 197

IT
E

M
 10



 
These parking restrictions will have a damaging effect on those that live along Ash Street and I hope you will take not of our protest 
and valid reason for retaining the parking arrangements we have. 

379 

I am very worried about our proposed plans to alter the parking arrangements in Ash Street and Star Lane.  The reasons for the 
proposed changes do not seem to relate to Ash Street directly and would not improve the situation at all. 
 
We have adequate parking at present for residents, if things stay as they are. 
 
Children from 2 schools can be ‘dropped/picked up’ without undue inconvenience close to the school.  Under our present conditions 
the road is busy but traffic flow is unaffected. 
 
Roads signs direct unnecessary traffic to Woking along Ash Street for some reason, perhaps new signage could steer them down the 
A331 and M3 to Woking instead (this would eliminate some goods and lorry traffic). 
 
I have lived in Ash Street nearly 40 years and I can see no reason at all for change with regard to parking.  Everything is running fine, 
traffic speed self regulates itself and there is a natural traffic calming affect with school children are about which is an important safety 
issue.  If anyone from the council was worried about pupil welfare we would have had a ’20 mile flashing speed limit’ by now. 
 
Could I please recommend that someone goes to Ash Walsh School as there seems to be enough land to draw up plans for off road 
parking for school users and residents.  That would be a positive step forward. 
 
Ash Street residents were involved in a meeting, 10-15 years ago when yellow line parking controls were suggested then.  After a 
reasoned debate the conclusion was that in fact …. No improvement to traffic flow of safety would benefit from restricting Ash Street 
parking. 
 
Your yellow lines are not needed.  Leave well alone. 

380, 399 & 
408 

Could I draw to your attention to your plans to restrict parking in Ash Street between The Greyhound PH and The Library. 
 
I note with interest you believe your plans will improve 

i) Our turn over of space in regard to local facilities 
ii) Safety 
iii) Access 
iv) Traffic flow 

 
As a resident for over 35 years we have had no problem with the items you list above and think you can improve. 
 
At present there is ample space for local residents overnight parking + deliveries can be made during work hours and at peak times 

P
age 198

IT
E

M
 10



9am & 3pm, ‘School Mums’ cope without undue hindrance to others and legally park in the area without any risk to anyone’s safety.  
You are trying to solve a problem that does not exist. 
 
Your new yellow lines will do nothing, if 2 lorries meet one will yield and they will pass as they have always done.  The school children 
will come and go as usual, so safety – access – traffic flow are not valid reasons for change. 
 
Parking is your plans biggest failing, 22 houses will be left with spaces for 16 cars.  Some have their own drives but most households 
have 1/2/3 cars and as your plan shows there is absolutely no where else they can go. 
 
This road runs through the heart of our community and would be improved in anyway by your plans.  LEAVE THINGS AS THEY ARE 
PLEASE. 
 
 
 
 
There is considerable unrest, worry and in some cases anger at your new parking proposals.  This part of Ash Street had the original 
housing from the 1900s and is solely residential and very, very dependent on the existing parking arrangements.  We have always 
had kerb-side parking outside our homes, there is absolutely no alternative for us.  Many home-owners are retired, we have ‘disabled’ 
and ‘children with special needs’ living along Ash Street, totally dependent on their vehicles.  Parking arrangements work very well 
with room for all. 
 
Twice a day (30mins at 9am & 3pm) we share the available spaces with dozens of mums and their cars, as they park and then walk 
their children to and from 2 schools situated across the road from our homes.  The road becomes overloaded with the additional 
traffic but the main reason for slow moving traffic is the Pedestrian Crossing continually showing a red light as children cross over and 
safely reach their schools.  I have been monitoring traffic conditions through school ‘comings & goings’ over several days and 
although the system is under strain, never does grid-lock occur or come close to it.  Even when bus meets lorry there is no significant 
hold up.  This daily event has passed without mishap*and we have accepted the situation and the inconvenience for years. 
 
Your plans for yellow lines outside Gordon Farley will make little difference to traffic flow, safety, etc., please believe us, we know.  It 
would reduce parking to 16 spaces, 3 spaces would be lost to a Bus Stop and another to a Disabled space already agreed by SCC so 
the total of space would be 123 spaces to service 2 schools – 22 homes – 2 shops – pub – post office and an ATM machine. 
 
We can tolerate the traffic but we residents should not have to bare the added penalty and hardship of not being able to park our own 
cars outside our own homes. 
 
23 hours out of every day is trouble free, there is not problem to solve.  We were threatened with ‘yellow lines’ several years ago and 
a public meeting exposed the weak argument and the idea of parking restrictions were dropped immediately. 
 
A local Councillor had offered some advice after visiting Ash Street.  Reading between the lines it appears you could take our letters 
to a council meeting and make a decision behind closed door and then stream roller through what you want. 
 

P
age 199

IT
E

M
 10



Talking to neighbours who totally understand how parking and traffic work together along this part of Ash Street, we could offer better 
alternatives to the poor idea of yellow lines. 
 
[* I have recently heard how a pedestrian was frightened by a passing vehicle as she walked close to the pavement edge.  Could you 
please comment on this event, are crazy Health & Safety laws affecting our parking?  Our friends in Ash Vale had the chimes on their 
100 year old village clock silences because a new resident had a problem with noise under Health & Safety, it’s madness] 
 
 
 
 
We, the local home owners, feel that we may have been seriously misled by your letter.  As residents we would like the existing 
parking to remain unchanged from Studio 12 hairdressers / Gordon Farley and along to the library on the A323 Guildford carriageway.  
(there are no objection to other parking restrictions). 
 
We have provided our reasons to the Council in writing.  We totally understand the situation concerning traffic flow and the need for 
parking for i) shoppers ii) residents iii) school mums, and all have lived with the current parking arrangements for many years.  We 
have had meetings before regarding restriction Ash Street parking and they have been rejected. 
 
A GBC document has come to light today** which indicates that parking restrictions will be applied due to ‘accident history’.  This was 
not stated, nor the GBC document which indicates that parking restrictions will be applied due to ‘accident history’.  This was not 
state, nor the GBC document referenced within the initial parking consultation document.  This suggests that residents concerns, 
specifically relating to parking, will be ignored. 
 
The school have informed us of a mother bruised, by a passing car door-mirror. 
 
Could we have details / dates of other accidents your have on record please.  Have the police got the details? 
 
Nothing is more important than child safety.  Could a study be made of what would be required for children to be dropped off / picked 
up on school premises.  They appear to have plenty of space.  Safety worries for children from both schools, parking, traffic flow / 
congestions would be solved instantly, forever. 
 
Mums that bring children to school have no idea at ll that parking close to school will be impossible.  It seems they also have been 
deliberately left out of the information loop.  We feel that reducing parking within the street, this will encourage drivers to increase their 
speed along an already busy road. 
 
Someone with the full facts must inform all interested parties. 
 
As part of the local community we would like to help, get involved and move the situation forward for the benefit of all.  We have some 
safety points of our own but lack someone we can communicate with. 

P
age 200

IT
E

M
 10



381 

The first thing I notice is that you haven’t even got the pedestrian crossing (outside 29 Ash Street) on your map.  Therefore the zigzag 
markings, have made no parking in that area for over 20 years. 
 
On top of that, several houses have drives or off road parking, with white lines across the entrance, so even more places can’t be use 
for parking.  From the Greyhound pub to the library area, there are 22 homes, and with the white lines, there are only 16 spaces for 
car to be parked, and lots of house have 1/2/3 cars. 
 
I have live in Ash Street for over 34 years and don’t have any problem getting parked.  On top of this, people have visitors coming and 
home deliveries etc, where would they park, if you plans go ahead?  Putting yellow lines down will only make cars etc race along, and 
this road is not a motorway. 
 
The Ash railway crossing is close for 30 minutes every hour, and we then get a build up of traffic, but is soon passes along the road.  
In the past a meeting was held re: traffic.  The police also attended, and the police found no problems with how things were being 
managed, and nothing has changed since then.. I have found out that lots of lorries use this road from the A331 to get to Woking – 
the reason is its signposted Woking on the road signs on the A331.  This road the A323 doesn’t go to, it the road road to Guildford.  It 
seems to me “someone” hasn’t a clue of where Ash is, or what road should be taken to Woking.  Ash isn’t even on the road sign on 
the A331 – apparently there was no room for it.  Three letters!!!!! 
 
DO NOT CHANGE A THING IN ASH STREET.  THERE ARE NO PROBLEMS – LEAVE THINGS AS THEY ARE NOW, AND GO 
AND DO OTHER THINGS, THAT DO NEED SEEING TO. 

400 
We would like to object to the proposed parking restrictions in Ash Street.  There is currently a large chunk of road where it is not 
possible for residents to park due to the school crossing which is of course perfectly right for the safety of the children.  The new 
introductions would make it difficult for residents to park. 

404 

I would like to register my objection to the proposed parking restrictions in Ash Street, as this would make it impossible to visit my 
elderly parents with their grandchildren.  There will be no spaces left for the residents like my parents to park outside their own home 
if there are yellow lines there will only be a few spaces left which everyone will be fighting for.  It would also cause problems for myself 
trying to take my children to and from school, we don’t all live in walking distance of the school and a lot of the mums have to go 
straight to work after dropping their children off.  Also the parent from both schools have not been told about these restriction 
proposals and I know there will be a lot of mums that will not be happy as there will not be anywhere to park which will cause uproar.  
I think the cars which park along Ash Street are a good thing as it slow the traffic down a lot.  If no cars were parked there you would 
have cars speeding down Ash Street. 

 

P
age 201

IT
E

M
 10



 
ANNEXE 12 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Cabell Road area, Guildford 
(introduced various yellow lines around junctions and bends) 

(6 representations) 

80 

I reside in Broomfield in the house right on the corner with Pond Meadow. Having looked at the plan I see that the parking restrictions 
will be enforce right outside my home. 
 
Whilst I appreciate that safety is vital on our residential streets I feel these restrictions will have a severe impact on my day to day life. 
 
My next door neighbours (number 55) have 3 cars in their house hold so parking here is already limited. The houses opposite have all 
got dropped kerbs so parking there is also not possible. I did apply for a garage in the council garage block behind my home in Pond 
Meadow but got turned down due to planned development there. The area in Pond Meadow beside my house will also be covered by 
the restriction and further down Pond Meadow where the restriction will end is already used by the residents who live there!! 
 
This just leaves me one question. WHERE AM I SUPPOSE TO PARK????????? 
 
There are only two solutions I can see to resolve this major problem for myself. One is to convert a section of my front garden to off 
street parking. This will of course involve dropping the kerb outside my house (which is dropped on the bend already) and 
paving/concreting a section of my front garden. (many properties in the same area of the road as my house have already had this 
done so a president has already been set)). 
 
Two is to convert a section of my back garden to off street parking. This could also be achieved by removing a section of my back 
fence and replacing with a double gate and then creating a section of hard standing for my car. My back garden directly backs onto  
the access road for the Pond Meadow Council garage block so access would be easy (again this has been done by other residents). 
This would mean I would have to use my side door rather than front door for ease of access to my home but This wouldn't really be a 
problem. 
 
Obviously making these changes would come at a cost, a cost that I am not in a position to pay due to being a single parent with two 
school age daughters and therefore only being able to work part time. 
 
I do feel that as GBC want to implement these changes which would make it impossible for me to park anywhere near my home then 
it would only be fair for them to carry out either of the changes I have suggested at GBC's cost. 

P
age 202

IT
E

M
 10



113 

Thank you for the letter about the new proposals for parking restrictions on roads in Park Barn, Guildford, including Pond Meadow. 
The changes seem quite minor and common sense and we have no objection to them at all. 
 
Anyway, we were also surprised that the changes do not include outside the shops on the corner of Southway / Pond Meadow as this 
is the only trouble spot we've noticed in the area in terms of parking. I think maybe that's because lines on the road are already in 
existence there and people ignore them to pop into the shop and park right on the corner. I guess you can only do so much! We 
hadn't noticed a problem further down the road, but then we do have a driveway so we just park on that. 

145 

I have seen the proposed parking restrictions for Cabell Road and whilst I understand why they are being considered, in reality what 
will happen is that those people who cannot park where they usually do will simply move further down the road making an already 
difficult parking position worse.  Can you not turn some of the grass verges into parking areas? 
  
The reason parking has become such an issue on Park Barn generally is that Guildford Borough Council has permitted single family 
homes to be turned into houses of multiple occupation (mostly for students), meaning more cars per dwelling.  I was under the 
impression that the original transfer from GBC provided that right to buy homes continued to be used as single family dwellings.  Is 
this the case? 

262 

Regarding the Parking controls around the Park Barn area, I agree with the proposals on parking in this are. but on studying the Map, 
I have some questions, I see that you propose to restrict Parking for a few Metres opposite the old driveway next to number 7 Cabell 
drive, I could understand it if the Drive was in use. also the Residents in Cabell road at the Park barn Drive end, are getting fed up, 
with Hospital staff , turning up at 8am parking anywhere they like and Blocking access to properties sometimes, they treat this area as 
an overflow car park for the Hospital, any chance of extending  a parking restriction a few more Metres, from the Junction of Park 
Barn Drive? it might stop them, but I doubt it. 
 
I have one more moan! regarding Foxburrows Avenue at the Junction with Southway, cars completely blocking the Pavement 
pedestrians have to walk into the road, even worse with mothers with push chairs. 

331 
Hi I live further down Cabell road, I am concerned that it will have a knock on effect especially as it's Broomfield just behind us as 
well. There is only just enough parking as it is. They will all move down effecting parking around us. 

354 
I live in Stoney Brook.  While we agree that parking should be controlled in some areas, the main concerns is where are these cars 
going!  Some houses have two to three cars with only one hard stand.  What happens then?  The flats across the road from us have 
many cars with parking on the grass as their option.  Can some of this grass not be converted into a hard stand? 

P
age 203

IT
E

M
 10



 
ANNEXE 12 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER  
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

College Road / Ash Hill Road, Ash 
(introduced double yellow lines near junctions) 

(6 representations) 

64 

In reference to proposed parking controls in Ash Hill Road and College Road. 
 
No objection to proposed parking controls as they are required for safety reasons but the issues that will arise due to these additional 
parking controls will need to be addressed.  Currently parking on Ash Hill Road is difficult for residents due to staff and customer 
parking from the Sassy Hairdressing business.  Customers frequently park in a hap hazard fashion, some distance away from the 
kerb causing obstructions for passing cars and other cars pulling out into traffic.  Parking is with little or no consideration to other road 
users frequently occupying one to two car lengths therefore restricting  other parking spaces.  The proposed controls will further 
decrease parking spaces exacerbating the current issues.   
 
Can additional parking measures be introduced to assist in considerate and safe parking in the  now reduced area ? ...such as 
marked bays? 

66 

I am writing in regards to the proposed parking changes to Ash hill road, to which I oppose.   
 
I don't believe that these measures will help in any way, there are more issues on the road in regards to sheer weight of traffic that 
passes down there than there are with inconvenient parking.  I believe that these changes will cause problems with parking spaces 
for those that live in the houses near the junction. 

180 & 271 

I am writing to oppose the proposed parking restrictions at the junction of Ash Hill Road and College Road. We live on the north 
corner of Ash Hill Road and College Road and our hedge extends some 40-metres up the north side of College Road. The proposed 
parking restrictions would effectively wipe out all the on road parking space outside our house, both in College Road and Ash Hill 
Road. In College Road we would be the only house to be affected in this way, as all the houses opposite on the south side of College 
Road have  off road parking space and with the exception of our one car garage we do not. We note that the proposed double yellow 
lines for the north side of College Road would extend some 40 metres, right to the wall of our garage, making it much longer than any 
other proposed for a side road in current plans, or in current use in this area. 
 
The letter of 30th October states that ' the  proposals in Ash Hill Road and College Road are intended to improve access and visibility 
around various junctions.' Having emailed Mr Andy Harkin about the rationale for the inordinate length of the yellow lines in College 
Road, Mr Harkin replied that the road at this point was narrow and that the remaining running aisle was 'less than desirable.' Without 
giving any details, Mr Harkin's email mentioned damage to properties on the south side caused by lorries delivering further up the 
road, and said that the same access problems could apply for emergency vehicles. 
 
Access 

P
age 204

IT
E

M
 10



 
Surrey's own guidelines for the access of emergency vehicles recommends a minimum carriageway of 2.75 metres. The running aisle 
from a parked car outside our back gate in College Road is 2.95 metres. Not surprisingly, the recycling lorry that comes weekly has 
no difficulty passing without damage to either our cars or the properties opposite. Even wider vehicles do certainly have to slow down 
to pass, but College Road is not a wide road at any point and the road is narrower at many points further up College Road, where no 
restrictions are proposed; and as with the recycling lorry, even the wider lorries pass on a regular basis without causing damage 
either to our cars or to the properties opposite. 
 
Visibility 
 
The stretch of College Road from the junction with Ash Hill Road is perfectly straight for at least 200-metres, affording excellent 
visibility to all traffic going in either direction. The only difficulty is for traffic turning right from Ash Hill Road into College Road where 
the angle is extremely acute ; but instead of using the full width of the road and entering College Road on the left hand side of the 
road, drivers are on occasions tempted to cut the corner and enter on the right hand side, so can find themselves facing oncoming 
traffic. However this is a problem of the geography of an acute turn compounded by poor driving, and would not, we would argue, be 
ameliorated by parking restrictions. College Road is well lit at night at this stretch, with excellent visibility of all parked cars. 
 
Damage/Safety 
 
As mentioned above it has been stated that a number (not specified) of incidents have been reported of damage to properties on the 
south side of College Road. Without details it is difficult to comment, but if the inference has been drawn that a car or cars parked 
along our hedge have been to  blame, careful consideration needs to be given whether the damage was simply the result of careless 
driving for, as stated above, the running aisle by our hedge is above the recommended minimum for the access of emergency 
vehicles. 
 
No aspect of any changes can be more important that safety. As has been stated College Road is narrow at many points. Many cars 
are parked throughout the length of the road, effectively limiting the road to one carriageway. There are also stretches of road without 
pavement and driving up or down College Road on a daily basis one comes across pedestrians, including families with children, 
walking in the road. Yet in practice College Road is not dangerous and having lived here for 33 years I know of no incidents of injury 
to pedestrians. The reason of course is the acknowledged traffic calming effect of parked cars: people drive more carefully.  The 
stretch of College Road under consideration also has no pavements and families with children use it daily. The most careful 
consideration must surely, therefore, be given to the positive advantages of cars parked, as ours are, by our hedge. Obviously when 
either injury to people or damage to property does not occur there can be no statistics to cite, but in over 30 years the most potent 
danger to life and limb  in College Road has come from the very occasional incident of speeding over 30 mph either up or down the 
road.  To place parking restrictions in the manner suggested would in our view present reckless drivers with at least 60-metres before 
forced to slow down, and the result would be a road made less safe. 
 
Displacement in College Road 
 
The letter of 30th October states that 'we recognise the introduction of parking restrictions can cause the availability of parking to 
reduce and for it to displace to other areas.' We are a 3 car family and 2 of our cars would be displaced to the barely wider length of 

P
age 205

IT
E

M
 10



College Road between our garage and New Road. While we would naturally make every effort to reduce any inconvenience to our 
neighbours, inevitably the addition of our cars to any cars displaced from Ash Hill Road would lead to friction and ill feeling because 
whatever the legal right, few people like to have neighbours' cars parked outside their house. 
 
In conclusion it is our view that under the criteria of access and visibility cited in the letter of 30th October, the case for the proposed 
controls in College Road has just not been made. The proposals are highly discriminatory in their scope and resulting impact on one 
household and as well as the added congestion, the proposals would, crucially, make the road less safe. 
 
We would like to propose  2 alternatives  for the northern side of College Road: 
 
1. Our preferred option - either no controls or the 10-metre legal minimum within which parking is illegal 
 
Or: 
 
2. A slightly longer stretch of double yellow lines but which still leaves room for parked cars along our fence and hedge. (See 

attached photos).  
 
We hope very much that the lines do not extend beyond the newly cut back area of the hedge that now enables us to park partly on 
our land and thus widen the road. It should not be inferred from either our installation of fencing, or cutting back the hedge, that we 
acknowledge the existence of underlying problems, but have done so in a spirit of community cooperation. 
 
 
If double yellow lines are placed on College Road and Ash Hill road then at least 5/6 vehicles will need to relocate. The natural place 
to which vehicles will relocate would be further down College Road, towards the cusp of the hill. The road is barely wider than the part 
of College Road where double yellow lines have been suggested and also suffers from poor visibility due to a slight bend in the road 
over the hill. This will have a negative impact on many of the residents of College and Ash Hill Road whilst only placating one or two. 
 
Visibility for the first 200m of College Road is excellent. Moving parking from the end of College Road to the cusp of a hill with 
reduced visibility would, in my opinion, be short sighted and would make pulling into College Road from New Road virtually 
impossible. I also feel the reduced visibility coupled with an influx of parked cars would make this pinch point of the road dangerous 
for all road users and would increase the likelihood of an accident. There have been no such accidents on College Road over the last 
30 years whilst parking has been self-governed by the residents. 
 
Access is another reason cited for introducing double yellow lines on College Road which is not an issue at all. In the ‘Surrey County 
Council Traffic Calming Good Practice Guidance’ you state that the required width for any vehicle (bar agricultural) to pass a road is 
2.75 metres. At all points where double yellow lines are proposed there is far more than 2.75 metres clearance from any parked car. 
The road has been accessed in the past by emergency vehicles and the refuse collection vehicles pass this part of the road with no 
troubles at all – not even a wing mirror has been clipped! 
 
In response to this Mr Harkin has suggested that the preferred width of road would be 3 metres – this begs the question as to why the 
parking restrictions are only being proposed to part of College Road when large swathes of the road do not meet this ‘preferred’ 

P
age 206

IT
E

M
 10



target. I can only feel this is discriminatory or over compensating for a vocal minority. 
 
Mr Harkin has also cited ‘a number’ (later confirmed as 2) of incidents that have caused damage to properties on College Road as a 
justification for these parking restrictions. The only damage I am aware of was to a small brick wall that was recently built on the road 
and knocked down some weeks later. There is absolutely no substantive evidence that the damage inflicted to this recently built wall 
was due to cars parked on the other side of the road. It seems far more likely that this was caused by careless driving and could just 
as easily have happened if 2 moving vehicles passed each other outside of this property, which parking restrictions would not 
prevent. 
 
It is stated in the Highway Code that no car should park within 10 metres of a junction. On College Road this is not and has never 
been a problem. The car that parks closest to the junction at the end of College Road is at least 15 metres away at all times. 
Therefore the cars that park on College Road already follow best practice and to make this change would be unnecessary and 
discriminatory to the few houses at the end of the road that would be affected. 
 
In local committee meetings the following statement is made regarding to parking restrictions: 
There is often a balance to be made between traffic flow and parking and on occasions parking can help to reduce traffic speeds and 
improve safety. 
 
This is exactly the situation on College Road. Currently there is a ‘slalom’ effect where road users slow down to weave in between 
parked cars, which helps reduce the speed of the traffic. Many of the residents have young children as well as driveways that lead 
blindly into the road.  Again, having cars parked outside people’s houses causes traffic to slow and increases safety. 
 
Security would also be a concern. If these restrictions are put in place then I and other road users would no longer be able to park our 
cars outside of our own houses. They would have to be parked out of earshot which would mean insurance quotes will increase and 
peace of mind will decrease. 
 
In summary these proposals are short sighted. If there had been a single accident, pedestrian injury or near miss along College Road 
due to the cars parked towards the junction with Ash Hill Road then I would be the first to support these changes. But there has not.  
In over 30 years nobody has been hurt and no cars have crashed. The few reasons that the council have provided to justify these 
changes do not seem to line up with your own best practise guide and can be seen only as discriminatory with the potential to make 
the road dangerous. 
 
I would urge the decision makers in this case to walk/drive up college road to assess for themselves as I am sure if this is done then 
common sense would prevail and the parking restrictions on College Road would not be approved. 
 
Furthermore, cars do park in the sections of College Road may be the same width as in the length where controls are proposed. The 
road is at its narrowest just after the junction with New Road, yet cars park there regularly. Further down approaching the junction 
with Heathcote Road but before the pavement begins, cars also park. Cars are also parked on the pavement in Grove Road, meaning 
pedestrians have to use the road, and leaving a running aisle certainly no wider than where controls are suggested. 
 
We stress this to point out the discriminatory nature of the current proposals that extend so far up College Road from the junction with 

P
age 207

IT
E

M
 10



Ash Hill Road. We make no complaint whatever about the fact cars park at these points as all it needs is to drive slowly and carefully 
to get past and not endanger pedestrians.  Although parking in our section of College Road may have attracted complaints, while the 
other stretches had not, in light of the arguments we have made and the evidence provided, we do hope any decision will be based 
on a thorough appraisal of the merits of those complaints, as it appears to us that a degree of sensible tolerance prevailing in the rest 
of the road has not been extended to the stretch outside our house. 
 
No details were given of the alleged instances of vehicles failing to gain access to College Road. Nevertheless, I hope common sense 
is applied, and if these vehicles were too wide to gain access at the College Road junction, they would not have got beyond the New 
Road junction where a parked car leaves even less space to pass. 

190 
GBC Refuse 
& recycling 

We have experienced some problems accessing this road, we do service this road with a smaller lorry though. 

194 

On returning from holiday we were pleased to see that a proposal for double yellow lines was being put forward in College Rd until we 
went into your website and saw that the proposal did not include the junction opposite no 41 and 42. This junction is by far a more a 
safety issue than cars parking at the beginning of the road, the short time we have lived in no 41 there has been two crashes and our 
wall  has been knocked down five times the last time it was not repairable  at our expense a new wall has been put up, this is due to 
vehicles parking and obstructing the view of people using this junction these incidents have been reported to Guildford Council and 
Mr Jason Lewis at Surrey Highways, the answers we received was that there should be Yellow lines to avoid another accident which 
could be a fatal one, cars use this road as a 30 mile limit not knowing that View road is there. you are prepaid to put Yellow Lines at 
the other end of View Rd and Ash Hill Rd so why has this end been disregarded? We would also like to add that at the moment cars 
parking at this junction restrict us from using our drives so if certain cars are relocated this will make things worse at this junction. Yes 
we agree that yellow lines are needed in College Road so please put forward a proposal for the Yellow Lines to include this 
dangerous junction. We would appreciate your help in solving this problem because as we have tried to explain that the View Road 
junction is more of a priority than cars at the beginning of College Road which are visible to road users, the most logical solution 
would be to put Yellow Lines from Ash Hill Rd to the junction of View Rd. Will await your comments and hope you will act on our 
comments. 
 
We have yet again had our wall damaged by an unknown vehicle.  This new wall has only been up for 3 or so months.  The old wall 
was replaced because it was getting dangerous due to continuous damage. 
 
We have made every effort to warn users by placing reflectors etc however this continues to be ignored.  The offending vehicle has 
not bothered to tell us of this damage which occurred yesterday afternoon. 
 
This is the sixth time damage has occurred on our wall.  In light of the imminent yellow lines for this road we would appreciate some 
thoughts on what other measures could be taken to avoid this in future. 
 
The main offenders appear to be large vehicles turning off View road into College Road. 

P
age 208

IT
E

M
 10



232 

I totally agree that there should be parking restrictions along Ash Hill Road where View Road which runs along side the War Memorial 
 joins, I first contact Guildford during 1980's when the shop in Ash Hill Road was a C/B Shop then a Video Hire Shop,, It is now a 
hairdressers. 
 
It is good that Guildford now recognize that it is a problem after all these years. I was told at the time that because View Road was a 
private road leading on to Ash Hill Road it wasn't a Guildford problem.. 
 
The council did agree to paint some white lines, there are only patches of it left, about about 2 years ago , I spoke to a man marking 
the road with blue paint, who said it needed repainting.. the blue paint has since worn away..  and the white was never done. 
 
My address is College Road, however the driveway and entrance to my property is in View Road. 
 
What we don't want is for more cars / white vans etc parking in View Road because of the restrictions. 
 
Many times we have problems trying to turn left out of View Road ( we never turn right to dangerous ). 
 
The restrictions in College Road / Ash Hill Road has only been a problem since the owners of the corner  property park on/near the 
corner, many a lorry has had to reverse back down College Road as they couldn't pass on there way to Ash Hill Road. P

age 209

IT
E

M
 10



 
ANNEXE 12 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Ferry Lane, Guildford 
(curtail existing bay to accommodate newly created access) 

(8 representations) 

250 

I write concerning the proposed change in Ferry Lane. 
 
I enjoy walking my dog by the river and often park on the railway bridge in Ferry Lane for about 40 minutes. Space is already tight 
there and it will be even tighter if the double line space is increased.  
 
I guess the reason for the proposed change is to allow access to the ad hoc mud car park which has sprung up over the summer. 
This seems a poor trade off to me. 

293 

I absolutely object to converting part of the existing parking bay to a no waiting at any time double yellow line. 
 
We, as residents already have great difficulty with the limited parking spaces available to us. There are only 6 parking bays that are 
available to all the 11 households that live on Ferry Lane as well as their visitors and the general public who park here to visit the river 
or Guildford Town Centre. So when there are no parking spaces left (which is often, especially in the Summer months) where are we 
meant to park? 
 
Every time there has been an parking issue or planning application Guildford Council have always put the residents needs last and 
have given more parking rights to the contractors working streets away as well as to the general public. It has become clear that 
whatever objections we have aren't given the consideration they deserve, especially as we pay tax as well as paying for parking 
permits. It seems to us that these procedures you have in place to allow us to object are there just to make us feel like we are able to, 
but really you have already made up your minds to give your approval. 
 
Firstly, Surrey County Highways gave permission to give access to the land now used as a car park on Ferry Lane without asking or 
speaking to any residents here. I was told that the contractors have more rights to have access to this parking area then we do to 
park the road in which we pay to park in. This consent was given before planning permission was approved to change the land into a 
car park. 
 
Secondly, planning permission has been given to change this conservation area into a car park regardless of the many objections 
given by the residents of Ferry Lane and the surrounding area. As the permission for the use of this conservation land as a car park is 
only temporary and will be returned to it's natural state, does that mean the parking space will also be returned back to the original 
size at that time? 
 
Yet again, you are about to give these people more access to entering this land by taking away our limited parking bays. Why are you 
doing this? In all this time not one of you has spared your time to contact any of us separately or as a group about these issues which 
makes me question whether you really care or whether there are financial benefits given to you to approve these matters. This is 

P
age 210

IT
E

M
 10



coming across more and more clearly as time goes on because the people that should benefit from living here are the residents but 
unfortunately this doesn't appear to be the case. 
 
The contractors have been parking on this land for nearly a year without needing more space to reverse into this small area of land. 
We need more parking spaces here on Ferry Lane not less. Where do you suggest we park when there are no spaces available? 
Especially for those residents who are over 80 and those with children who have to carry shopping etc. They would have to park far 
away and cross over a busy road and walk a long a foot wide pavement alongside that busy road just to get access to Ferry Lane. 
 
We also often have rail track vans down here parking while they maintain the track. There is a major electricity generator where this 
area of land in question is and sometimes the electricity company need access to park there. The nearest parking is over a hundred 
metres away and that's if you can get parking there. This lane is very small and is the last road accessible in walking distance to 
Guildford and the river on the Portsmouth Road. There isn't anywhere else for us to park.  
 
What you should really be approving is changing the parking bays to Permit Holders only at all times not restricting our rights to park. 

298 

In April this year I wrote a letter strongly objecting to the proposal for a temporary change of use of an open space in Ferry lane for 
car parking for the use of contractors working on Langton Priory.  The space had been used for several months illegally without 
permission and causing havoc and distress to local residents because of the increase in traffic, leaving the road in a very muddy and 
slippery state , and abuse from contractors on occasions when a resident’s car might be positioned perfectly legally but causing 
difficulty for contractors driving in or out of their (at that stage) illegal parking area. 
 
Residents who pay for parking permits and visiting friends and relatives are suffering great difficulty in trying to find parking spaces; I 
am told that some contractors who are worried that in wet weather their vehicles would get stuck in mud in the car park have been 
seen to park in Ferry Lane in one of the Resident/Visitor/Limited parking spaces.  To have one of the already limited number of 
parking spaces for the use of residents and their visitors removed is totally unacceptable.   It is particularly unacceptable because the 
main reason seems to be to allow easier access to the contractors’ car park.  Does this not suggest that it pays to flout planning laws 
because in the end the parties in the wrong get everything they want? 
 
One great concern about this is that the “Temporary change of use of the amenity space to parking” is that after nine months the 
space will revert from parking, yet the residents will still be a parking space short, and this does not make logical sense . . .  unless 
the developers have other plans:   i.e. to apply for planning permission to develop the site for housing and the proposed street parking 
restrictions will suit this aim.  I would be grateful if someone in the Guildford Borough Planning Department could confirm that this 
type of development will never be granted permission. 
 
My daughter and son-in law live at St. Catherine’s Hill and their cottage backs onto Ferry Lane exactly opposite the contractors’ car 
park and the proposed reduction in visitors parking spaces.  My wife and I both visit regularly to baby sit our two small 
granddaughters, and have recently suffered delays when we arrived in Ferry Lane because of the lack of parking spaces. 
 
If the main reason for wanting to reduce the number of parking spaces is that the contractors are demanding easier access to their 
parking,  has it not been considered that a much more amenable solution for the residents is for the developer to move the position of 
the access gate onto Ferry Lane. 
 

P
age 211

IT
E

M
 10



I hope that you are able to see the reasoning of the points that I have raised, and realise that it is important to consider the views of 
residents and their visiting families over the demands of wealthy developers who have no, or at the best, very limited interest in the 
adverse effect their money making schemes have on the local community. 

303 

I understand the Council is proposing to reduce the number of parking spaces for residents in Ferry Lane in order to give even more 
access to site vehicles from the distant building site at Langton Priory, and I would like to object to this for the following reasons: 
 
1. The loss of just one bay might seen insignificant to the Council but to the residents of Ferry Lane it represents an enormous loss - 
which certainly gives rise to tensions and anxiety amongst the residents - 2 very elderly ladies who struggle with heavy shopping, and 
two mothers with babies and very young children amongst them - who all need easy access to their homes. 
 
2. Ferry Lane is a narrow single-track lane for much of the way leading down to the river, and until recently mainly used by walkers, 
both as part of the North Downs Way and as a pleasant walk into Guildford. It's in a Conservation Area, to the rear of a group of listed 
cottages of historic interest, and in an area regarded as a local beauty spot. 
 
3. Unnecessary enlargement of the access to the quagmire created by removal of topsoil in the land now used as parking by the site 
vehicles is in the only part of Ferry Lane wide enough for cars and deliveries to the houses would create even more damage than has 
already been done - the site is full of cars and vans from 6.30 am - my car has twice been damaged by the swinging unlocked gate, 
and the road has been damaged by JCBs having to haul vehicles out of the mud. 
 
4. A more practical proposition would seem to be to place Resident and Permit Holders only signs, as for many other roads close to 
the centre of Guildford. 

304 

I am writing to formally object to any changes proposed to the parking bays in Ferry Lane.  From looking at the documents provided, 
the changes are due to take place in order to provide better access to a temporary car park which is providing car parking for local 
contractors.  This car park has only been given permission to be there (against strong objection form the local community) until July 
2016, 9 months from the date the permission was granted.  From reading the information Guildford Borough Council has provided on 
their website regarding the proposed changes to the parking, I quote: 'If changes to the parking restrictions were agreed, we would 
anticipate their implementation in mid-2016.' 
 
By mid-2016, the parking area concerned will be being restored to its original state, meaning there will be no access to it from Ferry 
Lane.  Therefore, unless there are plans in place to the contrary, there is no reason for this change to go ahead. 
 
Since the car park has been created, well before permission was actually granted, residents have been battling to find spaces to park.  
When it rains, the 'car park' becomes a mud pool which results in contractors parking in the road rather than getting stuck in the car 
park.  I have attached a photo to show what we have to put up with on an almost daily basis - it has resulted in an absolute mess and 
should never have been allowed, especially not in a conservation area.  We have also learned that nobody can receive a parking fine 
as the lines have been worn away. I reported this to Surrey County Council on September 11th 2015 and still nothing has been done 
about it.  We have two elderly residents living in our row of cottages who park on Ferry Lane and I have two children under three so it 

P
age 212

IT
E

M
 10



is imperative that there is enough room for us and the other residents who pay for permits each year, to be able to (or at least have a 
chance of being able to) park near our homes.  This should take absolute priority over a temporary car park which will not be used 
after July 2016. 
 
Despite all of this, the four parking spaces do not actually block the entrance to the car park and there has never been an issue with 
them doing so. 
 
Since the car park has been created, the parking situation has caused no end of stress to the residents.  There are no valid reasons 
as to why this change should go ahead so I hope this case can be closed without further discussion. 

307 

I am strongly objecting to this proposal for several reasons. 
 
There are currently only 6 parking spaces available to the residents of Ferry Lane of which there are 11 households and parking is 
already oversubscribed in the immediate area. In addition to the residents vehicles Ferry Lane is used by people visiting both St 
Catherines Hill, the ruin, Shalford Common, walkers parking to enjoy the North downs way, and fishermen using the river Wey. 
 
This situation is compounded further by Rail Track using the Lane to access the railway for engineering work and line maintenance 
and both Southern Electric and BT Open Reach also undertaking regular work in the lane on the communications Hub and Sub 
station. All of the above park for long periods whilst work in undertaken. 
 
In addition, we have a bail hostel at the top of the lane whose visitors use the parking provision on a regular basis. 
 
Let's be clear, we are discussing a single track lane with a width in places of just 8 feet that was not designed for nor is suitable for 
the regular use of large numbers of utility vehicles. The lack of parking provision leads to illegal parking by contractors vans and 
sometimes lorries. On a number of occasions residents of St. Catherines Hill have been blocked in by these vehicles and access to 
and from Pilgrim and Ferry cottages and Ferry Lodge have been restricted. 
 
I have serious concerns that should an emergency vehicle require access to attend a medical emergency or fire there could be 
serious damage to property or loss of life due to the continuing lack of enforcement by Guildford Borough Council and the 
unsympathetic treatment of the area by Surrey Highways and Local planning. 
 
The recently approved planning application for the use of land on Ferry Lane for the builders at Langton Priory has made the situation 
intolerable. Rather than solve the issue it has exacerbated it by increasing traffic. On  many occasions when the approved planned 
parking provision is full the very limited parking at Ferry Lane has been utilized by the contractors and builders giving residents no 
viable parking alternative. 
 
In an area were there are sufficient parking alternatives this would not be so much of an issue but I am at pains to point out that the 
nearest alternative (Chestnut avenue) is over a 100 meters away. 
 
Living on St. Catherines hill are four residents over the age of 75 and two families with children under the age of 4 so it is not practical 
or even possible to expect elderly residents and families with children to have to carry shopping this considerable distance. I would 
also add that the pavement between Chestnut Avenue and Ferry Lane, as it passes the ship pub, is very narrow ( 2 feet wide) and 

P
age 213

IT
E

M
 10



has fast moving traffic, it is dangerous. 
 
It is difficult enough to traverse In daylight hours when conditions are good, but with shopping and children or for an elderly person it 
can be difficult, in adverse weather conditions its plain treacherous! 
 
As you can see the consequences of the recent planning decisions have undoubtedly diminished the quality of residents lives on a 
daily basis and are even putting their safety at risk. Compounding this further by removing a much needed parking space makes no 
sense. 
 
We have sadly already had one residents much loved pet run over and killed by a contractors van. Given how narrow the lane is and 
with no pedestrian pavement section I would also be concerned about the safety of residents and their children with the increased 
traffic. Most of us access our properties from Ferry Lane and use the lane as pedestrians on a daily basis. 
 
I would also question why additional access is required? The contractors currently manage to park 15-20 vehicles daily with the 
parking provision as it is. In short, the parking permission granted to the Langton Priory builders should remain temporary. No further 
action is required to facilitate the use of this land as such, as they have been parking without issue for around 9 months (since before 
permission was granted). Leaving things as they are will at least ensure residents and regular visitors to the area have some chance 
of seeing things return back to normal when the disruption has ceased. 
 
As well as the practical concerns Ferry Lane and St. Catherines Hill this is a conservation area, is it really appropriate that parking 
permission was granted in the first place to an area deemed one of outstanding natural beauty? We now have to deal with the daily 
disruptions of contractors vans arriving noisily from 6am as well as a previously pleasantly overgrown piece of land being a mud pit 
with vehicles parked on it for most of the day. 
 
In closing, any decision that reduces residents parking capacity has unintended consequences that I can only assume planners were 
not aware of. Had they have been I cannot understand how a decision that puts so many vulnerable people at risk and negatively 
impacts on the quality of their lives on a daily basis could have been made. 
 
We have as a group contacted our local MP with our objections, we are collectively upset at the heavy handed and unsympathetic 
way we have been treated regarding changes to the area that we live in by both Guildford Borough Council and the Highways 
Agency. Neither seems aware of the consequences of their decisions or indeed the actions of the other. It has taken considerable 
time to discover who is responsible for what. In future, I suggest some joined up thinking is required by both Parties rather than the 
mindless and pointless bureaucracy we have had to deal with so far, which has just served to create stress in an already difficult 
situation. 
 
Should this apathetic and insensitive treatment of the residents continue we can only assume that there must be considerable 
financial incentives for those involved or that there has been an astounding degree of either incompetence or indifference 
demonstrated by both. 

P
age 214

IT
E

M
 10



329 

I understand the Council is proposing to reduce the number of parking spaces for residents in Ferry Lane in order to give even more 
access to site vehicles from the distant building site at Langton Priory, and I would like to object to this for the following reasons: 
 
1. The loss of just one bay might seen insignificant to the Council but to the residents of Ferry Lane it represents an enormous loss - 
which certainly gives rise to tensions and anxiety amongst the residents - 2 very elderly ladies who struggle with heavy shopping, and 
two mothers with babies and very young children amongst them - who all need easy access to their homes. 
 
2. Ferry Lane is a narrow single-track lane for much of the way leading down to the river, and until recently mainly used by walkers, 
both as part of the North Downs Way and as a pleasant walk into Guildford. It's in a Conservation Area, to the rear of a group of listed 
cottages of historic interest, and in an area regarded as a local beauty spot. 
 
3. Unnecessary enlargement of the access to the quagmire created by removal of topsoil in the land now used as parking by the site 
vehicles is in the only part of Ferry Lane wide enough for cars and deliveries to the houses would create even more damage than has 
already been done - the site is full of cars and vans from 6.30 am - my car has twice been damaged by the swinging unlocked gate, 
and the road has been damaged by JCBs having to haul vehicles out of the mud. 
 
4. A more practical proposition would seem to be to place Resident and Permit Holders only signs, as for many other roads close to 
the centre of Guildford. 

359 

As a resident of the area I am concerns that there is a possibility of the area in Ferry Lane at the rear of the Ship pub, currently used 
as a temporary car park for use by builders working on a local site may become a permanent area for the public. 
 
It is in a conservation area, and would increase traffic in the lane considerably. 
 
The lane is narrow and is used by pedestrians as it is part of the North Downs Way. 
 
I trust that due consideration will be given to the foregoing and that the use of the area will cease on completion of the building work. 

P
age 215

IT
E

M
 10



 
ANNEXE 12 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Greville Close, Guildford 
(formalised existing disabled bay) 

(4 representations) 

90 

In the recent parking proposals, why is there no plan to make roads, such as Greville Close, residents’ parking only – or else 
introduce some permit-holders only scheme? 
 
Parking in roads such as this road has become a nightmare for residents, as much of the available space is taken up by people who 
do not live in the area, such as hospital workers, and, believe it or not, even Tesco workers or customers! 
 
The new proposals, which would appear to be increasing restrictions on surrounding roads, will surely exacerbate this problem. 
 
It is not fair that when residents such as myself, on returning home from work, or being at home during the day and deciding to pop 
out in the car for ten minutes, cannot find a reasonable place to park! 
 
Please can this issue be investigated further and some action taken. 

123 Reference the above amendment why are there no mention of parking restrictions in Humbolt close. 

159 

Formalisation of Disabled bays is always good. However, imagine my disappointment when i realised that this seemingly is the only 
change proposed  to the parking here. 
 
The council is well aware that this little cul-de-sac is used on a very regular basis as a car park for non residents who work elsewhere. 
I know the council is aware of this because on more than one occasion i have received letters containing the phrase “... we are aware 
that there is a problem with non resident parking, however...”. Why then are there seemingly no plans in this proposal to address this 
issue? During the week it is nigh on impossible to go out in a car if you’re a resident because if you do, there is a high chance that 
you won’t be able to park here when you get back. You either have to go out and stay out or not use the car. This is not a recent 
situation, either – it’s been going on for years and nothing seems to be being done. I’ve seen non residents queuing up to look for 
somewhere to park in the morning, before leaving when they find the road’s already full. I’ve also seen people parking their cars on 
the pavement on a corner, outside Anston Court then walking off to go to work leaving barely a car’s width to get through. Surely this 
can’t be acceptable? At weekends the parking is clear, with far fewer cars, so it’s clearly people using it as free workplace parking, 
and this, as a resident, i find unacceptable when it deprives me of the right to come and go as i please from my own home. 
 

P
age 216

IT
E

M
 10



In addition, may i suggest that the double yellow lines on the roadside at the entrance to the road are extended on both sides? It’s a 
very narrow, tight entrance from Southway, and virtually all the time you are forced to enter Greville Close on the wrong side of the 
road into the path of oncoming traffic heading out of the Close around a blind corner. Surely this is a safety issue if nothing else? 
 
So, in conclusion, i have no objection to the formalisation of disabled parking bays, but why are the existing issues seemingly not 
being addressed? 

208 

I am writing with regard to the proposed changes to disabled parking in Greville Close.  In principle I have no objections to the 
formalisation of one disabled parking space if this would be of benefit to a resident.  I have personal experience of how difficult and 
stressful parking here can be for any resident, and especially those with the added difficulties caused by mobility issues.  However, I 
am concerned that your choice of bay puts my own independence at great risk.  I would therefore very much appreciate it if you would 
consider finding an alternative solution that ensures everyone’s needs are best met. 
 
My reason for objecting to the particular choice of bay for formalisation is that it appears to be the bay I currently park in – the bay 
immediately adjacent to the kerb.  If I am wrong about which bay has been selected, then I have no objections at all to the plan.  I am 
fully aware that I have no right to this bay, or any other, but it has allowed me to retain a little independence, and so I’m concerned 
about giving up regular access to it.  I believe the bay in question is the one shown in the letter I received following my application for 
an advisory bay.  Had an alternative location been suggested in that letter I would have questioned its suitability, but this location is a 
good fit for my needs. 
 
The bay I usually use is the closest of the advisory bays to my own property.  When I park here I park very close to the kerb to leave 
the maximum space available for those parked in adjacent spaces, also allowing me to get directly from car to pavement, or to hold 
my car for support as I climb the kerb.  In addition, the pavement provides space for me to fully open my doors to load my wheelchair 
when necessary.  Neither would be possible if I were to park in the other advisory bay.  If the bay I usually use were to be formalised, 
I would feel it only fair to vacate it for whichever resident requested its formalisation, but I would then find it either difficult or 
impossible to properly access my car, hence my concerns for my independence. 
 
In addition to the direct implications for residents with disabilities, there are wider implications to other residents and visitors too.  
Where I currently park, it is possible for a second car to be parked end on to mine, following the line of the pavement, whilst causing 
minimal disruption to movement of other vehicles or pedestrians.  Those visiting to care for me on a formal or informal basis make use 
of this.  The driver from Wiltshire Farm Foods parks there whilst he delivers my box of meals.  My care workers park there whilst they 
are caring for me; if they cannot find parking they risk being late for me and all following clients on their rota, or worse, have to cut 
somebody’s care short to make up for the lost time.  Desperate neighbours sometimes park there when they have no other choice – 
with my blessing.  Providing I know who the vehicle belongs to, I can just ask them to move it in the rare event I wish to use my car at 
a time they are parked there.  All these people would be forced to park potentially substantial distances away if the kerbside bay is 
formalised, as cars doubling up in the adjacent bay are more likely to disrupt traffic flow to the garages. 
 
I would therefore like to propose two alternative suggestions.  If the advisory bay furthest from the kerb sufficiently meets the parking 
and access needs of whichever resident would benefit from a formalised bay, that this other bay is formalised instead.  If the 
alternative bay is not suitable for any reason, it is returned to a standard parking bay once an alternative formalised bay is provided at 
a location which is suitable for the resident concerned.  This should allow maximum benefit for everyone. 

P
age 217

IT
E

M
 10



 
So to summarise, whilst I greatly appreciate your efforts to improve parking for disabled residents of Greville Close, I’m very 
concerned that the current proposal has the potential to make the parking situation worse for many residents and visiting workers, 
exchanging one problem for another.  I hope you will be able to consider the issues that this proposed formalisation would create, and 
find a more suitable solution. 

P
age 218

IT
E

M
 10



 
ANNEXE 12 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Prospect Road, Ash 
(introduce various double yellow lines) 

(34 representations) 

4 

As a resident of Gorselands Close, Ash Vale, I am in complete agreement with any proposal that reduces the chronic parking 
congestion that we now face in the area adjacent to Gorselands Close, Elleray Court and Crescent Lane - this congestion, on 
occasion, is dangerous especially when cars are parked right opposite Gorselands Close! My concern, though, is what will happen to 
those cars that currently park in the proposed restricted areas - will they then park in in Gorselands Close? This would not, of course, 
be acceptable given the narrowness of Gorselands  Close and the potential for severe constriction in that Close. Is there not a way in 
which additional parking bays could not be provided in Elleray Court, by remodelling some of the grass verges? 
 
On another point, is there any move to provide similar restrictions at the junction of Hutton Road and Heathvale Bridge Road, 
adjacent to the Swan Public House? 

24 

I am writing in connection with the new parking proposals concerning Elleray Court/Prospect Road in Ash Vale. 
 
I currently rent a flat in Elleray court and I work as a chauffeur in Farnborough airport which does men I have sometimes to bring my 
work vehicle home ready for the next day's work. 
 
The vehicles I drive are either a Mercedes S Class or a Mercedes Vianno, both of which are fairly new and very presentable vehicles 
to have parked in a residential area but this also means they are not cheap so I would rather not have to park them any distance from 
my flat. 
 
My work means that I return home late at night to find all parking spaces taken in Elleray court which I totally understand but also find 
quite frustrating, especially when the quality of parking by some people is so selfish that two small cars can take up the area needed 
to park three average size vehicles. 
 
My concern with your proposal is that you seem to taking away areas currently being used by residents to park their cars but you are 
not giving alternatives, so a situation which you have highlighted as being a problem will only get worse. 
 
Not wanting to do the same and just make an objection without supplying a potential resolution, can I suggest that the layout of the 
area is changed so that cars can be parked nose-on to the flats as this will mean that two cars can park in a space currently being 
used by one car. This could one step further by allotting each flat one parking space and if there were any extra spaces these could 
be left for visitors on an ad hoc basis. 
 
I am sure my idea might upset some of the residents or the resident's committee as some of the landscape of the area will be lost but 
times change and when the flats were built the parking requirement would have been much less than now and by allowing cars to 
park properly will be better and safer for all. 

P
age 219

IT
E

M
 10



 
On top of this, most if not all flats have access to a garage which some use as storage but I know others choose to rent theirs 
out which is fine. as long as they then don't take up excessive space in the parking areas with other vehicles. 

55 

I am really glad that this is finally being sorted out.  I live in Prospect Road, opposite  Ellery Court. This year alone I have had about 
5or 6 near accidents trying to get out of my drive because of the cars that are parked either side of my drive. I have also on numerous 
occasions had cars parked two or three feet across my drive, which causes me sometimes to have to mount the kerb opposite to get 
round the vehicles. 
 
My neighbours at Nos.44-66 along with myself have had several arguments over the last two or three years with people parking all 
over the place who have no thoughts for our safety in trying to get out of our drives. 
 
I fully agree with your proposals and look forward to them being put in place. 

98 

Please can you advise why, yet again, there had been no inclusion of the junction outside the Swan public house on Hutton Road, 
Ash Vale? This junction is an accident waiting to happen as it is sometimes impossible to walk or drive past when cars park on 
pavements along both sides of the road. 
 
As a resident of Wharf Road who is already troubled by the parking restrictions imposed on us a few years ago which we were told 
“would have no considerable impact” I am concerned that any additional restrictions will make the area unworkable. 
 
The time restrictions in place around the village centre currently have forced workers and visitors to the parade of shops and offices to 
travel further into the surrounding residential areas. I am usually unable to park close to my own home between 9am and 6pm, and 
with two young children this is having a detrimental effect on our quality of life as I am unable to transfer goods from my car to home, 
and fear for the safety of my children crossing an increasingly busy road. We were advised at the time that there was ‘adequate 
space’ at the Ash Centre for people to park, however this is not the case as the car park is almost always full. There is also no 
signage in place for the additional parking further up Ash Hill Road, opposite the Victoria Hall which again we were told ‘car owners 
could use’. 
 
Is there a proposal or way of looking into residents only parking in the area? 
 
Does this proposal also take into account the ongoing planning application for another supermarket/convenience store that Morrisons 
are proposing along Vale Road? 

99 

I would like to support the recommendation for NO PARKING in Prospect Road outside property's (Nos.36-48. Prospect Road) as we 
are finding it increasingly difficult to safely get in and out of our driveways due to parked vehicles blocking our view of oncoming traffic 
coming from both directions. 
 
I would strongly recommend the NO PARKING proposal be implemented without delay on safety grounds as over the years we have 
experienced many close encounters where we have had cars driving at use at speed and nearly hitting our vehicle as we try to get in 

P
age 220

IT
E

M
 10



and out of our driveway. 
 
I would Also recommend drooping the speed limit to 20 MPH in Prospect Road & Hutton Road as clearing the road of parked vehicles 
will enable drivers to travel faster without the restrictions of the parked vehicles. 

107 

I live in Prospect Road GU12 5EL. The new proposed parking changes I feel will have a huge effect on my property. Although I can 
see why the proposal is being made I feel it will only shift the parking problem further down the road where there will be no restrictions 
and therefore outside me and my neighbour’s houses. 
 
If you look on your plans if any car parks outside or opposite our house……which under the new proposal they will be allowed to do, it 
makes it very difficult and very dangerous for us to exit and enter our driveway. This does on rare occasions happen when neighbours 
etc. have visitors and it  takes several manoeuvres for us to exit our driveway. In addition we are very close to a sharp left hand bend 
which leads to Hutton road, if there are cars parked as I have already discussed it causes a very dangerous hazard very quickly, and 
with cars coming blindly around a bend it could potentially be a very dangerous situation. 
 
I feel the parking restrictions should be extended to the end of Prospect road otherwise all that will happen is that the problem will be 
shifted a few hundred metres further down creating an even more dangerous situation. 

111 

There is already an acute shortage of parking in Ash Vale. This has been exacerbated by new housing developments in the area, 
which have increased the number of vehicles and traffic on the roads. The on-street parking is already heavily used both by local 
residents and commuters working in Ash Vale. There is scant additional car parking capacity available for visitors and shoppers to 
Ash Vale. 
 
My perception is that the new proposed parking changes will have a significant and negative impact on my property leading to a loss 
of privacy and amenity. There may well also be an endangerment to highway safety. 
 
In their current form, the new proposals make little or no provision for additional off road parking. As a result, cars displaced by the 
new parking restrictions will be forced to park further on down Prospect Road and toward Hutton Road. It is highly likely that cars will 
then park adjacent to my garden and home causing a loss of privacy and noise and pollution at all times of the day and night. It will 
make it difficult and dangerous for me to exit and enter our off road driveway in my car.  
 
Prospect Road is increasingly becoming a busy and congested road; the changes to the roadside parking will cause traffic problems 
and create a safety hazard for motorists and pedestrians. I’m concerned that this could develop into an accident black spot. This will 
not be conducive to providing a safe environment for local residents. Furthermore, an increase in the problems of illegal 
parking (in terms of double parking) and trespass (parking on private land) are highly likely.  
 
I invite you to visit my home to verify that these objections are valid. 
 
The application has not demonstrated that it has considered the problems of parking relating to the 
increased the number of vehicles and traffic on the roads, let alone how it would alleviate those issues. Therefore, I ask that the 

P
age 221

IT
E

M
 10



proposal be refused. 

121 

I am writing to object to the proposed parking controls along Prospect Road and Elleray Court. 
 
I vehemently oppose introducing these new proposals as I believe it will not achieve the desired results for other than the residents 
who own the houses in the immediate affected area, and further displace the parking issue to surrounding areas. 
 
For as long as I have been living in Elleray, I can say that drivers have shown due care and attention while travelling along the road 
and to pedestrians. Therefore, I have no reason to feel concerned or threatened by the current situation. 
 
What is more, I am a mother to a 6 month old baby and having to walk to and from my car everyday already poses issues which I am 
just about managing, and so you can imagine if the council were to go ahead and implement these new parking restrictions it would 
serve to add an extra stress and inconvenience. Consequently, I view this plan as not being child-friendly in anyway to residents who 
have young children on the estate. 

138 

I am writing regarding proposed parking restrictions in Ash Vale.  My husband and I have lived in Hutton Rd, Ash Vale for 35 years 
and drive up and down Prospect Rd every day.  We understand why these and other proposals for parking restrictions along further 
stretches of Prospect Rd are being mooted.  However, the stretch of road from Elleray Court to 15m North of Richards Close has 
never been problematical due to excessive parking.  Yes, there are cars frequently parked on this particular stretch but drivers take it 
in their stride, driving and giving way where necessary, in a responsible manner.  We have never come across any accidents or near 
accidents resulting from parking there. 
 
The reason we feel why free parking usage, in that area only, should remain, is that Elleray Court does not have sufficient parking.  
Restricting that particular area in the way suggested will merely push the problem further along Prospect Rd or on to Springfield Rd.  
We feel more attention should be given to attempting to add parking spaces within Elleray Court's grounds. 

167 

I am pleased to see that no waiting is to be introduced on the brow of the hill incorporating Milton Grange and Crescent Lane, and 
also on the bend and hill further along Prospect Road restricting waiting opposite Gorselands Close and Elleray Court which all seem 
sensible and necessary. 
 
Having lived in Gorselands Close for 15 years and being a regular driver along this road, I would like to point out that I have never 
had any problem finding a pulling in space to allow oncoming vehicles to pass, in the section of road from Elleray Court and up past 
Richards Close, and so see no point in restricting those living along this section of road from parking there, the only need here if any, 
is to restrict parking directly on the junction to Enfield Road where vision for emerging traffic would be impeded by cars parked too 
close to this junction. 
 
I am surprised and somewhat disappointed that there seems to be no plan to restrict parking along the dangerous section of road 
near The Swan Public House, this area is on a long sweeping bend with little chance of a pulling in space when an oncoming car is 

P
age 222

IT
E

M
 10



met, notices from the police, pinned to the fences there advising no parking are blatantly ignored and have been for a number of 
years, I request that you consider dropping the idea of yellow lines as described above and give more thought to putting yellow lines 
in place near The Swan. 

173 

Having been a resident of Gorselands Close for the better part of 10 years, I have seen little, if any evidence that parking along 
Prospect Road [between Enfield Road and Gorselands Close] causes traffic disruption or poses a hazard to safety. If anything, I 
strongly believe that parking actually aids safety along Prospect Road as it forces traffic to slow down [cars already drive too quickly 
in my opinion along this road irrespective of the stated speed limit], I fear that should you impose these parking restrictions it will 
further encourage people to speed along this road, reducing overall safety. 
 
I am also extremely concerned that should these parking restrictions be imposed, where the cars that currently park along Prospect 
Road will park. There are few roads in the locale where these cars will be able to park, and I fear that people will park in Gorselands 
Close, either in the road’s designated parking bay, or more unfavourably along the side of the road along Gorselands, making transit 
along our road more difficult and even dangerous for our children who play in this usually quiet Close [it is one of the reasons that first 
attracted us to this road in the first place]. I would value your thoughts on where you think the cars will park that currently park along 
Prospect Road, or indeed whether this has actually been factored into the thinking for these parking restrictions? 
 
I also trust that you are also focusing your attention on putting no waiting, double yellow lines down by The Swan Public House [from 
the map we have access to, the Swan does not appear]. This has been a long term problem and I’m frankly amazed that double 
yellow lines have NOT been imposed along that section of the road. Not only do the pubs' patrons park on the road, they often double 
park and as the road has a long sweeping bend, it is impossible to see round the corner to see whether the road is safe to drive 
along. Again I would value your insight as to why the council has not placed double yellow lines along this section of Hutton Road 
before. 
 
Needless to say, I am not supportive of these new parking restrictions along Prospect Road, and urge you to reconsider. 

176 

As a resident of Gorselands Close have over the past years brought up the subject of parking in Prospect Road at our Ash Parish 
Council meetings and the local Police meetings. 
 
I fully endorse the recommended proposals restricting the parking in Prospect Road. 
 
It was brought to my attention some time ago that the Residents Association in Elleray Court Estate did not wish to have any 
commercial vehicles parked on the Elleray Court Estate, this then forced their residents to park their vehicles elsewhere,(Prospect 
Road). 
It must also be stated the all the flats in Elleray Court have a garage, but as with the residents of Prospect Road find it more 
convenient to park outside their properties rather than use their garages than consider of the dangerous implications of their actions. 
 

P
age 223

IT
E

M
 10



184 

we will be one the first houses in the road that will be immediately affected by the current number of cars having to move from where 
you are proposing to put yellow lines.  
  
As it stands at the moment we already have, from time to time, cars parking directly opposite our driveway which in turn makes 
manoeuvring off our driveway difficult and these parked cars also impair the visibility and access for our opposite neighbours, this is 
without the extra cars parking outside ours and our neighbours houses. 
  
From the point where you are proposing to end the yellow lines this leads onto our stretch of road where the possible parking 
positions will be squeezed between many individual driveways making access difficult.  
  
We query these proposals as there are already problems with cars driving too fast along our stretch of road and, also, at the end of 
our section of road are dangerous bends.  
  
These changes you are proposing will only create mayhem in the future. 

202 

We have examined the document referred to and can find no mention of Hutton Road where local residents all too frequently are put 
at risk by the uncontrolled parking in Ash Vale at the junctions of Hutton Road, Cuthbert Road and Heathvale Bridge Road. 
 
This frequently results in the creation of blind bend as well as effective closure of the footpath. 
 
We note that there are occasions are notices posted on fences but these have little effect. 
 
We do recommend that serious thought be given to adding this area s to your proposals. 

213 

I have lived in Prospect Road, Ash Vale since 2004 and in that time have witnessed a small number of accidents and many near 
misses. I do not think the proposed parking restrictions will increase the safety so am writing to oppose the proposed parking 
restrictions in Prospect Road, Ash Vale on two grounds, firstly the detrimental impact on my property and secondly on safety grounds. 
 
1. Adverse impact on my property due to loss of amenity. 
As far as I can tell, my property is the only one (between the bend and the brow of the hill) that will be directly effected with double 
yellow lines outside that does not have off-street parking at the front of the property. The only option for my visitors and I will be to 
park outside my neighbours house and that may cause disagreements if they are then unable to park. It is highly likely that the cars 
that currently park further along Prospect Road will be displaced so there will be nowhere to park for myself or my neighbours. I have 
not taken professional advice yet, but believe this will have an adverse impact on the value of my property. 
 
If the proposal is adopted I would like to know whether the council would be prepared to fund and install a dropped kerb outside my 
property alongside the double yellow lines so I could convert my front garden for off-street parking. 
 
2. Higher risk of serious accidents due to increased speed  
In my view the parking restrictions are tackling the wrong problem. The parked cars are not actually a problem and they act to provide 
a degree of traffic calming. The real problem is the speed at which some people drive along Prospect Road. The introduction of the 
parking restrictions will result in traffic travelling faster and a serious accident will happen. 
 

P
age 224

IT
E

M
 10



In my view the most dangerous point along Prospect Road is the brow of the hill by Milton Grange. Cars travelling in a northerly 
direction from Wharf Road come over the brow of the hill to find cars on their side of the road passing parked cars. The introduction of 
parking restrictions further back by Elleray Court means those cars on the wrong side of the road will be travelling faster and the 
accidents will be more serious. 
 
Suggested solutions 
1. Traffic calming. To solve the problem of safety you need to slow down the traffic, not remove the parked cars. A proper "sleeping 
policeman" speed hump before the brow of the hill by Milton Grange would have the single most significant positive impact on safety. 
Further speed humps by Gorselands Close, Elleray Court and Richards Close would reduce the risk of accidents far more than 
removing the parked cars. 
 
2. Whilst I am certain that parked cars are not the real problem I do appreciate that some cars do park dangerously right on the 
junction of Elleray Court. Having spoken to people who live in Elleray Court it is clear that there is not sufficient parking for the number 
of cars there. There are large lawn areas and if some of that area could be converted to parking spaces the problem would be 
reduced. Parking bays at 90 degrees to the road along the entrance road into Elleray Court would be a good solution if the necessary 
funding and red tape could be resolved. 
 
I hope you will take this objection seriously and not adopt the proposed changes. If the changes go ahead I would appreciate knowing 
whether a dropped kerb will be installed outside my property. 

231 

As a resident in the affected area I would like to support the proposed parking controls in the Prospect Road. 
 
The reasons for my support are as follows: 

1. Safety – currently when exiting on to Prospect Road vehicles can be approaching from either direction on the same side of the 
road as the junction. Consequently having looked in both directions prior to joining Prospect Road, the lag between looking left 
then right can mean there is time for a vehicle or bicycle to have approached from the direction of the first observation 
resulting in a near-miss or collision. 

2. Improved access for emergency vehicles – with cars or vans parked directly opposite of adjacent to the junction there is 
minimal space for larger vehicles to enter. This has meant that large vehicles drive onto the footpath causing damage to the 
pavement, which in turn results in a trip hazard for pedestrians. 

3. Improved access for service vehicles such as for refuse collection – with cars or vans parked directly opposite of adjacent to 
the junction there is minimal space for larger vehicles to enter. 

 
Additional areas of concern 
 
Prospect Road is in front of houses number 30 to 14 (direction of travel towards Wharf Road), a solid row of cars is frequently parked 
in this area throughout the day. On this inclined road it is not possible to see if vehicles are approaching from the Wharf Road 
direction. 
 
I am surprised that there has been no proposal for parking controls near the Swan Public House in Hutton Road, in this area cars are 
frequently parked on both sides of the road, sometimes also obstructing the footpath. 

P
age 225

IT
E

M
 10



241 & 242 

With reference to the proposed parking controls -  
 
On the whole the parking doesn't generally cause problems, it is the speed of some vehicles that causes issues.  Reducing the 
parking by the extent proposed may mean the road will become a bit of a race-track; speeding drivers will have a clear run.  Whereas 
at the moment they have to slow at regular intervals because of parked cars. 
 
I work from home in a property between the bend and the brow of the hill and see a few patients a day, I rely on them being able to 
park close to my house. 
 
If the area outside our stretch of Prospect Rd is one of the few parking areas left then there will permanently be cars parked along this 
stretch.  There is not enough off-road parking in the area and they will all fight for the few spaces along this stretch of road.  Some of 
the cars in our area appear to be permanently parked - I'd assume they will relocate to this stretch and become immovable. 
 
I fully appreciate the residents near The Swan Pub suffer parking issues during opening hours, but surely the Pub owners need to be 
pressurised to take more responsibility for this. 

247 

I am pleased to see that no waiting is to be introduced on the brow of the hill incorporating Milton Grange and Crescent Lane, and 
also on the bend and hill further along Prospect Road restricting waiting opposite Gorselands Close and Elleray Court which all seem 
sensible and necessary. 
 
Having lived in Gorselands Close for 14 years and being a regular driver along this road, I would like to point out that I have never 
had any problem finding a pulling in space to allow oncoming vehicles to pass, in the section of road from Elleray Court and up past 
Richards Close, and so see no point in restricting those living along this section of road from parking there, the only need here if any, 
is to restrict parking directly on the junction to Enfield Road where vision for emerging traffic would be impeded by cars parked too 
close to this junction. 
 
I am surprised and somewhat disappointed that there seems to be no plan to restrict parking along the dangerous section of road 
near The Swan Public House, this area is on a long sweeping bend with little chance of a pulling in space when an oncoming car is 
met. 

249 

I would like to make the following comments in favour of new regulations. 
 
Firstly I would like to say that I have been a resident of Milton Grange situated off of Prospect Road, for the last 19 years. During this 
time I have been aware of three serious accidents that have taken place at the bottom of the hill on Prospect Road. This is due to the 
fact that cars and large vans park directly on the road, restricting the roads use down to one lane and causing a blind spot on the 
bend. Along with the issue of the bottom of the hill, I must stress that approaching the top of the hill becomes even more dangerous 
as I have no choice but to drive on the wrong side of the road up a hill with the prospect of oncoming traffic fast approaching head on. 
 
In hand with this, on occasions, I have found cars parked directly on the brow of the hill (including commercial vans ) which means I 
have to enter Milton Grange on the wrong side of the road increasing my own risk of having an accident. 
 
The issue on the hill is also encountered from a third direction, which is leaving Milton Grange on the brow of the hill. There have 
been many occasions where I pull out of the road and turn left (unable to clearly see whether there is oncoming traffic approaching 

P
age 226

IT
E

M
 10



around the bend) and find myself half way down the hill as another car has already started their way up the hill. This then makes the 
situation extremely dangerous as either I now have to reverse blindly back up the hill unaware of any vehicles approaching over the 
hill, or the other car has to blindly reverse back around a bend that they are unable to see due to the parked cars blocking their line of 
sight. 
 
Once past the hazards of the hill, the next approach near Elleray Court again is met with many cars parked along the roads, causing 
a large majority of the road to be restricted again down to one lane. When approaching from the opposite direction it means the cars 
have to drive for a long stretch of time on the wrong side of the road hoping they are not met with any oncoming traffic. 
 
May I also stress in both areas of the road that when faced with hazardous weather conditions, these stretches of road become even 
more dangerous. 
 
I believe the houses along the stretch of the hill originally had garages situated at the rear of their gardens with access via Crescent 
Lane, therefore I believe there is land where their vehicles can be re-situated, removing the issue of having to find space to relocate 
their cars. 
 
I am very pleased to see this situation has been brought to attention as I have wanted to address the issues for many years but have 
been unsure of who to direct these concerns to. 

276 

I have been a resident of Elleray Court for over 10 years and although I do not drive and therefore do not own a car I understand why 
the changes have been proposed. However I can also see that there are a number of the flaws in the proposed changes and why if 
the proposed changes are introduced they should be amended making them less restrictive for people with cars and safer for road 
users and residents. 
  
Traffic calming measures 
As you know Prospect Road is often used by drivers an alternative (rat-run) to using Vale Road. I imagine that you have, but if you 
have not been around Prospect Road and Elleray court on a weekday when a lot of the parked cars are not around, cars tend to drive 
through a residential area dangerously and far too fast. I know that some residents along Prospect Road have been saying that the 
parked cars are a potential cause of collisions. However, based on my experience the parked cars are the only things that currently 
force cars to slow down, drive at a safer speed (under 20 mph) and pay more attention to other road users including pedestrians. If 
any of the proposed parking restrictions are introduced then some traffic calming measures (speed bumps, chicanes with integrated 
parking spaces etc.) should also be considered as a means to slow traffic down and pay attention to other road users. 
  
Consideration for where people can park 
Elleray court was built in the 1960s when many families still didn’t have more than 1 car and some didn't even have a car and children 
tended to leave home for good at a young age. As a resident I know that the Elleray Court committee is looking into parking options 
but we all know that due to current lifestyles no matter how many spaces are created within the private land around Elleray Court 
there will never be enough spaces. Has any consideration been made to parking options, for example widening the section of 
Springfield Road which leads directly into Elleray Court so that cars can park on both sides of the road? Are the residents around 
Prospect Road also aware that the proposed restrictions will apply to them any anyone visiting them? 

P
age 227

IT
E

M
 10



278 

I would like to forward my comments on that matter and will start with positive aspect. 
-Marking double yellow line could improve visibility for motorists around the junctions. 
-It would finally show the 10m space from the junction where the cars should not park ending disputes with police about how the 10m 
is interpreted (currently it is subjective and depends on individual Police officer). 
 
Points against DYL around Prospect Road and Elleray Court: 
-This area is already suffering problems with parking spaces and that forces residents to park in proximity of junctions and along 
Prospect Road, marking DYL will only make resident's life miserable and parking close to home impossible -There has been no 
accidents related to cars parked along the street and even during rush hours the traffic flow is smooth (around 5 years ago during 
works on the canal bridge the whole local traffic was diverted through this area and there was no problem) -Marking DYL in this area 
will only force residents to park elsewhere along Prospect Road so in matter of time there will be proposal to extend DYL. 
 
Proposal is unacceptable without offering to residents additional parking spaces in place of those lost as result of painting DYL 
therefore I am AGAINST the proposal. 

280 

Having lived in the immediate vicinity of Prospect Road, Gorselands Close and Richards Close for the last 10 years we feel that the 
current arrangements for parking around this area are more than adequate. 
 
Restricting parking on Prospect Road between Gorselands Close and Richards close onwards will displace a large number of 
vehicles who are currently unable to park anywhere else (predominantly from the Elleray court area). We note that you have provided 
for some small areas without restriction (2 spaces possibly) along that stretch. If these cars were forced to seek alternative parking we 
are concerned that they would be parked in the residential roads and closes off of Prospect Road. In particular we believe this would 
cause additional issues whereby such roads are not wide enough to safely allow this restricting the ability of residents to move on and 
off driveways and to allow for emergency vehicles as necessary. We would be interested to understand where the council expects 
these displaced cars to park. 
 
The current arrangements on Prospect Road have not caused significant dangers in our opinion. There are frequently sufficient 
pulling in spaces along the road and the use of cautious and sensible driving and parking in adherence with the Highway Code 
negates the necessity for such parking restrictions. 
 
We are however surprised that your parking proposals do not consider the roads around the Swan public house. This problem has 
been exacerbated since the public house lost its overflow car park with the closure of the St John's ambulance facility. Cars are often 
double parked which makes driving past this area particularly challenging and potentially dangerous. Whilst we do not believe that 
putting parking restrictions on both sides on this road would be necessary we do think that some action to avoid double parking would 
be beneficial. This would need to be balanced with the benefits of having a successful restaurant and public house in the area 
boosting the local economy 

P
age 228

IT
E

M
 10



281 

Whilst I have no objections to the parking changes at the above, I need to bring to your attention, a current parking problem that 
arises frequently between Springfield Road and Elleray Court. 
 
Springfield Road was originally built as a no through road, with bollards before Elleray Court. This meeting point of these two roads is 
very narrow, so there has been occasions where emergency services / fire / ambulances have been unable to access premises due 
to parking which occurs at this juncture. 
 
With the changes to the loss of parking spaces on Prospect Road, this problem will only increase and may give rise to someone 
coming to harm as services may not be able to get through. I have also conversed with the local police regarding this issue and they 
have told us to contact the council. 
 
The problem could easily be solved with approximately 15 metres of double yellow lines on the side of the road between number 23 
Springfield Road and the corner of the first side road on the left as you go from Springfield Road on to Elleray Court. 

282 

I am writing to register our objections to the proposed parking restrictions in Prospect Road, Ash Vale. 
 
The reason for the large number of cars parked on Prospect Road is that a large number of properties, in particular the flats in Elleray 
Court, do not have sufficient parking for the residents in those properties. The proposed introduction of double yellow lines on 
Prospect Road will do nothing to reduce the number of vehicles requiring somewhere to park, it will simply move the problem 
elsewhere. Furthermore, the parked cars provide natural traffic calming, without them the road will become more dangerous as cars 
will be driven at higher speeds. 
 
Prospect Road is a residential road; the majority of residents drive at a sensible speed, i.e. no more than 20mph, because they are 
aware of the nature of the road (narrow, bends, hills as well as parked cars). The occasional idiots who drive at unsafe speeds now 
will be able to drive even faster with no traffic calming in place. The road is also used during morning and evening rush hour as a rat 
run by people wanting to avoid traffic on Vale Road; this is likely to increase if the road becomes easier to navigate. 
 
We live in the row of houses, numbers 14-28, which is one of the few places which is still going to be available for parking. This 
portion of the road is used currently by residents of those houses because we have no driveways. The proposed introduction of the 
yellow lines will reduce the number of parking spaces available along this stretch of road, while also increasing the number of cars 
wanting to park there as it will be the only available parking. We have lived here for over 25 years and have not been aware of many 
accidents, and the few that have occurred have been minor and always caused by someone driving too fast.  
 
If this proposal is designed to make the road safer then the council should look at introducing traffic calming measures rather than 
restricting the parking which will not only inconvenience the residents but will also make the road more dangerous. It will also affect 
our quality of life if we have to constantly look for somewhere to park the car and will potentially affect the desirability and therefore 
the value of our properties. 
 
We feel that this proposal is ill-considered with no thought given as to how it will affect residents of the area who have to live here all 
the time, not just occasionally use the road. 

P
age 229

IT
E

M
 10



285 

We oppose the parking controls as they are overly restrictive and it’s obvious that there is already a lack of parking places in the area. 
Where will these cars go?  
 
The plans do not propose any restrictions on the side of the hill outside 2,3,5 Prospect Road which seems to be daft when the 
proposals mention they are for safety at the brow of the hills and then the same proposals only cover one side of one of the hills? This 
side of the hill will also surely be impacted by the proposals as it will be one of the few areas to park?  Vehicles already speed up this 
side of the hill – especially vans and larger SUV style cars. 
 
The fact that there are cars parked on the road seems to be more of a safety feature as the traffic must drive more cautiously. The 
main current safety issue is not the parking on the road it is the fact that people use Prospect Road and Hutton Road as a way of 
avoiding the speed bumps on Vale Road. 
 
A more sensible and justifiable safety proposal would be to introduce traffic speed reduction, steps such as speed bumps near the 
brow of hills and other potential safety problem areas. 
 
There are two very unsafe road sections without any proposals in the immediate area and they are the s bend on Hutton Road just 
before it joins Prospect Road and the area outside the Swan pub. 
 
These current proposals are flawed as rather than creating a safer road they will make it easier for people to drive faster as there are 
less parked cars in the way. 

291 

I have not been able to find a plan of new or extra car parking in and around Wharf Rd, for the Doctors Surgery and Abbeywood care 
home. 
I live in Wharf Rd, and have double yellow lines across my drive way, that help slightly, but not much due to lack of enforcement. 
 
WHARF ROAD NOT LISTED 
 
Why not to take away the earth bank , in front of Abbeywood, and create a WIDER ROAD , and underneath the car park put a large 
silt trap, to store rain water. So that you would help (not cure) two problems by doing one thing. 
 
If you are just putting in extra restrictions on car parking in the local area then people will dump their cars anywhere as the chances of 
being caught are tiny. 
 
As Guldford Brough Council are supposed to plan, then plan, you have allowed more houses to be built, so the doctors surgery has 
had to get bigger to serve more people, and there is a very small (inadequate) car park, hence all local roads are a car park. 
 
When are GBC planning to do anything about it? 
 
Hopefully there will be extra car parking for the doctors surgery and Abbeywood Care home, along with Surface Water holding tanks 
to help prevent flooding in the local area. 

P
age 230

IT
E

M
 10



308 

I hereby formally object to the majority of the Council’s proposed parking controls in the Prospect Road area of Ash Vale. 
 
Having resided in Elleray Court for over five years I have been witness to the increase in parked cars as well as, regretfully, the 
ignorance and lack of consideration with which some residents park; this will only be perpetuated by the controls you propose. 
 
I have spoken to local police officers previously regarding the parking on Prospect Road (where it meets Elleray Court) and they have 
said that it, and I quote, provides “a natural traffic calming measure” with which they 
have no problem. 
 
This section of Prospect Road is straight and drivers have a clear view of oncoming traffic, so there is little or no danger of vehicular 
accidents due to not being able to see oncoming vehicles. 
 
In the time I have lived in Elleray Court not one accident has occurred because of the parked cars. In fact, with the proposed controls, 
lives will only be put at risk. 
 
At night, vehicles can be heard travelling at some speed along this straight section of Prospect Road; without cars parked in the 
manor they are able to now, this will also become a regular occurrence during the day. 
 
Pedestrians, such as dog walkers, regularly cross this section of the road to go onto Ash Ranges. As moving vehicles currently have 
to slow at this section of the road, pedestrians crossing are able to do so more safely. 
 
Should the controls be put in place, there would be no reason for vehicles to slow and this will endanger the lives of those 
pedestrians. 
 
With the proposed controls the displacement of vehicles will antagonise an already oversubscribed area for parking. I have, on at 
least four occasions, called Surrey Police to report numerous cars (it has been known for numbers to reach more than five) blocking 
the pavement running along Elleray Court towards Springfield Road (as marked on ‘Map of Proposed Controls – Comments and 
Suggestions’ document enclosed). This remains a daily occurrence with cars parking there from the early evening onwards. Cars are 
then left, sometimes until late in the morning (or, on occasion, all day) until their owners leave. This behaviour, which will in no doubt 
increase, means that pedestrians, often the elderly walking to the local shops and parents with pushchairs taking their children to 
school, have been forced to walk into the road to be able to pass. 
 
As proof of this reoccurring problem, cars already overflow into Springfield Road and cause issue for residents in enabling them to 
access their driveways, this will increase with the proposed changes. In particular, Elleray Court residents/visitor cars are often seen 
parked outside 23 Springfield Road, directly opposite the drive of number 50, where the road is already narrow, thus creating a very 
tight ‘chicane’. This, in conjunction with cars parked to the left (as you look at the house) of 50 Springfield Road, means that ingress 
and egress of any vehicle greater in size than a family estate car, is prohibited. This endangers the lives of all residents by increasing 
the response times of emergency vehicles. 
 
Vehicles already park right at the end of 50 Springfield Road’s driveway. When a car parks opposite the drive a major access issue is 
created. It is therefore my suggestion that parking restrictions are put in place opposite the driveway of 50 Springfield Road. 

P
age 231

IT
E

M
 10



 
Elleray Court has already lost some of its grounds (in particular behind Block B) to additional vehicles of owners wishing to park 
responsibly and without inhibiting access to other vehicles or blocking pavements and forcing pedestrians into the road. 
 
We already experience problems with an excessive number of vehicles in the area. 
 
While I understand the Council’s wish to remove the ‘spurious’ yellow lines on an access way to some of Elleray Court’s garages, I 
am against their removal. My understanding is that the lines were painted as there was a significant problem with vehicles parking at 
the entrance and blocking access for garage owners. These lines should be left unchanged or the problem will reoccur.  That 
particular access is very narrow. 
 
The introduction of yellow lines from number 8 to 16 Prospect Road is welcomed. This is a blind hill and where vehicles are currently 
allowed to park they greatly increase the chances of a head on collision caused by drivers not necessarily appreciating the 
circumstances. 
 
In brief, my objections and acceptance to the proposed controls and suggestions for alternative measures are: 

- Objection to the introduction of yellow lines from approximately number 28 to 52 Prospect Road 
- Suggestion to introduce white lines in front of drives in the immediately above stated area 
- Objection to the removal of the ‘spurious’ yellow lines on an access way within Elleray Court 
- ite the driveway of 50 Springfield Road 
-  

326 

I am in support of the majority of your proposals, except for the following: 
 
Concerning the proposal to introduce double yellow lines from just before Richards Close, where the letter box is, past Enfield Road I 
wish to comment that, being a straight part of the road, I do think the current parking permitted  along this stretch does act as a traffic 
calming measure. To introduce no parking at all along here, I do think would invite people to speed along this part of the road. To 
proceed as you propose may require additional traffic calming measures to be introduced. An unnecessary expense if you were to 
bear in mind along this stretch there is no accident history. 
 
Note, I do not use this area for parking as I have my own off street parking. 

358 

It is encouraging to know that you are tackling the ‘brow of the hill’ problem in Prospect Road, which has been a concern for some 
time.  With cars parking as one approaches tat brow unable to see oncoming traffic; such traffic often taking the brow far too quickly 
creating an accident site waiting to happen. 
 
Living in Crescent Lane the turning into its narrow lane virtually on top of the brow one often finds oneself in a vulnerable position in 
the middle of the road especially with cars also often parked at the top end of the lane. 
 
Your proposals to tackle other problem areas is encouraging. 
 
I do however wonder where these cars are going to go being that the village is always very congested and the limit on parking which 
was introduced recently has only succeeded in cars parking further down the road where traffic is always busy with the Doctor’s 

P
age 232

IT
E

M
 10



Surgery and Chapel usage.  It is mostly impossible at certain times to find a parking space. 
 
With the village expanding and the recent planning applications and with the imminent building of a Morrisons replacing the Standard 
of England pub, associated car parking and delivery lorries, I anticipate an increase in traffic problems in that area. 

389 

The implementation and “strict enforcement” of parking restrictions in Prospect Road, in accord with, and reinforce the Highway Code 
is long overdue and we, that is my wife and I, wholeheartedly support the proposals on the following grounds. 
 
Prospect Road residents risk like and limb endeavouring to leave their driveways by car, they are generally blind to traffic from both 
directions because of on-street parking.  The same applies to residents exiting Gorselands Close, Enfield Lane, Crescent Lane and 
Elleray Court.  Traffic travelling along Prospect Road, in either direction, regularly experience running the gauntlet, the thrill of 
negotiating a chicane and forever having to stop and start to avoid fast moving vehicles coming from the opposite direction. 
 
It is a sad state of affairs when young mothers struggling with prams and trying to keep other walking children in check, together with 
elderly members of the community heading for the health centre or local shops, are obliged to skirt around vehicles illegally parked on 
the pavement and walk in the road.  To compound the offence, it is very often the case in locations where the road bends sharply. 
 
It is something of a nightmare when the bin men arrive – and all traffic is brought to a halt for a serious length of time. 
 
We cannot remember when the road was last thoroughly swept because of obstruction by on-street parking. 

390 

I wish to object to the double yellow lines proposed in Prospect Road 
 

1. It would create an open road which encourage speeding.  The current parking acts as a traffic calming measure.  A number of 
people cross this road to access the common land / ranges and therefore any increase in the traffic speed would be 
unwelcome. 

2. There is already insufficient parking for these properties (Elleray Court) in the surrounding area and the proposed parking 
restriction will only make the situation worse. 

391 

I wish to object to the double yellow lines proposed in Prospect Road 
 

1. It would create an open road which encourage speeding.  The current parking acts as a traffic calming measure.  A number of 
people cross this road to access the common land / ranges and therefore any increase in the traffic speed would be 
unwelcome. 

2. There is already insufficient parking for these properties (Elleray Court) in the surrounding area and the proposed parking 
restriction will only make the situation worse. 

P
age 233

IT
E

M
 10



392 

I wish to object to the double yellow lines proposed in Prospect Road 
 

1. There is already an appalling lack of parking for the properties in Prospect Road. 
2. The current parking assist in slowing down traffic. 
3. This road has a number of hills and sharp corners and the new proposals will open up the road and increase speed of the 

traffic which will make crossing the road more dangerous. 
4.  It will affect the business of the shops in Ash Vale as many people have nowhere else to park when doing their shopping. 

397 (Elleray 
Court) Mgmt 
Company 

I write on behalf of the company which is the property management company responsible for the 72 flats forming Elleray Court estate.  
As a company we try to ensure that the residents park sensibly and safely and thus we have more than a passing interest in your 
proposals for parking in this part of Ash Vale. 
 
Having closely studied your proposals we accept the need, from a safety point of view, for some restrictions at road junction between 
Elleray Court and Prospect Road but must express doubt regarding many of the other proposals. 
 
The first doubt relates to enforcement.  Where restrictions are in force such as the Wharf Road area where the majority of the shops 
are bases, it is a very rare thing to see any parking attendant and thus many of those visiting the shops are prepared to ‘take a 
chance’ and park on double yellow lines.  After all the chances of getting caught are pretty minimal. 
 
There are two cars parking in the vicinity of Wharf Road.  One, on the site of the “Ash Centre” is inevitably full during most weekdays 
with people employed in the Council Offices, those working in the CAB and visitors to the centre.  The other parking area is some 
walk from the shops and thus appears to be under used.  The forthcoming opening of the new Cooperative store will only make the 
problem worse and we wonder if any consultation takes place between the council and the developers of such new stores. 
 
To the layman the sight of the existing car park areas such as that around the long derelict public house in Ash Vale must present a 
possibility for use as a public car park even if a small charge was levied to cover any costs involved. 
 
Apart from those who ‘take a chance’ the other doubt or concerns arises from the migration of parking from the Wharf Road area 
towards the Chandlers Road / Prospect Road areas which is beginning to “overfill” Chandlers Road to the detriment of parking of 
users of the Health Centre and Aged People Home.  It must only be a matter of time before there is a major accident at this junction. 
 
Finally, it is difficult to envisage the impact if the restrictions as illustrated come into effect.  Where the cars are supposed to park is a 
mystery.  The only possibility seem to be that they will migrate to side road such as Enfield Road, Richards Close and Elleray Court.  
The latter of these is of particular interest to the company as we are already in a situation where we have parking problems with little 
way of improving matters as the majority of parking places are on adopted road normally full of vehicles. 

P
age 234

IT
E

M
 10



 
ANNEXE 12 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Rose Lane, Ripley 
(introduce formalised disabled bay) 

(2 representations) 

58 

I am writing to object to the proposals to introduce a formalised disabled bay outside nos. 6 and 8 Rose Lane, Ripley, Surrey. At the 
moment, the area outside nos. 4 - 18 is being used as all-day parking for non-residents and it is virtually impossible to park near my 
own house between the hours of 08:00 and 18:00 At times, I'm forced to walk significant distances rather than take my car for fear of 
being unable to park on my return. It is impossible to go shopping and park to off-load packages near my house, meaning I am forced 
to walk backwards and forwards with heavy bags.  
 
The grounds on which this objection is made is as follows: 
 
1. There are already significant issues regarding parking for residents of 4 - 18 Rose lane and this proposal will only exacerbate the 
problem further. 
 
2. At the moment, the area outside nos. 4 - 18 is being used as all-day parking for non-residents and it is virtually impossible to park 
near my own house between the hours of 08:00 and 18:00, weekdays and weekends.  At times, I'm forced to walk significant 
distances rather than take my car for fear of being unable to park on my return. It is impossible to go shopping and park to off-load 
packages near my house, meaning I am forced to walk backwards and forwards with heavy bags. 
 
3. I have written twice to Guildford Council requesting residents parking because of the existing issues. 
 
4. I have seen no evidence that disabled bays are necessary, particularly in the case of no 6. 
 
5. Should this proposal go ahead, it will benefit the few to the detriment of the many, having a significant negative impact on the 
quality of life for residents in no 10, 12, 14, 16. 
 
6. It will mean that residents, especially single females, may be put at risk by having to park a significant distance from their homes on 
dark evenings. 
 
7. For the sake of fairness and equality to all residents of this stretch of Rose Lane, residents parking is a far more appropriate course 
of action. Should this proposal go ahead, it will have a significant negative impact on the quality of life of residents in nos. 10, 12, 14 
and 16. 

P
age 235

IT
E

M
 10



197 

I would like to object to the addition of a disabled parking space on Rose Lane. There is already a severe shortage of unrestricted 
parking for residents of Rose Lane – most of us do not have any parking for our historic cottages except what is on Rose Lane. I 
would not object to an additional disabled spot on the high street which makes more sense. If the attempt is to provide a disabled 
space for elderly residents of Rose Lane then you will have to provide many more than one space as I am a OAP and most of the 
residents of the lane are! The location of the space, in any case, is not at all convenient for someone disabled as that location is 
always blocked at one end or another and is very tight. There would be more ease of access for any disabled person in front of the 
bus stop where there is currently 1 ½ spaces of high street parking. 
 
 
I see that the disabled parking spot has already been put in on Rose Lane and painted with the disabled words on the Tarmac. So 
what is the point of a consultation? 

P
age 236

IT
E

M
 10



 
ANNEXE 12 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Middle Street / Gomshall Lane, Shere 
(introduce / formalise disabled spaces and improve turnover of spaces near shops) 

(4 representations) 

82 

My particular concern relates to the suggestions regarding the disabled parking bay in Gomshall Lane. This was installed around 12-
13 years ago at my request to the parish council for my disabled daughter as I am in the unusual position of living in the middle of a 
school playground and I am duty bound to park on the road during school hours. I was told at the time that it could not be classified as 
a residents bay as there were no other parking restrictions in place in the village and that I would have to accept others may use the 
space in my absence. The solution has worked as well as could be expected during this time. 
 
It has been all too frustrating over the years to be accused of inappropriate use of this bay by the school, the police, and now it seems 
the council too! I have a separate vehicle which I use for my daughter, who has cerebral palsy and is confined to an electric 
wheelchair and/or walking frame. This vehicle is registered as disabled with DVLA, is driven solely for the purpose of transporting my 
daughter to and from school, activities, town etc, and displays a blue badge at all times. My daughter lives with me full time and is 
currently in her final year at college. She is currently learning to drive through Motability and should she be successful will have her 
own Motability car which will take over from my vehicle as her primary form of transport. There will therefore be a continuing need for 
the foreseeable future for the disabled bay in question to be reserved, particularly during the school day, for resident use. I would 
emphasise that I have my own alternative transport for my use when not transporting my daughter. 
 
I am very much in favour of reinforcement of disabled bay use in general and I am amongst the many frustrated drivers who have to 
tolerate inappropriate parking around the country. Living on site I am very aware of the useage of this bay and regularly check 
windscreens to see if a driver is entitled to park there. I do not agree with the suggestion that there is misappropriate use of this bay 
as all drivers, other than the occasional few dropping off/picking up children from school, appear to be displaying a valid blue badge. 
 
I understand from a phone call with Andrew Harkin that the proposals to formalise the bay should have no impact on my useage 
whatsoever. I also understand that no time limit will be imposed which is important as it is required at a minimum from 7.30am to 
5.00pm Monday to Friday during school term time. I felt it was important however to highlight the history of this bay and the essential 
part it plays in my daughter's life given the widespread perceptions of my use in particular! 

310 

General Comment: 
 
1 All parking restrictions need to be enforced if they are to work. 
 
2 There is virtually no enforcement in Shere and what little there is tends to be concentrated on the yellow lines at the northern end 

of the east side of Middle Street, those designed to stop people parking close to the junction of Middle Street & Gomshall Lane [to 
the north of the proposal below]. To all intents and purposes none of  the other restrictions are enforced and many of them are 
ignored with impunity. 

 

P
age 237

IT
E

M
 10



3 I see no point in introducing more restrictions that will not be enforced. 
 
Proposal 1: 
Introduce Mon-Sat 8:30am-6pm 2 hour limited waiting, no return 4 hours parking place 
 
Comment: 
I live just around the corner and I have rarely come across any parking space hogging in this small area. It is primarily used by people 
going into the Co-op who then leave. 
I see any restriction as unnecessary and if any restrictions are introduced, it will involve additional signage to clutter up the street 
scene. 
But if any time restriction was to be introduced it should be for say 30/45 minutes, not 2 hours. 
 
Proposal 2: 
Introduce new formalised disabled only parking place [outside Ivy Cottage] 
 
Comment: 
Blue badge holders already park wherever they feel like in this area. 
Providing a dedicated space will not help as it won’t be enforced and will need additional signage. 
 
Proposal 3: 
Formalise existing advisory disabled only parking space. 
 
Comment: 
I support this although I doubt it will be formally enforced. 
 
Suggestions 
 
Suggestion 1 
1 The area outside the school is No Parking Mon- Fri, 8am-6pm  
2 This implies that it’s OK to park outside these hours. This is one of the narrowest  points in Gomshall Lane and parking in this 

area causes obstruction. 
3 It should be No Parking at all times. 
 
Suggestion 2 
1 The yellow lines at the western end on the south side of Gomshall Lane near the  junction of Middle Street imply that it is OK to 

park at the eastern end of them which,  since they were introduced, people have from time to time, despite the fact that there 
 is parking on the northern side of Gomshall Lane at this point, which leads to  obstruction. I have  lived here since 1978 
and prior to the introduction of the yellow  lines I cannot recall anyone parking in this area since it was obvious it would 
cause  obstruction. 

2 These yellow lines should be removed. 

P
age 238

IT
E

M
 10



374 

The proposed disabled bay in Middle Street: 
1. Is going to be situated in the narrowest part of Middle Street. 
2. Co-op attracts large vans, cars and lorries. 
3. There is no dropped kerb for disabled people. 
4. The Co-op in Middle Street has no disabled facilities for shoppers.  I mention this in case you are putting a bay here for 

disabled shoppers.  There is a large entrance step. 
5. There is a recessed parking bay between the fire station, WCs and the Dabbling Duck tea shop – which I once owned. 
6. There is a dropped kerb – which disabled people need. Being recessed they can alight from their cars without being killed on 

busy Middle Street. 
7. It’s ideally place for the Co-op and green grocers. 
8. I am going to assume that you have looked at this site – why has it not been considered. The dropped kerb is not for cars. I 

have been there since I owned the teashop in 1986 and before. 
9. I live opposite the tea shop and parking bay.  I am severely disabled and in a better position than able bodied people to 

understand the difficulties of walking and shopping in Shere – you can’t alight from a car on to a busy road.  That is why the 
recessed bay is perfect. 

412 
Shere 
Parish 
Council 

Agree with the disabled bay proposals but believe that there is no justification for the proposed limited waiting bay and the associated 
street clutter. 

P
age 239

IT
E

M
 10



 
ANNEXE 12 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

South Hill, Guildford 
(improve access to No.8a) 

(3 representations) 

235 

I understand the reason for making the proposed changes to the two bays in South Hill.  The change gives needed better access to 
No 8a.   
 
My comment is to emphasise the importance of keeping all the car parking spaces we have in South Hill – and to increase the 
number if possible.  I live opposite No 8a and have to leave my car in the road.  
 
Reducing the bay DOWNHILL of the affected gap will not create a problem: it is currently too small for three cars and larger than 
needed for two cars.   Therefore that bay should be reduced in this exercise by more than the uphill bay.    The UPHILL bay should be 
reduced by as little as possible so that the full length of the bay is available: it does fill up frequently.  There is room to enlarge it at the 
top end of the bay to allow equivalent space, or MORE space, to be added:  there is plenty of room to enlarge this bay before the next 
driveway 

384 

It would appear that the map is inaccurate and entrance to 8 South Hill is for the garage only, with no allowance for the gate which 
opens into the courtyard in front of our house.  The total width for garage and gates is 5.10m.  The section currently controlled by a 
single yellow line includes a fire hydrant.  In the circumstances would it be preferable to mark this section with double yellow lines 
indicating – “No waiting at any time?” I recently spoke to the local fire officer who agreed that this should be done. 
 
I have previously written in February 2014 on this matter to explain how difficult and dangerous it can be.  It was suggested that it was 
not necessary at the time but that the situation would be reconsidered if issues persisted. 
 
Parking in the bay up-hill of the gate means that vehicles parked legally can still cause issues by virtue of their overhang.  This does 
impinge upon the gateway causing a further hazard. 
 
Since my previous correspondence, we have suffered from various thoughtless parking incidents which makes life very difficult, and 
in some circumstances, dangerous. 
 
p.s. Suggest a 20 mph sign painted on the road might help. 
 
 
My thoughts are: 

 If a pedestrian crossing was placed at the multi-junction of Castle Street, Sydenham Road, Tunsgate and South Hill, traffic 
would be automatically ‘calmed’ and slowed down.  It is a very dangerous crossing area, and not all drivers indicate when they 
turn. 

 Introduce20mph limit to South Hill with signs painted on the road surface. 

P
age 240

IT
E

M
 10



 Continue to permit free parking after 6pm and on Sundays, but paint double yellow lines across every house drive entrance.  
This would allow passing areas when the traffic is congested.  We would never allow our friends and family to park across the 
entrance.  This only encourages others to do the same, and we have experienced a number of unpleasant situations. 

 The map is not accurate and the blue box annotation obliterates our No.8 problem. 
 
Guildford is a most attractive town, and being the county town of Surrey, must be encouraged to remain so.` 

385 

I welcome any proposal that will improve vehicular access and therefore safety, not only to my property, but also those of my 
neighbours in South Hill. 
 
Presently, when leaving the property, visibility both up and down South Hill is severely restricted especially when vehicles park up to 
the parking lines immediately either side of the gateway.  Often such vehicles are high sided i.e. a van or four wheeled drive and then 
access is totally blind.  It is then necessary to drive out extremely slowly using hazard warning lights and listening out for car horns.  I 
have lived at the property for almost two years and experienced several near misses.  It is a matter of time before there is a very 
serious accident.  I have witnessed my neighbours experience the same difficulties. 
 
The danger is exacerbated by the excessive speed of many of the vehicles particularly in the rush hour.  Vehicles often park over the 
parking line severely narrowing and sometimes blocking the access and even when wheels fall within the line vehicle overhang has 
the same effect.   
 
For these reasons a widening of the gap either side of the gates would improve visibility and therefore safety.  The wide the gap the 
safer it would be.  Ideally the gaps outside numbers 8 and 8a should be widened by another car length either side of each gate.  This 
would also give access to the fire hydrant which is often blocked by parked cars thereby improving safety to the area as a whole.  It is 
difficult to tell the width proposed from the plan. 
 
South Hill is a very busy stretch of road being so close to the town centre but also due to its junctions with Sydenham Road, Pewley 
Hill and Castle Hill and the proximity of the nursery at the top of South Hill only 45 metres from my gate.  If the speed limit were to be 
reduced to 20mph in South Hill by clear road surface markings and or a flashing road sign then this, together with wider access gates, 
would greatly improve safety not only for residents but also other road users in particular parents and children going to and from the 
nursery. 
 
I appreciate that parking in Guildford is difficult having lived here for over 30 years.  However safety is, I believe, far more important 
than the loss of a small stretch of parking bearing in mind that the multi-storey car park is less than 200 metres away. 

P
age 241

IT
E

M
 10



 
ANNEXE 12 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Poyle Road and The Street, Tongham 
(introduce double yellow lines and a disabled bay) 

(3 representations) 

14 
Poyle Road 
Campaign 
Group 

Please accept the following comments on behalf of the Poyle Road Campaign Group -Tongham Care - for the prevention of Flooding 
and Speeding. 
 
There are occasions when people park in the entrance to the Recreation Ground - even when the gates are open and when there is 
space available in the car park. The introduction of double yellows lines in the area proposed will provide some safety comfort for 
those 
- that worry the parked vehicle is not seen until the last minute turning into the area or 
- that leaving the area have a sight line problem when coming out onto Poyle Road. 
 
We understand double yellow lines are proposed - who will enforce this proposed highway marking feature?  
 
----------------------------- 
 
There is very much concern for the need for additional parking in the Tongham Village area covered by your Restricted Parking 
proposals forThe Street Village. 
 
The layby  immediately in front of the shops is very small and difficult at the best of times to fit in - besides taking up a resevered 
space for special need drivers. 
 
Would it not be better to pinch another space across the road next to the existing layby resevered space? 
 
Such new resevered spaces will not be enforced for the shopper that pops in and out quickly - with Police cut backs it will be tempting 
to take a chance as per the silly parking in the immediate area of St Paul's School in The Cardinals - see attached a few pictures 
showing silly parking in the Village Shop Area. 
 
People have parked on the pavement when there has been plenty of space, bollards recently installed knock down, litter bins and 
hanging basket posts knocked down, the special resevered space used by unathorised people. You have seen it all - what can be 
done to help busy people as well folk needing some reserved space. 
 
Some shops could do with reserved space to enable their suppliers to deliver and collect - so many demands and not enough room. 
 
We stronghly support the need for available money to be used to create additional parking space where cars go in at an angle - this 
could be introduced along The Street opposite the existing layby from the Bridge Mews to almost Lambourne Way. 

P
age 242

IT
E

M
 10



 
The Cardinals is in need of a similar parking arrangement around the area of St Paul's School - the demand is there but is the 
money? 
 
---------------------------------- 
 
We wish to request you provide Restricted Parking/double yellow lines in the following areas: 
 
1 - at the west enrance to The Cardinals between dwelling 14 and 22 Poyle Road - stop cars parking on grass verge. 
2 - on bend at dwelling 50 around to The Cardinals east entrance - area used opposite the Scout Hut/Fellowship Church. 
This is a blind spot - road bears to the left. 
3 - at the entrance to the garages between dwelling 102 and 104 Poyle Raod - stop cars parking on pavement. 
4 - on the bend in The Street from near the Manor Farm Business Area upto near The Ambulance Station. This is a blind spot - road 
bears to the left. 
 
Please advise if you are willing to include these extra areas for Parking Restriction. 
 
The cost of a few metres would so much help to relieve driver concern. 

243 
Clerk, 
Tongham 
Parish 
Council 

I am writing on behalf of Tongham Parish Council to advise that we do not feel restrictions in Poyle Road outside the community 
centre would be helpful; in fact this would cause considerable problems elsewhere in the village. It is not felt that there is a problem in 
this area, under normal circumstances. 
 
In addition, the proposal of an extra disabled bay in The Street, opposite the shops, would only serve to exacerbate an already 
difficult problem, caused by insufficient parking spaces. Not one of the Councillors is aware of any disabled person regularly using the 
existing bay. 

248 
Chairman, 
Tongham 
Parish 
Council 

Thanks for logging this information as its important that GBC are made aware that both the proposals mentioned would be 
unwelcomed in the village and only serve to make matters worse. 

P
age 243

IT
E

M
 10



 
ANNEXE 12 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Vale Road, Ash Vale 
(small extension to existing double yellow lines to improve visibility on approach to bridge 
over canal) 

(1 representation) 

254 

I wish to oppose in the strongest possible terms to the proposed changes in parking that you have advertised for Vale Road in Ash. 
The centre of Ash vale never has enough available parking, I am aware that you have spaces outside of the shops but these are 
always oversubscribed. There is little or no alternative parking in the centre of Ash vale and parking there  is always a problem. As a 
result I often park outside of the convenience store and bike shop in Vale Road and this is a very convenient place to park. Many 
other people also use this and I believe it contributes to the footfall to those businesses. The shopkeepers also seem to have no issue 
with those cars parked there. 
 
If the spaces are taken away, and one has to negotiate the bunfight that is the parking situation in the centre of Ash vale then 
personally I would be opposed to stopping and shopping in my village. I would most likely go elsewhere where I can easily park. Have 
you witnessed the parking problems in the village? It is ALWAYS busy with cars parked in the available spaces. Finding a space is 
always a problem and cars frequently double park outside of the solicitors. I have also witnessed an accident outside of what was 
until recently Budgens when a lorry delivering to the store crashed into a car parked outside. We need MORE available parking - not 
less! Even the community centre car park is full each day. 
 
Speaking to other people locally, they have also expressed the same opinion. If the council is not prepared to provide adequate 
parking in the village centre then my view is that those businesses will suffer as a result.  Furthermore, parking cars in Vale road does 
not pose a significant risk or problem to either pedestrians or traffic.  It does not impede the flow of traffic significantly. 

P
age 244

IT
E

M
 10



 
ANNEXE 12 : COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RAISED TO ADVERTISED ORDER 
 

Ref. No.  Representation Comments  

Oak Hill and The Oval, Wood Street Village 
(introduced double yellow lines and formalise existing school keep clear marking) 

(2 representations) 

35 

I am a resident at 70 Oakhill and am writing with concerns about the above proposals. 
 
I have lived here for 28 years and the parking outside the village school has been a growing problem during this time. 
 
The building of the community car park, although alleviating some of the problem, was never going to solve it completely because it is 
just too small. I know there were various restrictions imposed by Surrey Wildlife and local residents but common sense should have 
prevailed in building car parks on either side of the school with in and out access going round the back of the premises.  
 
Imposing yellow lines on the main road will result in a queue backing up onto the main road with too many drivers trying to access the 
mini car park during school hours. This will create an additional safety hazard to other road users. 
 
The overspill of cars will inevitably end up being parked in our service roads, which are a in a pretty poor state of repair. Saying that, 
we in fact prefer it, as it does discourage non resident parking and also slows down the vehicles which at times their drivers assume it 
is some sort of race track. 
I have had my driveway blocked on various occasions, although it is perfectly clear that it is my access to my house. I have had the 
driveway widened in order to be able to use it as I should. That has made some difference but it was an expensive solution. 
 
Also the service road entrances have been blocked by parked cars and I have been verbally abused by ignorant drivers when I 
request they move out of the way. 
 
I also wonder about the policing of the parking on yellow lines. Currently drivers seem to have one purpose in mind and that is to get 
their children to school by parking as near as possible to the gates. This includes parking on the school entrance restricted access 
areas. The drivers can't be bothered to use the carpark, a) because there are not enough spaces at busy times, b) it takes up more 
time than they allow for the drop off and collection and c) it's quicker to park on the road. 
 
I am not adverse to having parking controls put in place BUT in order to protect the villagers, sensible alternatives have to be 
provided to the poorly planned existing car park facilities. 

P
age 245

IT
E

M
 10



237 
Wood Street 
Infant 
School 

We are very pleased to see these proposals as the area outside our school can be very dangerous, especially around the entrance 
and exit of the new community car park. 
 
We agree with the proposed double and single yellow lines positions, and believe that this is a good balance and still allows parents 
to park on the main road if necessary (parallel to the school) where it is a straight piece of road, and therefore safer.   
 
We are very keen to see double yellow lines outside the community car park especially, as it seems that some parents think nothing 
of parking right outside the entrance and exit (AND in the small space between the entrance and exit!) making it extremely dangerous 
for all other drivers attempting to leave the car park.  More worryingly parents with children are trying to cross the road, having to peer 
around parked cars to check it is safe to cross. Despite a number of messages to our school community, some still park there and 
there is very little we can do.  This is our main area of concern. 

413 

Is it possible for the disabled bay to be placed entirely outside No.19 The Oval?  This would allow the disabled resident to park 
outside his property, and we outside ours (No.17).  No.19 is closer to the curve of the road but it is not on the bend. It wouldn't be 
common sense to formalise the bay with no one using it! 
 
As an alternative, is it possible to set up an official GBC sign indicating no parking? 

 

P
age 246

IT
E

M
 10



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
 
 

 
LOCAL COMMITTEE (GUILDFORD) 
 
DATE: 23 March 2016 

LEAD 
OFFICER: 
 

Mike Smith 
Licensing Team Leader 
Guildford Borough Council 

SUBJECT: Adoption of Additional Hackney Carriage Stands (Taxi Rank 
Space) in Guildford 
 

DIVISION: Guildford SE, Guildford SW 
 

SUMMARY OF ISSUE: 
 
The purpose of this report is to outline Guildford Borough Council’s proposals for taxi 
rank locations in Guildford and to seek the consent of the Highways Authority to 
adopt the proposed locations in this report as taxi ranks, subject to public 
consultation. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The Local Committee (Guildford) is asked to agree to adopt the following locations 
as taxi ranks, subject to public consultation as required by law. 
 
1. Bedford Road – 7 spaces (18.00 to 08.30 daily) 
Parking bays adjacent to Bedford Road Surface Car Park for a distance of 36 meters 
 
2. North Street – 11 spaces (24 hour operation) 
Length of single yellow line outside Vinyl Night Club and TGI Friday for a distance of 
50 meters 
 
3. North Street – 6 spaces (24 hour operation) 
Outside Marks and Spencer and Paperchase for a distance of 30 meters 
 
4. High Street (Lower end) – 4 spaces (18.00 to 08.30 daily) 
Parking Bays, outside Vision Express Opticians for a distance of 19 meters 
 
5. Upper High Street – 5 spaces (18.00 to 08.30 daily) 
Parking bays outside Pizza Express and Oxfam for a distance of 26 meters 
 
6. Millbrook (A281) – 4 spaces (22:30 to 04:30 daily) 
Bus Stop on north-bound carriageway outside the Legion nightclub for a distance of 
19 meters 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Improving Taxi Rank provision in Guildford will improve public safety through 
allowing residents and visitors to easily obtain a licensed taxi service.   
 
Having well defined rank locations in key areas, particularly late at night, will reduce 
the burden on partner agencies such as the Police.  

1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND: 

Page 247

ITEM 11



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 
1.1 Taxi ranks are a vital part of the Nation’s transport network.  Ranks are a 
common feature in many towns and cities and provide a location where licensed 
taxis can legally park to wait for a customer who wishes to use a taxi, rather than 
drive around town centre streets waiting to be hailed.   
 
1.2 Similarly having well defined and managed rank locations improves public 
safety through allowing customers to easily obtain a licensed taxi service and 
reduces the risks associated with touting and inconvenience to customers searching 
the streets for a service. 
 
1.3 A local authority can adopt areas on streets or private land as taxi ranks for 
either continual or part-time use under section 63 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  The creation of a taxi rank is not a 
straightforward process; the local authority must obtain the permission of the 
Highways Authority, give notice to the Police, publish a public advertisement in a 
local paper and consult for a period of 28 days, considering any objections before a 
rank is appointed. 
 

2. ANALYSIS: 

 
2.1 Currently, Guildford Borough Council provides rank space for its 180 
Licensed Taxis in the following locations: 

 North Street, off Onslow Street, outside the Friary Centre (approx. 12 spaces) 

 North Street, outside Marks and Spencer (3 spaces) 

 Guildford Park Road, outside the railway station (2 spaces) 
 
There are also ranks provided by the railway company, for which an additional fee is 
payable for the use of the rank, at: 

 Guildford Railway Station (approx. 10 spaces) 

 Guildford London Road Station (3 spaces) 
 
Rank provision has not been reviewed by Guildford Borough Council for a number of 
years and it is acknowledged that provision could be improved, which is a frequent 
cause for complaint from the taxi trade.   
 
2.2 The two main larger ranks at the Station and outside the Friary have their 
own issues:   
 
A permit for the station rank costs approximately an additional £800 a year with a 
number of vehicles using the facility during the day when the station is busy with 
commuters.  The number of vehicles using the area is frequently greater than the 
number of spaces, causing taxis to queue in the station car park to wait for a rank 
space to become available, restricting access to other car park users. 
 
The rank at the Friary is the main location which customers head to looking for a taxi 
service in the night.  This often causes the rank to become congested, with vehicles 
wishing to wait on the rank backing up onto the main A322/Onslow Street interfering 
with traffic flow.  Customers also have to make their way to this location after a night 
out.  This can either be through town where there is potential for them to cause noise 
and disturbance, or across the busy A322 road from the main nightclub.   
 
Similarly, there are frequent public disorder issues caused by customers 
congregating in one location competing for a taxi after a night out which places an 

Page 248

ITEM 11



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

additional strain on the Police who wish for customers heading home after a night 
out to disperse quickly.   
 
2.3 The current limited arrangements also subsequently create unmanaged, 
informal arrangements at popular locations, which cause congestion and disorder 
placing an additional burden on the emergency services, and increases the risk of 
touting. 
 
2.4 Improving access to a taxi service through increasing rank provision 
throughout the town would negate some of the above safety issues associated with 
customers and taxis waiting in one location during the night-time economy.  The last 
Purple Flag review identified dispersal of night-time patrons as an area for potential 
improvement.  Additionally increasing provision in areas close to the premises 
popular with the night-time economy would reduce some disorder issues associated 
with customers heading towards the main rank after a night out from other areas of 
the town, and reduce the problem of vehicles waiting in a disorderly manner in other 
popular locations causing disruption. 
 

3. OPTIONS: 

 
Guildford Borough Council is seeking consent from Surrey County Council to adopt 
all of the six options below as taxi ranks. 
 
3.1 Bedford Road 
 

Location Bedford Road 
Parking bays adjacent to Bedford Road Surface Car Park 

Length 36 meters 

Number of spaces 7 

Hours of operation 18.00 to 08.30 daily 

 
Currently there are is a long on street parking bay located along the length of the 
Bedford Road Surface Car Park which are provided for public on street parking 
between the hours of 8.30 and 18.00 for a charge of 80p per half hour.  Outside of 
these hours there are no parking restrictions. 
 
The advantages of this location are: 

 The bays are located off the main carriageway and resultantly taxis will not 
queue on the main road and obstruct traffic. 

 After 6pm there are no current restrictions hence no group is disadvantaged 
by converting the bays into ranks. 

 The bays are located close to Casino nightclub and Odeon cinema and 
ideally situated to serve the night-time economy. 

 This area is already a popular waiting area for the trade wishing to pick up 
pre-booked customers, with vehicles often parking in restricted areas causing 
congestion. 

 Providing a dedicated rank facility in this area would improve safety through 
reducing competition from pre-booked vehicles waiting for pick ups in the 
area, and reduce the number of customers crossing the main A322 from the 
nightclub to the taxi rank after a night out. 

 
 
The disadvantages of this location are: 

Page 249

ITEM 11



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 The spaces are currently available to resident permit holders, as well as 
being available to the public.  Designating these spaces as a taxi rank would 
reduce the availability to residents. 

3.2  North Street 
 

Location North Street, length of single yellow line  
Outside Vinyl Night Club and TGI Friday 

Length 50 meters 

Number of spaces 11 

Hours of operation 24 hour operation 

 
Currently there is a single yellow line running for a length of about 50 meters 
adjacent to the Vinyl nightclub and TGI Friday.   
 
The advantages of this location are: 

 The site is currently a single yellow line.  After 6pm there are no parking 
restrictions hence no group is disadvantaged by converting the bays into 
ranks. 

 The site is located in a busy shopping area and is well situated to serve the 
town during the day.  It is also close to Vinyl nightclub and a number of other 
bars/restaurants and ideally situated to serve the night-time economy, 
particularly customers dispersing from establishments nearby. 

 The carriageway is sufficiently wide at this point to allow taxis to queue at this 
location and maintain two way traffic flow. 

 
3.3 North Street 
 

Location North Street Taxi Rank 
Outside Marks and Spencer and Paperchase 

Length Additional 15 meters, making a total rank length of 30 meters 

Number of spaces Additional 3 spaces, making a total of number of 6 spaces 

Hours of operation 24 hour operation 

 
There is currently a dedicated taxi rank on North Street, outside Marks and Spencer 
with space for 2 to 3 taxis to rank.  The location is not well used by the trade and is 
often taken advantage of by both the trade and public as a convenient area to wait.  
This is compounded by the double yellow lines which run the remaining length of 
North Street also used as convenient parking/waiting spaces. 
 
It is anticipated that extending the rank would encourage its use and reduce the 
associated problem with other motorists parking and waiting in this location. 
 
The advantages of this location are: 

 The site is currently a double yellow line hence no group is disadvantaged by 
converting the bays into ranks. 

 The site is located in a busy shopping area and is well situated to serve the 
town during the day.   

 The site is situated close to popular bars and take away premises and well 
situated in the middle of town to serve the night time economy. 

 The carriageway is sufficiently wide at this point to allow taxis to queue at this 
location and maintain traffic flow. 

 
The disadvantages of this location are: 

Page 250

ITEM 11



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 There is a pick up point for Marks and Spencer close to this location.  Marks 
and Spencer are concerned about the impact of extending the rank on this 
pick up point, to such an extent that they have threatened to move out of 
Guildford when this location has been proposed historically. 

 The current double yellow line is a popular parking location for blue badge 
holders. 

 
3.4 High Street 
 

Location High Street (Lower end) 
Parking Bays, outside Vision Express Opticians 

Length 19 meters 

Number of spaces 4 

Hours of operation 18:00 to 08:30 daily 

 
The site is currently on-street parking bays provided for the public between the hours 
of 8.30 and 18.00 for a charge of 80p per half hour.  Outside of these hours there are 
no parking restrictions.  Behind the pay and display bays are two spaces reserved 
for disabled parking. 
 
The advantages of this location are: 

 The bays are located off the main carriageway and resultantly taxis will not 
queue and obstruct traffic in the road. 

 After 6pm there are no current restrictions hence no group is disadvantaged 
by converting the bays into ranks. 

 The bays are located close to the restaurants on Friary Street and are ideally 
situated to serve the night-time economy. 

 The area is currently being used as an un-official taxi rank at night by the taxi 
trade. 

 
3.5 Upper High Street 
 

Location Upper High Street 
Parking bays outside Pizza Express and Oxfam 

Length 26 meters 

Number of spaces 5 

Hours of operation 18:00 to 08:30 daily 

 
The site is currently on-street parking bays provided for the public between the hours 
of 8.30 and 18.00 for a charge of 80p per half hour.  Outside of these hours there are 
no parking restrictions.   
 
The advantages of this location are: 

 The bays are located off the main carriageway and resultantly taxis will not 
queue and obstruct traffic in the road. 

 After 6pm there are no current restrictions hence no group is disadvantaged 
by converting the bays into ranks. 

 There are other, larger parking bays and the York Road car park close by 
enabling residents and visitors to park in the area. 

 The bays are located close to the restaurants at the top of the High Street 
and G-Live Venue and are ideally situated to serve the night-time economy. 

 
 
3.6 Millbrook 

Page 251

ITEM 11



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 

Location Millbrook (A281) 
Bus Stop on north-bound carriageway outside the Legion 
nightclub 

Length 19 meters 

Number of spaces 4 

Hours of operation 22:30 to 04:30 daily 

 
There is a bus stop located on the northbound carriageway of Millbrook outside the 
Legion nightclub and Yvonne Arnaud Theatre.  The bus service is finished by 10pm 
in the evening. 
 
The advantages of this location are: 

 After 10pm, there is no bus service operating at this stop and hence allowing 
use as a taxi rank would not impact any bus service. 

 The location is close to the Legion nightclub and Yvonne Arnaud Theatre and 
ideally situated to serve the night-time economy. 

 The carriageway is sufficiently wide at this point to allow taxis to queue at this 
location and maintain traffic flow. 

 
 

4. CONSULTATIONS: 

  
4.1 The above sites have been identified in consultation with: 

 The taxi trade 

 Surrey County Highways – Roy Varley, Senior Transport Officer, Travel & 
Transport Group, E&I 

 Surrey County Highways – Bahram Assadi, Traffic Engineer, Guildford Area 

 Surrey Police – Road Safety Team 

 Surrey Police – Borough Inspector 

 Guildford Borough Council – Parking Service 

 Guildford Borough Council – Major Projects Team 

 Guildford Borough Council – Lead Member for Licensing and Community Safety 

 Guildford Borough Council – Lead Member for Transport and Infrastructure 
 
4.2 Before ranks are adopted, legislation requires that the locations are subject to 
a period of consultation with the Police and the public.  This is achieved by serving a 
notice on the Chief of Police and by publishing an advertisement in a locally 
distributed newspaper, allowing for a period of 28 days from the date of first 
publication inviting comments or objections to the proposals.  The Licensing 
Committee of Guildford Borough Council will then consider any comments or 
objections to the locations before deciding to adopt a stand. 
 
4.3 In addition to the consultation required by law, we intend to undertake 
publicity of our proposals through the media, on our website, with other key 
stakeholders and through displaying site notices. 
 

5. FINANCIAL AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS: 

 
5.1 The cost of adopting an area as a taxi rank includes legal advertisement 
costs associated with the statutory process, together with the costs of design and 
implementation.  
 

Page 252

ITEM 11



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

5.2 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 allows Guildford 
Borough Council to recover the costs of providing taxi ranks through licence fees 
charged to taxis.  The budget for 2016/17 includes an allocation for providing taxi 
ranks.  
 
5.3 There are plans to redevelop Guildford Town Centre which may impact the 
long term operation of these sites.  However it is anticipated that these sites would 
be operational for a minimum of 3 years before any redevelopment takes place. 
 
5.4 Even the short term operation of these sites would be value for money by 
improving public safety and reducing the burden on the emergency services resulting 
from the current limited arrangements. 
 

6. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS: 

 
6.1 Guildford Borough Council is mindful of its duty within this area and attempts 
to treat all users of the public highway with equality and understanding. 
 
6.2 The proposed locations do not reduce the number of accessible spaces 
provided for the use of disabled members of the public. 
 

7. LOCALISM: 

 
7.1       Improving taxi rank provision will benefit, residents, visitors, the business and 
taxi community of Guildford through creating well managed arrangements. 
 

8. OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 

Area assessed: Direct Implications: 

Crime and Disorder Set out below. 

Sustainability (including Climate Change 
and Carbon Emissions) 

No significant implications arising from 
this report. 

Corporate Parenting/Looked After 
Children 

No significant implications arising from 
this report. 

Safeguarding responsibilities for 
vulnerable children and adults   

Set out below. 

Public Health 
 

Set out below.  

 
8.1 Crime and Disorder implications 

 
Improving taxi rank arrangements would serve to assist in reducing crime and 
disorder and would be welcomed by colleagues in the Police.   
 
Currently, the demand for spaces the Station and outside the Friary at peak times 
exceeds the number of spaces provided.  This results in congestion, disruption and 
increases risk to other road users.   
 
Additionally, the lack of space at other key locations creates unmanaged, informal 
arrangements at popular locations, which cause congestion and disorder which 
places an additional burden on the emergency services.     
 
 

Page 253

ITEM 11



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

The rank at the Friary is the main location which customers head to looking for a taxi 
service in the night.  This often causes frequent public disorder issues caused by 
customers congregating in one location competing for a taxi after a night out which 
places an additional strain on the Police who wish for customers heading home after 
a night out to disperse quickly.   
 
Customers also have to make their way to this location after a night out.  This can 
either be through town where there is potential for them to cause noise and 
disturbance as they make their way from their last venue to the rank.  Customers 
wishing to access this location from the Casino nightclub or bars on Bridge in the 
town have to cross the busy A322 road which increases the risk to safety of the 
public and motorists due to the time of night, volume of traffic, volume of people and 
frequent state of intoxication. 
 
Improving access to a taxi service through increasing rank provision throughout the 
town would negate some of the above safety issues associated with customers and 
taxis waiting in one location during the night-time economy.    Additionally increasing 
provision in areas close to the premises popular with the night-time economy would 
reduce some disorder issues associated with customers heading towards the main 
rank after a night out from other areas of the town, and reduce the problem of 
vehicles waiting in a disorderly manner in other popular locations causing disruption.  
This congregation of vehicles at popular locations also increases the opportunity for 
vehicles to “tout”, potentially increasing the risk to the public through getting into an 
unlicensed or uninsured vehicle. 
 
The last Purple Flag review identified dispersal of night-time patrons as an area for 
potential improvement. 
 
8.2 Safeguarding responsibilities for vulnerable children and adults implications 
 
Increasing access to a safe, well regulated form of transport will promote the 
safeguarding of vulnerable young persons and adults, particularly those impaired 
through drink after a night out. 
 
8.3 Public Health implications 
 
Improving taxi rank provision in key locations should help to reduce the instances of 
collisions in the town at night through customers crossing the busy A322 from 
popular venues to get to the main taxi rank. 
 

9. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
9.1 Improving taxi rank provision in Guildford would have a positive impact on the 
town and would receive support from Surrey Police. 
 
9.2 The Area Committee (Guildford) are asked to approve the proposals in this 
report which would allow Guildford Borough Council to begin public consultation. 
 

10. WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

 
10.1 Should the Area Committee decide to approve Guildford Borough Council’s 
proposals for new taxi ranks, the Council is then required to consult with the Police 
and the Public, and consider any objections before a rank is adopted.   
 

Page 254

ITEM 11



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

The Council will carry out this consultation by serving a notice on the Chief of Police 
and by publishing an advertisement in a locally distributed newspaper, allowing for a 
period of 28 days from the date of first publication inviting comments or objections to 
the proposals.  It is anticipated that this consultation would run from the 1 to 29 April 
2016. 
 
The Licensing Committee of Guildford Borough Council will then consider any 
comments or objections to the locations at their meeting on the 25 May 2016 before 
deciding to adopt a location as a taxi rank. 
 

 
Contact Officer: 
 
Mike Smith 
Licensing Team Leader 
Guildford Borough Council, Millmead House, Millmead, Guildford, Surrey, GU2 4BB  
 
Telephone: 01483 444 387 
Fax:            01483 444 546 
Email:         mike.smith@guildford.gov.uk 
 
Consulted: 
Details of parties consulted to date are shown in section 4 of this report. 
 
Annexes: 
The GIS map locations are enclosed as annexes to this report. 
 
Sources/background papers: 
None 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 255

ITEM 11

mailto:mike.smith@guildford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



75 0 75 150 225 300 m

Proposed Taxi Rank Locations

Legend

Proposed Taxi Ranks 2016
Copyright Guildford Borough Council

P
age 257

IT
E

M
 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 259

IT
E

M
 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 261

IT
E

M
 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 263

IT
E

M
 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 265

IT
E

M
 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 267

IT
E

M
 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 269

IT
E

M
 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 
SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
 
 

 
LOCAL COMMITTEE (GUILDFORD) 
 
DATE: 23 MARCH 2016 

LEAD 
OFFICER: 
 

MARC WOODALL – SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT MANAGER 

SUBJECT: GUILDFORD LOCAL CYCLING PLAN – MINOR 
IMPROVEMENTS 
 

DIVISION: ALL DIVISIONS 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF ISSUE: 
 
As part of the Surrey Transport Plan, the Surrey Cycling Strategy was approved by 
Cabinet in December 2013. The Strategy set out a role for Local Committees to 
oversee the development of Local Cycling Plans.  
 
As a result of the public consultation held on the Guildford Local Cycling Plan in 
October and November 2015, a number of minor improvements to improve 
Guildford’s cycle network have been identified.   
 
These have been split into improvements that don’t attract any cost, and those that 
do have some cost associated with them.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The Local Committee (Guildford) is asked to agree that : 
 

(i) The minor improvements identified in annex A are approved 

(ii) The existing footway on the eastern side of The Chase between the entrance 
to Guildford Cathedral to the alleyway link to Arlesford Road be converted to 
a shared use cycle/footway.  

(iii) The closed road between Cumberland Avenue and Johnston Walk be 
converted to a shared use cycle/footway 

(iv) The footway and traffic island linking Woodbridge Road road and Leapale 
Lane be converted to a shared use cycle/footway 

(v) The minor improvements that require funding in annex B are considered for 
inclusion in the Local Committee Highways forward programme.  

(vi) Any minor improvements in Annex B that the committee wish to take forward 
immediately be identified.  

Page 271

ITEM 12



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
As part of the Surrey Cycling Strategy, the Count Council and Guildford Local 
Committee want to encourage more people in Surrey to cycle, more safely.  
Guildford Local Cycling Plan include a map of proposed infrastructure improvements 
to support this, however there are a number of minor improvements, many of which 
do not cost money, or are inexpensive that can be implemented quickly and improve 
the cycle network in the Borough.  
 
The recommendations in this report ask the committee to consider implementing 
some of these minor improvements, making an immediate positive contribution of the 
cycle network in Guildford.  

 
1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND: 

 
1.1 The Surrey Cycling Strategy, approved by Cabinet in December 2013, with an 

aim of as ‘more people cycling, more safely’ and set out its vision: 
 
“.....  a true Olympic legacy would see every child in Surrey learning to ride a 
bike and being able to cycle safely to school. It would mean that many more of 
our residents cycle for transport and leisure, reducing congestion and reliance 
on cars and reaping the considerable health and economic benefits this brings. 
And it would mean that people without access to a car can travel safely and 
affordably around the county.” 

1.2 Local Cycling Plans are being developed for all Surrey Districts and Boroughs, 
and the final documents will include five main elements : 

a. Infrastructure 
b. Promotion and events 
c. Cycle training 
d. Safety campaigns 
e.  Monitoring and evaluation 

1.3 Many of the minor improvements identified in this report have emerged as part 
of the public consultation process that was undertaken for Guildford Local 
Cycling Plan in October and November 2015.  

 
 

2. ANALYSIS: 

 
2.1  Guildford’s cycling network has developed over many years, and has often 

been constructed in piecemeal sections where funding, space and planning 
has allowed. As a result there are a number of gaps or missing 
information/signage that contribute to the current network being less legible 
and comfortable for cyclists.  

2.2 Many of these gaps are very easy and quick to resolve and this report aims to 
identify these and seeks a resolution to solve them. Annex A provides greater 
detail on the proposed minor improvements which either do not require any 
funding, or very modest expenditure.  

Page 272

ITEM 12



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

2.3  Annex B provides another list of minor improvements which require either 
small or moderate amounts of funding to be completed.  

2.4 All of these minor improvements will contribute to improving the overall cycle 
network in Guildford by either improving connectivity, making the network more 
legible, or improving safety.  

 

3. OPTIONS: 

 
3.1  The minor improvements have been presented in two annexes in order to 

provide the committee with different options for considering what they would 
like to take forward. The minor improvements in Annex A are committee 
resolutions that have either been historically missed, or tidy up the existing 
network with a small amount of additional lining 

3.2 Annex B provides a wider collection of different improvements, some of which 
will require some design and ground works and so are necessarily more 
expensive. Members of the committee may wish to consider each of these 
improvements on their merits and judge whether any of them should be 
considered for funding through the Local Committee. 

 

4. CONSULTATIONS: 

  
The list of minor improvements identified in Annexes A and B has been developed 
in part from the responses from the public consultation on the Guildford Local 
Cycling Plan. The list of proposed improvements has also been shared with 
Guildford Bicycle User Group (G-BUG) for comment.  

5. FINANCIAL AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS: 

 
The improvements listed in annex A require only very modest sums of funding and 
therefore have minimal financial implications, however the funding of measures in 
Annex would require further consideration.  

6. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS: 

 
6.1 There are no direct equality and diversity implications arising from this report. 

However, emerging analysis from cycle modelling data suggests that men and 
women and different ethnic groups respond differently to new cycling 
infrastructure, and this will need to be taken into consideration when design 
future cycling infrastructure.  

 

7. LOCALISM: 

 
7.1 Local cyclists have been involved in the development of this report via G-BUG, 

and this report takes into account the views of local residents that were 
consulted during the Local Cycling Plan consultation.  

8. OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 

Area assessed: Direct Implications: 

Crime and Disorder No significant implications arising 

Page 273

ITEM 12



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

from this report 

Sustainability (including Climate 
Change and Carbon Emissions) 

Set out below.  

Corporate Parenting/Looked After 
Children 

No significant implications arising 
from this report 

Safeguarding responsibilities for 
vulnerable children and adults   

No significant implications arising 
from this report 

Public Health 
 

Set out below.  

 
 
8.1 Sustainability implications 
 

Increasing levels of cycling, can have a positive impact in congestion 
reduction and a consequent reduction in carbon emissions. This report seeks 
to provide the outline proposals to deliver infrastructure that will provide an 
increase in levels of cycling in Guildford.  

8.2 Public Health implications 
 

Active travel (walking and cycling), particularly for utility trips such as 
travelling to work, school and shopping, is considered a key deliverable 
against Public Health priorities such as Obesity and Air Quality. The National 
Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) Guidance – Physical Activity 
: Walking and Cycling states that encouraging walking and cycling reduce the 
risk of heart disease, stroke, cancer, obesity and type 2 diabetes It can help 
keep the muscoskeletal system healthy and promote mental wellbeing.   

 
 

9. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
The Local Committee (Guildford) is asked to agree that : 
 

(i) The minor improvements identified in annex A are approved 

(ii) The minor improvements that require funding in annex B are considered for 
inclusion in the Local Committee Highways forward programme.  

(iii) Any minor improvements in Annex B that the committee wish to take forward 
immediately be identified.  

 

10. WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

 
10.1 If the recommendations are approved, the committee resolutions regarding 

shared use footway/cycleways will come into immediate effect, and other 
measures will be incorporated into the Local Highways service delivery 
programme for implementation.  

 

 
Contact Officer: 
Marc Woodall, Sustainable Transport Manager  
Tel : 01483 519556  
 

Page 274

ITEM 12



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

Consulted: 
Public consultation  
Guildford Borough Council major projects officer 
Local Highway Manager 
 
Annexes: 
Annex A – Guildford minor improvements – Lining, signing and conversions 
Annnex B – Guildford minor improvements - Highways works 
 
Sources/background papers: 

 Surrey Cycling Strategy 2014 
 

 
 
 

Page 275

ITEM 12

http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/surrey-transport-plan-ltp3/surrey-transport-plan-strategies/surrey-cycling-strategy


This page is intentionally left blank



Annex A – Proposed minor improvements to the Guildford Cycle Network – lining, signing and conversions 

Lining and signing 

Intervention Location Benefit `Cost Photo 
 

Allow cycling along existing 
closed road – cyclist signs 

Between Cumberland 
Avenue and Johnston Walk  

Provides an off-road 
link alongside 
Worplesdon road on an 
existing wide 
pavement. Already in 
regular use 

£500  

      
 

Sign town bridge for cycle 
use – directional signs  

Town Bridge - Guildford Makes it clear that 
cycling is permitted 
along Town Bridge, and 
provides information 
about where you can 
reach from either side 

£500  

       
 

Create route from 
Woodbridge Road to 
Leapale Lane – requires 
lining  

Leapale Lane Provides a convenient 
link on existing 
infrastructure. Allows 
cyclists to avoid 
needing to use Onslow 
Street.  

£500  

        
 

P
age 277

IT
E

M
 12



Mark cycle route on 
footway 

Woking Road service road Existing sign is difficult 
to see from the north, a 
cycle roundel on the 
pavement would 
provide reassurance for 
cyclists using the route 
along Old Woking Road 

£100  

 
 

 

Legal works 

Intervention Location Benefit Cost Photo 

Order for shared use 
cycling 

Footway outside cathedral 
on the Chase – convert to 
shared use cycle lane to 
Arlesford Road Alleyway 

A small section of the 
existing wide footway has 
not been converted to 
shared use. This 
conversion will join up the 
network.  

 
N/A 

 

 
 

Allow cycling on footpath 
99 (The Street) 

Horsley to The Street This route provides an 
important link between 
Horsley station and the 

part of the village located 
along the Street, saving a 
much longer journey on 

roads without and 
facilities.  

N/A  

        
 

Order to enable cycling Friary Street Buses and taxis are N/A Needs photo 

P
age 278

IT
E

M
 12



south bound (i.e. uphill) currently allowed to use 
this route, but not cycles. 
It improves the link 
between North Street and 
the gyratory for cyclists.  

FP287 – Allow cycling along 
this route 

Compton This is a wide path linking 
Compton and the western 
edge of Farncombe. New 
Pond Road is a long 
straight road with fast 
vehicle speeds; this link 
provides an alternative. 

N/A  

        
 

Allow cycling on the 
footway from Jacobs Well 
Road to Slyfield Industrial 
Estate 

Slyfield An existing widened 
footway requires 
conversion to allow 
cyclists to use it. It 
provides a link to the 
Mars trail linking Woking 
and Guildford, and 
provides a safe off road 
route along a very busy 
road. 

N/A  

        
 

Allow cycling on current no 
cycling section of Clay Lane 

Burpham A cycle route is signed 
throughout the length of 
Clay Lane, but at some 
points the footway hasn’t 
been converted to sared 
use, requiring cyclists to 
dismount. While some 

N/A  
 

P
age 279

IT
E

M
 12



parts of the footway are 
narrow, the pedestrian 
footfall along here is light, 
and this would represent 
a significant safety 
improvement for cyclists.   

 

 

P
age 280

IT
E

M
 12



         

Annex B - Draft report on minor improvements and quick wins to Guildford’s Cycle Network 

Civils 

 Intervention Location Benefits Cost Photo 

Dropped kerb at recently 
improved bridleway 

Grange Road Provides easier access for 
cyclists, and buggy and 
wheelchair users to the new 
improved bridleway to Salt 
Box Road.  

£500  

   
 

Remove guard rail or widen 
verge into back of footway 

Hazel Ave/Woking Road  £15,000  

  
 

Cut section from planter, 
double yellow lines and widen 
footway to shared use. 

Old  Woking Road 
South/Woking Road 

This would provide a more 
convenient link from Old 
Woking Road into the Woking 
Road bus lane, and would 
segregate cyclists from 
pedestrians at this point 

£15,000  

P
age 281

IT
E

M
 12



         

 
 

Dropped kerb on car park 
corner, shelters for cycle 
parking, sign route along tow 
path  

Town Bridge – Millmead side This would provide an 
enhanced parking facility for 
cyclists and provide easier and 
safer access to the Wey tow 
path at this point. This 
effectively finishes the link 
between Ladymead an the 
Town Centre along to Wey.  

£15,000  

 
 
 

Surface gap on desire line to 
Toucan crossing 

Woodbridge Meadows – 
opposite Porsche garage 

The existing scrub in the verge 
demonstrates a strong desire 
line for cyclists and 
pedestrians here, surfacing 
would provide a cleaner, 
better maintained and 
resilient surface for all users.  

£2,000  

 
 

P
age 282

IT
E

M
 12



         

Dropped Kerbs and resurfacing Merrow Copse/Collingwood 
Crescent 

Where this route is to be 
widened, dropped kerbs will 
provide improved access for 
pedestrians and cyclists.  

Match 
funding of 
£5,000 
(remainder 
of funding 
from 
developers) 

 
Dropped, vegetation clearance, 
create route 

Stockton Road – Stoke Road This entrance would provide a 
quieter route along Stoke 
Road via the existing service 
roads 

£3,500  

 
 

Widen footway into verge and 
create dropped kerb 

Stoke Road/Nightingale Road Tis would provide a safe one 
way cycle route linking up to 
the service road to Stockton 
Road.  

£10,000  

 
 

P
age 283

IT
E

M
 12



         

Re align path to remove right 
angled bends.  
Would require consultation 
with land owners 

Wayside Road – Woodbridge 
Hill 

Existing infrastructure at this 
point makes routes for all user 
circuitous.   

£15,000 

 
Placing shelters over the 
existing cycle parking 

Outside the Odeon cinema Would provide enhanced 
parking facilities at this point 
in the town, where the 
existing racks are very popular 

£10,000 Needs photo 

Road geometry causes conflict. 
Possible minor kerb re-
alignment 

Larch Avenue – outside school Improved safety and make use 
of redundant highway space.  

£5,000 

 
 

P
age 284

IT
E

M
 12



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 
SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

 
LOCAL COMMITTEE (GUILDFORD) 
 
DATE: 23 MARCH 2016 

LEAD 
OFFICER: 
 

JOHN HILDER 

SUBJECT: HIGHWAYS UPDATE 
 

DIVISION: ALL 
 
 
 
 

 
SUMMARY OF ISSUE: 

 
This report provides an update on the 2015/16 programmes of highway improvement 
and maintenance works funded by this committee and makes recommendations on 
the allocation of the budget for 2016/17, which has been announced since the 
committee last met in December. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
The Local Committee (Guildford) is asked to: 
 
 

(i) Note progress and forecast outturn costs for the 2015/16 programme of 
highway works funded by this committee and described at Annex 1. 

(ii) Authorise the Area Highway Manager (AHM) to progress the schemes 
included in the programme in consultation with local elected members 
and associated task groups. 

(iii) Subject to approval of recommendations (i) and (ii) authorise the AHM to 
consider and determine any objections submitted following the statutory 
advertisement of the traffic orders and notices associated with the 
programme of schemes, in consultation with the Chairman and/or Vice-
Chairman of the Local Committee and relevant local councillors. 

(iv)     Delegate authority to the AHM in consultation with the Chairman and 
Vice- Chairman and locally affected Members to amend budgets 
throughout the year if required to ensure the budget is allocated in a 
timely manner. 

(v) Agree that Community Enhancement Fund is devolved to each County 
Councillor based on an equal allocation of £5,000 per division 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
The committee is asked to agree allocations for 2016/17 so that the agreed 
programme of highway works and operations can be delivered in a timely manner.  
 

Page 285

ITEM 13



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 
1. UPDATE 

 
2015/16 Budgets and Forecast Expenditure 

 
1.1 The 2015/16 budgets, allocations, forecast expenditure to the year end for 

individual schemes and general highway works are set out at Annex 1. 

1.2 Annex 1 shows three schemes will not be completed by the end of March and 
that costs of 45,000 are expected to be incurred in 2016/17. This compares 
with a forecast underspend of 32,000 which is expected to be carried forward 
as has been the case in past years. 

 
Highways Budget for 2016/17 

 
1.3 At the meeting of 8 December 2015 the committee agreed the following 

allocations as recommended by the Transportation Task Group (TTG). 

 
Ad-hoc signs, lines etc. by the area team  10,000 
 
Community gang for 13 weeks  20,000 
 
Jetter for 5 weeks    25,000 
 
Ad – hoc maintenance works by area team 10,000 
 
Funding for Lengthsman scheme  25,000 
 
     Total            £90,000  

       ( revenue maintenance) 
 
 

     Cluster Initiative £35,000 (capital maintenance) 
 

High St Setts £20,000 (capital maintenance) 
 

Onslow village area schools safety scheme 80,000 
 
Eashing Lane improved signing  30,000 
 
Reduced speed limit in Peaslake Lane 30,000 
 
Send safety scheme    50,000 
 
A25 Epsom Rd W. Clandon junction safety 12,000 
 
Aldershot Road pedestrian refuge  25,000   

 
     Total  £227,000 (capital ITS) 
 
 
 

Page 286

ITEM 13



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 
 

1.4 The above represents a total revenue allocation of £90,000 and a total capital 
allocation of £255,000. Both are approximately 50% of the budgets available 
in 2015/16 since in the Autumn of 2015 it was expected that there would be 
significant budget reductions in the coming year. 

 
Transportation Task Group Meeting 15 February 2016 
 

1.5 A further TTG meeting was arranged for 15 February 2016, in the expectation 
that the budget for 2016/17 would then be known. But it had not yet been 
announced and the only financial decision the TTG made was that £2,000 
(capital ITS) be allocated to ‘quick win’ cycling measures identified in a 
Guildford Cycle Strategy item considered as item on the meeting agenda.  

1.6 Rather than arranging a further meeting the TTG agreed that when the 
Chairman eventually received details of the 2016/17 budget he would contact 
other TTG  members by telephone to try to agree a unanimous 
recommendation on the allocation of any further funding that might have be 
available. 

1.7 In late February Local Committee budgets were announced as follows. 

Capital (ITS and Maintenance) 461,014 
Revenue    238,312 
     699,352 
 

1.8 The Chairman discussed the increased funding available with the Area 
Highway Manager (AHM) who advised that it would be sufficient to progress 
the 8 ITS schemes which in the Autumn of 2015 had been assessed as ‘High’ 
under the Priority Framework adopted by the committee to prioritise schemes.  

A323 Guildford Rd, Ash.Ped refuge   25,000 

B3000 Hook Lane, Puttenham. Ped refuge  40,000 

A281 The Street, Shalford. Ped refuge  30,000 

B3012 Gole Rd, Pirbright. Ped refuge   70,000 

D4001 Southway, Guildford. Dropped kerbs    4,000 

Avenue De Cagny, traffic calming   20,000 

     A246 Epsom Rd/Waterdene Rd. Kerb build-out.   10,000 
 

Station Approach feasibility      3,000 

      Total              £202,000 (capital ITS) 
 
 
 

1.9 The Area Manager also highlighted the fact that that due to anticipated budget 
reductions the allocations made in December for ad-hoc signs & lines and the 

Page 287

ITEM 13



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

Community Gang had been significantly reduced, and recommended the 
following allocations. 

Community Enhancement    50,000 (as in December) 
 
Ad-hoc signs & lines (previously 10,000)  20,000 
 
Community Gang (previously 20,000/13 weeks) 30,000 (20 weeks) 
        

100,000 (rev.maint) 
 

1.10  The suggested allocations described at 1.4 to 1.8 above together with those 
made at the December committee meeting, itemised at 1.2 above, result in 
the following totals. 

Revenue Allocation 
90,000 + 100,000  = 190,000 (revenue maintenance) 

 
Capital Allocation 

 35,000 + 20,000   =   55,000 (capital maintenance) 
 227,000 + 202,000 + 2,000  = 431,000 (capital ITS) 

          486,000 
  
 

1.11 The capital allocation of 486,000 exceeds the 461,000 allocation by 25,000 
and so this figure will have to be met from revenue (capitalised revenue). With 
this adjustment made the capital budget is fully allocated and just over 23,000 
of revenue funding would remain unallocated, which should be held in reserve 
at present. 

1.12 The Chairman discussed the allocations above with TTG members, who 
unanimously agreed they be recommended to the committee.  

1.13  Note that the zebra crossing at St Joseph’s School had been assessed as 
‘Medium’ in the Autumn of 2015. The Area Highway Manager had the 
crossing re-assessed in February in view of the two accidents that happened 
over the winter, and it scored as ‘High’. The Chairman discussed this with 
TTG members who agreed in view of the high value of a pelican crossing, 
which would mean several other schemes would have to be deferred if it were 
to be funded in 2016/17, and the measures being put in place to provide a 
school crossing patrol at the zebra, it should not be recommended for funding 
in the coming year. 

Lengsthman Scheme 

1.14   Bids for funding in 2015/16 had been submitted by four organisations by the 
end of February:- 

Ash PC    £ to be confirmed 
Shere  PC    £7,854 
Worplesdon PC   £5,500 
 
   Total £13,354 
 

Page 288

ITEM 13



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

1.15 The Ash bid does not include an overall value and officers will talk to the 
parish council to clarify.  As in 2015/16 area team officers will scrutinise bids 
to ensure works fall within with the remit of the scheme and discuss allocation 
values with the local member with a view to fund or part fund all bids to a total 
value not exceeding the budget of £25,000.  

 
Guildford High Street Setts 
 

1.16  Works commenced on Wednesday 3 February and are expected to take 
around 6 months to complete, with the road cleared and fully re-opened in 
July. 

1.17 A shortfall in recovered setts is expected as some are missing and some are 
unsightly modern replacements. Additionally it will only be possible to recover 
a limited number of setts in areas of previous repairs where very high strength 
epoxy mortars have been used (this material will not be used in the works, 
rather high strength cementitious mortars). Replacement setts have been 
sourced and procured which originate from King’s Cross Station. These are 
an extremely good match to those in the High Street and exhibit similar levels 
of wear. They date to the same era as the High Street and very possibly both 
originals and replacements originate from the same quarries. 

1.18 Works are progressing reasonably well, but delays have been encountered 
due to water service pipe leaks. Thames Water are fully co-operating in 
repairing leaks and replacing these service pipes between the mains within 
the carriageway and the stop valves within the footway. 

1.19 Deliveries for shops adjacent to works areas are affected to a degree, but 
retailers are managing to make adjustments. Overall there have been almost 
no complaints about the work and passers by are expressing a keen interest 
in what is going on, with the men on site laying the setts being regularly 
complimented on their craft. 

 
Customer Enquiries and Reactive Repairs  
 

1.20 The total number of enquiries received in the calendar year 2015 is 121,578 
an average of 10,130 per month.  This is down from 149,000 in 2014 and is 
due to a combination of milder weather throughout the year and ongoing 
improvement projects.   

1.21 All reports are categorised at the point of logging, either automatically 
through the website or by officers, safety defects are directed to Kier with the 
remainder passed to the SCC local office for further investigation.  During 
2014 the average split was 44% SCC and 56 % Kier, for 2015 this has seen a 
shift to 39/61.   

1.22 This change can be mainly attributed to work that has been undertaken 
through the Customer Service Excellence project to improve the response 
times and quality of response, reducing the need for customers to contact us 
again in relation to their enquiry.  Enhancements to the roadwork web page, 
online reporting and proactive communication of planned works have also 
helped to reduce the number of general enquiries made by customers.  

Page 289

ITEM 13



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

1.23 For Guildford specifically 14,625 enquiries were received between January 
and December of which 5,800 (40%) were directed to the local area office for 
action, of these 95% have been resolved.  This response rate is slightly below 
the Highways countywide average 96% 

1.24 For 2015, 513 complaints were received of which 87 stage 1 and 16 stage 2 
were for the South West area, including Guildford.  The main reasons for 
these complaints were communication, resurfacing and policy/decision 
making.  The service was found to be at fault in 4 of the stage 2 complaints 
following independent investigation.  We continue to work closely with the 
corporate customer relations team and have created corrective action plans 
for all outstanding actions.  In addition any remedial action identified at stage 
1 is now monitored more closely to ensure compliance and reduce escalation 
to stage 2. 

1.25 Recent surveys conducted with our Highways Customer Panel showed that 
71% of those surveyed were either satisfied or very satisfied with the 
customer service they received.  This result was endorsed by the findings of 
the annual independent National Highways & Transport Survey conducted by 
MORI. 

1.26 Improvements identified for 2016 include piloting a new hand-held device for 
LHOs to increase mobile working, better coordination between the Customer 
Care Team and the Area Offices and further enhancements to the website. 

 

2. OPTIONS: 
 

 
2.1  Officers seek to implement the most cost effective measures which meet 

scheme objectives.  
 
 

3. CONSULTATIONS: 

  
3.1 Appropriate consultation will be carried out for all schemes. 
 
 

4. FINANCIAL AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS: 

 
4.1 Works will be carried out by SCC’s term highways contractor, Keir, who won 
the term contract in a competitive tender process.  
 

.5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS: 

 
5.1 None 
 

6. LOCALISM: 

 
6.1 Works and schemes are designed to improve and make safer the facilities for 
local communities in the borough. 
 
6.2The Lengsthman initiative allows parish councils to undertake enhanced 
maintenance of the public highway. 
 

Page 290

ITEM 13



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
7.1 None 

 

8. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
8.1 As set out in the body of the report.  
 

9.  WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

 
9.1 Officers will continue to progress the programme of schemes agreed by the 
committee.  
 

 
 
Contact Officer:    John Hilder 
SCC Area Highway Manager SW 
Tel 0300 200 1003 
 
Consulted: 
As described within the report 
 
Annexes: 

1. Highways budget and forecast expenditure for 2015/16 
 
Sources/background papers: 
Local Committee for Guildford Wednesday 8 December 2015: Item 13 ‘Highways 
Update Report’ and item 14 ‘Highways Budget for 2016/17’ 

Page 291

ITEM 13



This page is intentionally left blank



SCC Local Committee for Guildford Highways 

Update Report

Mar-16 ANNEX 1

2015/16 Local Committe Budget

Capital ITS carried forward from 2014/15 158,700 Complete 

2014/15 ITS 

212,000

Capital ITS (Improvement) Schemes 263,000 2015/16 ITS 

Schemes

192,000

Capital Maintenance 263,000 Capital 

Maintenance -

LSR (surfacing) 

0

Cluster Group 

Funding

35,000

Revenue Maintenance 187,000 High Street setts 285,000

Community Enhancement 50,000 Revenue 

Maintenance

125,000

Community 

Enhancement

50,000

Total 921,700 Total 899,000

Annex 1: Page 1 of 6

Highway budgets and forecast expenditure for 2015/16

2015/16 Forecast Expenditure (pages 2 to 5 below)

P
age 293

IT
E

M
 13



SCHEME TITLE ALLOCATION FORECAST 

EXPENDITURE

STATUS/PROGRAMME/COMMENTS

Pirbright Village Safety Scheme 40,000 Complete

Ped facilities Quarry St signals, Guildford 30,000 Works commence on 23 March

Ped refuge A281Horsham Rd, Shalford 5,000 In design, programme date awaited - Forecast cost 2016/17 £20,000

Traffic calming Oak Hill, Wood St Village 40,000 Complete

Elm Lane footway extension, Tongham 18,000 Complete

East Lane, West Horsley footway extension 45,000 Complete

Improve juntion Jacobs Well Rd with A320 

Woking Rd

22,000 Complete

Mount Pleasent traffic calming measures 12,000 In progress, complete by end of March

Sub Total 0 212,000 Carry forward to page 1

Boxgrove area schools safety sheme 100,000 100,000 Complete

Onslow village area schools safety study 10,000 5,000 In progress

A248 The Street Albury traffic calming 25,000 30,000 In progress, complete by end of March

B3000 The Street Compton traffic calming 25,000 10,000 In progress, complete by end of March

Eashing Lane Godalming road safety feasibilty 

study

3,000 3,000 Complete

Continued on next page 0 Annex 1: Page 2 of 6

2015/16 ITS Schemes: Programme approved at March 2015 LC

Complete 2014/15 ITS Schemes: Estimated £160k reported to March 2015 LC

P
age 294

IT
E

M
 13



SCHEME TITLE ALLOCATION 0 STATUS/PROGRAMME/COMMENTS

2015/16 ITS Schemes (continued)

A320 Woking Guildford upgrade to Puffin xing 4,000 2,000 March LC agreed to defer to future year to remain within budget, design 

complete

A25 Newlands Corner, traffic calming 20,000 5,000 In design, programme date awaited - Forecast cost 2016/17 £15,000

Ockham Road South traffic calming 20,000 3,000 In design,  Forecast cost 2016/17 £20,000

Merrow Lane Guildford footway extension 5,000 5,000 Complete

A322 Worplesdon Rd, upgrade Barrack Rd 

crossing

8,000 12,000 Works commence on 22 March

A31 Farnham Rd Guildford, vehicle activated 

sign

15,000 4,000 VAS purchased, install Q1 2016/17

Persian New Year, Ockham 7,000 7,000 01/03/2016 - Complete

Peaslake Lane, Peaslake 20mph feasibilty 

study

3,000 3,000 Complete

Send Barns Lane, Send Road safety 

feasibility study

1,500 3,000 Complete

Sub Total 246,500 192,000 Carry forward to page 1

Annex 1: page 3 of 6

P
age 295

IT
E

M
 13



SCHEME TITLE ALLOCATION FORECAST 

EXPENDITURE

STATUS/PROGRAMME/COMMENTS

None proposed at present

Sub Total 0 Carry forward to page 1

Cluster Group Funding

Agreed at March 2015 LC 35,000

35,000 Carry forward to page 1

Re-lay High Street setts, Guildford 150,000 285,000 Award contract Dec, works commence Jan/Feb 2016

Sub Total 150,000 285,000 Carry forward to page 1

Annex 1:  page 4 0f 6

Capital Maintenance - LSR (Surfacing) Schemes

Capital Maintenance - High St Setts: Allocation approved at December 2014 LC

P
age 296

IT
E

M
 13



SCHEME TITLE ALLOCATION FORECAST 

EXPENDITURE

STATUS/PROGRAMME/COMMENTS

Ad-hoc signs, lines, bollards etc by SW Area 

Team 

25,000 25,000 Used through the year in response to requests from residents and members.

Community Gang for 24 weeks 40,000 40,000 Reduced to 24 weeks by area team with funding redirected to LSR work.

Jetter for 5 weeks 25,000 25,000 Area team allocated a central jetter 5 times a year, so this doubles the 

resource available. 

Ad-hoc maintenance by SW Area Team 10,000 10,000 Used through the year in response to requests from residents and members.

Funding for Lengthsman Scheme 25,000 25,000 Bids submitted by Ash, Shere and Worplesdon

Sub Total 125,000 125,000 Carry forward to page 1

Community Enhancement

Allocated at £5,000 per SCC division 50,000 50,000 Approved Dec 2013 LC

Sub Total 50,000 50,000 Carry forward to page 1

Annex 1: Page 5 of 6

Revenue Maintenance: Allocations approved at Dec 2014 LC

P
age 297

IT
E

M
 13



SCHEME TITLE EST COST (EXTERNAL 

FUNDING)

Woodbridge Hill Environmental 

Enhancement

205,000

Annex 1: Page 6 of 6

EXTERNALLY FUNDED SCHEMES

STATUS/PROGRAMME/COMMENTS

Designed & priced, programme for installation Q4. Entirely funded by GBC and co-

ordinated with Horizon resurfacing

P
age 298

IT
E

M
 13



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
 
 

 
LOCAL COMMITTEE (GUILDFORD) 
 
DATE: 23 MARCH 2016 

LEAD 
OFFICER: 
 

JOHN HILDER 
AREA HIGHWAYS MANAGER (SW) 

SUBJECT: REPORT OF THE TRANSPORTATION TASK GROUP (TTG) 
 

DIVISION: ALL 
 
 

SUMMARY OF ISSUE: 
 
The Local Committee for Guildford considers a broad range of highways and 
transportation matters. In order to progress the committee’s transportation work 
programme a task group has been created. The purpose of the task group is to 
consider local transportation business on a more frequent and flexible basis than the 
schedule of the formal full committee may allow and thereafter to act in an informed 
and advisory capacity to the full committee. The Transportation Task Group (TTG) 
membership is made up of nominated members from the full committee. All formal 
decisions are undertaken by the full committee. 
 
This report is for the information of the full committee. The intention is to provide an 
update of the TTG work and a work programme.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The Local Committee (Guildford) is asked to: 
 
(i) Note and comment on the work and programme for the Transportation Task 

Group. 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The purpose of the Transportation Task Group is to provide the Guildford Local 
Committee with considered and informed advice. The purpose of this report is to 
keep the full committee informed of matters under consideration by the TTG and 
when those items are likely be bought forward for the attention of the full committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 299

ITEM 14



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND: 

 
1.1 The Transportation Task Group (TTG) comprises of members who have 

been selected and nominated by the full committee. The TTG has no 
decision-making powers in itself but provides advice and recommendations to 
the full committee.  

1.2 The TTG has flexibility to meet more frequently than the full committee and to 
consider matters on a level of detail which is not always possible in the 
agendas of the formal meetings of the full committee.  The recommendations 
and advice of the Task Group will be reported to the full committee for formal 
discussion and decision. 

1.3 It is a requirement that the membership of the TTG is broadly representative 
of the full committee as a whole, both politically and in terms of balance 
between the urban and rural areas of the borough.  Membership includes the 
Local Committee Chairman and the Borough Lead Member for Transport and 
Infrastructure along with two other County Councillors and two Borough 
Councillors and one reserve from each council. 

1.4 The TTG met on 15 February 2016 and made the following proposals for 
consideration by the Local Committee at the meeting on 23 March 2016 and 
received the below updates. Members considered suggested quick wins to 
the Cycle Network in Guildford. The group recommended 6 free schemes 
and 4 lining and signing schemes (subject to checking the schemes with 
Guildford Borough Council) for approval by Local Committee and subject to 
funding becoming clearer (please see the Guildford Local Cycling Plan – 
Minor Improvements report).  The scheme in the draft report presented to the 
TTG to remove the dropped kerbs in Stockton Road and the link behind the 
Lido were omitted from the final report following comments from Members as 
these schemes required more thought and could be brought to a later 
committee. 

1.5 The TTG at the February meeting were also updated on the High Street setts, 
(please see the Highways Update report for more information). The group 
were informed that the Boxgrove Area Scheme roads and footpaths etc were 
nearly complete.  The design team have started work on the Onslow scheme 
and this should be complete in early 2017.  Horseshoe Lane West where St 
Thomas of Canterbury School is based was raised by Members as this road 
is in need of repair.  The Chairman of the Local Committee updated that he 
had written to Surrey County Council Executive about the Local Committee’s 
funding allocation for Highway schemes following discussion at the 
Committee on 8 December 2015.  An update on the St Joseph's petition 
presented at the 8 December 2015 Local Committee would be given at the 23 
March 2016 committee (please see the St Joseph's Petition Update report).   

1.6 The TTG have also made further proposals regarding funding for Highways 
Schemes please see Annex 2 - Local Committee Chairman’s Update and the 
Highways Update report. 

2. ANALYSIS: 

 
2.1 The TTG has convened on five occasions this municipal year. The work 

programme at Annex 1 demonstrates the breadth and scope of the topics 
under review on behalf of the Local Committee.  

Page 300

ITEM 14



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

3. OPTIONS: 

 
3.1 The Local Committee customarily reviews the membership and terms of 

reference for the task groups at the first meeting of the municipal year. The 
current arrangements were agreed 17 June 2015. The Committee may review 
these arrangements at its discretion. 

4. CONSULTATIONS: 

  
4.1 All members of the Local Committee were consulted on the membership and 

terms of reference for the Transportation Task Group. 

4.2 The members of the TTG have been consulted on the contents of this report 
and the work programme. 

5. FINANCIAL AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS: 

 
5.1 There are no direct financial implications. The purpose of the arrangements for 

the Transportation Task Group is to improve informed and considered decision 
making by the full committee and seek to produce better value for money 
outcomes for residents. 

6. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS: 

 
6.1 There are no direct implications. Both Surrey County Council (SCC) and 

Guildford Borough Council (GBC) are committed to supporting equal 
opportunities for all. 

6.2 Individual schemes and projects will undertake Equalities Impact Assessments 
as appropriate. 

 

7. LOCALISM: 

 
7.1 The Local Committee seeks to bring decision making closer to local 

communities. 

7.2 The Local Committee seeks to engage local communities in matters of interest, 
concern and priority. 

7.3 Through balanced membership the Local Committee task groups seek to 
represent all communities in the borough. 

 

8. OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
8.1 There are no additional implications. 

 

9. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
The Local Committee (Guildford) is asked to: 
 
9.1 Note and comment on the work and programme for the Transportation Task 

Group. 

Page 301

ITEM 14



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 

10. WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

 
10.1 The Transportation Task Group will proceed to consider the work programme 

and to report to the full committee as appropriate. It is intended the work 
programme be reviewed by the full committee quarterly unless advised 
differently by the members. 

 
Contact Officer: 
Joanna Long, Community Partnerships & Committee Officer, SCC 
01483 517336 
joanna.long@surreycc.gov.uk  
 
Consulted: 
Guildford Local Committee’s Transportation Task Group 
 
Annexes: 
1. TTG Work programme 

2. Local Committee Chairman’s Update 

Sources/background papers: 

 None 
 

 
 
 

Page 302

ITEM 14



SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL LOCAL COMMITTEE (GUILDFORD) Updated 10/03/2016   Annex 1 
 

1 

 

Guildford Local Committee Transportation Task Group Work Plan for 2016/17 
 

Actions Officer When next 
to TTG 

When next 
to GLC 

Lead 
Agency 
 

Status / Note / Feedback 

Guildford Town Centre Transport 
package 

P Fishwick 11 May 2016 22/06/16 SCC  

Parking Strategy  
 

K McKee 11/05/16 22/06/16 GBC/SCC Joint, holistic approach to using parking 
as a tool to manage congestion and 
sustainable transport options. Initial 
approach within Parking Business Report 
annually to winter committee. 
 

Local Transport Strategy for 
Guildford (LTS) (to be discussed 
once the Local Plan is confirmed) 

L Mendes 
/Steve 
Howard 
 

 2016 TBC As req. 
 

SCC Ongoing live document. Part A: Current 
schemes - for Local Committee member 
to comment and note. 
Part B: Future schemes – to be completed 
in accordance with final Local Plan draft. 
Then to committee for formal approval. 
 

Community Infrastructure Levy TM-F/PD 2016 TBC As req. 
 

GBC 
 

As per the agreement of both councils 
during 2014 the local CIL proposals to be 
bought before the committee for noting 
and comment prior to acceptance by 
GBC. 

 
PETITIONS 

     

Shere HGV 
 

JH TBA  SCC TTG considered the effects of the recently 
installed village safety scheme/20mph 
speed limit should be assessed before 
further measures are considered. 

Ash Hill crossing JH 17 Oct 2016  SCC Scheme was considered alongside other 
requests at the Transportation Task 
Group (TTG) on 19/10/15, however the 
feasibility work for other schemes already 
committed for 2015/16 (for implementation 

P
age 303

IT
E

M
 14



SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL LOCAL COMMITTEE (GUILDFORD) Updated 10/03/2016   Annex 1 
 

2 

 

Actions Officer When next 
to TTG 

When next 
to GLC 

Lead 
Agency 
 

Status / Note / Feedback 

in 2016/17) will use up the available 
Highways budget. The TTG will look at 
this issue in the again in the future. 
 

Crocknorth Road Speed limit JH 17 Oct 2016 13/12/16 SCC As above 

Newark Lane in Ripley pedestrian 
crossing and reduce speed limit 
to 30mph 

JH 17 Oct 2016 13/12/16 SCC As above 

Harpers Recreation Ground and 
the Curzon Restaurant zebra 
crossing 

JH 17 Oct 2016 13/12/16 SCC  
As above 

A281 in Shalford island crossing 
point 

JH 17 Oct 2016 13/12/16 SCC As above 

Jacobs well –resurfacing of 
pavements and roads 

JH 17 Oct 2016 
13/12/16 SCC As above 

St Joseph’s School –upgrade 
crossing 

JH 17 Oct 2016 
13/12/16 SCC Voluntary crossing patrol being set up at 

the school. 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
OUTSTANDING 

     

MEMBER QUESTIONS 
OUTSTANDING 

  
 

  

 

 

Meetings 

11 May 2016 
17 Oct 2016 

P
age 304

IT
E

M
 14



  Annex 2 

Further Transportation Task Group recommendation following the meeting on February 15th, 

2016 

The Guildford Local Committee (GLC) has, for many years, maintained a “wish list” of safety 

or other road improvement schemes which have been approved in principle but which are 

awaiting funding. The Committee’s Transportation Task Group (TTG), advised by the 

Officers, has had the difficult job of recommending which schemes from the “wish list” should 

be implemented in each financial year, given the constraints of the GLC’s approved Budget. 

In 2015, the GLC approved a new methodology to prioritise schemes from the “wish list” on 

a more objective basis.  Prior to the TTG meeting on October 19th, 2015, the Highways 

Officers were instructed to apply this new methodology to the 50 schemes then on the “wish 

list”.  Based on this work, their report to the TTG indicated that 14 schemes should be High 

Priority (H), 8 Medium Priority (M) and 28 Low Priority (L). 

At that stage, the TTG were hoping that the funding in 2016/17 might be sufficient to at least 

approve all of the H schemes. However, the Highways Manager advised that there was a 

serious risk of the 2016/17 funding being substantially lower than that in 2015/16 – possibly 

only about 50%. On that basis, the TTG decided that it could, at that stage, recommend only 

6 of the H schemes for inclusion in the 2016/17 programme. These were all schemes where 

there had been feasibility studies or other work in 2015/16. The combined cost of them was 

£227,000. The December GLC meeting accepted this recommendation. 

A further TTG meeting had been arranged for February 15th, 2016 and it was hoped that, by 

then, the final GLC Budget for 2016/17 might be known and that it might be possible to 

recommend some more schemes for inclusion in the 2016/17 programme. Unfortunately, the 

2016/17 Budget figures were still not available at that time. In fact the only financial decision 

made by the TTG at that meeting was the inclusion of some of the smaller schemes from a 

“cycling Quick Wins” report with a combined cost of £2000. Rather than arranging yet 

another TTG meeting it was agreed that, when I, as Chairman, had received details of the 

2016/17 Budget, I would contact the other TTG members on a telephone basis and try to 

agree with them a unanimous recommendation on the allocation of any further funding that 

might have become available. 

I eventually established that the GLC Budget for 2016/17 was £461,040 (Capital) and 

£238,312 (Revenue). The combined cost of the other 8 H schemes was £202,000. Detailed 

discussions with the Highways Manager indicated that the new Budget was just about 

sufficient to allow the inclusion of these 8 schemes in the 2016/17 programme. Following 

telephone conversations with the other five TTG members, this recommendation was 

unanimously agreed.  The list of the 14 H schemes and details of other recommended 

Capital and Revenue spending are included in the Highways Update to the March GLC 

meeting. 

Keith Taylor – 7th March 2016  

  

Page 305

ITEM 14



This page is intentionally left blank



   Updated – 08/03/2016 

Local Committee Guildford Decision Tracker 

 

This Tracker monitors progress against the decisions that the local committee has made.  It is updated after each committee using the ‘RAG’ 
(red, amber, green) ratings below. 

Green:  Actions are on track and progressing as expected towards the agreed deadline. 

Amber:  Action is off track but corrective measures are in place to meet the original or updated deadline. 

Red:  Action has not been progressed and is off track.  Deadline will not be met. 

NB. Once actions have been reported to the committee as complete, they are removed from the tracker. 
 

Meeting Date Item Decision Due By RAG Officer Comment or Update 

8 Dec 2015 9 Agreed the schedule of 
schemes as part of the 
Guildford Town centre 
Transport Package that 
will be developed to form a 
package of benefits for the 
business case for 
submission to the 
Enterprise M3 Local 
Enterprise Partnership 
(LEP) on 31 January 
2016. 

On-going G Paul Fishwick Bid currently being 
considered by the LEP, if 
successful will receive 
funding in April. Detailed 
designs on certain 
schemes start in April.  An 
update report to come to 22 
June committee and then 
regular updates. A web site 
is being set up to update on 
progress. 

8 Dec 2015 10 A rolling engagement 
programme be 
established, hosted on the 
Travel SMART website. 
The successful 
stakeholder workshops be 
continued,  
The Transportation Task 

Cycling Plan Quick 
Wins to be 
considered at the 23 
March Local 
Committee 

G Marc Woodall We are working on a 
technical solution to provide 
ongoing engagement with 
the plan on the Travel 
SMART website. TTG 
workshop to be set up 
considering the priority of 
routes.  

P
age 307

IT
E

M
 15



   Updated – 08/03/2016 

Group agree a prioritised 
list of Cycling Plan actions.  
The Cycling Plan be 
incorporated into the 
Guildford Local Transport 
Strategy.  

 
 

8 Dec 2015 11 The remaining surplus 
from on-street parking in 
Guildford in 2014-15, 
£126,000 is held in 
reserve to meet future 
costs of park and ride.  
 
The provision of guards for 
the park and ride sites is 
procured as part of a wider 
contract including the 
guarding for Guildford 
Borough Council’s night-
time car park guards.  A 
framework agreement will 
be used if it offers best 
value.        

 G Kevin McKee The merging of the guards 
is conditional on the 
implementation of CCTV at 
the Merrow P&R site. This is 
a long-term project that will 
involve the procurement and 
installation of CCTV before 
the opportunity will arise to 
possibly merge the guards. 

8 Dec 2015 12 To formally advertise the 
proposals for the Burpham 
shopping parade area 
including Burpham Lane,  
Dorking Road (Chilworth), 
Lower Road (Effingham) 
and School Lane 
(Pirbright), if no 
representations are 
received, the Traffic 
Regulation Order (TRO) 
will be made.  

Sept 2016 G Andy Harkin The intention is to report any 
representations back to the 
June 2016 meeting of the 
Committee. 

P
age 308

IT
E

M
 15



   Updated – 08/03/2016 

that possible proposals for 
Ockham Road North (East 
Horsley) are not 
progressed. 
 
to defer consideration of 
the geographic review 
items covering Avondale 
area around the Ash Vale 
and North Camp railway 
stations, Effingham 
Junction, Fairlands, 
Merrow shopping parade 
area and Shalford, and 
those 'ad-hoc' items which 
have generated a 
'substantial' number of 
representations,  to the 
March 2016 committee. 
 
that Traffic Regulation 
Orders (TROs) are made 
to implement new controls 
and changes to the 
existing in the ‘ad-hoc’ 
locations  
 
to formally advertise the 
proposals for Friars Gate, 
High Street (Ripley), 
Millmead Terrace, New 
Cross Road, Ward Street 
and Woking Road, 
including the 
formalisation of the 

P
age 309

IT
E

M
 15



   Updated – 08/03/2016 

existing advisory 
disabled space outside 
No.1 Greville Close, if no 
representations are 
received, the Traffic 
Regulation Order (TRO) 
will be made. 

 
8 Dec 2015 

14 The capital and revenue 
allocations of £345,000 
were agreed. This reflects 
50% of the current year 
budget in anticipation of 
reductions in the highways 
budget for the Local 
committee in 2016/17. 
 
The Area Highway 
Manager (AHM) would 
progress the schemes 
included in the programme 
in consultation with local 
elected members. 
 
The Area Highway 
Manager to determine any 
objections submitted 
following the statutory 
advertisement of the traffic 
orders on the programme 
of schemes, in 
consultation with the 
Chairman. 
 
The Area Highway 

Highways Budget 
allocated to the 
Local Committee 
for 2016/17 

G John Hilder Further information on the 
Highways budget will be 
discussed at the 23 March 
2016 meeting. 

P
age 310

IT
E

M
 15



   Updated – 08/03/2016 

Manager in consultation 
with the Chairman to 
amend budgets 
throughout the year if 
required. 
 Agree that Community 
Enhancement Fund is 
devolved to each County 
Councillor based on an 
equal allocation of £5,000 
per division. 

8 Dec 2015 16 The Cluster initiative 
should continue in 
operation in the next 
municipal year and 
request that Guildford 
Borough Council 
nominate members to the 
relevant Cluster Fund 
Steering Groups for 
2016/17 at the first full 
Council meeting of the 
municipal year.  

Cluster funded 
projects will be 
completed in 
2016/17.  Cluster 
funding will be 
available again in 
early autumn 2016. 

G Jo Long The majority of applicants 
for the Cluster funding have 
now applied and received 
funding for their projects. 

8 Dec 2015 5 Parking in the Oval 
Petition 

To be considered 
as part of the next 
parking review in 
the 2nd half of 
2016. 

G Kevin McKee A scoping report on the 
Parking review to Sep/ Dec 
2016 committee. We are 
continuing to review the 
situation in respect to the 
availability of space, 
compliance with the existing 
controls and enforcement 
levels. 

8 Dec 2015 5 Jacobs Well resurfacing of 
pavements petition 

Further spending 
decisions will 

A John Hilder  

P
age 311

IT
E

M
 15



   Updated – 08/03/2016 

happen at 23 
March 2016 
Committee which 
may include 
funding to 
maintenance 
works. 

8 Dec 2015 5 St Joseph’s School to 
upgrade the crossing 
petition  

 A John Hilder Following investigation by 
the Highways team there is 
the option for parents at the 
school to set up a voluntary 
crossing patrol.  3 
volunteers have already 
been trained by the County 
Road Safety Team. 

30 Sept 2015 9 Committee approved 
proposals from October 
2015 on changes to how 
Community Youth Work is 
delivered in Guildford so 
that youth work is delivered 
in areas where there is the 
greatest need. 

Work started, on-
going 

G Katie Gardner Guildford CYW has now 
opened sessions within 
Park Barn and there 
continues to be a weekly 
presence in the north area 
of Guildford. The 
community cohesion work 
is going well at Ash, 
attendance is high and 
young people are learning 
from one another, positive 
peer friendships are being 
made supported by youth 
work. Targeted youth 
sessions continue to 
support young people 
identified as more at risk /in 
need. The employability 
programmes are to be 
piloted in April. Young 

P
age 312

IT
E

M
 15



   Updated – 08/03/2016 

people are starting to be 
supported on the Early 
Help agenda. 

30 Sept 2015 13 To pursue a trial to help 
develop the Future Cities 
Management Platform 
(parking) platform in 
Guildford to provide 
detailed information about 
how parking is used and 
influence parking 
behaviour reducing 
congestion, and 
emissions.   

Sept 2016 G Kevin McKee The parking sensors have 
been installed and work is 
currently being undertaken 
to link these to Parking 
Services’ control room and 
the existing car park space 
count software. The trial is 
expected to commence in 
April 2016. 

30 Sept 2015 15 Endorse the approach for 
identifying and addressing 
rural HGV issues in the 
rural area of Shere. 
 
Coordinate this project 
with the work of the Surrey 
Hills AONB Quiet Lanes 
and De-Cluttering Working 
Group including trialling 
the de-cluttering approach 
developed by Norfolk 
County Council. 
 

 
Sept 2016 Report 
to committee 

G Peter 
Hitchings 

Study has started with 
Parish Council's engaged 
through the Surrey Hills 
Quiet Lanes and de- 
cluttering group and Surrey 
Association of Local 
Councils 
The outline programme is: 
 

 Nov/Dec 2015: 
reviewing key routes  

 Jan to March 2016: 
Training on approach, 
working with PC's and 
auditing of sign along 
key routes and locations  
 

 April - June 2016: Trial 
approach in pilot area, 
monitoring and review, 
reconsider SCC signing 

P
age 313

IT
E

M
 15



   Updated – 08/03/2016 

policy 
 

 Sept 2016 Report to 
committee 

30 Sept 2015 16 The speed limit on Wisley 
Lane, Wisley between the 
Guildford / Woking 
borough boundary and the 
start of the 30mph limit in 
Wisley should be reduced 
to 40mph. 

The speed limit change 
would be advertised in 
accordance with the Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 
1984, the effect of which 
will be to implement the 
proposed change and 
revoke any existing traffic 
orders, as necessary; 

The Area Highways 
Manager in consultation 
with the Chairman of the 
Guildford Local Committee 
and the relevant Divisional 
Member resolve any 
objections received in 
connection with this 
proposal. 

changes likely to 
be  made by the 
end of the financial 
year 2015/16 

G Kevin 
Patching/John 
Hilder 

No objections received 

30 Sept 2015 17 Orders under the relevant 
parts of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 to 

changes likely to 
be  implemented 
by the end of the 

G Richard 
Peplow 

Orders to come into place 
from 14 March for 8 new on-
street car club bays.  New 

P
age 314

IT
E

M
 15



   Updated – 08/03/2016 

amend the on street 
parking restrictions in 
Guildford to facilitate the 
expansion of the car club 
service; providing highly 
visible parking locations 
for car club vehicles. 

financial year 
2015/16 

car club cars to be in bays 
from 17 March onwards.  
 
Electric Vehicle Charging 
Points to be installed by end 
March at Walnut Tree 
Close, Dapdune Road and 
Poltimore Road.  

Letter distributed to all 
residents in Friary and St 
Nicolas ward and to streets 
in close vicinity of Eagle 
Road to inform them about 
the new bays and car club 
service.  Item published in 
Surrey Matters newsletter/ 
website Jan 2016 to raise 
awareness about the new 
car club provider. 

30 Sept 2015 5 Newark Lane in Ripley, 
Petition.  

Scheme was 
considered 
alongside other 
requests at the 
Transportation 
Task Group (TTG) 
on 19/10/15; 
however the 
feasibility work for 
other schemes 
already committed 
for 2015/16 (for 
implementation in 
2016/17) will use 
up the available 
Highways budget. 

R John Hilder  

P
age 315

IT
E

M
 15



   Updated – 08/03/2016 

The TTG will look 
at this issue in the 
again in the future. 

30 Sept 2015 5 Harpers Recreation 
Ground, Petition.  

As above R John Hilder  

30 Sept 2015 5 A281 (The Street) through 
Shalford Petition.  

This scheme will 
be looked at 23 
March 2016 
Committee 

G John Hilder  

 

P
age 316

IT
E

M
 15



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 
SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
 
LOCAL COMMITTEE (GUILDFORD) 
 
DATE: 23 MARCH 2016 
LEAD 
OFFICER: 
 

JOANNA LONG  
COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS & COMMITTEE OFFICER 

SUBJECT: LOCAL COMMITTEE FORWARD PROGRAMME 
 

DIVISION: ALL 
 
 

SUMMARY OF ISSUE: 

 
The Forward Programme of reports for the Local Committee for 2016/17.   
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
The Local Committee (Guildford) is asked to  
 

a) Agree the Forward Programme 2016/17, as outlined in Annexe 1, indicating 
any further preferences for inclusion. 

 

b) Consider any further themes for Member briefings during 2016/17.  
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
Members are asked to comment on the Forward Programme so that Officers can 
publicise the meetings and prepare the necessary reports. 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND: 

 
1.1 The Forward Programme of the Local Committee is revised at each Committee 

meeting. Members are requested to propose any additional items for inclusion 
on the Programme.  

 

2. ANALYSIS: 

 
2.1 Officers are required to investigate and consult with the appropriate services, 

partners or other agencies on the purpose, content and timing of future reports. 
As these negotiations are concluded then items are added to the Programme. 

 

3. OPTIONS: 

 
3.1 It is prudent and practical for the Local Committee to produce and maintain a 

business forward plan. 

Page 317

ITEM 16



www.surreycc.gov.uk/guildford 
 
 

 

4. CONSULTATIONS: 

  

4.1 Local Committee members are consulted. 

5. FINANCIAL AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS: 

 

5.1 None 

6. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS: 

 
6.1 None 

 

7. LOCALISM: 

 
7.1 The Local Committee will receive reports relating to communities within the 

borough. 

8. OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
8.1 None 

 

9. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
9.1 Members are asked to agree the Forward Programme 

10. WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

 
10.1 Officers will progress any member request and schedule reports for future 

meetings 

 

 
Contact Officer: 
Joanna Long 01483 517336 
joanna.long@surreycc.gov.uk 
 
Consulted: 
Guildford Local Committee members 
 
Annexes: 
Annexe 1 Forward Programme 
 
Sources/background papers: 

 None 
 

 
 
 

Page 318

ITEM 16



      

ANNEXE 1 

 

 
Please note the Forward Programme may be subject to change. 

Forward Programme 100316.doc 

Surrey County Council Local Committee (Guildford) Forward Programme 2016/17 
 

 
 

Topic Purpose Contact Officers Proposed date  

22 June 2016 

Libraries Libraries report Rose Wilson 22 June 2016 

Young People Youth Services update Vicky Harris 22 June 2016 

Environment & 
Infrastructure 

Guildford Town Centre Transport Package Paul Fishwick 22 June 2016 

Parking  Representations resulting from the formal advertisement of the Burpham 
parade area and other ad-hoc proposals. 

Andy Harkin 22 June 2016 

Parking Parking Strategy Kevin McKee 22 June 2016 

Local 
Committee & 
Partnerships 

Nominations to task groups and partnership bodies Community 
Partnerships 

22 June 2016 

Details of future meetings 

Formal public 22 June 2016 7pm Guildford Borough Council Chamber * 

Formal public 
20 Sept 2016 7pm Guildford Borough Council Chamber * 

Formal public 
13 Dec 2016 7pm Guildford Borough Council Chamber * 

Formal public 
22 March 2017 7pm Guildford Borough Council Chamber * 

P
age 319

IT
E

M
 16



      

ANNEXE 1 

 

 
Please note the Forward Programme may be subject to change. 

Forward Programme 100316.doc 

Topic Purpose Contact Officers Proposed date  

Highways Highways Update John Hilder 22 June 2016 

Environment 
and 
Infrastructure 

Local Sustainable Transport Fund Closing report Nick Meadows/David 
Ligertwood 

22 June 2016 

Environment 
and 
Infrastructure 

Surrey Cycling Strategy Marc Woodall 22 June 2016 

Highways Project Horizon Update (TBC) Richard Bolton/John 
Hilder 

TBC 

20 Sept 2016 

Parking Parking geographical Areas  Andy Harkin 20 Sept 2016 

Highways Highways Update John Hilder 22 June 2016 

13 Dec 2016 

Highways Highways Update John Hilder 22 June 2016 

 
* Guildford Local Committee ‘Plus’ refers to the agreement undertaken in 2014 by both councils to extend joint working arrangements through this 
committee. 
** Meetings will be webcast. 
 

P
age 320

IT
E

M
 16


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	8 A31 HOG'S BACK GAP AT EAST FLEXFORD LANE (Executive Function for Decision)
	Annex 1 East Flexford Lane responses-Aug 2015

	9 ST JOSEPH'S SCHOOL ZEBRA CROSSING (For Information)
	10 GUILDFORD ON-STREET PARKING REVIEW - PROPOSALS FOR GEOGRAPHIC AREAS AND 'AD-HOC' LOCATIONS (Executive Function For Decision)
	Annex 1 Representations Summary
	Annex 3 Avondale area Proposals
	Annex 5 Effingham Junction Proposals
	Annex 7a Fairlands Revised Proposals Option1
	Annex 7b Fairlands Revised Proposals Option 2
	Annex 9 Merrow Proposals
	Annex 11 Shalford Revised Proposals
	Annex 13 Ad-hoc Locations Revised Proposals
	Annex 2 Avondale Area Representations
	Annex 4 Effingham Junction Representations
	Annex 6 Fairlands Representations
	Annex 8 Detailed Representations Merrow
	Annex 10 Detailed Representations Shalford
	Annex 12 Detailed Representations Ad-Hoc Locations

	11 Adoption of Additional Hackney Carriage Stands (Taxi Rank Space) in Guildford (Executive Function for Decision)
	Annex A Rank Locations ALL
	Annex B Bedford Road
	Annex C North Street Upper
	Annex D North Street Lower
	Annex E High Street Lower
	Annex F High Street Upper
	Annex G Millbrook

	12 GUILDFORD LOCAL CYCLING PLAN - MINOR IMPROVEMENTS (Executive Function for Decision)
	Annex A -Guildford Cycle Plan - minor improvements - lining, signing and conversions
	Annex B - Guildford Cycling Plan - Minor improvements - highway works

	13 Highways Update (Executive Function for Decision)
	Highways Update Annex 1 2015 to 2016 Scheme Progress March

	14 Transportation Task Group Update (For Information)
	TTG Work Plan 2016-17
	Annex 2 TTG Chairman's Update

	15 Decision Tracker (For Information)
	16 Forward Plan (For Information)
	Annex 1 Forward Programme 100316




